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(Note An asterisk (*) denotes. Nate number)

Accommodatmn Control ‘Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), ‘Section 12(1)(c) -
Chaﬁged the user af accommodation - Trigl Court passing a decree u/s
12(1)(c). and First Appellate Court affrmmg the findings - Held - First
Appellate Court ervéd in substantial error of law by affirming the judgment
and decree passed by the Trial Court ufs 1 2(1T )(c) without giving any reason.
[BhanwarlaI (Dead) Through L.Rs. Smt. Suslulal Bai v. Chandra Shekhar

, Vaslnshtha] X 3172

Accommodatlon Control Act M P. (41 of 1961), Section’ 12(1)(c)
Suit fa( eviction - Tepant inducted in the tenanted premises for residential

. purpose - Tenant converted one entire room-sityated at front side of tenanted
- premises, for STD/PCO Centre - Held - Act of-tenant is inconsistent with the
purpose of tenancy - Single act of the tenant is sufficient to cause his eviction

provided that the act is of gravity - Judgment & decree u/s 12(I1)}(c) of the
Act affirmed - Appeal dismissed. [Sahibram Dhingra {Died) Through L.R.
Narendra Dhingra v. Shivshankar Goyal] . ...3151

Accommodation Control Act, M.P; (41 of 1961), Section 12(D)() -
Acquired suitable accommodation for residential purpose - Tenant alleging that
the acquired property is in dilapidated condition - Held - Tenant admitted that
he is residing with his family in the purchased house it consists of nine rooms
plus latrine & bathroom having electrical and water fittings - Tenanit acquired a
suitable accommodation for his residence - Merely because First Appellate Court
has mentioned that tenant is also residing in the house purchased in the name of
his wife, would in itself is not a ground to hold that the tenant is not residing in
his own house - Decree dffirmed - Appeal dismissed. [Bhanwarlal (Died) Throu,,h
L.Rs. Smt. Sushilal Baiv. Chandra Shekhar Vashishtha] ..3172

g Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 3 Rule 2 - Power of attorney
- Power of artorney holder of the plaintiff may appear and depose only about
the facts which are within his knowledge and he cannot appear on behalf of

;- plaintiff to depose about the facts which are exclusively within the personal-
'knowledge of plaintiff. [Sahibram Dhmgra (Diedy Through L.R. Narendra:

Dhingra'v: Shivshankar Goyal] ..3151

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17 - Amendment of -

pleadings - Defendants filed an application seeking amendment in W.S. by
bringing on record an order passed by Additional Commissioner and filing

of another appeal - Application disallowed - Held - Defendants want to bring -
. on record the. subsequent events which in fact are undisputed - Such facts

are required to be broughr on record to do complete justice to the parties -
Plaintiffs cannot be allowed to take advantage of their own doings by saying
that such facts are nof required to be brought on record. [Ravindra Prakash v.
State of M.P.] ...3144
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Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule 11 - Refjection of
plaint - Duty of Court -~ Court is also required to see that the vexatious and
Jrivolous litigation should not be allowed to proceed so as to kill the time of
the Court for nothing. [Karim Bhai v, State of Maharashtra] 3167

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), -Ogjder 7 Rule 11 - Rejectian of

plaint - Powers'of Court - 4 plaint shall be rejected on the grounds mentioned
in the Rule, but the instances as given cannot be regarded as exhaustive of
all the cases, in which the Court can reject the plaint or is limiting the inherent
powers of the Court in respect thereof - Provisions are procedural and enacted
with an aim and object to prevent vexatious and frivolous litigation. [Karim
Bhai v. State of Maharashtra] ' ..3167

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule 11(a) - Re]ectwn of

plamt - Where it does not disclose a cause of action - Mere writing that
plaintiff is having cause of action would in itself is not sufficient to hold that
plamtyﬁ’ has disclosed the cause of acrron [Kanm thn v. State of Maharashtra]

..3167

Civil Procedure Code (5 uf 1908), Order.14 Rule S - Power to amend
and strike out issues - Suit for declaration of title of agricultural land -
Application for framing issue regardmg mamtamabzhrj of the suit on the

© pleadings that land in dispute-‘was subject maiter of the agriculture ceiling

matter pending before the Competent Authority, M.P. Ceiling on Agriculture
Holding Act - Application rejected - Held - Any decree passedin civil suif
shall not bind the Competent Authority whether Siate/Commissicier are party
or not a party to the civil suit - The question of maintainability of the suit will
have to be decided by the Civil Court - Such issue is required to be cast and
answered. [Ravindra Prakash v. State of M.P] ...3144

., Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 - See -
Representation of the People Act, 1951 Sect(on 87 [Ra_]kumar Patel v.
Shivraj Singh Chauhan] ..3063

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rule 1 --In election
petition application of adjournment supparted by medical certificate - Held -
Application not supported by affidavit - Name of author of the certificate is

not ascertainable and overwriting in the date- of commencement of ailment -

Trial had fo be adjourned at the request of the petitioner on five earlier
dates of hearing = It has led fo a ridiculous result as the evidence of the
petitionér is yet to be recorded in election tridl whereas, in the meanwhile, a

- fresh electzon to the Legislative Assembly has already been held - Apphcatmn
- rejected. [Rajkumar Patel v. Shivraj Singh Chauhan] ..3063

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rule 1, Proviso -
Interpreted in the hght of Salem Advocate Bar's case (2005) 6 SCC 344 - The

[
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question as to grant of further adjournment to the party, who has already been
able to get hearing of the trial adjourned on three occasions, would always
depend upon the facts and circumstances of each case - In other words, the
process of judicial interpretation has not made the proviso totally redundant,
otiose and nugatory. [Rajkumar Patel v. Shivraj Singh Chauhan] ...3063

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rule 2 - Procedure if
the parties failed to appear on the day fixed = In election petition on the
previous date of hearing last opportunity was given to the petitioner for
recording of his evidence - However, he has not been able to make out an
extreme case for grant of further adjournment - Consequently, the election
petition dismissed under Order 17 Rule 2 of the Code for want of evidence.
[Rajku;ilar Patel v. Shivraj Singh Chauhan] ...3063

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 21 Rule 97 - Resistance or - -, -

obstruction to possession of immovable property - Application/objection how fo
be adjudicated - Holding the inquiry by Executing Court does not mean fo adduce
the evidence but the inquiry means the satisfaction ‘of the Court in the available
circuimstances with respect of objections raised by the objectors - Court is not
bound to record the evidence or direct the parties to adduce the evidence in
support of the objections. [Shobha Mishra v. Vinod Kumar] ...3182

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 21 Rule 97 - Resistance or
obstruction io possession of immovable property - Married daughters of
deceased tenant filed objections that they were not impleaded as party and
no opportunity of hearing given to them, therefore, decree is not biuduig -
Held - Objectors did not have any right to inherit the tenancy right as member
of the family of deceased tenant - Objectors werz neither in possession of
the premises nor paid the rent - Objections rightly dismissed by executing
Caurt and appellate Court. [Shobha Mishra v. Vinod Kumar] ..3182

_ Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 43 Rule I(w) - Appeal -
Powers of appellate Court - Held - While considering the appeal under Order
43 Rule I(w), the appellate Court was- requ:red fo examine merits of the case
- The appellate Court has not cons:dered the earlier judgment on merits but
confined its order limited to the extent: of grantmg relief of mesne profit by
allowing review application by the trial Gourt. [Kamal Vasini Agarwal (Smt.)
v. Hindustan Petrolenm Corporation Ltd.]}-. - ..3128

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 47 Rale 1 - Review - Powers ;

of trial Court - Can a Court modify its earlier judgment when such question .~

. was not considered in earlier judgment - Held .-. No - Such recourse was not
available to the trial Court - Modifying the decree by allowing mense profit .
was beyond the scope of Order 47 Rule 1 of CPC, when such question was
not at all considered in the earlier judgment. [Kamal Vasini Agarwal (Smt.) v.
Hindustan Petroleum Corporatton Ltd.] ...3128
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Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 47 Rule 4 - Whether a
First Appeal u/s 96 CPC would be maintainable or a Miscellaneous Appeal
under Oder 43 Rule 1, against an order allowing an application under Order
47 Rule 4 - Held - If an order under Rule 4 of Order 47 CPC granting an
application of review is passed then Miscellaneous Appeal would lie and not
a First Appeal: [Kamal Vasini Agarwal (Smt )v. Hmdustan Petroleum Corporatlon
Ltd.] 23128

Civil Services (Classnﬁcatlon, Control & Appeal) Rules, M P. 1966,
Rule 10 -, See - Service Law [Prakash Chandra Prasad v. State of M. P] 3139

Civil Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule” 42(1)(a)
Permissibility - Withdrawal of application for voluntary retirement after expiry
of period of notice - Held - No relationship of employer-employee confinued
or existed between them subsequent thereto - Withdrawal wot permissible.

- {Ruksana Begum Siddiqui v. State of MLP.] Qo . ...3072

Civil Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule 42(1)(a) - Services
rendered by teacher after the expiry of the period. of notice and withdrawal
of application for voluntary retirement - Effect - Held - Work taken by
Principal subsequent to the date of voluntary retirement without taking any
perm:sswn from the Competent Authority would be at the risk and cost of the =

Principal himself, who was not competent to cither daccept the application

for voluntary retirement or extend the period of voluntary retirement - Teacher
stood voluntarily retired Vi.e f expiry of period of notice - Petition dismissed.

[Ruksana Begum Siddiqui v. State of M.P.] ‘ . ...3072
Constitution, Article 215 - See - Contempt of Courts Act, 1971,
Section 12 [Horilal v. Bhajanlal] . ...3061

Constitution, Article 226 - Bank guarantee - Bank guarantee was liable
to be encashed. against any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be
caused to or suffered by reason of any breach.of contract - Department fuiled to
intimate the. Bank any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be caused to

_or suffered by department by reason of any breach of contract - Held - Condition

of Bank guaraniee while directing Bank to encash remained uncomplied -
Department not entitled to encash Bank guarantee Petition allowed. [G.V. Pratap
Reddy v. M.P. Rural Road Development Authonty, Bhopal] ©...3079

Contempt of Courts Act (70 of 1971), Section 12, Constltutlon,

Article 215 - Maintainability of Contempt. Petzt:on Jor execution of a decree

passed By competent civil Court - Held - Not maintainable - When the Code

- "-of Civil Procedure provides jor instititing a proceeding for execution of the

judgment & decree, then a contempt application under-Article 215 of
Constitution r/w 8. 12 of Act is not maintainable as the statute provides for a
mechanism for execution of the decree passed. [Horilal v. Bhajanlal] ...3061
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Court Fees Act (7 of 1870), Section 7(iv)(c) - Payment of ad valorem
court fees - Sale deed executed by father binding on the son - Held - Ad
valorem court fees on the valuation of the sale deed is required to be paid -
Even if the relief is couched in declaratory form, the relief of avoidance
and/or cancellation is implicit in the declaratory relief contained in plaint.
[Israt Jahan (Smt.) v. Rajia Begum] CoL 3107

Court Fees Act (7 of 1870), Schedule II, Article 17 - Ad valorem
court fee - Yoid & voidable transaction - Sale deed.obtained by playing
fraud - Document is void not voidable - Held - In case of a void document ‘it
is not necessary to seek the relief of cancellation of document - Ad valorem
court fees is not payable. [Manzoor Ahmad v. Jaggi Bai] T3

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 154 - FIR -
FIR is not a substantive piece of evidence - Can be used for contradiction

and corroboration. [State of M.P. v. Habib Ahmad] . ...3187
Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 154 - See -
"‘Penal Coa’e 1860, Section 376 [Na.nda v. State of M.P.] ..3221

Cnmmal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 - Non-
comphance - There is prompt FIR - Police reached on the spot immediately -
Spot map prepared mentioning the crime number etc - Dead body sent for
postmortem mentioning the summary story of case - Assault by respondent No.1-
also mentioned in application addressed to Doctor - Non-compliance of S. 157
would not be fatal fo the prosecution. {State of M.P. v. Habib Abmad] ...3187

Criminal-Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 - Spot map
- Spot map prepared in the presence of eye.-withesses - Eye witness also
signatory to spot map - If the place where thé witness was standing is not
shown, it would not dilute the case of the prosecution. [State of M.P. v. Habib
Ahmad] ...3187 -

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 158 & 173(3) -
Further investigation - Superintendent of Police, Special Police Establishment .
informed Special Judge that further investigation has been started in pending
trial - Challenged the legality, eriforceability and effect - Held - Superior officer
may give such instructions to the officer in charge of the police station as he
thinks fit, and shall afier recording such instructions on such report, transmit
the same without delay to the Magistrate - In such a case, the special officer is
required to submit-his personal report along with the report of the officer in
charge of the police statior. [Prashant Pathak v. State of M.P.] ...3234

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 158 ‘& 173(3)
- Permission/Order of Magistrate for further investigation not necessary -
Section 173(3) makes it clear that officer especially appointed u/s 158,
pending orders of the Magistrate, may direct the officer in charge of Police
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Station to make further investigation - Officer in charge is only required to give
an information to the concerned Magistrate - However, his authority to issue
instructions to officer in charge of Police Station to make further investigation
cannot be short circuited. [Prashant Pathak v. State of M.P] -0 ..3234

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 173(3), (8) &
138 - Where a superior officer of police appointed u/s 158 direct the officer
in charge of the pohce station to make further investigation - Procedure
after further investigation - S. 173(3) is governed and confrolled by S. 158
shall continue to be applicable if the original report was required to be filed
by an. officer especially appointed by the State Government - Then the’
supplementary challan / additional report will also have to be filed by such .
authorised officer and none other. [Prashant Pathak v. State of M.P:] ...3234

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 173(8) -
Permission/Order of Magistrate for further investigation not necessary -
S.173(8) of Cr.P.C. opens with non-obstante clause - S. 173(8) nowhere
provides that for further investigation permission/sanction from concerned
Magistrate to whom report has already been f iled, is required. [Prashant»
Pathak v. State of M.P] - - ..3234

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 173(8) -Where
officer in charge of police station himself can proceed further investigation
- Procedure afier further investigation. -. When officer in charge of police
station obtains further evidence -oral qr‘ documentary, he shall forward to
the Magistrate a further report/reports, regarding sich evidence - After further
investigation, officer in charge of police station would be entitled to file
supplementary challan - Such supplementary challan is required to be filed
in accordance with S. 173(2) of Cr.P.C. - Once the supplementary challan is
treated to be a regular challan then provisions of Sub-section (2) to (6) shall
apply mutatis mutandis. [Prashant Pathak v. State of M.P.] ..3234

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 174 Inquesr
report - Eye witnesses claimed to be present on spot but no enquiry was
made by police - Investigating Olfficer did not join eye witnesses of incident .
in inquest proceedings - Inquest proceedings were conducted before other
witnesses - It is also mentioned that no eye witness was available and cause
of death was aiso not known. - Above facts®cast serious doubt on the truthfulness
of evidence of eye witness. [Lal Bahadur Dubey v. State of M.P.] =~ ...3214

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 215 - See -
Penal Code, 1860, Section 376(2)(g), 376 [Subhash v. State of M.P.] ...3226

Essential Commodities Act {10 of 1955), Section 3 r/w 7, Motor
Spirit and High Speed Diesel (Prevention of Malpractices in Supply and
Pistribution) Order, 1990, Clause 5 - Tanker filled with kerosene parked at
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the HSD Pump - A pipe for discharging kerosene from the tanker into the
HSD tank was duly fitted in the corresponding nozzle - Appellants convicted
u/s 3/7 of the Act for making an attempt to commit adulteration in HSD -
Held - Sample drawn from HSD tank was not found fo be adulterated -
Appellants had made preparation to commit the violation of Order, 1990 -~
However, possibility of commission of offence was not relévant as it is the
" actual commission of act in atfempting to commit offence that constitutes
offence of attempt - Conviction & sentences set-aside - Appeal allowed. [Mohd

Shamim v, State of M.P.] . . ..3201
. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 - See - Penal Code, 1860, Section
302 [State of M.P. v. Habib Ahmad] ..3187

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 - Witness - Principles dealmg
with appreciation of evidence in Crzmrnal matter - Law discussed. [Baljnath v.

State ofM P] R SC...3041
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sgctmns 3, 7 & 8 - See - Penal Code,
1860, Section 302 [Devendra Singh @ Pappu v. Statt” of M.P.] *47

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 5 - Evidence of police a_ﬂ' icer -
None of Panch witnesses came forward to corroborate prosecution version —
In absence of any motive for false implication, evidence of LO. cannot be

underestimated merely because he is a pohce officer. [Mohd. Shamlm v. State - '(

of MP] | . 3201 -

Evidence Act’ (1 of 1872), Secuon 6 - Res.gestae - Eye witness PW- -
4 informed PW-3 about the incident who further informed Kotwar PW-2,
who lodged the FIR - Evidence of PW-4 corroborated by PW-3 & PW-2 -
Statement of PW-3 is admissible as res gestae ewdence [Baijnath .v. State of

M.P] - SC...3041
. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 9- See Penal Code, 1860 Section

'376 [Subhash v. State of M.P.] ) - ..3226

... Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 32(2) & -67 - Medical report -
How. can be proved if doctor not available - Medical report should be proved
by examining doctor who medically examined the victim - In case doctor was
not available, the report can be proved-by examining any other employee of
the same hospital like ward boy or nurse who were acquainted with the
handwriting & signature of the doctor - Same could have been admissible in
evidence as per provision u/s 32(2) of Act because the medical report was
given by the doctor in discharging his professional duty. [Subhash v. State of
MP} , o ..3226

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 - Age of prosecutrix - Margiﬁ
of error - Age of prosecutrix assessed above 14 and below 16 years on the
basis of findings of radiological examination of joints comprising radius,
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ulna & feniur bones and crest of ilium - Admrssmn of doctor of margm of
error-gf:2. years on both sides was misconceived as ossification test was not
confined-fo x-ray examination of a single bone only - Margm of error could
be 6 months. [Nanda v. State of M.P.] ..3221

. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 Expert opinion’- Rigar mortis

- Presence of rigor mortis varies from person to person - There is no barometer
" in order fo.indicate that when the process af rigor mortis would start, [State
of M.P. v. Habib Ahmad] . _ ..3187

Evidence Act (1 .of 1872), Sectmn 67, Speclﬁc Relief Act, 1963, Sectlon
20 - Agreement to—sell executed by an illiterate person - Proof of execution - - No
specific denial that the sale agreement bears thumb impression of illiterate person
- Plaintiff's husband stated on oath that he had paid the amount to the illiterate

person and aﬂer counting the money illiterate person had puf his.thumb - .

impression on the sale agreement - In absence of cross-examination on this point,
- it would be presumed to be correct - It may also be presumed that illiterate person -
" was well aware of the contents of the document on which he puts his thumb
* impression, unless he pleads and proves that the money received by him was for
'~ sorie another parﬁcular purpose. [Omprakash v. Dharma Bai} ..3177

Evidence-Act (1 of 1872), Section 102 - On whom burden of proof
lies - Tenant contenteaf consent of plaintiff for installation of STD/PCO centre
- Tenant fa:led to prove factum of having obtained consent - It was not
necessary far the plamt:jj’ to appear in-witness box for denial of fact which
itself has ot been proved at all. [Sahibram Dhmgra (Died) Through L.R.
Narendra Dhingra v. Shivshankar Goyal] - : ..3151

Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1) - Divorce - Broken
marriage - The Act do not provide for divorce merely on the ground of broken
marriage. [Vijay Prakash Chaturvedi v. Preeti Chaturvcdi] ...3158

Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section }3(1)(13) Cruelty -
Husband was Captain in Indian Army at the time af marriage - Allegation
that wife wanted the husband to leave his job and join her father engaged in
 the business. of contractor - Held - Hisband did not produce & prove his
. father-m-law § régistration as contractor - Husband also not furnished details
of sites, and copies of work orders - No iota of gvidence fo establish that his
father-m -law ‘was engaged in business of contractor - Trial Court rightly
) concluded that it was not probable that wife would insist the husband to
- leave a well salaried and well reputed permanent job of Indian Army - Curelry

not proved [Vijay Prakash Chaturvedi v. Preeti Chaturvedi] ..3158

Hmdu Marnage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1)(ia) - Cruelty - Threat

of Implzcatmg husband and his family members in criminal case - No witness

examined "for corroboration of such bald allegations - Allegation not found
proved. [Vijay Prakash Chaturvedi v. Preeti Chaturvedi] ...3158




INDEX (19)

16 78 ¥ 9 fgiRa @Y 718 — M7 R 2 af 3 FfE @ afex B Fafeors @ @iy
BT Tad el T T P AT TE o B 1 afel B TeH—3Y q0ET a6
Wﬁww—gﬁmaﬁme%%’rmm| Far fa 7y us) L3221

maﬁﬁm(wnmﬂww—ﬁﬁwaﬁm 0 & §HY ©R
1% IS ol IRMY BT e — ams B vkl @i & wfe aRaRi g §
—wwﬁhwﬁﬁmaﬁﬁaﬂﬁaﬁéﬁimmaﬁ?ﬁﬁma%waﬁ
wfsar wre B (M s Y edE aee) 0 g 3187

W AR (1872 @1 1), =Rl 67, fafif¥w sy aﬁlﬁm 1963,
9T 20 — 3FUg @fr FRT Prenfie Rw sgae - foee ot w9 - B
ﬁﬁﬁewﬁﬁﬁﬁmmwmwﬁﬁmmﬁ?ﬁ% el B
Ry 319 W B Rt R S e f BT eFRIRT ofET @ off ik arFs @f
F eI FF @ A fapd et OY o siver Premeh e o — 9 g ®
ARTHET B ST ¥ 5D T BT 3 SuERen 9t SRl — aw ) SueRen @ s
" P avE @it B awa, R TSR argeT Sivet R o, @Y s @
. E oI, 919 O 9% UE ARG iR IR T BxaT %S9 gRT Wi A T oF

ﬁﬂﬁ@iﬁﬁmnﬁm?ﬁf%ﬁaﬂl@ﬁwqmﬁ el 9TE) 3177

_ Warﬁhﬁaﬁ(w?zaﬂﬂammz—wﬁrﬂﬂﬁmwﬁm%—
W#W?ﬁ%ﬂ/ﬁﬁaﬁ e & & fo O @Y Wi @1 afiae fear —
PRRER Tafy AT T B 7o 3T Wia T 3 Rwt Wwr— 918 @ R I8 aaws
T o1 5 e W ST B Ry oER 3 UReIT SISt R e @ S e ) e
] w1(w%waﬁ7m@aa)mﬁmuﬁﬁﬁawm&ﬁwm) L3151

ﬁﬁﬁmﬁarﬁrﬁm(wsswzs) am13(1)—ﬁm€ﬁﬁa LCILE ?’
faare - Wmmmﬁwwﬁmﬁ%@ammawmﬁl
(ﬁﬁawaﬁaﬁﬁrma@aﬁ) ot . 3158

feg faqre aferfram (1955a?r25) ETRT13(1)(|)—EIW?IT qfq faaw @ -
WA ARG W91 F e o — Afwer & uoll At off 5 ufy araeft Aed vis 2
. 3R S AT B WRI DI BT AR B — AREEIRT = U ¥ AT R B
I B = ¥ ol 49T SR WRE W) At - afY Y wriver w1 RaRv ok SRR
ﬁnﬁﬁﬁmﬁnﬁ,ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ Ig AT o B fU Wi e 9 {5 Swe R
SHENT BT FREAR BT & — foaRer =™ 3 Sfig oy § 97 frey o 6 a8 s
TR 8T o {6 oot afy &7 IRt S97 91 e dae 3R S=a mfaset arell el e
Bied & o e axedl — sxar Wifde 18| (o worr agddt R iRy agdd) 3158

fog, faare aftifrm (1955 &1 25). ORT 13(1)F) ~ YT — TR 3R SHD
TRAR B TR B D AR A T B o — X e ey # e -
& ferg foely aeft oo o 71 et =iy — aifwem Wi g 798 TR T | (R
weETe Tgdel fa. fif agddl) ..3158




(20) - INDEX .

Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1)(ib) - Desertion -
Essential Conditions - (i) factum of separation (ii) intention to bring
cohabitation permanenrly to an end (animus deserendi) - Essential conditions
Jor deserted spouse - (i) absence of consent (ii) absénce of conduct giving

reasonable cause to the spouse leaving matrimonial home to form necessary

intention. [Vijay Prakash Chaturvedi v. Preeti Chaturvedi} ..3158

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 107 & 257 - Suit

challenging ord,er effecting correction in revenue map Revenue officers
named in 8,107 alone are competent to take action in respect of correction
. inthe revente map - Jurisdiction of Civil Court excluded u/s 257 - Suit rightly
<! held not mamz‘amable - Appeal dismissed. [Nagar Panchayat, Aron v. Shanit
" *Bai] o . *49

antatmn Act (9 of 1908), Article 142 - Suit.for possession must be o

brought within 12 years of drspassessron Plaintiff failed to file any document
in order to demonstrate his possession within 12 years of filing of suit - Date
of dispossession is also not disclosed - On the contrary, revenue record
showing possession of defendant - Held - Suit barred by limitation - Appeal
. allowed. [Maniram v. Harlklshan] . *¥48

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deve]opment' Act (27 of
2006), Section 19 - Applicafion for setting-aside decree, award or order -

Deposit of 75% of the.amq@mt.. in terms of decree, award or as the case may :
- be, in the manner directed by such Court,-is mandatory pre-condition to - -
entertain such application. {R_S. Avtar Smgh & Co (M/s.) .v. Vindyachal Air

Products Pvt. Ltd.] - ..*%50

Micro, Small and Medmm Enteranes Development. Act (27 of
2006), Section 19 Proviso - Proviso to S.'19-empowers the Court to pass
appropriate order with respect to disbursement’ of the amount fo. the supplier
on conditions as it considers reasonable.-under. the circumstances of the case
to impose - Considering the proviso 50% of the amount is ordered to be
disbursed to respondent No.l remaining amountle.i % shall be invested in the
fixed depasit to be disbursed in terms of final decision. [R.S. Avtar Singh &

Co. (M/s.) .v. Vindyachal Air Products Pvt. Ltd.] ' . *50

MICI‘O,_ Small and Medium Enteranes Development Act (27 of
2066), Section 19 - The words used in S 19 "in the manner directed by the .
Court” cannot be interpreted so as to dilute the very requirement of deposit.

" of 75% amount itself [R.S. Avtar Slngh& Co. (M/s.) .v. Vindyachal Air Products
Pvt. Ltd] . . *¥50

Motor Spirit and High Speed Diesel (Prevention of Malpractlces
in Supply and Distribution) Order, 1990, Clause 5 - See - Essential
Commodities Act, 1955, Section 3 r/w 7 [Mohd. Shamim v. State of M. P.]...3201
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» National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) - Detention
challenged on the ground that allegations against the pefitioner are general
in nature and no proper investigation has been done - Held - Pefitioner has
., indulged in looting, arson, stone-pelting and as .a consequence disturbed
the communal harmony and has created enmity ‘between the two communities
- He has caused public disorder in the town - Acts of the petitioner have
creafed panic'in town and has put fear in general public'- Members of general
public do not dare to lodge a report against the pei'zt:oner Therefore, it has
become essential to initiate action-against him u/s 3{2) of the Act and pass
. the order of detention - Petition dismissed. [Tahir v. _State of M. P] ..3101

National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) - Detention -
Challenged that others who participated in the communal riots have not been
detained under the Act and are only facing regular trials in criminal courts
and witnesses in the criminal cases against the pefitioner are turned hostile
- Held - These facts are not relevant for deciding whether the detention of
the petitioner under the-Act was necessary - DM was satisfied on the materials
that it was necessary considering the active role played by the petitioner in
communal riots fo-detain him ynder the Act and not to detain others who may
have relatively a lesser‘role -tk the communal riots - The order of detention
cannot be held to be bad. .F¥ahir v. State of M.P.] ..3101°

Negotlab‘le Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138 & 141 -
Dishonour of cheque -~ Appellant was General Manager of the Company and
was held vicariously liable for Company for the offence u/s 138 - Conviction
challenged - Held - No specific role attributed to him in the complaint - No
notice was given to him - No evidence that at the relevant ftime appellant was

in charge and responsible for the conduct of the business of the Company -
" Conviction & sentence set-aside - Appeal allowad [Ramraj Smgh v. State of
M.P] S€...3035

. Notaries Act (53 of 1952), Section 8, Notanes Rules, 1956, Rule 4 -
:“Application for appointment as a notary - Memorial of the petitioner not
countersigned by a manager of a nationalized Bank - Since the application was
incomplete he could not be appointed as' notary - Action challenged - Held - Use
of word "shall” in sub-rule (3) of Riile 4-and also in the note appended to Form-
I raises a strong presumption thdt the provision is mandatory - Memorial was
incomplete as it was not countersigred as required by sub-rule (3)(b) of Rule 4
- Petition dismissed. [Panah Mohammed v. State of M.P.] ..3148

Notaries Rules, 1956, Rule 4 - Incomp[ete memorial - No such pr'o'vision
dn the Rules making it obligatory on the Competent Authority to inform the
applicant about the defect in the application (memorial) and get it corrected -
Only amapplication which complies with the requirement of Rule 4 is considered
by the Competent Authorify w/R 6. [Panah Mohammed v. State of M.P.] ...3148
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Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993 (1 of 1994),
Section 40 - SDO ordering the removal of Sarpanch including disqualification
to contest the election - Enguiry conducted by CEQ on complaint was not bipartite
- No opportunity fo cross-examine witnesses afforded - In the proceedings w/s
40 of the Adhiniyam, none of the witnesses including complainant whose.
statements were recorded by the Inquiry Officer, were examined - Opportunity to
cross-examine witnesses and 1o adduce evidence was also not afforded - No due
and proper enquiry was conducted by the SDQ - Denial of fair hearing resulted
in serious prejudice to petitioner - Case remitted to SDO - Petition allowed.
- [Manita Jaiwar (Smt.) v. State of M.P.] ..3067

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 201 - Causing d:sappearance of
evidence - No iota of evidence that cloths of respondent No.l were seized
Jrom the house of respondent No.2 - No evidence that respondent No.2 washed
the blood stained cloths of respondent No.l - Acquittal proper. [State of M.P. -
" v. Habib Ahmad] ..3187

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evndence Act, 1872, Section
3 - Reliability of witness - Deceased a pillion rider going on scooter With eye
witness - After stopping the scooter, deceased was assaulted’by knife -
Conduct of eye witness in not informing the family members of the deceased
about the incident and running away from the place of occurrence imniediately
after the incident not unnatural as no one would dare to remain present - As
this witness became perplexed, he could not see the other witnesses - Witness
reliable. [State of M.P. v. Habib Ahmad} ..3187

. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act 1872, Sections
© 3, 7 & 8 - Murder - Circumstantial evidence - dppellant's wife mer wirth
homicidal death - Appellant was present wifh deceased in his house and
toak her to hospital - Appellant had given false intimation to police about
consumption of poisonous substance by.deceased - Appellant was having
doubt on the character of deceased and also ill treating her - No explanation
that how the degeased met a homicidal death - All these circumstances
sufficient to bring home the guilt of appellant beyond reasonable doubt -
Conviction u/s 302 IPC mamtamed Appeal dismissed. [Devendra Singh @

Pappu v. State'of M.P.] . ¥47

.Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Allegafmn that
deceased was taken to room by dragging and assaulting and thereafter coiled
a cable wire around his neck and pulled it from both ends and thereafter was
hanged - However, only one ligature mark was found on the neck with mark
of knot on the left side of ligature - There should have been 2 ligature marks
in case the cable wire was coiled around his neck - Evidence of withesses
contrary to medical evidence - It creates doubt about truthfulness of witnesses.
[Lal Bahadur Dubey v. State of M.P.] ...3214
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial
evidence - Last seen together - Deceased was seen for the last time in the
company of the appellant when he was taking the deceased, his step mother,
fo his House against her wishes and also assaulted her - Appellant bound to
explain that thereafter where she was taken and left by him - In absence of
such explanation there is sufficient material on record to draw inference
that it was appellant who caused the alleged mjunes and committed her
murder. [Nehru Singh v. State of M.P.] ..3205

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial ev:dencer
- Motive - Deceased, step mother of appellant was given 1/3 share in ancestral
property - Appellant was not happy with partition - Deceased was also not.residing .
with appelilant - "Appellant could have got her share only after her demise -
Motive of appellant could be assumed that in the > temptation of praperty he had
committed murder. [Nehru Singh v. State of M Bls o= - ..3205

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - .Murder - Dead 'body of -
deceased found hanging in the room - Room was found bolted from inside -
There is no eviderice'ion record to indicate that there was any other door or

outlet in room rThrs creates serious dent in prosecutron story. [Lal Bahadur
Dubey v. State of M. P.] ..3214

Penal Code (45.0f 1860), Section 363 I(:dnappmg Word 'takes’
does not necessary connote taking by force und is not-confined only to use
of force, actual or constructive but means ‘to cause to gb’, 'to esco).” or 'fo
get into possession’. [Nanda v. State of M.P.] - : ..3221

Penal Cede (45 of 1860), Section 376, Criminal Procedure Code,
1973, Section 154 - Delay in lodging FIR - FIR was lodged after the father
returned back to home as reputation of the family and future of the prosecutrix

were at stake - Explanation is sufficient and- deflay ,m lodgmg FIR is -
inconsequential. [Nanda v. State of M.P)] SRR 3221~

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section. 376, Evndence Act, 1872 Sectmn
9 - No' test zdentlf cation parade - Effect < Frosecytrix’ remamed m company
of agcciised persons for a pretty long time - She had. suff icient time io see,
identify and keep their features and personality in mind - Description and
features of accused persons was stated in FIR which was lodged without any
delay.- No harm would cause to prosecution case if no test identification
parade was held. [Subhash v, State of M.P.] ...3226

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 - Rape - Absence of injuries -
Prosecutrix has stated about pain and sufferings - Neither prosecution nor
Court took pain to brought the medical report on record in accordance with,
provisions of Evidence Act - However, FSL report is sufficient to corroborate
the statement of prosecutrix. [Subhash v. State of M.P.] : ...3226
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) - Gang rape - Prosecutrix
‘an unmarried minor girl - Presence of semen and human spermatozoa in
slide of vaginal swab. as well as on her Kurti is very incriminating evidence
and corroborating to testimony of prosecutrix. [Subhash v. State of M.P.]...3226

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g), 376, Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973, Section 215 - Defect in charge - Appellants charged -
simplicitor for offence w/s 376 of IPC - Not mentioned that they commitfed -
sexual intercourse with prosecutrix in furtherance of common intention -
Appellants’ conviction converted from S. 376(2)(g) to S. 376 IPC and sentenced
_ to 7 years RI - Appeal partly allowed. [Subhash v. State of M.P.] ...3226

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A - Cruelty - Illicit relations -
Hlicit relations with another women being first wife alive, could not be treated
to be the act of cruelty - Wife also could not state any specific act of. cruelty
or harassment - Particulars like Aate, place and time of incident also not
stated - Mere vague allegations of demanding some articles could not deemed
that any such demand was ever made - Acquittal of respondents proper -
Leave refused. [State of ML.P. v. Santosh_,Kli_mgr] . ¥52

Prisoners' Release on Probation Act, M.P. (16 of 1954), Section 9,
Prisoners' Release on Probation Rules, M.P 1964, Rule 2 - Consideration
Jor release - Held - The manner of commission of offence is a relevant
consideration - In the instant case, petitioners along with others committed
brutal and preplanned murder with lethal weapons in broad day ligh’ - Not
entitled for release on licence under the provisions of the Act and rules - No
perversily or material irregularity found in rejecting the application of the
petitioners for releasing on probation. {Siyaram v. State of M.P]. . *51

Prisoners' Release on Probation Rules, M.P 1964 Rulke 2. See -
Prisoners®; Reiease on Prabatwn Act, M.P, 1954, Sectign-9*{Siyaram v. State
of ML, S %51

Rn}ya buraksha Adhiniyam, M.P., 1990 (4 of 1991), Section S(b) -
Removal of person about to commit offence - Externment - Ingredients when
not attracted - Held - If a person was engaged in commission of offence or
in abetment of an offence of type mentioned in S. 5(b), several years or'
several months back, there cannot be any reasonable ground for believing
that the person is engaged or is about to be engaged in commission of such
offence. [Ashok Kumar Patel v. State of M.P.] ...3090

Rajya Suraksha Adhiniyam, M.P., 1990 (4 of 1991), Section 5(b) -
Removal of person about to commit offence - Externment - Ingredients when
not attracted - In absence of any existence of material to show that witnesses
are not coming forward by a reason of apprehension to danger 1o their person
or property to give evidence against the concerned person in respect of
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alleged offences, an order u/s 5(b) of the Act cannot be passed by District
Magistrate by merely repeating the Ianguage of 8. 5(b) of the Act. [Ashok
Kumar Patel v. State of M.P.] ..3090

Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section 87, Civil
Procedure Code, 1908, Order 17 - It is well settled - The provisions of
Order 17 of the Code are applicable to an ‘elect:on petition. [Ra_lkumar Patel
. v. Shivraj Singh Chauhan] , ..3063

Service Law - Civil Services (Classgﬁcatwn, C'ontrol &Appeaﬂ Rules,
M.P 1966, Rule 10 - Warning - ASJ has made certain observations against
the SDM (petitioner) in his order - On this basis show cause notice issuedl
and thereafier a warning was issued to petitioner - Held - An opportunity
was given to the petitioner and there has been adequiaté ¢compliance with the
prmcxple of natural justice ~ Competent Authority considered the facrs and
circumstances of the case and thereafter passed the order of warning which .
doés not constitute punishment - Pentzon dismissed. [Prakash Chandra Prasad

v. State of M.P.] . ..3139
Service Law - Civil Serv:ces (Class:f c’atwn, Control &Appeal) Rules,
M.P. 1966, Rule 10 - W’ammg Whether.is'a punishinent - Held - No --

“Warning is not a penalty’ Jn -‘Rule 10 and as such does not reqmre > the detailed |
- enquiry procedure as contemplated under Rule 147 It"will not come on the
" way of the petitioner for his ﬁlrther promotion, [Prakash Chanidra Prasad v.
State of M. P] -

career - Permtss:bzhty Héid & 'qr permissible - But once the employer {odk
. up the claim and on:the -basis of ‘mark-sheet of Board of Secondary Ediication
placed by employee reférreﬂ the matter to the Age Determination Committee,
“employer is estopped fo raive a plea that there has been ,:be?ated appreach by
the employee - It is a somersault which has to be taken -exception to - The
same is not permissible. [South Eastern Coalfields Ltd. v. Nijamuddin] ...3053

Service Law - Depdrtmental Promotion Committee - Powers of judicial
review by High Court- Can the High Court reassess the findings of the,
Departmental -Promotion Committee - Held - No - Normally, High Court or
the Tribunal should not sit as an appellate court over the decision of the
selectwn committee and should not take the task-of selection on itself by
considering the fitness of the candidates unless there are mala fides or the
selection is arbitrary. [Amolak Singh Chhabra v. State of M.P.] ..3046

Service Law - Disciplinary proceedings - Joint enquiry - Quantum of
punishment - Three officials tried in a joint enquiry - All three awarded
punishment - In appeal, the penalty of two officials reduced substantially
but the appeal filed by the petitioner dismissed and punishment of demotion
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was maintained - Held - Petitioner has been singled out in regard to imposition
of penalty by awarding a severe penalty as against the other two similarly
Placed employees - Respondents directed to reconsider the matter keeping
view that in a joint enquiry other two employees have been awarded lesser
_punishment. [Jeevanram v. State of M.P.] - ...3125

Service Law - Judicial Review - Decision of the Age Determination
Committee - Order passed by the authorities suffers from procedural
irregularity - Procedural irregularity would include where relevant Jactors
have not been considered - Age Determination Committee has not considered
at all mark-sheet of Board of Secondary Education - Held - An error has
crept in the decision of the Committee as it has ignored the mark-sheet of
Board of Secondary Education which reflects the date of birth. [South Eastern

Coalfields Ltd. v. Nijamuddin] - « 7 ..3053

Service Law - Standing Order No.79 {Revised-w:ef:~04.10.2007),
Clause 2k}« Modification in cut off date of age for. recruitmerit - Pefitioner
cpntﬁ_i:fdg#that modification in Clause 2(b) of Order 79 w.e.f -04.10.2007
" Le, much after the advertisement dated 15-21.09.2007 avid was thus not
. applicable retrospectively for u recruitment process of Sub-Inspectors in RPF/

RPSF aqlready initiated - Held - Medification was in pursuance to decision
dated 31.07.2007 which was tafen before the issuance of advertisement -
There being no accrual of right in favour of the petitioner - The contention
that change of cut off date for the purpose ‘of age has prejudicially #2cted
the chance of the petitioner to participate in the selection is of no consequence
because the entitlement of a person is only for consideration and the same is
on the basis of the rules in vogue - Petition dismissed. [Ashwini Kumar Mishra
v=-Fnion of India) ...3133

- - Service Law - State Road Transport Employees Conduct, Discipline
and Appeal Regulations, M.B 975, Regulations 34 & 36 - Inquiry Officer -
Competence - An authority under the regulation could be delegated the power
to inquire into the truth by the Competent Authority as Inguiry Officer. -
Admittedly, Inquiry Officer posted on deputation as Deputy Secretary and
not an employee of Corporation - His substantive post was Professor in Higher
Educdtion Department - Consequently, enquiry conducted by such officer is
against the provisions of Regulations and beyond his power - Proceedings
null & void - Appointment of Inquiry Officer and subsequent Dproceedings
conducted by him quashed - Petition allowed. [Mohd. Ismail Khan v. M.P.
Road Transport Corporation] ‘ ..3115

.- Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Suit for specific
performance of contract - When plaintiff has to prove that he was bona fide
purchaser -—-Suit resisted by defendants that there was earlier agreement and
this fact was in the knowledge of plaintiff - Held - No such agreement was
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placed on record - On the contrary, defendants have not even appeared in
the witness box to establish the existence of earlier agreement - Plaintiff and
her husband ‘had nowhere admitted the existence of earlier agreement - In
absence of establishment of earlier agreement, plaintiff was not required to
prove that she was bona fide purchaser - Decree Jor specific performance
rightly granted by the first appellate Court. [Omprakash v. Dharma Bai]...3177

State Road Transport Employees Conduct, Discipline and Appeal
Regulations; M.P. 1975, Regulations 34°& 36 - See - Service Law [Mohd.

- Ismall Khan.v. M.P. Road Transport Corporatlon] ‘ L3115

. Value Added Tax Act, M.P. (20~ of 2002), Section 70 - Whefher
Emuls:ﬁed Bifumen would not fall under Entry No. 16 of Schedule II Part 2
appended to the Act - Held = Yes - Bifumen, and Emuisified Bitumen are two
different commodztles in the commercial-world, though use of the sard articles
some times may be common, but some times, even the cost of the use as would
also requive to be considered fo vary “and use of the new product which is
commertially different economically to some extent. [Tiki Enterprises (M/s.) v-
Commissioner of Commercial Tax, M.P., Inodre] ) ...3098
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APPOINTMENT TO THE MADHYA PRADESH HIGH COURT

We congratulate Shri Piyush Mathur on his appointment as Judge of the
High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Shri Piyush Mathur took oath of the High
Office on 14th of October, 20009.

-

k.

JUSTICE PIYUSH MATHUR

Born on 12th of March 1960 at Shajapur in the family of Advocates. Passed B.A.
(Hons.) in 1980 and LL.B (Gold Medalist) in 1983. Practiced as an Advocate for 25
years. Six years Experience of conducting Original Civil Matters and variety of Criminal
Trials in District Court and Revenue Matters, two year work experience of appearing
in Constitutional and Appellate Litigation at the Supreme Court of India, Currently
practicing as an Arguing Counsel on Constitution & Appellate side before the Indore
Bench of High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Worked as Additional Standing counsel for
Union of India (Bhabha Atomic Research Centre/Centre for Advance Technology,
Indore) in Large Number of Cases and Land Acquisition Appeals before the High
Court of Madhya Pradesh. Was Government Advocate for the State of M.P. for a
period of three year from 1995 to 1998. Was counsel for the Local & Corporate Bodies
as a - Bhabha Atomic Research Centre, Indore, Housing & Urban Development
Corporation, M.P. State Election Commission, M.P. Housing Board, M.P. Board of
Secondary Education, M.P. Electricity Board, M.P. State Warehousing & Logistics
Corporation, Ujjain & Dewas Development Authority etc. Before the Administrative
Tribunal in Large number of Service Dispute & National & State Consumer Commission
in Consumer Litigation. Adequate Experience of dealing matters concerning Army
Officers Service Dispute (including delicacies of the Court Martial Proceedings).
Appeared in a Judicial Commission of Inquiry (1986) relating to Communal Riots, involving
Death of a Sub-Inspector (Police) & incidents of Arson, Loot and fire at Shajapur
(M.P.). Worked as Special Public Prosecutor for State of M.P. in a famous Criminal
Trial of Sadhvi Ritumbhara. Was Member, Supreme Court Bar Association, New Delhi,
Life Member, High Court Bar Association, Indore and Ex-Joint Secretary, High Court
Bar Association at Indore. Involved actively in Chamber Practice also, with the assistance
of Five Qualified Junior Advocates, having exposure to the Computers.

Elevated as Additional Judge of the Madhya Pradesh High Court on 14/10/2009.
We wish his Lordship a successful tenure on the Bench.



Madhya Pradesh in the case of Sadhvi Ritambhara. Besides the professional
achtevements Your Lordship also had the capacity and ability to lead the legal
fraternity and you worked as member of Supreme Court Bar Association, Life
member of High Court Bar Association and ex. Joint Secretary of High Court
Bar Association, Indore.

As regards the Educational qualifications your Lordships acquired B.A.
(Hons.) in 1980 and LL.B. with Gold Medal in -1983. .

I feel privilege in.offering this ovation to Justice Piyush Mathur and hope he”
wiil prove worthy of the assignment and will be a great assets to this Institution.
I, on behalf of State Govt, Law Officers and My own behalf congratulate

Justice Piyush Mathur on his elevation as an Additional Judge and wish him a
successful tenure as Judge of this Court.

On behalf of Central Government Shri Radhelal Gupta, Asstt,
. Solicitor General of India, welcomed the Judge. He said :—

Before this august gathering I have this honor of introdycing that legal
personality who has traversed a long but illureinating and illustrious career in this
profession- My Lords Hon’ble Justice Piyush Mathur. S

My Lords were born on 12th March, 1960, Bornin a fal'nﬂy,_bf lawyers, my
Lords had the occasion of picking the noble’ qualities of this profession from his
father Late Shri K.N. Mathur and grandfather Late Shri M:M.L. Mathur. My
lords Hon’ble Justice Piyusk*Mathur epitomizes an old adage'that the beauty of
legal profession. fs that its top slot always remains undefined. At same time there
is always an opportunity for defining it in a new mannet, form and expression for
any lawyer: This is what precisely what various stalvarts of legal profession like
Late Shri YS Dharmadhikari; Late Shri VS Dabir Ji, Late Sardar Rajendra Singh
11 did when they practiced as a lawyer. -

My Lords Hon’ble Jﬁstice Mathur has also defined the top slot in a new
form and expression. As a siudent he stood out as‘Gold medalist in LLB degree
course from Vikram University. His mettle was also acknowledged through a
national scholarship award from Vikram University.

As a young lawyer, after putting in just a few years of practice, he was
crowned with the coveted posts of counsel of Union of India; his legal acumen
was brilliantly displayed when he represented Union in‘bunch of 120 land acquisition
cases. Besides he also demonstrated his remarkable expertise in issues pertaining
to urban administration, elections; higher education; intricate tax and excise
matters as a counsel for various government and semii government entities.

I am greatly thankful to Hon’ble Chief Justice and Judges constituting the -
collegiums for recommending such an appointment of a deserving judge to this
constitutional office.

Lastly on behalf of the Union of India and all my colleagues adorning the



office of Central Government as Law officers and for myself1 heartily congratulate
Hon’ble Justice Piyush Mathur on his appointment and extend my wishes for a
successful tenure ahead. ' ) '

I would like to sum up in the following words of the renowned social
anthropologist: Plato, .-

“A. Judge should not be young; he should have learnt to know evil; not from
his soul but from late and long observance of nature of evil; the knowledge, which
he uses should be his guide and not his personal experience, he should be'one who
conceives quickly but judges equally slowly.” o

On behalf of Senior Advocates, Shri Rajendra Tiwari, Senior . .
Advocate' while felicitating the New Judge, said :— o ' .

Sun has risen today with great splendor to give a scintillating glow-to a new
face in the justice dispensation system of this State with the oath of office having
been administered on your, Lordship Mr.Justice Piyush Mathur.

You are well known to us, that is the fraternity of lawyers of M.P. Being a
member of this fraternity, while felicitating you as a Judge of this High Court, 1
can strongly say that your appointment to this august office is not only jammy but
also fully Justified. : :

‘ My Lord, I have seén you working as a lawyer at Indore and have had
occasions to associate myself with you in cases. Your Lordship evinced the qualities
.of a seasoned lawyer, dealing with legal problems of the case ih a composed and
dedicated manner. Your self-confidence qua your corivictions has been illustrious

and emulative. Your qualities ultimately brought you this great honour.

Your Lordship belong to a family of lawyers. | Your grandfather and father
were both lawyers of great repute. As a student of ‘law you demonstrated your
devotion to the study of law-and consequently earned the first position in L.LB. so
as to be embellished with a gold:medal by the Vikram University.

You have by now experience of a quarter century as a member of the legal
profession. You have maintained, as a lawyer, high traditions of this noble profession
by subscribing to the rules of etiquette. This is what counts in the life of a lawyer
and speaks high-of him. o T

My Lord, dispensation of justice is an attribute of God. It is said that blessed
are those on whom this celestial assignment has fallen. Far more blessed are
those who acquit themselves of this assignment with dignity and honour. With
your experience as a lawyer and the qualities that your Lordship have richly. I
have no doubt that your Lordship will not only be discharging your judicial function
within the four corners of law but also with equity and compassion. I say so
because suffering humanity in this country needs a special consideration with
compassion and equity while administering law and justice.

.
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Being eldet, may I take this opportunity, My Lord, to express a brief note on
what is expected of a Judge by the community of lawyers. A Judge should not be

. in a hurry to deal with the case. Though it is said ‘Justice Delayed is Justice

Denied’, but it is equally true that ‘Justice Hurried is Justice buried’. A Judge
should, therefore, hear patiently, consider the points-raised anxiously and deliver
the judgment impartially. '
Lawyers, though they appear before the Court in order to advance and project
the cause of their clients, but, being officers of the Court they are always conscious

_of the law applicable to the case. They are not dissatisfied if they lose a case.

They are dissatisfied if they are not fully heard and treated well in the Court
during the preceedings. I have confidence that no lawyer will return from your

"Lordship’s Court. dissatisfied for these reasons.

My Lord, Jefferson has said “We hold these-truths: to,be self-evident, that
men are created equal; that they are endowed’ by’ tHeir' tréator with inalienable
rights; and that among these are life, liberty and thé pursuit of happiness”. A
Judge has, therefore, to be always conscious of protecting life in its all pervasive
sense, liberty with all its attributes and pursuit of happiness which makes a human
life wholesome.

With these words I, on behalf of the Senior Council and all Senior Advocates
and on my own behalf felicttate your Lordship on this great occasion’ of your
induction as a Judge in the High Court with a prayer to the Almighty that he may
bestow upon you all his favours so as to enable you to achieve the greatness of a
Judge during your tenure of Judgeship. ‘

Thanking You,

Shri Anit Khare,  Président, M. P. High Court Bar Association,
Jabalpur, while felicitating the new Judge, said :—

On this momentous occasion of the elevation of Hon’ble Justice Shri Piyush
Mathur as Judge of Madhya Pradesh High Court , I consider it my proud privilege
to rise on behalf of M.P. High Court Bar Association and also on my own behalf
to accord a very warm and a cordial welcome to you.

The elevation of My Lord brings jubilation within the legal fraternity on account
of your rich experience at the bar as an eminent lawyer. On one hand My Lord
Justice Shri Piyush Mathur celeberates the jubilation while on the other hand he
has been conferred with an onerous task of preserving and protecting the
Constitution of India and the rule of law. It would not be out of place to mention
that the first meeting of the constituent assembly was held on 9.12.1946 which
continued for a period of 2 years 11 months and 17 days gave us the sacred
document i.e the Constitution of India on 26.11.49.

The appomtment of My Lord Justice Shri Piyush Mathur fulfills the
expectations in respect of the appointment of judges as was expressed by the
then Chief Justice of India Shri R.C.Lahoti in his speech on the occasion of the

i




law.day in the year 2004. 1 quote the words of the then chief justice Shri R.C.
Lahoti which were as follows “ the criteria for appointment of the judge whether
from the bar or from the service should be character, merit and integrity . It is
because of his character that one commands respect in the society. Credibility of
-the institution is held high if those who compose it are respected in their own right
and not because of the institution. A lawyer’s merit is to be judged not by the
volume of his practice but by his knowledge of law. Merit without integrity is
dangerous for the judiciary their can not be a slightest of compromisé on integrity,
those with questionable or doubtful integrity should not be appointed as judges,
and procedure for screening the judges for appointment must ensure that no wrong
person passes through the filter”.

The elevation of My Lord justice Piyush Mathur fulfills the expectations.

expressed through the words of the then Chief justice Shri R..C. Lahoti.

But I stand here amidst an emotional tumult ...what is justice? The echoes.of =~ -
judgments in the corridors, a concrete statute, the substantiality of oratory, a highly =~

hailed concept of civilizations or just an innocent thought!!! I do not know the
reason but my heart catches my finger and-shows the world to my eyes....Justice
is a concept but injustice a reality, Justice is felt while injustice followed the hurhan
history. So different, so contrary-yet so cognate. The heart, where will to overpower
is fostered, guardians the ‘feeling of friendship. 1 visualize the phenomenon of
Brocken Spectre where’ thc shadow of mountains is ‘cast upon the clouds.

Metaphysical in 1magmat10n but truly realin reality. The mfalhblhty of humans is

unquestionable but the alchemy of a judge prescribes to rise above the ordinary to

sublime, anxiety to imperturbability, perplexity to reason, translucent to transparent,
enigma to simplicity, arrogance to modesty and above all unjust to just.

The professional proﬁle of My lord Justlce Shri Piyush Mathur has already
been read by my earlier speakers. To put it briefly I will say that he was bom in
the purple of advocacy on 12-.3.1960, he started his carrier in legal profession
before the Indore benth.of this court in the year 1991 . The grand father of my
lord and his father It. Shri K.N.Mathur were the practicing lawyers of Shajapur .
My lord was awarded gold medal in LL.B by the Vikram University . He was the
counsel of various organizations;yMy lord was also a govemment advocate for the
State of M.P. from 1995 to 1998,

The Madhya Pradesh High Court Bar Association has high expectations
from my lord as judge of this prestigious high court. Mark Twain has said that “all
you need in your life is ignorance and confidence and success is sure.” - The
words of mark twain may not stand to be correct for a judge judges are meant to
act as humble interpreters of law, not to pose as emperors who adjudicate a
whim. We need faceless impassive judges, compassionate but ‘disciplined and
acknowledge the supremacy and independence of judiciary. It is said that a good
lawyer make a good judges, good judges make good judgment. The courts are
decorated with good judges and good lawvers together but not the other alone.

‘What is a word without the letters and letters, if not a word. The judiciary and the
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bar are the wheels of the same chariot. The cooperation of the bar in fulfilling your
duties would always be our privilege and you would not find the members of the bar
failing in their duties. We all wish that judgments that shall be rendered by the Ho’ble
Shri Justice Piyush Mathur, be written not in ink but in wisdom and prudence.

With these words I on behalf of the Madhya Pradesh High Court Bar
Association and also on my behalf warmly welcome you, hope for a bright and
successful tenure with all the goodness of the almighty to be showered upon you
and believe that "FIAT JUSTITIAE RUAT CAELUM" i Justice shall be done
though heavens may fall. :

~ Shri R. P. Agrawal, President, High CourtAdvocates Bar Association,
J abalpur, while fehcntatmg the new Judge, said :—

Ttis my proud privilege to congratulate Mr Justice Piyush Mathur, who hitherto
. before belonged to the lawyers community, on his elevation as an Additional Judge
qfthls High Court. My Lord was born on 12th of March 1960. He was enrolled

""as an Advocate on 17.2.1984 in the rolls of the State Bar Council, M.P. My Lord

has the experience of conducting Civil and Criminal matters on the original side
for a mumber of years. After gaining knowledge and experience of working in the
_trial Courts my Lord started practicing regulaﬂy in the High Court of M. P. Bench
"at Indore.

My Lord comes from family of Iawyeis. My Lord’s grandfather Late MML
Mathur and My’ Lord’s>father Late K.N. Mathur were also leading lawyers at
Shajapur. My Lord obtained his B.A. (Hons.) Degree in 1980 and LLB Degree in
1983. My Loxd is a Gold Medalist having been awarded Gold Medal in LLB by
Vikram University. My Lord was also awarded National Scholarship by Vikram
University. My Lord was closely Associated with Shri A.M. Mathur, Sr. Advocate
and Former Advocate General of the State of M.P. and Shri § K.. Kulsheshtra,
Forme; Judge of this Court. My Lord has been the Standing Counsel for Bhabha
Atomic Research Centre, Central Administrative Tribunal Indore, Housing & Urban
Development Ccrporatlon ‘M.P. Housing Board, M.P. Board of Secondary
Education, M.P. Electricity Board, M.P. Warehousing & Logistics Corporation,
Ujjain Development Awuthority, Dewas Development Authority, —several-
Mumnicipal Corporations & Municipal Councils, Mandi Samiti and Town
Improvement ‘Trust as well as Companies and Business houses. My Lord also

.worked as Additional Standing Counsel for Union of India and appeared in large
-number of cases relating to Land Acquisition Appeals in the High Court. My Lord

has also handled cases of Army Officers and has rich experience in Service matters.

My Lord within a very short span of his practice at Indore, earned a name
and fame for himself and éstablished himself as one of the leading lawyers of the

.Indore Bench of this High Court and figured in almost all important cases.

My Lozd is fully aware, that this High Court enjoys the legacy of imminent
and great Judges. I am sure, My Lord would also bring glory to this institution by




sheer dint of his merits. Elevation to this August office provides an opportunity to
serve the cause of humanity within the four corners of the law. The Society is
interwoven with diversities where the fight between haves and haves not is
continuing unabated. The cause of down trodden people should be the upper most
. concern, so that the haves not are not deprived of getting justice.

My Lord has a long way to go and I am sure he would bring name and fame
to this institution.

I, on behalf of High Court Advocates’ Bar Assoclatlon and my own behalf
wish a very successful tenure,

Shri Rameshwar Neekhara, President M. P. State Bar Council, while
felicitating the new Judge, said :—
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Reply to Ovation by Hon'ble Shri Justice Piyush Mathur :-

When I Look at the Sky, in search of the shadow of Almighty God, I see the
Fountain of Blessings incessantly flowing downwards on the Earth, upon those
who seek to perform their duties with humility and sacred purity. As a firm believer
of God I strongly believe in the prescription of the Holy Sacrament of the Godliness,
in the entire Life Span of Humanity.

May We call the almighty God by any Name and give any Shape & Colour to
its Holiness, the Light of'its Bright Rays guides us throughout the journey, in quest
for searching the Truth in Life and seeking Justice as Good Children of God.

The Almighty God has bestowed upon Me, an entirely New Responsibility of
Administering Fustice and bringing Harmony in the Sour Relationship of Litigaats.

I hope and trust, the almighty God, would give Me “Insight and Fofesight” to ’
perform this Pious and Noble Duty.

I am fortunate fo have deeply connected with a variety of Individuals in My ~ .,

Life and I am proud to be ﬁ[ﬁir;humble, Friend, Relative and Colleague, as theyall
had bestowed their utmost support and confidence in Me, during the periods and
moments of adversity and joy in My Life. On this occasion of Changing Robes, 1
express My greatest Regards to My Reverend Teachers and Gurus, My Older
Relatives and Colleagues and Love to My Dear Friends, without whom I would
not have lived the Life so Naturally, as I could do, while sharing My
Accomplishments and Sorrows with All of them.

I Hope and Trust that in performing this New Assignment, My Dear Friends,
Relatives and Fellow Lawyers would extend their fullest Support to Me and Guide




Me throughout My journey as a Judge, while presently enjoying and celebrating
this moment as “Qur Collective Achievement”,

My Parents had taught ‘Me many things in Life and the foremost amongst
them was’ to be “Impartial to All” and “Kind to the Weak” as they always believed
that “All Men and Women are Born Free and are Equal”. 1 hope their Blessings
from Heaven would always strengthen Confidence in Me, in treading on the Path
shown by Them to Me and the Generation of their Times, in finding the True :

meaning of Life. L

The System of “Administration of Justice” is passing through a Challenging
Time and the Citizens of the Country have Great Hopes and Expectations from
The judiciary, of bringing about the Stalemate in Order. I would make sincere
Endeavour of coming closer to the Expectation of My Countrymen and would
keep the Flag of justice furling with Glory.

I express My Gratitude for the kindness bestowed upon Me, by the Hon’blé * -

Chief justice and the Hon’ble judges of the Collegiam of the Supreme Court and
the Madhya Pradesh High Court and am Thankful to all those Great Personalities,
" who have Contributed in Critical Develdpment of My Personality & Professional
Life. ., S

I am Thankful to all the Hon’ble Speakers, whp have placed Me in high
Esteem Today, although I feel humbled in sharing with You All, that I am not
worthy of such Adoration. :

My Heartiest Thanks to Each One of You, who has spared His Valuable
Time for Witnessing this Moment, by Attending My ‘Swearing In’ Ceremony Today:

‘Thank You. Very Much.
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Short Note
L {47
S.L. Kochar & ‘ .. ’
Mrs. Manjusha P. Namjoshi, JJ DEVENDRA SINGH @ PAPPU
B Vs. . . : .
STATE OF M.P.

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act, 1872,
Sections 3, 7 & 8 - Murder - Circumstantial evidence - Appellant's wife met
with homicidal death - Appellant was present with deceased in his house and
took her to hospital - Appellant had given false intimation ‘to police about
consumption of poisonous substance by deceased - Appallanr was having
doubt on the character of deceased and also ill treating her + No explanation
that how the deceased met a homicidal death - All these circumstances
sufficient to bring home the guilt of appellant beyond reasonable doubt -
Conviction u/s 302 IPC maintained - Appeal dismissed.

Tug wfiar (1860 ®T 45), ©RT 302, Wiey aftifrew, 1872, €NIY 3, 7
T 8 — vl — uRferfrawg weg — anfiomeff o uell o wrea 7 g8 -
dremefl Hoe © Wi 9uS TR § Ao o of R 9 aRudTe o Tar — ardieelf | gferw
@Y qae g faeTe waref Qud oy @ ar § fear guer € — adeneff o que @
TR W T o IR SHS i gEfus W avar o7 — B a8 5 gae a6
AFTET 9 9 58 ~ A Wi kRt arfamef &1 9w afeage et 9 ® fig
F B Y @ — IS P O 302 @ =T SuifE FEE — arrhamﬁﬁrl
Cases referred :

(2007) 3 SCC (Cri) 728:

Jai Singh with Rajesh Chouhan, for the appellant.
L.L. Sharma, G.A., for the respondent/State.

*Cr.A. No.412/2003 (Indore), D/- 17 July, 2009.
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. Short.Note
T : - (48)

AK. Shrivastava, J MANIRAM

Vs.
HARIKISHAN & ors.

Limitation Act (9 of 1908), Article 142 - Suit for possession
must be brought within 12 years of dispossession - Plaintiff failed to file any
document in order to demonsirate his possession.withiri' 12 years of filing of
suft - Date of dispossession is also not disclosed - On the contrary, revenue
record showing possession of defendant - Held - Suit barred by limitation -
Appeal allowed.
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TR fAFrR (1908 7 0), AT 142 — T BT T JwEA T ¥
12 7 % R AT S Ry — ad i e e B 12 7% & HaX A seot Y
| I B % o0 B ST 997 e § A V8T — Yoo €1 3 i o we
T B T - gD vl e APeRT AR BT ST THiiaT £ - s R —
e AT 9T — arfer wopR | :
" Dinesh Maheshwari, for the appellant.
PM. Jain, for the respondent Nos.3 & 4.
' Deepak Rawal, G.A., for the respondent No.10 (Formal Party).
None, for other respondents, though served.

*S.A. No.155/1994 (Indore), D/- 23 July, 2009,

.- Short Note
; . - (49)
Abhay M. Naik, J " . .. NAGAR PANCHAYAT, ARON
_— L Vs,
. : - . SHANTI BAI & ors.

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 107 & 257 - Syir
challenging order effecting correction in revenue map - Revenue officers
named in 8. 107 alone are competent to take action in respect of correction
in the revenue map - Jurisdiction of Civil Court excluded u/s 257 - Suit rightly
held not maintainable - Appeal dismissed, (2006) 5 SCC 720, 2002(2) MPHT
459 (ref.)

"Sub-section (5) of Section 107 of M.P. Land Revenue Code, 1959
confers jul:isdic_tipn'on the Settlement Officer and the Collector as the
case may be to prepare or revise the map. Accordingly, Collector, Guna
is not found to have agted beyond jurisdiction in directing for rectification
of the mistiake by making corrections vide his order; Since power to
Prepare or révise the map is vested in the Settlement Officer or Collector

" -as the: case may be, it alone has a power/jurisdiction to decide the
objection and no civil Court shall have jurisdicxtion t6 nullify the order
" made in exercise of power under Section 107 of M.P. Lande Revenue
Code."Section 257 of M.P. Land Revenue Code excludes the jurisdiction
of civil Court in such matter because revenue officers named in Section
107 alone are competent to take action in respect of correction in the
revenue map. In-view of the pleadings, it is clear that the plaintiff has
sought relief contrary to the existing revenue record and has challenged
the order effecting thereby correction in the map which was made in
exercise of exclusive power by virtue of Sub-section (5) of Section 107
of M.P. Land Revenue Code. This being so, the suit is held rightly as
not maintainable. I may successfully derive strength on this point from

. =
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Apex Court decision in the case of Devinder Singh and Others V.
State of Haryana and Another (2006) 5 SCC 720 and this Court
decision in the case of Shivhath Prasad Shrivastava and Others V.
Board of Revenue of M.P., Gwalior and Others, 2002(2) MPHT
459. Accordingly, substantial question of law is decided against the
appellant. The appeal is found to have no substance and the same is
hereby dismissed, however without order as to costs."

7 YIOTRd WAf¥ar, AW, (1959 T 20), TR 107 q 257 — NGoed 99 ¥
FUR FXA F AR BT AN o0 Y 98 — R aRT 107 F ifdes worer st Iora
9§ YER B Hee A R e @ e wed § — Rifae =y o) sftmeiRa
€IRT 257 & 3T vafefa — grar viyefa 9 97 sk w4 | -afafReiRa — ardrea
@I | (2006) 5 SCC 720, 2002(2) MPHT 459 (s=ffa).

S.K Shrwastava for the appellant.

K.N. Gupta with Prakhar Dengula, for the respondent Nos.1 to 5.
V.S. Chaturvedii, G.4., for the respondent No.6/State.

- *S.A. No.30/2006 (Gwalior), D/- 30 Jumne, 2009.

Short Note
(50)
Arun Mishra & R.S. AVTAR SINGH & CO. (M/S)
Mrs. Sushma Shrivastava, JJ " Vs, '
- VINDYACHAL AIR
PRODUCTS BVT. LTD. & anr.

A. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act (27
of 2006), Section 19 - Application for setting-aside decreé, award or order -
Deposit of 75% of the amount in terms of decree, award or as the case may
be, in the manner a'zrected by such Court, is mandatory pre-condition to
entertain such application.” ' 4

\z

@. q&ﬂvthqmwﬁmmﬁm(zooeaﬂﬂ) €RT 19 .
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ITER 75% SRR T BT AT=9D qF 2wl 21

B. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act (27
of 2006), Section 19 - The words used in S. 19 "in the manner directed by
the Court" cannot be interpreted so as to dilute the very requirem'ent of deposit
of 75% amount itself. s

T &, Hgﬁ?qmmﬁﬁmmﬁm(zooswz) €RT 19
— OIRT 19 ¥ YW e NI R FRRW @7 9 1 Yar e 16 fRr e
WA S VAT 76% SFRIRT o1 X Y fy Srraeadar 3 79 R |
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C. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ‘Act (27

of 2006), Section 19 Proviso - Proviso fo S. 19 empowers the Court to pass -

appropriate order with respect to disbursement of the amount to the supplier
on conditions as it considers reasonable under the circumstances of the case
to impose - Considering the proviso 50% of the amount is ordered to be
disbursed fo respondent No.l remaining amount 25% shall be invested in the
fixed deposit to be disbursed in terms of final decision.

T gEH, Y AN wegd S faerw aftrfraw (2006 @7 27), ©IRT 19
WIF — HIRT 19 B IYH AT B, T 76! W ) g8 A @ gRRefeat §
R e gREyay ReRa o, angRiedt @ svRIRT & wRaRor & wawr 3
TR AT YIRT FRA B v wvrEa FRar @ - IRRAfRUY w =R v 50% s=R
wegeft @, 1 &Y WIAART X BT s & war R 99 25% g sifte fafveag
& frEsHT & ageR WRaRT @ wie & R wrafy s ¥ FrRfdm @ e

Vivek Rusia, for the petitioner.
Shashank Shekhar, for the respondent No.1.
P.N. Dubey, Dy A.G., for the respondent No.2.

*W.P. No.1602/2009 (Jabalpur), D/- 17 February, 2009.

Short Note
(51)
R.S. Jha,J - ; SIYARAM.
Vs.
STATE OF M.P.

Prisoners' Release on Probation Act, M.P. (16 of 1954), Section 9,
Prisoners' Release on Probation Rules, M.P 1964, Rule 2 - Consideration
Jor release - Held - The manner of commission of offence is a relevant
consideration - In the instant case, petitioners along with others committed
brutal and preplanned murder with lethal weapons in broad day light - Not
entitled for release on licence under the provisions of the Act and rules - No
perversity or material irregularity found in rejecting the application of the
petitioners for releasmg on probation. (2007) 10 SCC 799 {2003) 6 SCC
144 (ref.)

dft w1 aRder W owver W afifrw, 5y (1954 FT 16), EIRT 9
dfear o1 gRdiem W sier W AW, un 1964, w2 — B WR @
fog feR avar — afifRaiRe — s FiRT &3 &1 37 16 e feR & -
e A d, aRE 3 ot & W e e angst ¥ e AR gdfeii

. gear Y — A ok Rl @ SwEE @ T TeNw W B O § §3aR T8
— T w1 ulRdleT WIS W BT AT AHER XA H HIE fqwdan @ aifeas
st =€ 9l Tl 1 (2007) 10 SCC 799, (2003) 6 SCC 144 (waf¥)
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D.D. Bhargava, for the petitioners.
Samdarshi Tiwari, G.A., for the respondents/State.

*W.P. No0.4257/2008 (Jabalpur), D/- 1 September, 2009.
Short Note
(52)
U.C. Maheshwari, J STATE OF M.P.
Vs.
SANTOSH KUI\_/IAR & anr.
Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A - C?uelty Illicit relations -

Illicit relations with another women being first wife alive, could not be treated
to be the act of cruelty - Wife also could not state any specific act of cruelly
or harassment - Particulars like date, place and time of incident also not
stated - Mere vague allegations of demanding some articles could not deemed
that any such demand was ever made - Acquittal of respondents proper -
Leave refused. 2003 CrLJ 4708. (ref)

gUs WiFAT (1860 BT 45), TIRT 498—V — WAl ~ A4S W — WM
Tt B ST o0 g o i W Srdu R SRl BT ded BT 761 AT W1 AU A
~ g+ XA AT 6 oY 7 DI AT e S T o et — Rt |
& Tea1 & aria, wns IR e 1 W BeF A€ a1 T - dad g TGAT B 7T
B D I AFABLA W TT T TSN I FHT 5 T B AT N B 7 — weaietar
2 Wregf S — agAfa ¥ §eR %A Tam) 2003 CrLY 4708 (Haf)

T'K. Modh, Dy.A.G., for the appeliant.

None, for the respondents.

*Cr.A. No.469/2001 (Jabalpur), D/- 9 July, 2009.
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RAMRAJSINGH Vs, STATE OF M.P.
1.L.R. [2009] M. P., 3035
SUPREME COURT OF INDIA

Before Mr. Justice Dr. Arijit Pasayat, Mr. Justice Lokeshwar Smgh Panta
& Mr. Justice P Sathasivam

15 April, 2009*
RAMRAIJSINGH s ... Appellant
Vs. ' :
STATE OF M.P. & anr. : ‘ ... Respondents

Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Sections 138 & 141 -
Dishonour of cheque - Appellant was General Manager of the Company and
was held vicariously liable for Company for the offence u/s 138 - Conviction
challenged - Held - No specific role attributed to him in the complaint - No
notice was given to him - No evidence that at the relevant time appellant was
in charge and responsible for the conduct of the business of the Company -
Conviction & sentence set-aside - Appeal allowed (Paras 9to 11)

upr forea afRiffram (1881 &1 26), SR 138 § 141 — AP BT
IATERT — 3ydierefl T 37 wee R o aiN oRT 138 @ srada AN @ fare
F % fore aftfftes wo & et oevmEn - Slwiify B g - siffeiRe -
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Cases referred :
(2007) 4 SCC 70, {2007) 9 SCC 481.

JUDGMENT

The  Judgment of the Court * was delivered by
Dr. Arunr Pasavar, J. :— Challenge in this appeal is to the judgment of a learned
Single Judge of the Madhya Pradesh High Court, Indore Bench, dismissing the
revision application filed by the appellant questioning his conviction for an offence
relating to Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 (in short the *Act’).

2. Respondent No.2-complainant was dealing in the business of transportation.
The appellant was the General Manager of J.K. Utility Division of J.K. Synthetics
Ltd. whereas the absconding accused Anup Chaturvedi was the Finance Manager.
Both were working under the Managing Director Manoj Kumar Mathur. The non-
applicant and the co-accused Anup Chaturvedi placed order No.U/QMR/Coal
96028 dated 7.8.1996 with one Vinayak Coal Corporation. In pursuance of this
order, the coal was transported by Maruti Road Carrier, Indore which is owned by
the appellant. The transportation charges of Rs.9,45,000/- were paid through tour
cheques. All the four cheques wete given to the appellant by the co-accus-.4.

*Cr.A. No.1103/2003.
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3. As per the information given by the co-accused to the appellant, the appellant
placed the cheques before the Bank for encashment but the same were dishonored.
All-the cheques were issued on Bank of Rajasthan Branch Jhalawad. The cheques
were returned dishonoured with the endorsement of * Stop Payment'. On 28.11.1996,
a registered notice was sent to the-Company which was served by "Registered
Acknowledgment Due" on 6.12,1996. Even thereafter payments were not made.
Therefore, the complaint was filed by respondent No.2 against the appellant and
co-accused. Anup Chaturvedi and Manoj Mathur and the case was proceeded
against the appellant and absconding accused Anup Chaturvedi. .

4. Respondent No.2 had stated in the complaint that appellant was working in
the company. The order of transportation was placed by him, the material was
received by him and the cheques were given to him by the appellant and co-
accused Anup Chaturvedi. Out of four cheques, the complaint in regard to the
cheque amount of Rs.2,00,000/- dated 12.9.1996 was not pressed because a
separate complaint was filed for dishonour of this cheque.

5. The learned Judicial Magistrate, First Class, Indore, found the appellant guilty
and the appeal was dismissed by learned Additional Sessions Judge, Indore. Both
the courts found the appellant guilty. The appellant's stand was that he was not in
charge and responsible for the conduct of the business of the company and,
therefore, he should not have been held guilty. The cheques were not signed by
him and a notice under Section 138 proviso (b) of the Act was not given in his
name. The High Court did not accept the stand and dismissed the revision
application.

6. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that there is no evidence that the
appellant was in charge and responsible for the conduct of the business of the
company. A notice was not given to him. There was no specific role attributed to
him in the complaint petition. Therefore, the conviction as recorded cannot be
maintained. .
7. Learned counsel for respondent No. 2-complainant supported the ]udgmcnt of't
the High Court.

8. It appears that the accused No.3 (Manoj Mathur) was discharged.

9. In SMS. Pharmaceuticals Ltd. v. Neeta Bhalla and Anr. (2007(4). SCC
70) it was inter-alia observed held as follows: '

"16. Section 141 of the Act does not say that a Director of a
company shall automatically be vicariously liable for commission
of an offence on behalf of the Company, What is necessary is
that sufficient averments should be made to show that the person -
who is sought to be proceeded against on the premise of his being
vicariously liable for commission of an offence by the Company -

w
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must be in charge and shall also be responsible to the Company
for the conduct of its business.

XX XX XX

20. The liability of a Director must be determined on'the date on

which the offence is committed. Only because Respondent 1 hetein
was a party to a purported resolution dated 15-2-1993 by itself
does not lead to an inference that she was actively associated
with the management of the affairs of the Company. This Court in
this case has categorically held that there may be a Jarge
number of Directors but some of them may not associate
themselves in the management of the day-to-day affairs of the
Company and, thus, are not responsible for the conduct of the
business of the Company. The averments must state that the person
who is vicariously liable for commission of the offence of the
Company. both was in charge of and was responsible for the
conduct.of the business of the Company. Requirements laid down
therein must be read conjointly and not disjunctively. When a legal
fiction is raised, the ingredients therefor must be satisfied.

10. InN.X. Wahi v. Shekhar Singh and Ors. (2007 (9) SCC 481} it was observed
as follows: . o

"6. Chapter XVII has been incorporated under the Act with effect from
1.4.1689. In certain contingencies referred to under Section 138 of the Act
on the cheques being dishonored a new offence as such had been' created.
But to take care of the offences purported to have been committed provisions
of sub-section (1) to Section 141 of the Act comeé into play. It reads as
under:- oo

"141 - Offence by companies - (1) If the person committing an
offence under section 138 is a company, every person who, at the
time the offence was committed, was in charge of, and was
responsible to, the company for the conduct of the business of the'”
company, as well as the company, shall be deemed to be guilty of
the offence and shall be Liable to be proceeded against and
punished accordingly.

Provided that nothing contained in this sub-section shall render any
person liable to punishment if he proves that the offerice was committed
without his knowledge, or that he had exercised all due diligence to prevent
the commission of such offence.” *

‘7. This provisioh clearly shows that so far as the companics are
concemned if any offence is committed by it then every person who is a
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Director or employee of the company is not liable. Only such person would
be held liable if at the time when offence is committed he was in charge and
was responsible to the company for the conduct of the business of the company
as well as the company. Merely being a Director of the company in the
absence of above factors will not make him liable.

8. To launch a prosecution, therefore, against the alleged Directors there
must be a specific allegation in the complaint as to the part played by them in
the transaction, There should be clear and unambiguous allegation as to how
the Directors are incharge and responsible for the conduct of the business of
the company. The description should be clear. It is true that precise words
from the provisions of the Act need not be reproduced and the court can
always come to a conclusion in facts of each case. But still in the absence of

any averment or specific evidence the net result would be that complaint -

would not be entertainable.
9. Section 138 of the Act reads as under:-

1138. Dishonour of cheque for insufficiency, etc., of funds
in the account -

Where any cheque drawn by a person on an account maintained
by him with a banker for payment of any amount of money to
another persons from out of that account for the discharge, in
whole or in part, of any debt or other liability, is returned by the
bank unpaid, either because of the amount of money standing to
the credit. of that account is insufficient to honour the cheque or
that it exceeds the amount arranged to be paid from that account .
by an arrangement made with that bank, such person shall be
deemed to have committed an offence and shall, without prejudice.
to any other provisions of this Act, be punished with imprisonment
for a term which may be extended to two years, or with fine wh1ch
may extend to twice the amount of the cheque, or with bo

10. In order to bring application of Section 138 the complajnt must show:
1  That Cheque was issued,;
2. The same was presented;
3. Itwas dishonored on presentation;
4

A notice in terms of the provisions was served on the person
sought to be made liable;

5. Despite service of notice, neither any payment was made nor
other obligations, if any, were complied with within fifteen
days from the date of receipt of the notice.

A
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11. Section 141 of the Act in terms postulates constructive liability of the
Directors of the company or other persons responsible for its conduct or the
business of the company.

XX XX XX

13. In SM.S. Pharmaceuticals Lid. v. Neeta Bhalla and Another (2007
(4} SCC 70) it was, inter-alia, held as follows:-

"18. To sum up, there is almost unanimous judicial opifion
that necessary averments ought to be contained in a complaint
before a person can be subjected to criminal process. A liability
under Section 141 of the Act is sought to be fastened vicariously
on a person connected with a company, the principal accused being
the company itself. It is a departure from the rule in criminal law
against vicarious liability. A clear case should be spelled out in the
complaint against the person sought to be made liable. Section
141of the Act contains the requirements for making a person liable
under the said provision. That the respondent falls within the
parameters of Section 141 has to be spelled out. A complaint has
to be examined by the Magistrate in the first instance on the basis
of averments contained therein. If the Magistrate is satisfied that
there are averments which bring the case within Section 141, he
would issue the process. We have seen that merely being described
as a director in a company is not sufficient to satisfy the requirement
of Section 141. Even a non-director can be liable under Section
141 of the Act. The averments in the complaint would also serve
the purpose that the person sought to be made liable would know
what is the case which is alleged against him. This will enable him ™
to meet the case at the trial.

19. In view -of the above discussion, our answers to the questions
posed in the reference are as under:

(a) It is necessary to specifically aver in a complaint under Section
141 that at the time the offence was committed, the person accused
was in charge of, and responsible for the conduct of business of
the company. This averment is an essential requirement of Section
141 and has to be made in a complaint. Without this averment
being made in a complaint, the requirements of Section 141 cannot
be said to be satisfied.

(b) The answer to the question posed in sub-para (b) has to be in
the negative. Merely being a director of a company-is not sufficient
to make the person liable under Section 141 of the Act. A
director in a company cannot be deemed to be in charge of and



3040 I.L.R. [2009] M. P,
RAMRAJSINGH Vs. STATE OF MLP.

- responsible to the company for the conduct of its business. The
requirement of Section 141 is that the person sought to- be made
liable should be in charge of and responsible for the conduct of
the business of the company at the relevant time. This has to be
averred as a fact as there is no deemed liability of a director in
such cases. '

(c) The answer to Question (c) has to be in the affirmative. The
question notes that the managing director or joint managing director

. would be admittedly in charge of the company and responsible to
the company for the conduct of its business. When that is so,
holders of such positions in a company become liable under
Section 141 of the Act. By virtue of the office they hold as
managing director or joint managing director, these persons are in
charge of and responsible for the conduct of business of the
company. Therefore, they get covered under Section 141. So far
as the signatory of a cheque which is dishonoured is concerned,
he is clearly responsible for the incriminating act and will be
covered under sub-section (2) of Section 141"

14. The matter was again considered in Sabitha Ramamurthy and Anr. v.
R.B.S. Channabasavaradhya and Anr. (2006 (9) SCALE 212) and Saroj
Kumar Poddar v. State (NCT of Delhi) and Anr. (JT 2007 (2) SC 233). 1t
was, inter -alia, held as follows:

" ..Section 141 raises a legal fiction. By reason of the said
provision, a person although is not personally liable for commission
of such an offence would be. vicariously liable therefor. Such
vicarious liability can be inferred so far as a company registered
or incorporated under the. Companies Act, 1956 is concerned only
if the requisite statements, which are required to be averred in the
complaint petition, are made so as to make the accused therein
vicariously liable for the offence committed by the company. Before
a person can be made vicariously liable, strict compliance of the
statutory requirements would be insisted...."

11. When the factual background of the present case is considered in the light of
the principles referred to in Neeta Bhalla and N.K. Wahi cases (supra), the
inevitable conclusion is that the appeal is bound to succeed. The conviction as
recorded cannot be maintained. The appeal is allowed.

Appeal allowed.
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SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
Before Mr. Justice Harjit Singh Bedi & Mr. Justice J.M. Panchal

6 August, 2009*
BAINATH & anr. ... Appellants
Vs~
STATE OF M.P. ... Respondent
A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 3 - Witness - Principles dealing
with appreciation of evidence in criminal matter - Law discussed. (Para 5)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 6 - Res gestae - Eye witness
" PW-4'informed PW-3 about the incident who further informed Kotwar PW-2,
who lodged the FIR - Evidence of PW-4 corroborated by PW-3 & PW-2 -
Statement of PW-3 is admissible as res gestae evidence. (Para 7)
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ORDER
The prosecution story is as under :

On 19th October, 1990 Manohar, the deceased had beaten one Ramesh who
had abused him a day earlier. On account of this incident, the three accused, viz.,
Baijnath, Devi Singh and Saligram had developed feelings of hostility towards
him. At about 10.00 A M. as Manochar was taking his bath at the village well
known as ‘Jhiriya Wala Kuan' the three accused reached there armed with an
axe, a knife and a sword respectively and attacked him killing him on the spot.
Sahodra Bai-PW.4 who had gone to the well to draw water, saw the incident and
ran away to inform Amol Singh-PW.3, the uncle of the deceased, as to what had
transpired. Amol Singh-PW.3 then called Kotwal Kudau-PW.2 and asked him to
report the matter to the police.  An FIR was accordingly lodged at 12.00 noon.
After registration of the case the Investigating Officer, Bhalenbdra Shekhar Tiwari-
PW.19 reached the place of incident, made the necessary inquiries and sent the
dead body for the post-mortem examiration. He also recovered the brass pitcher
and rope belonging to Sahodra Bai and a bucket and lota belonging to Manchar
which were being used by him for taking a bath. An axe was also recovered at
the instance of Baijnath, a knife at the instance of Devi Singh.and a sword at thé
*Cr.A. No.1206/2007




3042 ) : LL.R. [2009] M. P,

. BAIJNATH Vs. STATE OF MLP.
instance of Saligram. The first two weapons viz:, the axe and the knife were sent
for chemical examination to the FSL, Sagar a.nd were found to be stained with
human‘blood: On'‘the completion of investigation the accused were charged under
Section 302/34 of the IPC and were brought to trial before the Court of Sessions.
The prosecution examined 19 witnesses in all including Sahodra Bai-PW.4,
Dharmendra Singh-PW.5 and Ratan Singh-PW.6 as eyc witnesses of the incident.
In-their- ‘statement under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal Procéduré the
accused denied all the allegations levelled against them and pleaded false implication
at the instance of -Amol Singh. They also produced DW-1, the father of PW-5
Dharmendra, Singh in support of their case in an attempt to dlsprove the presence
of Dharmendra Singh and Ratan Singh at the time of incident.

2. The trial court on an appreclatlon of the evidence held that the FIR had not
been lodged at the police station but at the place of incident and that in any case
the statemient made by PW-2 Kotwal Kudrau could not be said to be an FIR
under Sectmn 154 of Cr.P.C. The Court further held that the stateménts of the
eye-w1tnesses did not inspire confidence as they contained material differences
inter- $¢ and- as' theré appeared to be no apparent motive for the murder and an
attempt had been made to rope in Saligram, created a suspicion about the veracity
of the withess account. The trial court accordingly acquitted the accused. The
State, . thereupon filed an appeal against acquittal which was allowed qua Baij
Nath and Devi Singh but dismissed qua Saligram. It is in these circumstances that
the matter is before us at the instance of the two accused who have been convicted.

3. Mr. Rajiv Shankar Dwivedi, the learned counsel for the appellants, has first
and foremost pointed out that in the event that the trial court on an appreciation of
evidenice had acqiritted all the accused, there was no reason whatsoever for the
High Coutt to have taken a different view on the saie evidence unless the findings
of the trial court could-be said to be perverse. In this behalf, he has placed reliance
on Ganesh Bhavan Patel and Another Vs. State of Maharashtra [AIR 1979
'SC 135]. It has also been submitted that the material dlscrepancws which had
been highlighted by the trial court with regard to the evidence of the eye-witnesses
as to the number of injuries on the person .of the deceased clearly spelt out that
the eye-witnesses had not seen the incident.  He has finally pleaded that PW.4
was the most material but as her evidence was not inspiring conviction should not
have been recorded on her statement.

4. _Ms. Vibha Datta Makhlja the learned counsel for the State has, however,
supported the judgment of the High Court and submitted that the ev1dence of
Dharmendra Singh and Ratan Singh was credible but there was no reason
whatsoever to disregard the testlmony of PW-4 who had -absolutely no animus
against the accused and no reason to foist a false case on them. She has also
pointed out 'that PW-4 had conveyed the information with regard to the 1nC1dent to

2
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Roop Singh-PW.1 and Amol Singh-PW.3 and as these two witnesses had affirmed
the same in their statements, the evidence of these witnesses was admissible as
res gestae evidence under Section 6 of the Evidence Act, 1872, In this connection,
she has placed reliance upon Sukhar Vs. State of U.P. [ (1999) 9 SCC 507]; and
Gentela Vijayavardhan Rao Vs. State of A.P. [1996 (6) SCC 241].

5. 'We have given very careful consideration to the matter, more particularly, as
we are dealing with a judgment of reversal. It is true that the trial court has given
certain findings with respect to the evidence which had led to the acquittal, but
we are of the opinion that some of the findings recorded by the trial court were
unjustified and unrealistic.  The broad principles dealing with appreciation of
evidence in a criminal matter have been laid down in Bhoginbhai Hirjibhai vs.
State of Gujarat [ AIR 1983 SC 753,] and we respectfully reproduce the same :-

“......Overmuch importance cannot be attached to minor discrepancies.

The reasons are obvious :-

1. Bﬁ and large a witness cannot be expected to possess a
photographic memory and to recall the details of an incident. It is
not as if a video tape is replayed on the mental screen.

2. Ordinarily it so happens that a witness is overtaken by events.
The witness could not have anticipated the occurrence which so
often has an element of surprise. The mental faculties therefore
cannot be expected to be attuned to absorb the details.

3. The powers of observations differ from personto person. What
one may notice another may not. An chject or movement might .
emboss its image-on one person's mind, whereas it might go
unnoticed on the part of another.

4. By and large people cannot accurately recall a conversation
and reproduce the very words used by them. They can only recall
the main purport of the conversation. It is unrealistic to expect a
witness to be a human tape recorder.

5. In regard to exact time¢ of an incident, or the time duration of
an occurrence, usually people make their estimates by guess work
on the spur of the moment at the time of interrogation. And one
cannot expect people to make every precise or reliable estimates
in such matters. Again it depends on the time-sense of individuals
which varies from person to person.

6. Ordinarily a witness cannot be expected to recall accurately
the sequence of events which take place in rapid succession or in
a short time span. A witness is liable to get confustd, or mixed up
when interrogated later on. ’
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7. A witness, though wholly truthful, is liable to be overawed by
“the court atmosphere and the piercing cross- examination made
by counsel and out of nervousness mix up facts, get confused:
regarding sequence of events, or fill up détails from imagination
on the spur of the moment. The sub- conscious mind of the witness
sometimes so operates on account of the fear of looking foolish or
being disbelieved though the witness is giving a truthful and honest
account of the occurrence witnessed by him perhaps it is a sort of
psychological defence mechanism activated on the spur of the moment.

8. Discrepancies which do not go'to the root of the matter and shake

the. basic version of the witnesses, therefore, cannot be annexed
. with undue importance. More so, when the all important "probabilities-

factor" echoes in favour of the version narrated by the witnesses.

6. It is undoubtedly true that an accused is entitled to draw support with regard to
his case from discrepancies or flaws in the prosecution evidence. Human fallibility,
however cannot be ignored as hlghhghted by this Court hereinabove. Witnesses, cannot
_ be, and should not be, expected to recall with complete precision as to what had
happened more particularly (as in this case) of a sudden attack. On the contrary, an

attempt by a witness to recapﬂ:ulate every moment during the incident, or the evidence
of several w1tnesses giving parrot like statements, could smack of tutoring,. -

7. We have examined the ocular cw.dence in the light of the arguments raised
by the learned counsel for the parties and the principles aforestated. We find
absolutely no reason whatsoever to disregard the evidence of PW-4. She has
deposed that she had gone to the well at about 9.00 or 10.00 A.M. to draw water
and for that purpose, had taken a brass utensil and a rope and it was at that time
that she had seen Devi Singh and Baijnath caiising injuries to Manohar. She further
stated that she had left the utensil and rope behind in panic and rushed to the
house of ‘Amol Singh to tell him as to what had happened. Significantly the rope
and brass utensil, and the bucket used by Manohar for taking a bath were recovered
from the spot by the Investigating officer. We find from the cross examination of
PW-4 that there was not even the slightest suggestion as to whether she bore any
animosity towards the accused or that she had any reason to involve them in a
false case. It is significant that it was on the information given by PW-4 that
“made Amol Singh further informed Kotwal Kudaun about the incident, who then
_went to the police station and lodged the report. We also find that the statement of
Pw-4 is corroborated by Amol Singh and Roop Singh. Anmol Singh PW-3 stated
that she had come running to him in panic and told him that Manohar had been
killed by the accused and it was on this information that he had made arrangement
to send the information to the police. We find in this background the statement of
PW-3 is admissible as res gestae evidence. In Sukhar s case (supra) it has been
observed ;-

-3
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"Section 6 of the Evidence Att is an exception to the general
rule; whereunder the hearsay evidence becomes admissible.
But for bringing such hearsay eviderice’ within the provision
of Section 6, what is required to be established is that it must
be almost contemporaneous with the acts and there should
not be an interval which would allow fabrication. The
statements sought to be admitted, therefore, as fon}zfng part
of.res gestae, must have been made contemporaneously. with
the acts or immediately thereafter ..."

8.  Likewise in Gentela Vijayvardhan Rao's case (supra) this Court held:-

. "The principle of law émbodied in Section 6 of the Evidence
Act is usually known as the rule of res gestae recognized in
English law. The essence of the doctrine is that a Jfact which,
though not in an issue, is so connected with the Jact in issue
‘as to form part of the same transaction’ that it becomes

- relevant by itself. This rule is, roughly speaking, an exception
to the general rule that hearsay evidence is not admissible.
The rationale in making certain statement or Jact admissible
under Section 6 of the Evidence Act is on account of the
spontaneity and immediacy of such statement or Jact in
relation to the fact in issue.” But it is necessary that such_fact
or stafement must have been made contemporaneous with the
acts which constitute the offence or at least immediately. -
thereafier. But if there was an interval, however slight it may
be, which was sufficient enough for fabrication then the
statement is not part of res gestae". ’

9. It will be seen that PW-4 had made her statement to Amol Singh within a
few minutes of the incident and can, therefore, be taken as good evidence..

10. Ganesh Bhavan Patel’s case undoubtedly postulates that interference
should not be made by.the High Court in an acquittal appeal save in exceptional
circumstances and if two views -are possible on the evidence and the Trial Court
has taken the one in favour of the accused, no interference is called for.

11. In the light of what has been observed hereinabove, we find that the trial
court was completely in error in disbelieving the evidence of PW-4 as supported
by the res gestae eviderice of PW-3 and the High Court was justiﬁed' on a re-
appreciation of the evidence in setting aside the judgment of the Trial Court. With
these observations, we dismiss the appeal. ’ |

' I Appeal dismissed.
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WRIT APPEAL
Before Mr. Justice S. Samvatsar & Mr. Justice A.P. Shrivastava
_ 21 August, 2009*
AMOLAK SINGH CHHABRA ... Appeliant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. : ... Respondents

Service Law - Departmental Promotion Committee - Powers of judicial
review by High Court - Can the High Court reassess the findings of the
Departmental Promotion Committee - Held - No - Normally, High Court or
the Tribunal should not sit as an appellate court over the decision of the
selection committee and should not take the task of selection on itself by
considering the fitness of the candidates unless there are mala fides or the
selection is arbitrary. (Para 25)
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Cases referred : '

(2007) 14 SCC 641, (2009) 4 SCC 753, AIR 1987 SC 1889, (1993) 1 SCC
17, (1997) 4 SCC 424, (1997) 4 SCC 575, (1990) 1 SCC 305, (2002) 9 SCC 765.

"K.N. Gupta with M.P.S. Raghuva;qsh}‘, for the appellant.

PN. 'Gupta, G.A., for the respondent Nos.1 & 2 / State.

Ravindra Kumar Shrivastava, V.K. Bhardwaj with Anand V. Bhardwaj
& Nandita Dubey, for the respondent No.3.

JUDGMENT

The  Judgment of the Court was delivered by
S. SamvaTsar, J. :—This writ appeal is preférred by the appellant [respondent
1n0.3 in the writ petition no.3584/08(s)] assailing the judgment dated 15.05.09 passed
by the learned Single Judge of this Court whereby the writ petition filed by suresh
Chandra Pandey i.e. the respondent no.3 before this Court is allowed.

2. Biief facts of the case are that petitioner Suresh Chandra Pandey was
appointed as District Excise Officer on 12.08.83 while Amolak Singh Chhabra,
appellant before this court and who was joined as respondent no.3 before the writ
court was appointed on the same post on 22.03.88. Thus, admittedly, the Suresh
Chandra Pandey was senior to Amolak Singh Chhabra in the cadre of District

*W.A. No.222/2009 (Gwalior)

e —— e Y e s — J— — - -

ok



IL.R. [2009] M. P, _ 3047
AMOLAKSINGH CHHABRA Vs. STATE OF M.P.

Excise Officer. 3. In the year 2002, a Departmental Promotion Committee was
held for considering the cases of District Excise Officers for promotion to the
post of Assistant Commissioner (Excise). The Departmental Promotion Committee
after considering the cases of Suresh Chandra Pandey and Amolak Singh Chhabra
promoted them to the post of Assistant Commissioner (Excise). The petitioner
Suresh Chandra Pandey being senior to the present appellant Amolak Singh
Chhabra was piaced at serial no.1 while the name of Amolak Singh Chhabra was
at serial no.3. This shows that the petitioner Suresh Chandra Pandey continued to
be the senior to Amolak Singh Chhabra in the cadre of Assistant Commissioner
(Excise).

4. The Departmental Promotion Committee again met in the year 2006 for
considering the cases for promotion from the post of Assistant Commissioner
(Excise) to the post of Deputy Commissioner (Excise). There is no dispute that
the criteria for promotion to the post of Deputy Commissioner (Excise} is merit-
cum-seniority. The Departmental Promotion Committee, after considering the cases
of petitioner Suresh Chandra Pandey & the appellant Amolak Singh Chhabra,
placed Amolak Singh Chhabra at serial no.1 in the merit list while Suresh Chandra
- Pandey was placed at serial no.1 in the wait-list. The selection committee after
considering the ACRs of Amolak Singh Chhabra allotted 20 marks while the
sélection committee allotted 14 marks to the petitioner Suresh Chandra Pandey,

5. Before the Departmental Promotion Committee was held, a challan was
filed against the Amolak Singh Chhabra in the Ratiam Court on 28.03.06. In view
of the fact that Amolak Singh Chhabra was facing criminal proceedings, the result
of the DPC in respect of Amolak Singh Chhabra was kept in sealed cover and
Suresh Chandra Pandey, the petitioner, was promoted to the post of Deputy
Commissioner (Excise) vide order dated 26.05.06 Annexure P-4. From perusal of
the said order, it is clear that the petitioner was promoted on officiating basis.

6. The criminal proceedings initiated against Amolak Singh Chhabra came to
an end and he was discharged by the Criminal Court vide order dated 30.10.06 on
the ground that the Government has not granted any sanction to prosecute him
under Section 197 of code of Criminal Procedure. Subsequently, by order dated
12.11.07, the Government refused to grant sanction to prosecute Amolak Singh
Chhabra and thus he was acquitted of the criminal case.

1. In spite of his discharge from criminal case, the sealed cover of Amolak
Singh Chhabra was not opened. Hence, he filed a writ petition before this Court
bearing no.W.P. 469/08(s). This writ petition was allowed by this court on 01.05.08
and the Single Judge of this Court after hearing the writ petition directed to open
the sealed cover and give effect to the same. This order was challenged by Suresh
Chandra Pandey by filing writ appeal bearing no.W.A.364/08 which was decided
on 24.07.08 vide Ex.P-16. '
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8.  The main contention of the petitioner i.e. Suresh Chandra Pandey in the
aforesaid writ petition was that he was necessary party in the writ petition filed
by Amolak Singh Chhabra .and the writ petition was filed without impleading him
as a party. This argument was neganved by the Division Bench of this Court by
holding that Amolak Singh Chhabra had filed the writ petition only for the relief of
opening of the sealed cover and giving effect to it. Thus, Suresh Chandra Pandey
was not a necessary party in the said petition. In para 12 of its judgment, the
Division Bench after referring the order dated 26.05.06 whereby Suresh Chandra
Pandey was promoted has held that the said order is an.order promoting Suresh
Chandra Pandey on officiating basis and therefore he has no right to hold the
post. In such circumistances, the question of impleading him a party does not
arise. This judgment has attained finality as the same was not assailed before the
Apex Court.

9.  After the judgment of the Division Bench, the sealed cover was opened on
24.07.08 and consequently by order dated 30.07.08 it was decided by the State
Government to promote Amolak Singh Chhabra to the post of Deputy Commissioner
(Excise) and as a consequence of the promotion of Amolak Singh Chhabra reverted
Suresh Chandra Pandey to the post of Assistant Commissioner (Excise). This
order was challenged by Suresh Chandra Pandey by filing writ petition bearing
W.P. No.3584/08 (s). The said writ petition is allowed by the-impugned judgment.
Hence, this appeal. -

10.  The contention of Shri. K.N. Gupta, Senior Counsel appearing alongwith
Shri. MPS Raghuvanshi, Advocate, is that the Writ Court has committed grave
error in interfering in the assessment of the departmental promotion committee.
According to him, the High Court cannot sit as an appellate court over the
assessment of the DPC.and set aside the same. On the other hand, Shri. Ravindra
Shrivastava, Senior Counsel, appearing alongwith Smt. Nandita Dubey, Advocate,
supported the judgment and contended that the assessment of the DPC was
apparently arbitrary and therefore, the writ court has rightly interfered with the
same after perusing the original ACRs and allowed the writ petltlon filed by Suresh
Chandra Pandey.

11. Inthe present case, the service conditions of the petltxoner and the respondent
are governed by the rules namely Madhya Pradesh Public Services (Promotion)
Rules, 2002. As per Rule 7, the criteria for promotion from the post of Assistant
Commissioner (Excise) to the post of Deputy Commissioner (Excise} is merit-
cum-seniority.

12.  Sub-tule 5 of Rule 7 further provides that the meeting of the Departmental
Promotion/Screening. Committee shall be held every year and shall consider the
suitability of the public servant to the vancancy. Sub-rule 6 further provides that
the DPC shall assess the suitability of the public servants for promotion on the
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basis of their service record and with particular reference to the Annual Confidential
Reports (ACRs) for 5 preceding years. The sub-rule 7 further provides that when
one or more ACRs are not available for any reason for the relevant period, the
Departmental Promotion/Screening Committee shall consider the ACRs of the

years preceding the period in question.

13. In the present case, the Departmental promotron Committee was held in
the year 2006 and therefore, the' relevant years start from 2001 to 2005 The
Departmental Promotion Committee found that Suresh- Chandra Pandey was
graded as very good during all the five years. So far as Amolak Singh Chhabra is
concerned, he was graded outstanding for four years i.c, for the year 00-01,
01-02, 02-03 and 03-04. So far as year 2005 is concerned, it appears from the
ACR that during this year. two persons i.e. O.P. Rawat who was an I.A.S. was
Excise Commissioner has graded him outstanding while Alka Sirohi who was Excme
Commissioner from 01.04.05 to 27.12.05 has graded him “Very Good” As per
the norms set up by the Departmental Promotion Committee, for every outstandmg
years the candidate was entitled for getting four marks. In the present case, Amolak
Singh Chhabra was awarded four marks for all the five years and thus, his total
came to 20 while petitioner Suresh Chandra Pandey was graded as “Very Good”
in the last five years was awarded 14 marks. As per the norms set up by the
Departmental Promotion Committee, the persons acqumng marks from 14-19 were
to be graded as very good and the persons acquiring 20 marks were to be graded
as outstanding. The Departmental Promotion Committee found Amolak Smgh
Chhabra outstanding and therefore recommended for his promotion.

14.  The writ court found that out of five years Amolak : Singh Chhabra was
graded outstanding and was rightly awarded four marks for each of the year.
However, for the year 2005, the writ court found that if he should have been
granted three marks as his gradation for the part of that year was very good.and
part of the year was outstanding and thus, he should have been alloted 19 marks
instead of 20 marks and if in case he was allotted 19 marks he would have been
graded as “Very Good” i.¢. in the same category to which Suresh Chandra Pandey
was placed and hence Suresh Chandra Pandey being a senior should have been
promoted. :

15. The question in the present case is whether the Writ Court should have
interfered in the grading of the Departrnental Promotion Committee in such a
manner? The scope of judicial review in DPC in such matters has been considered
by the Apex Court.

16.  The Apex Court in the case of Union Of India and another Vs. S.K.
Goel and others reported in (2007) 14 SCC 641 has considered the scope of
judicial review under Article 226 of the Constitution of India in DPC proceedings
and held that ordinarily DPC proceedings should not be interfered by the courts of

(RN



3050 LL.R. [2009] M. P,
AMOLAK SINGH CHHABRA Vs, STATE OF M.P.

" law unless such DPC meetings are conducted illegally or in gross-violation of the
standing Government instructions or there is mis-grading of confidential reports.

17.  In another judgment i.e. Dilip Kumar Garg and another Vs. State of
Uttar Pradesh and others reported in 2009 (4) SCC 753 while dealing with the

scope of interference in the Departmental Promotion Committee, the Apex Court

has held that the Courts must respect the decision of the administrative authorities

who have experience in administration and should not interfere readily with the.
administrative decisions unless there is cledr violation of some constitutional

provision or statute. .

18. The Apex Court in the case of State Bank of India and others Vs. Mohd.
Mynuddin reported in ATR 1987 SC 1889 has held in para 5 that whenever
promotion to a higher post is to be made on the basis of merit no officer can claim
promotion to the higher post as a matter of right by virtue of seniority alone with
effect from the date on which his juniors are promoted. It is not sufficient that in
his confidential reports it is recorded that his services are ‘satisfactory’. An officer
may be capable of discharging the duties of the post of held by him satisfactorily
but he may not be fit for the higher post. Before any such promotion can be
effected it is the duty of the management to consider the case of the officer
concemed on the basis of the relevant materials. If promotion has been denied
arbitrarily or without any reason ordinarily the Court can issue a direction to the
management to consider the case of the officer concerned for promotion but it
cannot issue a direction to promote the officer concerned to the higher post without
giving opportunity to the management to consider the question of promotion. There
is good reason for taking this view. The Court is not by its very nature competent
to appreciate the abilities, qualities or attributes necessary for the task, office or
duty of every kind of post in the modern world and it would be hazardous for it to
undertake the responsibility of assessing whether a person is fit for being promoted
to a higher post which is to be filled up by selection. The duties of such posts may
need skills of different kinds - scientific, technical, financial, industrial, commercial,
administrative, educational etc. The methods of evaluation of the abilities or the
competence of persons to be selected for such posts have also become now-a-
days very much refined and sophisticated and such evaluation should, therefore,
in the public interest ordinarily be left to be done by the individual or a committee -
consisting of persons who have the knowledge of the requirements of a given post
to be nominated by the employer. Of course, the process of selection adopted by
them should always be honest and fair. It is only when the process of selection is
vitiated on the ground of bias, mala fides or any other similar vitiating circumstance
other considerations will arise.

19. The another judgment on this point is in case of Indian Airlines Corporation
Vs. Capt. K.C. Shukla and others reported in (1993) 1 SCC 17 in which the
Apex Court has held that the High Court was anxious to be fair and just to those
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others who had been selected by reducing the interview percentage then working
out proportionally the marks obtained by respondent on ACR evaluation and
interview and directing to promote him as by this method he would secure the
minimum required cannot be accepted as proper exercise of jurisdiction under
Article 226 of the Constitution of India. Adjusting equities in exercise of
extraordinary jurisdiction is one thing but assuming the role of selection committee

.is another. The Court cannot substitute its opinion and devise its own method of

evaluating fitness of a candidate for a particular post. Not that it is powerless to
do so and in a case where after removing the illegal part it is found that the officer
was not promoted or selected contrary to law it can issue necessary direction.
For instance a candidate denied selection because of certain entries in his character
roll which either could not be taken into account or had been illegally considered
because they had been expunged the Court would be within jurisdiction to issue
necessary direction. But it would be going too far if the Court itself evaluates
fitness or otherwise of a candidate, as in this case.

0. * Thus, in the aforesaid case, the Apex Court has laid down that the High
Court cannot, in exercise of powers under Article 226 of the Constitution of India,
sit as a appellate court over the decision of the selection committee and interfere
in the same.

21. In the case of State of Bihar and others Vs. Bateshwar Sharma reported
in (1997) 4 SCC 424, the Apex Court has again considered the scope of judicial
review and held that the view taken by the High Court is palpably illegal for the
reason that once the DPC had found that the respondent was unfit for promotion
up to a date, the only course that requires to be adopted by the High Court was to
remit the matter to the Government for constitution of the DPC to consider
respondent’s fitness for promotion in the later period. In that event, the DPC
would go into the merits afresh and find out whether the respondent would be fit
for promotion. If he would be found to be fit and recommendation is made in that
behalf, the Government would appoint him on regular basis and he would give him .
necessary seniority. The DPC is the only competent authority to decide the merits.

22. In the case of Durga Devi and another Vs. State of H.P. and others
reported in (1997) 4 SCC 575, the Apex Court has held that the Tribunal fell in
error in arrogating to itself the power to judge the comparative merits of the
candidates and consider the fitness and suitability for appointment. That was the
function of the Selection Committee. The order of the Tribunal under the
circumstances cannot be sustained.

23. In the case of Dalpat Abasaheb Solunke Vs. Dr. B.S. Mahajan reported
in (1990) 1 SCC 305, the Apex Court has held as under:

“...It is needless to emphasize that it is not the function of the
court to hear appeals over the decisions of the Selection
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Committees and to scrutinize the relative merits of the candidates.
‘Whether a candidate it fit for a particular post or not has to be
dec1ded by the duly constituted Selection Committee which has
the expertise on the subject. The court has no such expertise. The
decision. of the Selection Committee can be interfered with only -
“on limited grounds, such as illegality or patent material irregularity
" in the constitution of the Committee or its procedure vitiating the
selection, or proved mala fides affecting the selection etc. It is not
disputed that in the present case the University had constituted
‘the Committee in due compliance with the relevant statutes. The
" Committee consisted of experts and it selected the candidates after
‘going through all the relevant material before it. In sitting in appeal
" over the selection so made and in setting it aside on the ground of
“the so-called comparative merits of the candldates as assessed by
the court, the High Court went wrong and exceeded its jurisdiction

24. '‘In the case of Joginder Singh and Others V5. Roshan Lal and othérs

reported in (2002) 9 SCC 765, the Apex court has held that the High court in
exercise of its jurisdiction under Article 226 of the constitution is not supposed to
act as an Appellate Authority over the decision of the Departmental Selection
Committee. If the Committee has been properly constituted, as in this case, and
the post is advertised and a selection process known to law which is fair to all, is
followed, then the High Court could have no jurisdiction to go mnto a question
whether the Deparl_mental Selection Committee coriducted the test properly or
not when there is no allegation of mala ﬁdes or bias against any member of the
Committee. :

25. Thus, the gist of the principle laid down by the Apex Court, in various cases,

is that normally High Court or the Tribunal should not sit as an appellate court
over the decision of the selection committee and should not take the task of selection
on itself by considering the fitness of the candidates unless there are mala fides or
the selection is arbitrary. In the present case, the petitioner was graded “Very
Good” for all the five years and thus he was rightly awarded 14 marks by the
Departmental Promotion Committee. This position is not at all disputed by the
petitioner himself The only contention of the petitioner is that the respondent
Amolak Singh Chhabra should have also been graded as “Very Good” and not
“Ontstanding” and he should have also been awarded- 19 marks. The Single Judge
was of the view that instead of 20 marks he should have been awarded 19 marks.

26. . The question is whether this exercise can be done by the High. court in
exercise of powers under: Article 226 of the Constitution of India. In the present
case, there are no allegations of mala fides. So far as.the service record is
concerned, it is undisputed that Amolak Singh Chhabra secured “Outstanding”
grading in first four years. As far as the last year is concerned, for part of the
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- year during which-Shri. O.P. Rawat was the accepting authority, he was graded

as “QOutstanding” while for the remaining part of the year he was graded as “Very
Good” by Alka Sirchi, the another accepting authority. Thus, he was awarded
“Qutstanding “ for more than four years’ period and awarded “Very Good” for
the part of the year. Considering the overall scenario, if the DPC.had graded him
as “Outstanding™ for the entire five years then it cannot be said that the said
action of the DPC was arbitrary particularly when as per Circular No.3-18/2001/
1/3/1 dated 11.06.02 and memo of the same number dated 12.06.02, the DPC has
power to increase one mark to any of the candidates. This power is exercised by -
the DPC and awarded him 20 marks which cannot be said to be arbitrary.

27. Insuchasituation, the learned Judge has certainly exceeded in its jurisdiction
in interfering in the grading of the petitioner and holding that instead of 20 marks,
19 marks should have been awarded to Amolak Singh Chhabra and in such
circumstances the impugned order cannot be sustained in the eycs of law and
hence, the same is set aside. T

28. Resultantly, the appeal stands allowed and the petition filed by -Suresh
Chandra Pandey stands dismissed with no order as to costs. ‘
o ) ' Appeal allowed.
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Before Mr. Justice Dipak Misra & Mr. Justice RK. Gupta
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SOUTH EASTERN COALFIELDS LTD & ors. T ... Appellants
Vs.
NIJAMUDDIN & anr. : .. Respondents

‘A. Service Law - Correction of Date of Birth - At the fag end of the
career - Permissibility - Held - Not permissible - But, once the employer took
up the claim and on the basis of mark-sheet of Board of Secondary Education
placed by employee referred the matter to the Age Determination Committee,

" employer is estopped to raise a plea that there has been belated approach by

the employee - It is a somersault which has to be raken exception to - The

'same is not permissible. " '(Para 12)
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B. Service Law - Judicial Review - Decision of the Age
Determination Committee - Order passed by the authorities suffers from

procedural irregularity - Procedural irregularity would include where relevant -

Jactors have not been considered - Age Determination Committee has not
considered at all mark-sheet of Board of Secondary Education - Held - An error
has crept in the decision of the Committee as it has ignored the mark-sheet of
Board of Secondary Education which reflects the date of birth. (Para 16)
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162, 1994 Supp (1) SCC 155, (1994) 6 SCC 302, (1997) 5 SCC 181, (2005) 6 SCC
49, AIR 1989 SC 997, (2005) 10 SCC 84, (2001) 2 SCC 386, (1995) 6 SCC 749,
(1997) 7 SCC 463.

P.S. Nair with Shishir Dixit, for the appellants.
S.P: Tripathi, for the respondent No.1.
Naman Nagrath & Mourya, for the respondent No.2.

ORDER

The Order of  the Court was delivered by
Drpak Misra, J. :—In this intra-court appeal preferred under Section 2(1) of the
M.P. Uchcha Nayalaya (Khand Nyayapeeth Ko Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005, the
legal sustainability of the order dated 12.8.2008 passed in Writ Petition No.17742/
2006 has been called in question.

2. Sans unnecessary details, the facts which are necessitous to be unfurled
are that the respondent was appointed on 6.7.1974 and at the time of entering
into service his age was recorded as 29 years in his service register. In the year
2003, on the basis of the mark-sheet of the High School Examination certificate
and other documents brought on record, the present appellants undertook an
exercise df verification of the date of birth of the writ petitioner. The respondent
produced the mark-sheet and other documents from the Board of Secondary
Education and the same were got verified by the authorities from the Board which
were found to be genuine. Because of the aforesaid situation, the matter was
referred to the Age Determination Committee which, by its decision dated 22.6.2005

L)
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and 27.6.2005, assessed the age of the respondent as 57 and half years as on
22.6.2005 by its communication dated 28.6.2005. Eventually, the respondent was
superannuated w.e.f. 31.12.2007 by order dated 31.8.2007. The said order was
assailed before the learned single Judge on the foundation that there had been
erroneous determination of the age on the basis of the entry in the Form-B Register
despite the fact that authoritative and sanguine documents were available as per
the Implementation Instruction No.76. It was urged that it was incumbent on the
part of the Age Determination Committee to have determined the age on the
basis of the said documents but, as it is vivid, the age has been arbitrarily assessed
the age to be 57 years-and half as on 22.6.2005.

3. The stand and stance of the respondent were combatted by the present
appellant contending that in Form B register there was a declaration by the employee
that he was 29 years of age in the year 1974 and, therefore, the contention that
the date of birth should be recorded as 23.11.1953 was absolutely misconceived.
That apart, it was resisted on the ground that the respondent sought correction of
his date of birth at the fag énd of his service career and in view of the decision
rendered.in Coal India Ltd. and another v. Ardhendu Bikas Bhattacharjee
and others, (2005) 12 SCC 201, it was impermissible.

4.  The leamed single Judge analysed the facts and expressed the view that
the employer and its functionaries themselves had noticed the discrepancy and
referred the matter to the Age Determination Committee; that the marksheet
obtained from the Board of Secondary Education was to be given credence under
the scheme of Implementation Instruction No.76; that the Age Determination
Committee committed error in its assessment; and that the petitioner was entitled
to continue up to sixty years of age treating his date of birth as 23.11.1953. Being
of this view, he directed the respondent-authorities to correct the date of birth of
the petitioner and permit him to continue in service till the age of superannuation
and extend him all consequential benefits which he has been deprived of as a -~
result of the illegal order of superannuation.

5. Wehave heard Mr. P.S. Nair, learned senior counsel along with Mr. Shishir
Jain, for the appellants; Mr. S.P. Tripathi, learned counsel for the respondent No.1
and Mr. Naman Nagrath .and Mr. Mourya, learned counsel for the respondent
No.2.-

6.  Mr. Nair, learned senior counsel assailing the order passed by the Jearned
single Judge submitted that when there is a categorical mention about the age of
the petitioner in the 'Form B' Register and that was the earliest document in point
of time and further the Age Determination Committee had determined the age on
the basis of X-ray report, the same should have been accepted. It is proponed by
him that the learned single Judge has fallen into error by not accepting the
submission of the employer that the writ petitioner had raised a dispute at the fag
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end of his career which is not permissible. It is also urged that once the Age
Determination Committee has determined the age, the same should have been
treated as final being beyond assail.

7.  Mr. 8.P. Tripathi, learned counsel appearing for the respondent No. 1 submitted
that the order passed by the learned single Judge cannot be found fault with as
there has been appropriate and apposite analysis of the facts and the same is
founded on the Implementation Instruction No.76. It is canvassed by him that
once the appellants had themselves sent the matter to the "Age Determination
Committee, they cannot take a somersault and advance a plea that the respondent
could not have raised the dispute as regards his date of birth towards the fag end
of his career.

8.  First we shall deal with the facet whethér the writ petition should have been
thrown overboard on the ground that the dispute as regards the date of birth has
been raised at the fag end of career.In Ardhendu Bikas Bhattacharjee and
Others (supra), the Apex Court has held as follows:

“..It is well settled that an employee will not be permitted to
apply for change of date of birth at the fag end of his service
career. In the instant case we do not know on what basis after
38 years the Secondary Education Board in Bangladesh
corrected the matriculation certificate. This is essentially a
question of fact, and in any case the High Court ought not to
have exercised its writ jurisdiction to determine the real date
of birth... '
9. InBurn Standard Co. Ltd v. Dmabana'hu Majumdar, (1995) 4 SCC 172
it has been ruled thus:

“Entertainment by High Courts of writ applications made by
employees of the Government ‘or its instrumenialities at the
Jag end of their services and when they are due for retirement
Jrom their services, in our view, is unwarranted. It would be
50 for the reason that no employee can claim a right to
correction of birth date and entertainment of such writ
applications for correction of dates of birth of some employees
of Government or its instrumentalities will mar the chances of
promotion of his juniors and prove to be an undue
encouragement to the other employees to make similar
applications at the fag end of their service careers with the
. sole object of preventing their retirements when due.
Extraordinary nature of the jurisdiction vested in the High
Courts under Article 226 of the Constitution in our considered
view, is not meant to make employees of Government or. its
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instrumentalities to continue in service beyond the period of
their entitlement according to dates of birth accepted. by.their
employers, placing reliance on the so-called newly found
material. The fact that an employee of Government. or ity
instrumentality who will be in service for over decades, with
no objection whatsoever raised as to his date of birth accepted
by the employer as correct, when all of a sudden comes
Jorward towards: the fag end of his service career - with ‘a writ
application before the High Court seeking correction of his.
date of birth in his Service Record, the very conduct of non-
raising of an objection in the matter by the employee, in our
view, should be a.sufficient reason for the High Court, not fo
entertain such applications on grounds of acqmescence
undue delay and laches. Moreover, drscretronary Jurisdiction
of the High Courr can never be said to have been reasonably
and judicially exercised if it entertains such writ apphcat:on
for no employee, who had grievance as to his date of birth in
his 'Service and Leave Record' could have genuinely wazted
till the fug end of his service career to get it corrected by
availing of the extraordinary ]urzsdzcnon of a H:gh Court.
Therefore, we have no hesztat:on in holdmg, that ordinarily

. High Courfs should not,”in exercise of its discretionary writ
Jjurisdiction, entertain a writ application/petition filed by an
employee of the .Government or its instrumentality, towards
the fag end of his service, seeking correction of his date of
birth entered in his 'Service and Leave Record * or Service
Register with the avowed object of conrmumg in service beyond
the normal period of his retirement.” -

10. - In State of U.P. and Others v. Gylaichi (SMT),’ (2003) 6 SCC 483, a two-
: Judge Bench-of the Apex Court after referring to the decisions rendered in Union
of India v. Harnam Singh, (1993) 2 SCC 162, Secy and Commr., Home Depit.
v. R. Kirubakaran, 1994 Supp (1) SCC 155, Staie of Tamil Nadu v. T.V.
Venugopalan, (1994) 6 SCC 302 and State of Orissa v. Ramanath Patnaik,
(1997) 5 SCC 181 expressed the view that the application for correction of date
of birth cannot be entcrtamed .at the end of service career. The1r Lordshlps
reiterated the principles which have been la1d down in R. Kirub akaran wherem it
has been held as follows

“This Court has repeafedly porntea’ out that correctzon of the .
date of birth of public servant is permissible, but that should
“not be done in a casual manner. Any such order must be passed

on materials produced by the public servant from which the

— B T 5 ommiae— asam o
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irresistible conclusion foliows that the date of birth recorded
in the service book was incorrect. While disposing of any
such application, the Court or the Tribunal, has first to
examine, whether the application has been made within the

~ prescribed period under some rule or administrative order. If
there is no rule or order prescribing any period, then the Court
or Tribunal has to examine, why such application was not made
within a reasonable time afier joining the service.’

11. In State of U.P. and Another v. Shiv Narain Upadhyaya, (2005) 6 SCC
49, their Lordships have held as under:

“As such, unless a clear case on the basis of clinching
materials which can be held to be conclusive in nature, is made
out by the respondent and that too within a reasonable time
as provided in the rules governing the service, the Court or
the Tribunal should not issue a direction or make a declaration
on the basis of materials which make such claim only
plausible. Before any such direction is issued or declaration
made, the Court or the Tribunal must be fully satisfied that
there has been real injustice to the person concerned and his
claim for correction of date of birth has been made in
accordance with the procedure prescribed,_and within the time
fixed by any rule or order. If no rule or order has been framed
or made, prescribing the period within which such application
has to be filed, then such application must be within at least a
reasonable time.”

(Emphasis supplied)

12. The principles that have been laid down in the aforesaid decisions clearly
enunciate that an employee cannot raise a dispute with regard to his date of birth
and claim it otherwise towards the fag end of his service carcer.. But, a significant
one, in the case at hand, the factual expose' is quite different. The appellant-
employer undertock an exercise in the year 2003 and referred the matter to the
Age Determination Committee, which recorded a finding. Once the employer
took up the claim and on the basis of the documents placed by the respondent
referred the matter to the Age Determination Committee it is estopped to raise a
plea that there has been belated approach by the respondent. It is a somersault
which has to be taken exception to. The same is not permiissible and accordingly,
on facts, we repel the submission of Mr. Nair, learned senior counsel for the
appellant, on this score.

13.  The second aspect which we intend to advert to is whether the decision of
the Age Determination Committee is final and is not subject to the judicial review
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by a writ court. In this context, we think it apposite to refer to the decision
rendered in State of U.P. v. Dharmander Prasad Singh, AIR 1989 SC 997
wherein the Apex Court has laid down the parameters of judicial review :-

“However, Judicial review under Article 226 cannot be
converted into appeal. Judicial review is directed, not against
the decision, but is confined to the examination of the decision-
making process.’In Chief Constable of the North Wales Police
v. Evans, (1982) 1 W.L.R. 1135 refers to the merits-legality
distinction in judicial review. Lord Hailsham said:

"The purpose of judicial review is to ensure that the individual
receives fair treatment, and not to ensure that the authority,
after according fair treatment, reaches on a matter which it is
authorised by law fo decide for itself a conclusion which is
correct in the eyes of the Court.”

Lord Brightman observed :

..... Judicial review, as the words imply, is not an appeal from
a decision, but a review of the manner in which the decision
was made..."

And held that it would be an error to think :

" ....that the Court sits in judgment not only on the correctness

of the decision-making process but also on the correctness of
the decision itself."

When the issue raised in judicial review is whether a decision
is vitiated by taking info account irrelevant, or neglecting to
take into account of relevant, factors or is so manifestly
.unreasonable that no reasonable authority, entrusted with the

- power in question could reasonably have made such a
decision, the judicial review of the decision-making process
includes examination, as a matter of law, of the relevance of
the factors.”

14. In Damoh Panna Sagar Rural Regional Bank and Another v. Munna
Lal Jain, (2005) 10 SCC 84, a two-Judge Bench of the Apex Court ruled thus:

“10. Lord Greene said in 1948 in the famous Wednesbury case
that when a statute gave discretion to an administrator to take
a decision, the scope of judicial review would remain limited.
He said that interference was not permissible unless one-or
the other of the following conditions was satisfied, namely
the order was contrary to law, or relevant factors were not
considered, or irrelevant factors were considered; or the
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decision was one which no reasonable person could have
taken. These principles were consistently followed in the UK
and in India to judge the validity of administrative action. It
is equally well known that in 1983, Lord Diplock in Council
Jor Civil Services Union v. Minister of Civil Service (called
the CCSU case) summarized the principles of judicial review
of administrative action as based upon one or other of the
following viz., illegality, procedural irregularity and
irrationality. He however, opined that "proportionality” was
a "future possibility”.” '

Thereafter their Lordships, referred to the decisions in Om Kumar v. Union
of India, (2001) 2 SCC 386, B.C. Chaturvedi v. Union of India, (1995) 6 SCC
749, Union of India v. G. Ganayutham, (1997) 7 SCC 463 and number of other

dBCISIOI‘lS and eventually expressed the view as follows:

“14. The common thread running through in all these decisions
is that the Court should not interfere with the administrator's
decision uriless it was illogical or suffers from procedural
impropriety or was shocking to the conscience of the Court,
in the sense that it was in defiance of logic or moral standards.
In view of what has been stated in the Wednesbury's case
(supra) the Court would not go into the correctness of the
choice made by the administrator open to him and the Court
should not substitute its decision to that of the administrator.
The scope of judicial review is limited to the defcrency in -
decision-making process and not the decision.’

15.  'We have referred to these decisions only to highlight that when the order
passed by the authorities suffers from procedural irregularity, it is legally vulnerable.
The said procedural irregularity would include where relevant factors have not
been considered. In the case at hand, the Age Determination Committee has not
addressed at all with regard to the relevance of the mark sheet issued by-the
Board of Secondary Education while determining the age. It is worth noting that
the consideration of mark sheet and such other documents do find mention in the
Implementation Instruction No.76. In this context, we may profitably reproduce
the relevant portion of the Implementation Instruction No.76:

"(B) Review/determination of date of birth in respect of existing
employees.

(1) (a) In the case of the existing employees Matriculation
Certificate or Higher Secondary Certificate issued by the
Universities or Board or Middle pass certificate issued by the
Board of Education and/or Department of Public Instructions

4
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and admit cards issued by the aforesaid Bodies should be
treated as correct provided they were issued by the said
Umversmes/Board/Instztut:ons prior to the date of
employment.”

As is evincible the said facet has not been adverted to at all by the Age
Determination Comr_mttee Thus, indubitably, the relevant factors have not been
considered and when relevant factors have not been considered, the decision of
the Age Determination Committee is irrefragably subject to judicial review as the
decision making process is legally unsustainable. At this juncture, it is worth noting
that keeping in view the stance of the appellants, we got the documents produced

"by the writ petitioner before the employer verified by the Board of Secondary

Educatlon and an affidavit has been filed by the competent authority of the Board

of Secondary Education stating that the documents are absolutely genuine.

16. Inview of the aforesaid premises, we are of the considered opinion that an
error has crept in the decision of the Age Determination Committee as it has
ignored the mark sheet issued by the Board of Secondary Education which reflects
the date of birth and, therefore, we concur with the view expressed by the learned
single Judge. - '

17. Ex consequenti, the writ appeal, being sans substratum stands. dlsn'ussed
There shall be no order as to costs.
' ' Appeal dis‘missed.
I.L.R. [2009].M. P.,, 3061 - - PR

CONTEMPT CASE ' ’ .
Before Mr. Justice Rajendra Menon

- 6 November, 2009*

HORILAL .- Applicant
Vs, ‘ ‘ L
.BHAJANLAL . Non-apphcant

Contempt of Courts Act (70 of 1971), Sectlon 12, Constltutlon, Article
215 - Maintainability of Contempt Petition for execution of a decree passed
by competent civil Court - Held - Not maintainable - When the Code of Civil
Procedure provides for instituting a proceeding for execution of the judgment
& decree, then a contempt application under Article 215 of Constitution r/w
8. 12 of Act is not maintainable as the statute provides for a mechanism for
execution of the decree passed. (Para 3)

T Aaa AftfEE (1971 BT 70), ORI 12, WA, AT 215
—wmﬁrﬁﬁwmmmﬁﬂﬁaﬁa%ﬁwa?mmaﬁﬂﬂ

*Contempt Case No.1047/2009 (Jabalpur)
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Cases referred :

. (2000} 4 SCC 400,

S.K. Dwivedi, for the applicant.
ORDER

RATENDRA Menon, J. :~This application has been filed for initiating action
for contempt on the grounds of disobedience of order passed in MCC No.529/
2009, an application under Section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure.

2. A suit for eviction was ﬁled by the present applicant on the grounds
contemplated under Section 12 (1) (a), (b) and () of the M.P. Accommodation
Control Act, 1961. The suit has been decreed by the Trial Court, First Appellate
Court and Second Appellate Court, After dismissal of the Second Appeal No. 113
of 2005 by judgment dated 17.3.2009 by this Court, an application under Section
151 was filed by the respondent seeking some time to vacate the suit premises.
Even though, time granted in MCC No.529/2009 for vacation of the suit premises
has lapsed, the suit premises have not been vacated in accordance to the decree
granted. Hence, this application has been filed for initiating actions for contempt.

3. Applicant wants execution of a decree passed by the Trial Court and affirmed
by the First Appellate Court and Second Appellate Court.

4. Decree has been passed by a competent court having jurisdiction and
therefore proceedings for execution under the Code of civil Procedure can be
filed before the Court. When decree and judgment passed can be executed in
accordance to the law, this contempt petition is not maintainable. When the Code:
of Civil Procedure provides for instituting a proceeding for execution of the
judgment and decree, then a contempt application under Article 215 read with
Section 12 of Contempt of Court Act is not maintainable as the Statute provides
for a mechanism for Execution of the decree passed. In the case of R.N.Dey
and others Vs. Bhagyabati Pramanik and others 2000(4) SCC Page-400, it is
held as under: | :

"7. We majr reiterate that the weapon of contempt is not to be
used in abundance or misused. Normally, it cannot be used for
execution of the decree or implementation of an order for which
alternative remedy in law is provided for. Discretion given to the
Court is to be exercised for maintenance of the Court’s dignity
and majesty of law.....

8. Further, the decree-holder, who does not take steps to execute
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-the decree in accordance with the procedure prescribed by law, -
should not be encouraged to invoke contemipt jurisdiction of the:
Court for non-satisfaction of the money decree. In land acquisition
cases when a decree is passed the State is in the position of a
judgment-debtor and hence the Court should not normally lend
help to a party who refuses to take legally-provided steps for
executing the decree. At any rate, the Court should be slow to
haul up officers of the Government for contempt for non-
satisfaction of such money decree."

5. In view of the aforesaid, I am of the considered view that contempt
proceedings cannot be initiated in the matter, where the statutory provision as
contemplated under the Code of Civil Procedure permits the petitioner to seek

6. Accordingly, no case is made out for initiating action for contempt. In case
petitioner is apgrieved, he can seek execution of the decree in accordance to the law.
7. Application is accordingly, dismissed.
: Petition dismissed.
LL.R. [2009] M. P., 3063
ELECTION PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra

: 5 February, 2009*

: RAJKUMAR PATEL . ... Petitioner
Vs. '
SHIVRAJ SINGH CHAUHAN ... Respondent

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rule 1, Proviso -
Interpreted in the light of Salem Advocate Bar's case (2005) 6 SCC 344 - The
question as to grant of further adjournment fo the party, who has already
been able to get hearing of the trial adjourned on three occasions, would
always depend upon the facts and circumstances of each case - In other
words, the process of judicial interpretation has not made the proviso fotally
redundant, otiose and nugatory. (Para 4)

P, fufaw afyar «fdar (1908 &7 5), e 17 Eq 1, WgF —
WIS TSdPE gR @ A (2005) 6 TEHT 344 & W § (A AT TAT — AR,
St afee & I AaERt W TR @ g B fd w1 9 A <§ G 2, DY
sfaRae T R W weell 1 waT € e AR @ qet ik IRRfEl ) R
2N — & wreat ¥, e Frdaa B AR A wege Y gui: IFevEs, IR AR
forefs Tt AT R ' _

*Election Petition No.1/2006 (Jabalpur)
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B. Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section 87, Civil

Procedure Code, 1908, Order 17 - If is well settled - The provisions of
Order 17 of the Code are applicable to an election petition. (Para 5)

T, o wfafifera sftrfam (1951 T 43), o 87, fifaw afwar
wfgar, 1908, IRY 17 — TT gelifia ¥ - GRar & AW 17 B Suey frafe
et Bt ff A ¥ . '

C. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rule 1 - In election
petition application of adjournment supported by medical certificate - Held
- Application not supported by affidavit - Name of author of the certificate is
not ascertainable and overwriting in the date of commencement of ailment -
Trial had to be adjourned at the request of the petitioner on Sfive earlier
dates of hearing - It has led to a ridiculous result as the evidence of the
petitioner is yet to be recorded in election trial whereas, in the meanwhile, a
Jfiresh election to the Legislative Assembly has already been held - Application
rejected. - : (Paras 6 & 7)

T fufew wfEar wd@fsar (1908 o1 5), v 17 fimw 1 — fgfas
e # Fafrcdra s < wARfa TR BT anded.— aRRERE — amie e
I WARIT S — oy B A AW iR O T8 € ok I @ oo
&M @ A 7 siftroraT — gar 1 gdadl di et W ard @ e w e
T AT ST o — 39 ST 9ReH @ Aged fHar § waifs frates frawer
A 3t areht @) e afiferRaa o T ¥ el 50 e F R e o war Pt
fosur @1 gt § ~ 3mdEs wRa )

D. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 17 Rulé 2 - Procedure -

if the parties failed to appear on the day fixed - In election. petition on the

previous date of hearing last opportunity was given to the petitioner Jor recording -

of his evidence - Howeéver, he has not been able to make out an extreme case for
grant of further adjournment - Consequently, the election petition dismissed
under Order 17 Rule 2 of the Code for want of evidence. "~ (Paras 8 & 9)

€. Tufee ufrar wfear (1908 &7 8), akw 17 frm 2 — If werwi
e e W soeEeTa § § dwed <ed & at ufkar - fafew aifrer §
G 1 QA AR R A Y o e aftfiRe R @ g i s
T — TN, T8 T T2 77 i o B Y ancdfres ame s § wwef T
g3 — aRvIRaw, fPrafas aife weg & e 4 wftar @ oy 17 Braw 2 & sraefa
Ecuse ’ ‘ ,
Cases referred: )

AIR 2002 SC 2436, (2005) 6 SCC 344, (2007) 6 SCC 420, AIR 1984 SC 135,

Manaj Sharma, for the petitioner. -

Ravish Agrawal with Arpan J. Pawar, for the respondent.

&
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ORDER

R.C. MisHRa, J. :~Heard on LA. No.2/2009, that has been moved for
grant of adjournment on the ground that the petitioner is ‘not medically fit to give
evidence. In support thereof, a certificate, issued on behalf of Chirayu Health and
Medicare (P) Ltd., Bhopal, to the effect that the petltloner is suffermg from disc-
prolapse has been filed.

2. Opposmg the prayer vehemently, the learned Senior Counsel has submitted
that it is yet another attempt to protract the election trial. According to him, he
has credible information that the petitioner was séen roaming in Bhopal yesterday
only. Placing reliance on a decision of the Apex Court in Mohandds vs. Ghisia

.Bai AIR 2002 SC 2436, he has emphatically contended that the petition deserves

to be dismissed under Order XVII Rule 2 of the Civil Procedure: Code (for brevity
‘the Code”), in view of pétitioner’s failure to enter into the witness box even after
obtaining a series of adjournmcnts for the purpose dunng the period commencing
from 10.09.2007.

3.  Inresponse, learned counsel for the petltloner has urged that t.he proviso to
Rule 1 of Order XVII of the Code, though inserted with a view to placmg restriction
on grant of more than three ad_]oumments has already béen construed as directory
in nature. He is further of the view that an adjournment should not be refused
where the cause is beyond the control of the party. To buttress the contention,

attention has been invited to the under-mentioned observations made by the Apex
Court in Salem Advocate Bar Assn. v. Union of India (2005) 6 SCC 344 -

“The proviso to Order XVII, Rule 1 and Order XVII, Rule 2 haveto
be read together. So read, Order XVII does not- forbid "grant of
adjournment where the circumstances are beyond the control of the
party. In such a case, there is no restriction on number of adjournments
to be granted. It cannot be said that even if the circumstances are
beyond the control of a party, after havmg obtained third ad_]oumment
no further adjournment would be granted. There may be cases beyond
the control of a party despite the party having obtained three
adjournments. For instance, a party may be suddenly hospitalized on
account of some serious ailment or there may be serious accident or
some act of God leading to devastation. It cannot be said that though . -
circumstances may be' beyond the control of.a party, further .
adjournment cannét be granted because of restriction ‘of three
"-adjournments as provided in proviso to Order XVII, Rule 17 -

4. But, the fact of the matter is that by takingmote of the guideline, this Court
has already granted more than threc adjournments to the petitioner. for examining
himself. Nevertheless, as explained in Salem Advocate Bar's case (supra), the
question as to grant of further adjournment to the party, who has already been
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able to get hearing of the trial adjourned on three occasions, would always depend
upon the facts and circumstances of each case. In other words, the process of
Jjudicial mterpretai:mn has not'made the proviso totally redundant, otiose and
nugatory. This view is fortified by a subsequent three Judge Bench decision of
the Supreme Court in R.N. Jadi & Brothers vs. Subhashchandra, (2007) 6 SCC
420. The principle, as stated by P.K. Balasubramanyan, J. in the following words,
though relating to proviso to Order VIII Rule 1, is squarely applicable to the proviso
to Order XVII Rule 1 of the Code -

“It would be proper to encourage the belief in litigants that the
imperative of Order 8 Rule 1 must be adhered to and that only in
rare and exceptional cases, will the breach thereof will be .
condoned. Such an approach by courts alone can carry forward
the legislative intent of avoiding delays or at least in curtailing the
delays in the disposal of suits filed in courts. The lament of Lord
Denning in Allen v. Sir Alfred McAlpine & Sons (1968) 2 QB
229 that law’s delays have been intolerable and last so long as to
turn justice sour, is true of our legal system as well. Should that
state of affairs continue for all times?

5. It has not been seriously disputed that the provisions of Order XVII of the
Code are applicable to an Election Petition. The law on the point is also well
settled. For this, reference may be made to the decision of the Apex Court in P,
Nalla Thampy Thera, Dr. vs. B.L. Shanker AIR 1984 SC 135. Thé relevant
observatlons are reproduced as under -

“It, therefore, follows that the Code is applicable in disposing of
an election petition when the election petitioner does not appear
or take steps to prosecute the election petition. Dismissal-of an
election petition for default of appearance of the petitioner under
the provisions of either 0. IX or 0. XVII of the Code would,
therefore, be valid and would not be open to challenge on the
ground that these provisions providing for dismissal of the election
Petition for default do not apply™.

6.  Adverting to the merits of the prayer, it may be observed that the application
of adjournment is not supported by affidavit of the petitioner or the treating docfor.
It has also not been clarified as to whether the petitioner was admitted to the
hospital for treatment. The name of author of the certificate is also not ascertainable
and there is an apparent overwriting in the date of commencement of ailment.

7. This election petition was filed as early as on 26.06.2006 inter alia on the
ground of corrupt practices. Although, the issues were framed on 13.11.2006 yet,
for variety of reasons, the first date for recording of petitioner’s evidence could
be fixed on 10.99.2007. As indicated already, the trial had to be adjourned at his
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request on that day as well as on five subsequent’ days of heanng Thls in essence
has led to a ridiculous result as the evidence.of the petlthIleI' is'yet to be recorded
in this election trial whereas, in the meanwhile, a fresh eIectlon to the Leglslatlve
Assembly has already been held.

8. Inthe hght of these facts and cucumstances onthe) prev10us date of hearmg,
last opportunity was given to the petitioner for the piirpose. However, he has not
been able to make out an extreme case fof grant of further ad_]ournment as
contemplated in Salem Advocate Bar s case (above) The I A therefore stands
rejected.

9.  Consequently, the election petition is dismissed, under Order XVII Rule 2 .
of the Code, for want of evidence. The petmoner ‘shall bear hlS own cost‘as well

ar

as that of the respondent. ' - s

10. Copies of this order be sent to the Election Commlssmn as well as to the
Speaker of the State Leg1sIature T
hP‘etitiqniidismissed
LL:R. [2009]- M. P, 3067" ‘ mooie
' "WRIT PETITI()N LA T -
Beﬁre Mr Justice Arun Mishra & Mrs Justice' Sushma Shrwastava

19 March, 2009* . _
MANITA JAIWAR (SMT) : e Petrtlone'r,
Vs . R ) F_ ') N N -, N & N
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ' o Respondents

Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swara] Adhmlyam, M. P 1993 (1 of 1994),
Section 40, - SDO ordering the removal of Sarpanch mcludmg drsqualzf ication
to contest the election - Enquiry conducted by CEO. on, complaint was not
bipartite - No opportunity to cross-examine, witnesses afforded In the
proceedings u/s 40 of the Adhiniyam, none of the witnesses mcludrng
complainant whose statements were recorded by the Inqurry Officer, were
examined - Opportunity to cross-examine witnesses: and to. adduce evidence
was also not afforded - No due and proper enquiry was conducted by the
SDO - Denial of fair hearing resuited in sérious prejudice to petitioner -
Case remitted to SDQ - Pefition allowed. _ (Paras 5 7&9) .

Wwwumwmﬁmﬁ HAJ. 1083 (1994$r1) "gRT 40
—W@ﬁaﬁ#gﬁma@ﬁﬁﬁ%‘m%mwaﬁmﬁmmﬁm g
TR R W | ) TE Sita Swanel 78 off — Witk 5 aRrrder a3 B s
eI & Ty — AT 9 uRT 40 @ ammfa srd@iRal § uRard) afta fh  aeh
Wmmmmmﬂmﬁﬁmﬁw@ aﬁqﬂma‘é’taﬁw m@m‘raﬁ

*W.P. No.6147/2007 (Jabalpur)




3068 LL.R. [2009] M. P,
MANTTA JAIWAR (SMT)) Vs. STATE OF ML.P.

nﬁqﬁmmﬁmmﬁmaﬂﬁmﬁmﬁﬁmw THI3, ERT B IRI®
AR ST | 78 B ¥ - Hg gIIE ¥ PN B IRupRasy I Bt TR gaing
T3 — Wwaaﬁaﬁﬁmw—wﬁmﬁﬁm
Cases referred :

1999 (2) MPLJ 722 2004 (4) MPLJ 6, 2003 (2) MPLJ 112,

Sharad Verma, for the petitioner.

Ashok Agrawal, G.A., for the respondent Nos.1 to 3.
Praveen Dubey, for the respondent No.5.

Shreyas Pandit, for the intervenor.

ORDER

The Order of .the Court was delivered by
Awrun MisHRA, J. :~The petitioner in the instant writ petition has assailed the-
order (P-3) passed by SDO on 6.12.2006, order (P-4) dated 29.1.2007 passed by
Collector, District - Balaghat and order (P-9) dated 5.5.2007 passed by
Commissioner, Jabalpur Division, Jabalpur, in the matter of removal of the petitioner
from the post of Sarpanch of Gram Panchayat Hatta District Balaghat.

2. The removal of the petitioner has been ordered from the post of Sarpanch

on having been found guilty of the charges levelled against her in the show cause
notice (P-1) dated 16.5.2006. A complaint dated 27.3.2006 was received which

was referred for enquiry to the Chief Executive Officer, Janpad Panchat, Balaghat,

who after conducting enquiry submitted a report on 13.4.2006. In the report
petitioner was found guilty of financial irregularities. On the basis of aforesaid

report, show cause notice 16.5.2006 was issued, reply thereto was submitted before

SDO, who is the competent auithority. During the course of the proceedings under
section 40 of ML.P. Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, 1993 (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Adhiniyam of 1993), the statement of Enguiry Officer had
been recorded by the SDO, opportunity of cross-examination was afforded to the
petitioner on the Enquiry Officer, Enquiry Officer was cross-examined also.

Thereafter, the impugned order (P-3) has been passed by the SDO ordering removal
of the petitioner on having been found guilty of financial irregularities. The order
was unsuccessfully assailed before the Collector and the Commissioner in the
appeal and the revision, respectively. Dissatisfied with the proceedings and the
orders, the instant writ petition has been preferred.

3. Shri Sharad Verma, learned counsel appearing for the petitioner has assailed
the orders mainly on the ground that the report submitted by the Enquiry Officer
was relied upon which was not durlng the course of the proceedings under section
40 of the Adhiniyam of 1993. During the course of enquiry which was conducted
by the CEO, statements of certain witnesses were recorded. It ‘'was not bipartite
enquiry. Opportunity of cross-examination was not afforded to the petitioner,
consequently the cross examination of the Enquiry Officer was of no avail as the
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witnesses were required to be examined and thereafter opportunity of cross-
examination was required to be afforded as envisaged under section 40 of the
Adhiniyam of 1993 Basic principles of natural justice has not been observed and
the+petitioner has been held guilty of financial irregularities without affording
opportunity to cross-examine the witnesses, thus, proceedings are liable to: be
quashed. .

" 4. Learned counsel appearmg for respondents Have supported the orders. They

have submitted that enquiry was conducted by the CEO and CEO has been
examined so as to prove the documents which were collected during the course
of enquiry by him, consequently there is no.infirmity in the proceedings.

5. After hearing the learned counsel for the parties, it is clear that in the instant
case fair procedure has not been adopted. Proceedings under section 40 of the
Adhiniyam of 1993 was initiated by issuance of show.cause notice dated 16.5.2006
by the SDO. No doubt about it that earlier a complaint was filed on 27.3.2006 in
which the enquiry was conducted by the CEO but ‘that was not bipartite and
regular enquiry. Statements of certain witnesses were recorded, which have formed
the basis of removal of the petitioner from the post of Sarpanch. Admittedly
opportunity of cross-examination was not afforded to-the petitioner on the
witnesses who were examined by the CEO, Janpad Panchayat, Balaghat while
conducting the enquiry into the complaint dated 27.3:2006. In the proceedings
under section 40 of the Adhiniyam, 1993 none of the witnesses whose statements
were recorded by the Enquiry Officer, were examined. Opportunity of cross-
examination was also not afforded to the petitioner. Even complainant was not
examined. Opportunity to adduce the évidence was also not afforded to the
petitioner.

6.  This Court in Kailash Kumar Parmanand Dangi Vs. State of M.P. and
others - 1999(2) MPLJ 722 has held that in such matters the enquiry held behind
the back of Sarpanch, cannot be relied upon. The following digcussion has been

_ made by this Court :-

14. In the present case there was not total v101at10n of the
principles of natural justice as a show cause notice was given and
the reply of the petitioner obtained. But keeping in view the facts
of the case certain facets of natural justice as stated above were
not complied with resulting in prejudice to the petitioner. He was
not permitted to adduce his own evidence to rebut the material
-collected against him. The charges were such which could be
proved or disproved by evidence in the inquiry. One of the mam
charges was the distribution of pattas to those who were ot
landless and a conclusion on this point could be reached after
recording cwdence and after seemg the list supplied by the Tehsildar
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or the B.D.O. The prescribed authority in the impugned order has
not dealt with this aspect. Similarly the charges regarding
negligence in the maintenance of garden, supply of water, drainage
and information regarding the meeting of the Gram Sabha could ™
be decided on the basis of evidence and not merely relyinig upon a
preliminary inquiry report. The basic fault in the impugned order
is that an inquiry held by the B.D.O. behind the back of the
petitioner has been held to be a valid 'inquiry' under section 40 of
the Act and he has been packed up on the basis of that inquiry
without even supplying a copy of the same to.the petitioner, and
without affording him an opportunity to lead his own evidence
even when he repeatedly asked for the same. This was denial of
fair hearmg resulting in ‘serious prejudice to the petmoner. The
action of removal and disqualification has to bé struck down as
there has been a failure of justice. The guilty must be punished
but the finding of guilt has to be arrived after fair hearing which
was denied in this case. In Ballabhdas vs. State of M.P,, 1993(2)
JLJ 303, it has been observed by this Court that a full fledged
enquiry is provided under section 40 of the Act. It contemplates
*'due enquiry'. As observed in Delhi’ Transport Corporation vs.
DTC Mazdoor Congress, AIR 1991 SC 101 right to fair treatment
is an essential inbuilt of natural justice which is an integral part of
the guarantee of equality assured by Article 14 of the Constitution
of India. The concept of reasonableness and non-arbitrariness
pervades the entire constitutional spectrum and is a golden-thread:
which runs through the whole fabric of the Constitution. ’

In Rujendra Singh Raghuvarshi Vs. State of M.P. and others - 2004(4)
MPLIJ 6, this Court has laid down' that copy of the enquiry report has to be
furnished. In Mango Bai Vs. State of M.P. and others - 2003(2) MPLJ 112, this
Court has laid down thus :- '

9. Principles of natural justice are re<quired to be observed before
ordering removal of Sarpanch under section 40 of Act in Kailash
vs.State of MLP.,, 1999(2) MPLJ 722 = 1999 (2) JLJ 280 esteemed
brother S.P. Khare, J. considered the question and held that
removal of Sarpanch under section 40 is a serious matter when he
is removed and further disqualified for six years to be elected
under the Act. It is not sufficient to give a mere lip-service to the
requirement of law. It is trug that.it is not specifically provided in
section 40 that prmclples of natural justice should be ‘followed
while holding' an enqlury but it is implicit in this provision that the
office-bearer who is sought to be removed will be given a fair
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hearing. This Court held that the words."after such inquiry as it
may deem fit to make" in the main part of scction 40(1) of the Act
would mean an inquiry which is held inthe presence of the office-
bearer and not behind his back. He should be allowed to inspect
the documents which are to be relied upon against him and he
should have the right to adduce his own evidence. These are the
important facets of aninquiry to be held in conformity with the
principles of natural justice. It is not the subjective choice of the
prescribed authority to get an inquiry held of any kind. It does not.
envisage a secret enquiry or a preliminary enquiryalone. That is
made only for -collection of evidence andat that stage there is no
participation of the person against whom the action is sought to be
taken. The words "as it may deem fit" have to be construed
obj ectlvely and would mean an inquiry depending upon the facts
and circunistances of each case. Some of the facts'of the inquiry
may be excluded if the facts are not very much in dispute or there
are other circumstances to dispense with them. But the ofﬁce
bearer has a right of fair hearing. "You must hear the person who |
is going to suffer". That is a duty which liés upon every one who
decides anything. There is, however, ‘some ﬂex1b111ty dependmg
upon the subject-matter. Similar is the law laid down by this court
in Raja Rai Singh vs. State of M.P. and others, 2001 (4) MPLIJ
364 = 2000 (2) JLJ 242, '

10. Secret enquiry or prehmmary enqu1ry alone i 1s not enough
Collection of evidence' is requlred and pamclpatmn of person
against whom the action is sought to be taken Ordersheets of the
SDO's file indicates that by parte enqulry wa's not hcld at all nor
was directed. Panchayat Inspector conducted the exparte enquiry.
Report of which not supplied. Thereafter an incomp etent authority, -
SDM considered the report and recommended the removal and
order dated 31-3-1999 mentioned that Prescribed Authority ie.”
SDO was in agreement with the view of the SDM'and has passed
the order on 31-3-1999 itself. Whereas it was incumbent upon the -
SDO to receive the reply and to apply mdependent mind-after’
holding an enquiry. All these requirements have been flagrantly
violated in the instant case. Considering the serious nature of
charges levelled against the petitioner she ought to have been given
due and proper opportunity.

MNOV,-U¥ (P1IS1)

7.  Considering the aforesaid decisions of this Court, the procedure adopted
and on going through the file of the SDO which has becen produced, it cannot be '
said that due and proper enquiry was conducted by the SDO before ordering the
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removal of the petitioner from the post of Sarpanch including disqualification to
contest the election, it carries civil consequences. Consequently, the impugned
orders (P-3), (P-4) and (P-5) cannot be permitted to prevail, they are hereby
quashed. Case is remitted back to the SDO to deal with the case in the light of the
aforesaid discussion made by this Court. The SDO shall examine the witnesses
and afford an opportunity to the petitioner to cross-examine the witnesses. Copy
of report of Enquiry Officer shall also be supplied to the petitioner, if it is to be
utilized. Petitioner shall be given opportunity of adducing the evidence as against,
the charges levelled against her and thereafter, a reasoned and considered decision
has to be rendered by the SDO. in accordance with law. Let enquiry be conducted
in accordance with law within a period of four months. :

8. It is submitted by Shri Praveen Dubey, learned counsel appearing for

respondent No. 5 that once the petitioner has been found guilty of financial
“irregularities, at least petitiotier may be restrained from exercising the financial

power. We refrain to comment on the aforesaid aspect, however, petitioner has to

continue as Sarpanch. The question whether financial power has to be exercised
. by the petitioner or not during the pendency of proceedings, may be considered by
the SDO, who is the competent authority. :

9. - Resultantly, the writ petition is allowed. Impugned orders (P-3), (P-4) and

(P-5), passed by SDO, Collector and Commissioner, respectively, are hereby
quashed. No costs.

Petition allowed.

-----------
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Jha

24 March, 2009* :
RUKSANA BEGUM SIDDIQUI : ... Petitioner
Vs. . :
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ... Respondents

A. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule- 42(1)(a) -
Permissibility - Withdrawal of application for voluntary retirement after expiry of -
period of notice - Held - No relationship of employer-employee continued or existed
between them subsequent thereto - Withdrawal not permissible. {(Para 8)
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+ B. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule 42(1)(a) -
Services rendered by teacher aftér the expiry of the period of notice and
withdrawal of application for voluntary retirement - Effect - Held - Work
taken by Principal-subsequént to the date of voluntary retirément without
taking any permission from the Competent Authority would be at 'the risk
and cost of the Prirvicipal himself, who was not competent to either accept the
application for voluntary retirement or extend the period of voluntary
retirement - Teacher stood voluntarily retired w.e.f. expiry of period of notice
- Petition dismissed. (Paras 7, 8 & 12)
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Cases referred :
1999(1) JLJ 169, 1985 MPLJ 229, W.P. No.4382/2006(S) decided on
29.01.2007, AIR 1987 SC 2345, AIR 2000 SC 2473, AIR 2002 SC 1341

R.K. Verma, for the petitioner.
G.P Smgh G A, for the respondents.

~.ORDER

R.S. Jua, J. :~The petitioner has filed this petition being aggneved by
communications dated 2.6.2006 and 3.6.2006 whereby she has been informed
that her application seeking voluntary retirement with effect from 30.4.2006 has
been accepted and consequently she has been voluntarily retired.

2. The case of the petitioner, before this Court, is that the petitioner, who at
the relevant time was working as an Assistant Teacher and was posted at Govt.
Boys Middle School (Urdu), Gohalpur, submitted an application on 29.3.2006
seeking voluntary retirement with effect from 30.4.2006. Thereafter the petitioner
was directed by thelauthorities to submit the application in the prescribed Statutory
Form 28 under the M.P. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976 (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Service Rules’) and, accordingly, the petitioner by Annexure P-2
submitted her application for voluntary retirement in the prescribed form under
the Service Rules stating therein that she desires to retire from Government Service
with effect from 30.4.2006 under Rule 42(1)(a) of the Service Rules. It is stated
that thereafter’ on 16.5.2006 an ordet was issued by the Block Resource Co-
ordinator, Jabalpur sending the petitioner for training and this led to a change of
mind on the part of the petitioner prompting her to file an application on 18.% 2006
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secking withdrawal of her voluntary retirement. It is stated that respondent no.2
totally ignored the application seeking withdrawal of voluntary retirement of the
petitioner and on 27.5.2006 and 1.6.2006 sought submission of the proposal for
voluntary retirement of the petitioner from the Principal of the petitioner’s school
and thereafter communicated the impugned order dated 3.6.2006 to the petitioner
to the effect that her voluntary retirement had been accepted with effect from
" 30.4.2006 and that she should consider herself to have been deemed to be relieved
from service with effect from that date.

3. Itis submitted by the Jearned counsel for the petitioner that once the authority
sends the petitioner for training, subsequent to the lapse of the period of notice
mentioned in her notice for voluntary retirement, by order dated 16.5.2006, the
relationship of employer and employee, between the petitioner and the respondent,
continued and in such circurnstances the.respondent no.2 could not have accepted
the petitioner’s application for voluntary retirement on 30.4.2006 specifically in

view of the fact that the petitioner had withdrawn her application for voluntary

retirement by communication dated 18.5.2006. It is further submitted that as the
petitioner even subsequent to 30.4.2006 attended her school and her pay slips
were also prepared by the concerned school, the relationship of employer and
employee continued and as such the respondent authority could not have volunta.nly
retired the petitioner from service w.e.f. 30.4.2006.

4. The respondents, per contra, submits that the petitioner submitted her
application for voluntary retirement in accordance with Rule 42(1)(a) of the Service
Rules, in the statutory Form 28 prescribed therein wherein she gave notice to the
effect that she would stand voluntarily retired from Government Service w.e.f.
30.4.2006. In such circumstances, the voluntary retirement of the petitioner comes
into effect automatically -on the lapse of the period mentioned in the notice for
voluntary retirement in the statutory form in accordance with Rule 42 of the Service
Rules and communication of acceptance or rejection in such cases has no meaning.
It is further stated that the respondent no.2 authority by communication dated 1/

2.6.2006 clearly informed the Principal of the concerned school that the petitioner’s -

voluntary retirement had come into effect w.e.f. 30.4.2006 and in such
circumstances it could not have been withdrawn subsequently and that in case the
Principal had permitted the petitioner to perform her duties even subsequent to
30.4.2006 without obtaining any permission from the District Education Officer,
the work taken from the petitioner was at the risk and cost of the Principal himself,
In such circumstances, it is submitted that the contention of the petitioner deserves
to be rejected and the petition deserves to be dismissed as no fault can be found
with the communication dated 3.6.2006.

5. 1 have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length. The relevant
rules governing voluntary retirement, i.e. Rule 42 of the Service Rules reads as
under:- . . ' e S

£ 1)

-
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“42, Retirement on completlon of 15/20 years qualifying
service:

(1)(a) Government servant may retire at any time after completing
15 years qualifying service, by giving a notice in form 28 to the
appointing authority at least [one month] before the date on which
he wishes to retire or on payment by him of pay and allowances
for the period of [one month] or for the period by which the notice
actually given by him falls short of [one month].

Provided that .... .... .. XXX XXX XXX

(2) A Government servant who has elected to retire under clause
(a) of sub-rule (1) and has given the necessary intimation to that
effect to the appointing authority, shall be precluded from
w1thd1'aw1ng his election subsequently except with the specific
approval of such authority on consideration of the circumstances
of the case to withdraw the notice given by him;

Provided that the request for withdrawal shall be prior to the
mtended date of his retirement.

(3) Where the notice of retirement has been served by appointing
authority on the Government servant, it may be withdrawn, if so
desired for adequate reasons, provided that the Government servant
concerned is agreeable.” '

6.  The statutory Form 28 in which the application for voluntary retirement is
to be submitted is prescribed under the Semce Rules itself and is in the following
terms:-

FORM 28
{See rule 42(i)(a)]
To,

Whereas, I have completed [15/20 years] qualifying service and now desire
to retire from Government service under clanse (a) of sub-rule (1) of rule 42 of
the M.P. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976, with effect from.............. anotice
whereof is hereby given accordingly.

OR

Whereas, | have completed [15/20 years] qualifying service and now desire
to retire from Government service under clause (a) of sub-rule (i) of rule 42 of
the M.P. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976, with effect from.............. anotice
whereof is hereby given accordingly;
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And whereas the period -of this notice falls short of ..........days, the pay
and allowances for the days aforesaid have been credited under challan No... ... ...
dated ............. A copy whereof is enclosed herewith.

' OR

Whereas, I have completed [15/20 years] qualifying service and now desire
to retire from Government service under clause (a) of sub-rule (i) of rule 42 of
the M. P Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976, forthwith, that is to say
from... . a notice whereof is hereby given accordmgly,

-The pay and allowances for [one month] have been credited under challan
No... . dated... . a copy whereof is enclosed; in lieu of [one month]
nonce as requn'ed by the sa1d clause.

Dated............ ... Signature and designation of
: the Government servant.

7. A conjoint reading of the aforesaid makes it clear that an employee has a
right to voluntarily retire from service from a particular date and for that purpose
a notice period is prescribed in the Service Rules. Itis also clear that an application
for voluntary retirement once submitted by the petitioner cannot be withdrawn
subsequent to the lapse of the notice period and that if the employee seeks to
withdraw the application for voluntary retirement he/she must necessarily do so
within the notice period after secking permission from the Government.

8. - In the instant case the petitioner submitted the application for voluntary
retirement w.e.f. 30.4.2006 and as per the provisions of Rule 42 of the Service
Rules and the form prescribed thereunder, her voluntary retirement became
effective w.e.f. 30.4.2006. In such circumstances, the subsequent attempt of the
petitioner to withdraw her voluntary retirement by filing an application on 18.5.2006

“without seeking permission of the Government and applying for the.same within

the notice period does not in any manner effect or protract the coming into effect
of the voluntary retirement of the petitioner w.e.f. 30.4.2006. It is also clear from
Annexure P-5 that the competent authority had informed the Principal that the
petitioner’s voluntary retirement had already come into effect from 30.4.2006
and that any work taken by the Principal from the petltloner subsequent to that
date without taking any permission from the competent authority respondent no.2
would be at the risk and cost of the Principal himself who was not.competent to
either accept the application for voluntary retirement or extend the period of .
voluntary retirement and in such circumstances I am of the considered opinion
that as the petitioner stood voluntarily retired w.e.f. 30.4.2006 no relationship of
employer- employee continued or existed between the petitioner and the respondent
subsequent thereto and if the Principal on his own had permitted the petitioner to
work in the school, such act on his part would not confer any right on the petitioner
to claim that the employer had continued the relationship of employer and employee
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or that the application for-voluntary retirement 'had not been accepted or had not-
become effective from 30.4.2006. iltis.also apparent that the order.dated'16.5.2006,

by which the.petitioner was sought.to be sent én training, was also issied without

the approval, acceptance or knowledge of the competent authority by the District

Resource Co-ordinator who had no power or authority to take any action in respect

of the petitioner nor. did he have any knowledge of the fact that the petitioner had

already submitted an apphcatlon_ for voluntary retirement. _

9. A Division Bench of this Couxt, in the case of Narayan Prasad vs. Hon'ble
District and Sessions Judge, Ratlari and others, 1999 (1) JLJ 169, while dealing
with the provisions of Rule 42(1)(a)and Form 28 of the Service Rules has held,
that a notice for voluntary retirement does not requirg any acceptance -by the
appointing authority and that the notice comes into effect automatically after
expiry of the period of three months and the relationship of master and servant
comes to an end on completion. of the noticé period by the unilateral act of the
Government servant, in the following terms in paras 8 to 11 :-

“8. ‘Rule 42(1)(a) of the M.P..Civil Services Pension Rules, 1976
provides that a Government servant may retire at any time after
completing 20 years qualifying service by giving a notice in form
No.28 to the appointing authority at least three months before the
date on which he wishes to retire. The appellant had completed
20 years of qualifying service. His application dated 23.5.1995
(Annexure A 12) specifically mentioned that he should be given
voluntary retirement from 23.8.1995. Thus, this application fulfilled
the requirements of Rule 52(1)(a) and form No.28. Itisnot material
that the notice was not in the prescribed form. The substance is
to be preferred to the form.

. 9. Aperusal of Rule 42(1)(a) shows that no reasons are required .
to be given in the notice secking voluntary retirement. It is-the
volition and choice of the Government servant to seck voluntary
retirement after completing 20 years of service by giving three
months notice. This notice comes into operation after the expiry -
of the period of three months automatically. The relationship of  -. X
master and servant comes to an end on completion of the notice . .+ Ik
period by the unilateral act of the Government servant. Such-a. w: b~
notice does not require any acceptance by the appointing authotity. -~ = -
The volition act of the Govemment servant bnng an end to the -

- “binding knot?; -snr - - ' :

10. . The decisioti: of this Court in Indra Prakash v. State of
M.P.(1985 H.J 504 - 1985 MPLIJ 229) has taken the saine view.
It was. held-that a Government servant who.has completed 20'..

—- el Ememae oy



3078 ' IL.R. [2009] M. P,
RUKSANA BEGUM SIDDIQUI Vs. STATE, OFM.P.

years qualifying service has an absolute and indefeasible right to -
retire at any date of his choice. The notice of voluntary retirement
does not require any order or acceptance by the appointing
authority,

11. Rule 42(2) further provides that a Government servant who
has elected to retire under this rule and has given the necessary
intimation to that effect to the appointing authority, shall be precluded -
from withdrawing his selection subsequently except with the
specific approval of such authority on consideration of the
circumstances of the case to withdraw the notice given by him.
Thus, the notice of voluntary retirement cannot be withdrawn as
- ofright. The rule puts an embargo on thé tight of the Gévernment
servant to do so. Then it carves out an exceptmn That exception
gives a discretion to: the notice of volunfary retirement. That
discretion is th be exercised “on consideération of the circumstances
of the case”. The appointing authority has to applyhis mind
objectively and take int6 account the facts and ¢ircumstances of
the case. The discretion must be exercised rationally and reasonably
as laid down by the Supreme Court in Balram Gupta’s case
(supra) while dealing with similar rule in Central Civil Services
(Pension) Rules, 1972. On the facts of that case the Supreme
Court found that there was no valid reason for withholding the
withdrawal. But in the present case the appropriate reasons have
been given for refusing the withdrawal.” .

10.  The Division Bench has approved the Single Bench judgment of this Court
in the case of Indra Prakash vs. State of M.P,, 1985 MPLJ 229, and both these
Jjudgments have subsequently been followed in W.P No. 4382/2006(8) decided on
29.1.2007 by the Indore Bench of this Court. I am respectfully bound by the
interpretations of the Rules. given by the Division Bench of this Court in the case
of Narayan Prasad (supra) which squarely applies to the case of the petitioner.

I1.  Though the petitioner has relied upon the judgments of the Supreme Court
in the cases of Balram Gupta v. Union of India and another, AIR 1987 SC
2354, and Shambhu Murari Sinha v. Project and Developmernt India Ltd.,
and another, AIR 2000 SC 2473 / AIR 2002 SC 1341, T am-of the considered
oplmon that in view of the interpretations to Rule 42 of the M.P. Service Rules,
given by the Division Bench of this Court by which I am bound, the Judgmcnts
relied upon by the petitioner do not render any assistance to her as Rule 42 of the
M.P. Service Rules was not the subject matter in the aforesaid decisions of the
Supreme Court and as the rule position in the M.P Service Rules is quite different.

12. In such circumstances, I do not find any merit in the petition nor do I find
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any infirmity in the impugned order dated 1/2.6.2006 or the communication dated
3.6.2006 warranting interference by this Court in the present petition.

13. Consequently, the petition, filed by the petitioner, being meritless is accordingly
dismissed. In the peculiar facts and circumstances of the case there shall be no
order as to the costs.

Petition dismissed.
LL.R. [2009] M. P., 3079
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Dipak Misra & Mr. Justice RK. Gupta .

‘ 29 June, 2009* .
G.V. PRATAP REDDY _ ... Petitioner
Vs.

M.P. RURAL ROAD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, ,
BHOPAL & ors. ... Respondents

Constitution, Article 226 - Bank guarantee - Bank guarantee was
liable to be encashed against any loss or damage caused to or suffered or
would be caused to or suffered by reason of any breach of contract -
Department failed to intimate the Bank any loss or damage caused to or
suffered or would be caused to or suffered by department by reason of any
- breach of contract - Held - Condition of Bank guarantee while directing
Bank to encash remained uncomplied - Department not entitled to encash
Bank guarantee - Petition allowed. (Paras 8, 13 & 14)
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Cases referred :

(1999) 8 SCC 436, AIR 1991 Orr1sa314 (2007) 8 SCC 110, (2008) 18CC
544, W.P. No. 11022/2008 decided on 30.04.2009,

V.R. Rao with S.R. Rao, for the petitioner.
Rajendra Shrivastava, for the respondents.
' ORDER

The Order =~ of the Court -was- delivered by
R.K. Guera, J. :=The petitioner entered into an agreement for construction/up-
gradation and maintenance of rural road under Pradhan Mantri Sadak Yojna,-Sehore,

*W.E. No.10030/2008 (Jabalpur)
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Package of M.P.-3519, Sehcm. with the M_P. Rural Road Development Authority
(for short “the Authorlty”) a public undertaking. The work under the contract
could not be completed in time. The competent authority of the respondents”
Authority issued a notice dated 20.06.2008 to show cause why the contract should
not be rescinded. Fhe same was issued despite recommendation for inspection
and being granted further time up to 30.6.2008. On 26.7. 2008 the petitioner vide
letter dated 10.7.2008 apprised the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority about
the reasons for the delay and also sought payment of Rs. 47 35,000/- on account
of work done by hlm" Despite the said communication the General Manager, third
respondent herem rescinded the contract taking recourse to clause 52 of the
same. Though the petitioner had not incurred the ineligibility to face the said
consequence. As pleaded, the petitioner raised a dlspute under Clause 24 before
the Chief Executive Officer who concurred with the view taken by the General -
Manager of the respondents Authority. Various other facts have been asserted
how the petitioner is ngt to be blamed for the delay but the officers of the Authonty
After rescinding of the contract the General Manager vide letter dated 11- 8-2008
sent a fax to the petrmner to deposit a sum of Rs.114.57 Lacs within fifteen days
from the date of issuance of the letter, failing which action would be taken to
encash the Bank Guarantee/FDRs submitted by him against the work under
Package No.3519,

2. Ttis u;‘ged-]:;,y the petitioner that the bank guarantee is a conditional bank
guarantee, therefore, such a bank guarantee could not have been directed to be
encashed by the respondents until conditions stipulated in the bank guarantee are
satisfied. For the purposes of said proposition, the petitioner has relied upon the
judgment passed by the Apex Court in Hindustan Construction Ltd. v. State of
Bihar and others” with State of Bihar and others v. Hmdustan Construct:on
Co. Ltd., 1999 (8) SCC 436. :

3. The respondents along with their return have, ﬁled a letter dated 21.8.2008
(Annexure R/1) from the office of the Project General Manager, M.P. Rural Road
Development Authority. This is the letter addressed to the Branch Manager, State
Bank of Hyderabad whereby it is stated that the bank _guarantee issued in favour
of the authority be encashed and accordingly the amount of Rs.34, 64,000.00 by
demand draft be pald The letter dated 21.8.2008 was followed by a subsequent
reminder dated 26.8.2008 (Annexure R/2). The respondents have also filed the
bank guarantee on record.

4. Itis contended on. behalf of the respondents that the bank guarantee has to
be encashed because of non performance of the contract which is clear from the
letter dated 11.8. 2008 document No.6 filed along with the petition. It is contended
that since the contract stands rescinded the respondcpf,s have the legal authonty

J 10 encash the ’bank guarahice. - ,

)

A e — [ [ U,
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5. To appreciate the rival submission we have 10 appreciate the nature of the
bank guarantee whether it is conditional or unconditional. We have already noticed
that the bank guarantee has been filed on record by the respondents and the
relevant conditions of the bank guarantee are as follows:

“We State Bank of Hyderabad, Industrial Finance Branch,
Panjagutta, Hyderabad (Name of Bank) of India' (Name of
Country) do hereby undertake to pay Authority an amount not
exceeding Rs. 34,64,000/- (Rupees Thirty Four Lakhs Sixty Four
Thousand Only) against any loss or damage caused to or suffered
or would be caused to or suffered by the Authority by reason of
any breach by the said contractor of any terms of conditions
contained in the said agreement.

WE State Bank of Hyderabad, Industrial Finrance Branch,
Panjagutta, Hyderabad (Name of Bank) of India (Name of
Country) do hereby undertake to pay the amount due and payable
under this guarantee without any demur merely on a demand from
the Authority stating that the amount claimed is due by way of
loss or damage caused to or suffered by the Authority by reason
of any breach by said Contractor of any of the terms or conditions
contained in the said agreement or by reason of the Contractor’s
failure to perform the. said agreement. Any‘such demand made on
the bank shall be conclusive as regards the amouunt due and payable
by the Bank under this guarantee, However,, our liability under
this guarantee shall be restricted to ‘an amount not exceeding
Rs.34,64,000/- (Rupees Thirty four Lakhs sixty. Four Thousand
only).”

6.  Onthe basis of the aforesaid two conditions it is clear that the bank guarantee
is a conditional one and bank was required to encash the bank guarantee only if
the intimation is given by the department stating that the amount claimed is due by
way of loss or damage caused to or suffered by reason of any breach by said
Contractor of any of the terms or conditions contained in the said agteement of by
reason of the Contractor’s failure to perform the said agreement. It is also clear
that the bank has undertaken to pay an amount not exceeding Rs.34,64,000/- against

any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be caused to or “suffered by

any authority by reason of any breach by the sald contractor of any of the terms
or conditions contained in the said agreement. ! '"'

7. In this context, it will be appropriate to refer to the letter issued by the
authority to the bank on 21.8.2008 (Annexure R/1), which reads as under:-

“The work under Package No.MP3519 vide agrecm:int No,5/
PMGSY/06 dated 01.11.06 was awarded to Shrt G V Pratap Reddy,
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Contractor, Hyderabad. At the time of agreement the above
contractor submitted BG No.8652 dated 31.10.06 for rs.3464000.00
as performance security (photocopy enclosed) which is valid upto
30.10.2009. The contractor failed to achieve the progress of work
and complete the work within the stipulated time even after granting
sufficient extended period. In the interest of government work
department taken action to rescind the contract and to complete
the balance work by fixing another agency.

In view of the above department is bound to recover the penalty
for non completion of the awarded work from the contractor hence
it is necessary to encash the above bank guarantee submitted by
the contractor as performance security. The original bank
guarantee for Rs.3464000.00 is being sent through special
messenger for encashing the same. Please arrange to send the
amount by demand draft in favour of MPRRDA, Bhopal payable
at Bhopal.”

8. It will be also appropriate to refer to the reminder issued by the authority to
the bank on 26.8.2008. Nothing is stated in the said letter about the loss or damage
suffered by the department. This letter also does not say that the agreement has
been terminated because of any fault on the part of the petitioner. The contents of
the letter dated 26.8.2008 are reproduced as under:-

“Please refer this office above letter vide which it was intimated
to you for encashment of bank guarantee No.8652 dated 31.10.06
for Rs.3464000.00 against performance security issued on request
of Shri G.V. Pratap Reddy, Contractor Hydrabad in favour of
MPRRDA.

Shri Ashutosh Shukia, Sub Engineer of this office is directed to
your branch alongwith original Bank Guarantee No.8652 dated
31.10.06 for Rs.3464000.00 duly discharged for collecting the
amount after its encashment. You are requested to encash the
above bank guarantee and handover the amount Rs.3464000.00
by demand draft in favour of MPRRDA Bhopal payable at Bhopal
through Shri Ashutosh Shukla, Sub Engineer whose signature is
attested below.”

As we have referred the letter hereinabove , it is clear that the conditions
of the bank guarantee while directing the bank to encash the same remains
uncomplied. It is so because the conditions for bank guarantee have already been
reproduced hereinabove in para-5 of the judgment. The Bank guarantee was liable
to be encashed agamst any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be
caused to or suffered by the authority by reason of any breach of the said contractor
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of any terms and conditions contained in the said agreement. There is nothing in
the letter dated 21.8.2008 and the reminder dated 26.8.2008 that the M.P. Rural
Roads Development authority intimated the bank for encashing the bank guarantee
against any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be caused to or suffered
by the authority by reason of any breach of the said contractor of any terms and
conditions contained in the said agreement. It only reflects that the contractor
failed to achieve the progress of work and did not complete the work within
stipulated time even after granting sufficient extended period. Thus, in the absence
of any stipulation in the letter dated 21.8.2008 and also in the letter dated 26.8.2008
with reference to any loss or damage caused to or suffered or would be caused to
or suffered by the authority by reason of any breach of the said contractor of any
terms and conditions contained in the said agreement, the bank guarantee was not
liable to be encashed. .

9.  The matter with regard to the law relating to the encashment of bank
guarantee received consideration of the Apex court in National Aluminium Co.
Lid. v. M/s R.S. Builders (India) Ltd. afifd others, AIR 1991 ORISSA 314 wherein
the. Apex Court laid down a view in para-9 and 11 as under:-

“9. From the aforesaid decisions it is clear that courts’ interference
in enforcing bank guarantees must be minimal. It is in the case of
fraud or to prevent irretrievable injustice that Courts interfere to
prevent enforcement of bark guarantees. Of course, a bank
guarantee has to satisfy the conditions 1aid down therein before a
bank can be called upon to make payment as per the guarantee. If
the terms of the bank guarantee be unconditional, the bank has to
pay without demur. The payment of bank guarantee cannot be
made subject to the claims and counter-claims arising out of the
main contract between the parties. If a bank puarantee were to
state that payment shall be made notwithstanding any dispute
between the parties, the bank would be obliged to do so. To
determine whether a bank guarantee is conditional or unconditional,
it is the document guarantee which is to be scanned.

11. In view of the law noticed earlier, we would state that the
aforesaid type of bank guarantee has to be regarded as
independent of the contract between the parties and the same can
be enforced without reference to any claim or counter-claim
arising out of the main contract between the parties. It is also to
be regarded as independent of the adjudication of disputes raised
and proposed to be referred to arbitration. But then, the bank
guarantees at hand cannot be regarded as absolutely unconditional
inasmuch as the payment under guarantees is dependent upen ithe
contractor committing default in performing any of the terms and
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conditions of the contract or in the payment of any money due to
the owner or in case the amount at the specified rates cannot be
deducted from the running bills of the contractor by the owner .
towards the payment of Mobilisation Advance. As to the fulfilment’
of those. conditions, we would state that the statement of the -
beneﬂciary would be taken as its face value unless the contractor
be in a position to establish that the stand of the beneficiary is
actuated by fraud, misrepresentation, deliberate suppression of
-material facts or the like which would give rise to special equities
in favour of the contractor. So, in the absence of a case of fraud,
misrepresentation, deliberate suppression of material facts or the
like, to establish which a heavy onus lies on the contractor, a bank
guarantee like the one at hand has to be honoured by the bank and’
the beneficiary cannot be restrained from enforcement. Further,
decision about fraud, etc. has to be arrived at by the court
approached by the contractor to.restrain the beneficiary from
enforcing the bank guarantee. The court cannot await for this
purpose the finding of the arbitrator.”

10.  In view of the aforesaid situation, the relevant paras 8, 9 and 14 from the
. judgment passed by the Apex Court in Hindustan Construction Ltd. (supra) for
its application in the present facts and c1rcumstances of the case are profitably
reproduced as under:-

“3.Now, a Bank Guarantee is the common mode of securing
payment of money in commercial dealings as the beneficiary, under
the Guarantee, is entitled to realise the whole of the amount under
that Guarantee in terms thereof irrespective of any pending dispute
between the person on'whose behalf the Guarantee was given
and the beneficiary. In contracts awarded to private individuals
. by the: Government, which involve huge expenditure, as for
‘example, construction contracts, Bank Guarantees are usually
required to be furnished in favour of the Government to secure
‘payments made to the contractor as "Advance” from time to time
during the course of the contract as also to secure performance
of the work entrusted under the contract.: Such Guarantees are
encashable in terms thereof on the lapse of the contractor either
in the performance of the work or in paying back to the
"Government Advance", the Guarantee is invoked and the amount
is recovered from the Bank It is for this’ reason that the Courts
are reluctant in granting an injunction against the invocation of
Bank Guarantee, except in the case of fraud, which should be as
established fraund, or where irretrievable injury was likely to be
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. caused to the Guarantor. This was the principle laid down by this
Court in various decisions. In U. P Co-operative Federation
Ltd.-v. Singh Consultants and Engineers Pvt. Ltd., (1988) 1
SCC 174, the law laid down in Bolivinter OQil SA v. Chase
Manhattan Bank, (1984) 1 All ER 351 was approved and it was
held that an unconditional Bank Guarantee could be invoked in
terms thereof by the person in whose favour the Bank Guarantee
was given and the Courts would not grant any injunction restraining
the invocation except in the case of fraud or irretrievable injury.
In Svenska Handelsbanken v. Indian Charge Chrome, (1994)

- 1 SCC 502 /(1993 AIR SCW 4002 : AIR 1994 SC 626); Larsen
and Toubro Ltd. v. Maharashtra State Electricity Board, (1995)
6 SCC 68 : (1995 AIR SCW 4134 : AIR 1996 SC 334); Hindustan
Steel Works Construction Ltd. v. G. S. Atwal and Co.
(Engineers) (P) Ltd., (1995) 6 SCC 76 : (1995 AIR SCW 3821 :

- .AIR 1996 SC 131); National Thermal Power Corporation Ltd.
v. Flowmore (P) Ltd., (1995) 4 SCC 515 : (1995 AIR SCW 430 :
AIR 1996 SC 445); State of Maharashtra v. National
Construction Co., (1¥996) 1 SCC 735 : (1996 AIR SCW 3895 .
AIR 1996 SC 2367); Hindustan Steel Works Construction Litd.
v. Tarapore and Co., (1996) 5 SCC 34 : (1996 AIR SCW 2861 :
AIR 1996 SC 2268) as also in U.P. State Sugar Corporation v.
Sumac International Ltd., (1997) 1 SCC 568 : (1997 AIR SCW
694 : AIR 1997 SC 1644 : 1997 All LJ 638), the same principle has
been laid down and reiterated.

9. What is important, therefore, is that the Bank Guarantee should
be in unequivocal terms, unconditional and recite that the amount
would be paid without derur or objection and irrespective of any
dispute that might have cropped up or might have been pending
between the beneficiary under the Bank Guarantee or the person
on whose behalf the Guarantee was furnished. The terms of the
Bank Guarantee are, therefore, extremely material. Since the Bank
Guarantee represents an independent contract between the Bank
and the beneficiary, both the parties would be bound by the terms
thereof. The invocation, therefore, will have to be in accordance
with the terms of the Bank Guarantee; or else the invocation itself
would be bad.

14 This condition clearly refers to the original contract between
the HCCL and the defendants and postulates that if the obligations,
expressed in the contract, are not fulfilled by HCCL giving to the
defendants the right to claim recovery of the whole or part of the



3086 [LL.R. [2009] M. P,,
' G.V.PRATAPREDDY Vs M.P. RURAL ROAD DVLPMT. AUTHORITY, BHOPAL
'"Advance Mobilization Loan", then the Bank would pay the amount
due under the Guarantee to the Executive Engineer. By referring
specifically to said Clause 9, the Bank has qualified its liability to
pay the amount covered by the Guarantee relating to "Advance
Mobilization Loan" to the Executive Engineer only if the obligations
“under the contract were not fulfilled by HCCL or the HCCL has
misappropriated any portion of the "Advance Mobilisation Loan".
It is in these circumstances that the aforesaid ¢lause would operate
and the whole of the amount covered by the "Mobilisation Advance"
would become payable on demand. The Bank Guarantee thus could
be invoked only in the circumstancés ‘referred to in Clause 9
whenever the amount would become payable only if the obligations
are not fulfilled or there is misappropriation. That being so, the
Bank Guarantee could not be said to be unconditional or
unequivocal in terins so that the defendants could be said to have
“had an ‘unfettered right to invoke that ‘Guarantee and ‘demand
imniediate~paymeént thereof from the Bank. This aspect of the
"+ matter was wholly ignored by the High Court and it unnccessarily
interfered with the order of injunction, granted by the single Judge,
by which the defendants were restramed from invoking the Bank
‘Guarantee.”

11.  Further while dealing with an application for injunction to restrain
enforcement of bank guarantees the Apex Court in Himadri Chemicals Industries
Ltd. vs. Coal Tar Refining Co., (2007) 8 SCC 110 came to hold in'paras 10 and
14, thus:-

“10 The'law relating to grant or refusal to grant injunction in the

’ matter of invocation of a bank guarantee or a letter of credit is
now well setfled by a plethora of decisions not only of this Court
“buit als6 of the different High Courts in Indla In U.P. State Sagar
Corpn V. Sumac International Lid. this court considered its

‘ various earlier decisions. IN this decision, the principle that has
beeil laid down' clearly on the enforcement of a bank guarantee or

a letter of credit is that in respect of a bank ‘guarantee or a letter
of credit which is sought to be encashed by a beneficiary, the
__ bank giving such a guarantee is bound to hondur it as per its terms
" irrespective of any dispute raised by its éustomer. Accordmgly'
this Court held that the courts should be slow in granting an 6rder
of injunction to restrain the redlization of such a bank guarantee.
Ithas also been held by this Court in'that decision that the éxistence
of ‘any dispute between the parties to the coniract is not a ground
-"*to restrain the enforcement of bank guarantees or letters of credit.
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However, this court made two exceptions for grant of an order'of
injunction to. restrain the enforcement of a bank guarantee or-a
letter of credit; (i) fraud committed in the notice of the bank which
would vitiate the very foundation of gnaranteé; and (ii) injustice of
the kind which would make it impossible for the guarantor to’
reimburse himself. '

14. From the discussions made hereinabove relating to the principles
for grant or refusal to grant of injunction to restrain enforcement of a
Bank Guarantee or a Letter of Credit, we find that the following
principles should be noted in the matter of injunction to restrain the
encashment of a Bank Guarantee or a Letter-of Credit :-

(1) ‘While dealing with an appllcatlon for injunction in the course
of commercial dealings, and when an unconditional Bank
Guarantee or Letter of Credit is given or accepted, the

" Beneficiary is entitled to realize such a Bank Guarantee or a
Letter of Credit in terms thereof irrespective of any pendmg
disputes relating to the terms of the contract.

(ii) The Bank giving such guarantee is bound to honour it as per
" its terms irrespective of any dispute raised by its customer.

(iii) The Courts should be slow in granting an order of injunction
to restrain the realization of a Bank Guarantee or a Letter of
Credit.

(iv) Since a Bank Guarantee or a Letter of Credit ié an

" independent and a separate contract and is absolute in nature,

the existence of any dispute between the parties to the contract

' is not a ground for issuing an order of injunction to restrain
enforcement of Bank Guarantees or Letters of Credit.

(v) Fraud of an. egregious nature which would vitiate the very
foundanon of such a Bank Guarantee or Letter of Credlt and
" the beneﬁmary seeks to take advantage of the situation.

(v1) Allowing encashment of an unconchtlonal Bank Guarantee or
" aLetter of Credit would result in irretrievable harm or m]ust:lce
‘ 10 one of the parties -concerned.”

12. In this contéxt, it would further be proﬁtablc to refer to the decision of the
Apex Court in Vinitec Electronics Private Ltd. vs. HCL Infosystems Ltd., (2008)
1 SCC 544. The relévant paragraphs 12, 13, 14, 22 and 23 from the said decision
are reproduced as under:-

- “12. It is equally well settled in law that bank guarantee is an
independent contract between bank and the beneﬁcmry thereof.
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The bank is always obliged to honour its guarantee as long as it is
an unconditional and irrevocable one. The dispute between the
beneficiary and the party at whose instance the bank has given
the guarantee is immaterial and of no consequence. In BSES Ltd.
v. Fenner India Ltd. this Court held: (SCC pp. 733-34, para 10)

“10. There are, however, two exceptions to this rule. The first is
when there is a clear fraud of which the bank has notice and a
fraud of the beneficiary from which it seeks to benefit. The fraud
must be of an egregious nature as to vitiate the entire underlying
transaction. The second exception to the general rule of non-
intervention is when there are ‘special equities’ in favour of
injunction, such as when ‘irretrievable imjury’ or ‘irretrievable .
injustice’ would occur if such an injunction were not granted. The
general rule and its exceptions has been reiterated in so many
judgments of this Court, that in U.P. State Sugar Corpn. v. Sumac
International Ltd. (hereinafter ‘U.P. State Sugar Corpn.’} this
Court, correctly declared that the law was ‘settled’.”

13. In Himadri Chemicals Industries Lid. v. Coal Tar Refining
Co.4 this Court summarised the principles for grant of refusal to
grant of injunction to restrain the enforcement of a bank guarantee
or a letter of credit in the following manner: (SCC pp. 117-18,
para 14)

“14. ... (i) While dealing with an application for injunction in the
course of commercial dealings, and when an unconditional bank
guarantee or letter of credit is given or accepted, the beneficiary
is entitled to realise such a bank guarantee or a letter of credit in
terms thereof irrespective of any pending disputes relating to the
terms of the contract.

(i1) The bank giving such guarantee is bound to honour it as per its
terms irrespective of any dispute raised by its customer.

' (iii) The courts should be slow in granting an order of injunction to
restrain the realisation of a bank guarantee or a letter of credit.

(iv) Since a bank guarantee or a letter of credit is an independent
and a separate contract and is absolute in nature, the existence
of any dispute between the parties to the contract is not a
ground for issuing an order of injunction to restrain

_ enforcement of bank guarantees or letters of credit.

(v) Fraud of an egregious nature which would vitiate the very
foundation of such a bank guarantee or letter of credit and
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the beneficiary seeks to take advantage of the situation.

(vi} Allowing encashment of an unconditional bank guarantee or
a letter of credit would result in irretrievable harm or injustice
to one of the parties concerned.”

14. In Mahatma Gandhi Sahakra Sakkare Karkhane v.
National Heavy Engg. Coop. Ltd.5 this Court observed: (SCC
p. 471b-d).

“If the bank guarantee furnished is an ‘unconditional and irrevocable
one, it is not open to the bank to raise any objection whatsoever to
pay the amounts under the guarantee. The person in whose favour
the guarantee is furnished by the bank cannot be prevented by
way of an injunction from enforcing the guarantee on the pretext
that the condition for enforcing the bank guarantee in terms of the
agreement entered into between the parties has not been fulfilled.
Such a course is impermissible. The seller cannot raise the dispute
of whatsoever nature and prevent the purchaser from enforcing
the bank guarantee by way of injunction except on the ground of
fraud and irretrievable injury. -

What is relevant are the terms incorporated in the guarantee
~executed by the bank. On careful analysis of the terms and "
conditions of the guarantee in the present case, it is found that the
guarantee is an unconditional one. The respondent, therefore,
cannot be allowed to raise any dispute and prevent the appellant
from encashing the bank, gnarantee. The mere fact that the bank
guarantee refers to the principal agreement without referring to
any specific clause in the preamble of the deed of guarantee does
not make the guarantee furnished by the bank to be a conditional
one.” (Paras 22 and 28)

' (emphasis supplied)
22. In the present case the amended clause does not refer to any
of the clauses specifically as such but on the other hand the Bank
had undertaken responsibility to pay any sum or sums within the
. guaranteed limit upon receipt of written demand from the.
Company. The operative portion of the'bank guarantee furnished -
by the Bank does not refer to any of the conditions for payment
under the bank guarantee. It is true that the bank guarantee
furnished makes a reference to the principal agreement between
the parties in its preamble. Mere fact that the bank guarantee
_ refers to the principal agreement in the preamble of the' deed of
guarantee does not make the guarantee “furnished by the Bank to
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be a conditional one unless any particular clause of the agreement
has been made part of the deed of guarantee.

23. The recitals in the preamble in the deed of guarantee do not
control the operative part of the deed. After careful analysis of
the terms of the guarantee we find the guarantee to be an
unconditional one. The appellant, therefore, cannot be allowed to
raise any dlspute and prevent the respondent from encashing the
. bank guarantee.”

13.  According to us, the law laid down by the Apex Court as aforesaid has the
full application in the present case. We have also taken a similar view in the case
of Sigma Construction v. M.P. Rural Road Development Authority & others,

W.P. No.11022/2008 decided on 30.4.2009 wherein similar question in relation to
encashment of bank guarantee was involved and we held that if the department
has not written anything to the bank while directing the bank to encash the bank
guarantee; the bank guarantee cannot be invoked. It is not stated that the contractor
has failed to perform the work contract then in absence of any such reference
resulting into loss or damage caused or to be caused, the bank is not under a legal
obligation to encash the bank guarantee. We also held that the bank guarantee
was not entitled to be invoked. The facts and circumstances of the present case
are also similar to the case already decided by this Court in Sigma Construction
(supra).

14.  In view of the aforesaid, we set aside the order dated 21.8.2008 (Annexure
R/1) and reminder dated 26.8.2008 (Annexure R/2) and we further hold that the
respondents are not entitled to'invéke the bank guarantee No.8652 dated 31.10.2006
as mentioned in Annexure R/3. Accerdmgly, the present petition stands allowed

There shall bé no order as to costs.

Petition allowed.
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several months back, there cannot be any reasonable ground for belrevmg
that the person is engaged or is about to be engaged in commission of such
offence. (Para 8)
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B. Rajya Suraksha Adhiniyam, M.P., 1990 (4 of 1991), Sectlon 5(b)
- Removal of person about to commit offence - Externment - Ingredients
when not attracted - In absence of any existence of material to show that
witnesses are not coming forward by a reason of apprehension to danger fo
their person or property to give evidence against the concerned person in respect
of alleged offences, an order ws 5(b) of the Act cannot be passed by District
Magistrate by merely repeating the language of S. 5(b) of the Act. (Para 11)
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Sanjay Patel, for the petitioner.
Vivek Awasthy, G.A., for the respondents.

ORDER

The Order of the Court was delivered by
A.K. Patvaik, C. J. :~In this writ petition under Article 226 of the Constitation,
the petitioner has challenged the orders passed against him for externment-under
the State Security Act, 1990 (for short ‘the Act of 1990°), by the District Magistrate
Rewa, and the appellate order of the Commissioner, Rewa Division, rejecting the
appeal of the petitioner against the order of externment.

2. The relevant facts briefly are that the Superintendent of Police, District
Rewa (M.P.), submitted a report dated 31.10.2008 to the District Magistrate,
District Rewa, about the criminal activities of the petitioner. In the report, the
Inspector of Hanumana Police Station, District Rewa, had given the details of the
chain of criminal offences alleged to have been committed by the petitioner from
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1995 to 2008 and had made a request that an externment oider be passed against
the, petitioner in exercise of powers under Sections 3 & 4 of the Act of 1990, The
District:Magistrate then-issued a notice dated 31. 10.2008 to the petitioner to
show cause why a proceeding for order of externment from District Rewa as
also the ditricts f@)u_c_:ﬁi}lg the revenue limits of adjacent districts, namely, Sidhi,
Shahdol, Satna, Umariya and Anuppur should not be initiated against him, and
asked the petitioner to submit his reply on 11.11.2008: The petitioner appeared
before tne District Magistraté on 11.11.2008 and prayed for time to submit his
reply and the District Magistrate fixed the case for reply to 12.11.2008. The
petitioner submitted his reply on 12.11.2008 denying that he had committed offences
alleged in the show cause notice. The petitioner-also stated in his reply that he
was a candidate contesting the Vidhan Sabha Election from Mauganj Constituency
No.71, and if, a proceeding for externment is initiated against him, he cannot
contest the election. The District Magistrate heard the counsel for the petitioner
on 12.11.2008 and posted the case for orders to 18.11.2008, and on 18.11.2008
passed the impugned order in Criminal Case No0.227/08 directing externment of
the petitioner from District Rewa as also the districts touching the revenue limits
of adjacent districts, namely, Sidhi, Shahdol, Satna, Umariya and Anuppur for a
period of one year. Aggrieved, the petitioner preferred an appeal under Section 9
of the Act of 1990, before the Commissioner, Rewa Division, but by order dated
13.01.2009, the Commissioner dismissed-the appeal.

3 'Mr. Sanjay Patel, learned counsel for the petitioner submitted that there
was no material before the District Magistrate for passing the order of externment
under Section 5(b) of the Act of 1990. He submitted that Section 5(b) of the Act
of 1990, makes it clear that there must be reasonably grounds for believing that
such person is engaged or is about to be engaged in the commission of an offence
involving force or violence or an offence punishable under Chapter XII, XIV or
XVII or under Sections 506 or 509 of the Indian Penal code, 1860, or in abetment
of any such offence, but the show cause notice and the order passed by the
District Magistrate under Section 5(b) would show that offences alleged to have
been committed mostly of the years 1995 to 2007, have been mentioned. He
submitted that therefore there was no satisfaction whatsoever of the District
Magistrate that the petitioner is engaged or is about to be engaged in the
,commissioh of offences. He also submitted that all the six cases mentioned in the
show cause notice and the order of the District Magistrate are pending before the
trial Court and in not a single case, the petitioner has been convicted. He further
submitted that Section 8(1) of the Act of 1990 provides that before an order under
Section 5 is passed against any person, the District Magistrate shall inform the
person in writing of the general nature of the material allegations against him and
give him a reasonable opportunity of tendering an explanation regarding them. He
submitted that the materials in support of the allegations, such as the statement of

L3
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S.H.O. referred to in the order sheet, on the basis of which the externment order
was passed, was not furfiished to the petitioner. He further submitted under Section
8(3) of the Act of 1990 also provides that the person against whom the order is
proposed to be passed, will be given an opportunity to examine witnesses, but no
such opportunity was given to the petitioner because the case was fixed on

. 11.11.2008 and the teply was filed by the petitioner on 12.11.2008 and the case

was closed on 12.11.2008. He submitted that this is therefore a fit case in which
the impugned orders passed by the District Magistrate and the Commissioner
should be quashed for contravention of different provisions of the Act of 1990.

4. Mr. Vivek Awasthy, learned Govt. Advocate, appearing for the respondents

submitted that the order passed by the District Magistrate would show that the
petitioner has committed a series of offences right from the year 1995 to 2008, on
account of which the District Magistrate had to pass the order of externment
under section 5(b) of the Act of 1990. He submitted that Section 8(1) of the Act
of 1990 is very clear that the District Magistrate shall inform the person in writing
of the general nature of the material allegations against him and is not required to
disciose materials on the basis of which-the material allegations are made. In
support of this submission, he cited the decision of the Supreme Court in
Pandharinath Shridhar Vs. Dy. Commissioner of Police, State of Maharashtra
(AIR 1973 SC 630) in which paramateria provisions of Section 56 of Bombay
police Act were interpreted and it was held that only the general nature of material
allegations against whom the order of externment is proposed to be passed are to

‘be furnished to the person concerned and not the full particulars on the basis of

which the allegations are made. He submitted that a similar view has been taken
by the Supreme Court in State of Mahdrashtra and another vs, Salem Hasan
Khan (AIR 1989 SC 1304). He further submitted that in a recent decision in State
of N.C.T. of Delhi and another vs. Sanjeev alias Bitttoo (AIR 2005 SC 2080),
the Supreme Court has also taken a view that sufficiency of material to pass an
externment order under Section 47 of the Delhi Police Act, cannot be gone into
by the Court while exercising the power of judicial review.

3. Section 5 of the Act of 1990 under which the order of externment has
been passed is quoted herein below :-

"5. Removal of persons about to commit offence.- whenever
it appears to the District Magistrate-

(a) that the movements or acts of any person are causing or
calculated to cause alarm, danger or harm to person or
property; or

(b) that there are reasonably grounds for believing that such person
is engaged or is about to be engaged in the commission of an
offence involving force or violence or an offence punishable
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under Chapter XII, XVI or X VII or under Section 506 or 509 of
the Indian Penal Code, 1860 (45 of 1860) or in the abetment of
any such offence, and when in the opinion of the District
Magistrate witnesses are not willing to come forward to give
evidence in public against such person by reason of apprehension
on their part as regards the safety of their person or property; or

(c) that an outbreak of epidemic discase is likely to result from
the continued residence of an immigrant;

the District Magistrate, may by an order in writing duly served on him or by
beat of drum or otherwise as the District Magistrate thinks fit, direct such
person or immigrant-

(a) so as to conduct himself as shall seem necessary in order to
prevent violence and alarm or the outbreak or spread of such
disease; or

(b) to remove himself outside the district or any part thereof or
such area and any district or districts or any part thereof,
contiguous thereto by such route within such time as the
District Magistrate may specify and not to enter or return to
the said district or part thereof or such area and such
contiguous districts, or part thereof, as the case may be, from
which he was directed to remove himself.”

6. A plain reading of section 5(b) of the Act of 1990 quoted above, would
show that for passing an order of extérniment against a person, two conditions
must be satisfied : ' '

(1) There are reasonable grounds for believing that a person is
engaged or is about to be engaged in commission of an offence
involving force or violence or an offence punishable under
Chapter XII, XVI or XVII or under Section 506 or 509 of the
Indian Penal Code, 1860 or in the abetment of any such
offence; and

(ii) In the opinion of the District Magisfrate, witnesses. are not
willing to come forward to give evidence in public against
such person by reason of apprehension on their part as regards
the safety of their person or property.

7. In State of N.C.T. of Delhi and another vs. Sanjeev alias Bittoo (supra),
the Supreme Court had the occasion to interpret Section 47 of the Bombay Police
Act, 1978, which contains provisions similar to Section 5 of the Act 0of 1990 and
has referred to these essential conditions for passing an order under Section 47 of
the Dethi Police Act in para 10 of the judgment as reported in the AIR thus :-
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“Section 47 consists of two parts. First part relates to that
satisfaction of the Commissioner of Police or any authorised officer
reaching a conclusion that movement or act of any person are
causing alarm and danger to person or property or that there are
reasonable grounds for believing that such person is engaged or is
about to be engaged in commission of enumerated offences or in
the abetment of any such offence or is so desperate and dangerous
as to render his being at large hazardous to the community. Opinion
of the concerned officer has to be formed that witnesses are not
willing to come forward in public to give evidence against such
person by reason of apprehension on their part as regards safety
of person or property. After these. opinions are formed on the
basis of materials forming foundation therefore the Commissioner
can pass an order adopting any of the available options as provided
in the provision itself. The three options are (1) to direct such
person to so conduct himself as deemed necessary in order to
prevent violence and alarm or (2) to direct him to remove himself
outside any part of Delhi or (3) to remove himself outside whole
of Delhi.”

8. The expression “is engaged or is about to be engaged” in the commission of
offence involving force or violence or an offence punishable under Chapter XII,
XVI or XVII or under Section 506 or 509 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 or in the
abetment of any such offence, shows that the commission of the offence or the
abetment of such offence by the person must have a very close proximity to the
date on which the order is proposed to be passed under Section 5(b) of the Act of
1990. Hence, if a person was engaged in the commission of offence or in abetment
of an.offence of the type mentioned in Section 5(b), several years or several
months back, there cannot be any reasonable ground for believing that the person
is engaged or is about to be engaged in the commission of such offence.

9. We will therefore have to examine the impugned order dated 18.11.2008
passed by the District Magistrate, under Section 5(b) of the Act of 1990 to find
out whether the petitioner was engaged in the commission of an offence or was
about to be engaged in the commission of an offence mentioned in Section 5(b) of
the Act of 1990, or in the abetment of such offence, which was very close in
proximity to 18.11.2008 when the impugned order of externment was passed. The
first offence mentioned is alleged to have been committed by the petitioner on
9.4.1995 when the petitioner and his other associates forcibly took possession of
‘Mahuwa’ of Tilakdhari Tripathi, son of Indramani Tripathi and collected the same,
and crime No.46/95 under Sections 447 and 379 of the Indian Penal Code was
registered and the petitioner was arrested and produced before the Court. The
second offence is alleged to have been committed by the petitioner on 14.3.2007
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when the petitioner is alleged to have written a letter to Shivshankar Tripathi, son
of Tilakdhari Tripathi, giving threats regarding construction of new building of
Shiksha Guarantee School, and Crime No0.42/2007 under Sections 353, 294,506
read with Section 34 of the Indian Penal Code has been registered and a challan
has been filed in the Court in Case No.729/2008. The third act which has been
mentioned in the impugned order is not an offence alleged to have been committed
but a prohibitory proceeding No.22/2007 under Sections 107 and 116(3) of the
Code of Criminal Procedure instituted against the petitioner on 9.4.2007 and the
petitioner has been produced in Court. The fourth offence alleged.to have been
committed by the petitioner is in July 2008 when the petitioner along with 6 or 7
others is alleged to have caused hindrance in government work during the election
of Palak Shikshak Sangh and created disturbances in election work’ and committed
‘Marpeet’ on the basis of which Crime No0.216/2008 for offences under Sections
253,254,323, 325 and 506-B read with Section 34 of Indian Penal Code has been
reglstered. In our considered opinion, these offences alleged to have been committed
by the petitioner in the years,1995 to 2007, cannot be the foundation of an order
under section 5(b) of the Act of 1990 as the alleged offences have no proximity at
all to the order of externment passed on 18.11.2008. Even, the offence alleged to,
have been committed by the petitioner along with 6 or 7 other persons in July
2008, cannot constitute a reasonable ground to believe on 18.11.2008 that the
peutloner is engaged or is about to be engaged in offence mentioned in Section
5(b) of the Act of 1990.

10. The second condition which must be satisfied for passing of an order of
externment against a person is that in the opinion of the District Magistrate,
witnesses. are not willing to come forward to give evidence in public against such
person by a reason of apprehension on their part as regards safety of person or
property. Construing a paramateria provision in Section 27 of the City of Bombay
Police Act, 1902 in Gurbachan Singh v. The State of Bombay and another
(AIR 1952 SC 221), the Supreme Court observed :-

“The law is certainly an extraordinary one and has been made
only to meet those exceptional cases where no witnesses for fear
of violence to their person or property are willing to depose publicly
against certain bad characters whose presence in certain areas
constitute a menace to the safety or the public residing therein.’:

11. In the instant case, the District Magistrate has in the impugned order only
baldly stated that the list of offences registered against the petitioner reflects that
he is a daring habitual criminal and because of this there is fear and terror in the
public and has not recorded any clear opinion on the basis of materials, that in his
opinion witnesses are not willing to come forward to give evidence in public against
such person by a reason of apprehension on their part as regards safety of their
person or property. In most of the cases, Challans have been filed by the Police in

+
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Court obviously after examiriation of the witnesses under Sect‘i(')p l('Sli. of Cr.P.C.
and the cases are pending in the Court. There is no referencé in the order of
District Magistrate that witnesses named in the Challans’ ﬁled'by thie Police are
not coming forward to give evidence against the petitioner in’ Court: Hence in the -
absence of any existence of matérial to show that witnésses aré not coming .
forward.by:a reason of apprehension to danger to their pérson or property-to give
evidence against the petitioner in respect of the alleged offénces; an order under
Section 5(b) of the Act of }990 cannot be passed by the District: Maglstrate by
merely repeating the language of Section 5(b) of the -Act of 1990

12. + In State of N.C.T. of Delhi and another vs, Sanjeev alias Bittu (supra)
the Supreme Court interpreting Section 47 of the Bombay Police Act, 1978, Whlch

.is similarly worded as Section 5 of the Act of 1990, has held in para 25 :-

"It i$ true that some material must exist but what is required is not
an elaborate decision akin to a judgment. On the contrary, the
order directing externment should show existence of some material
warranting an order of externment. While dealing with question
mere repetition of the provision would not be sufficient. Reference
to be made to some material on record and if that is done the
requirements of law are met.” As noted above, it is not the
sufﬁciency of material but the existence of material which is sine
qua non.’

3
i
‘

P .
o “4

13.  'The Act of 1990 certain serious restnctlons on the ﬁmdamental right to
freedom under Article 19(1) of the Constitution and the fundamentai right to
personal liberty under Article 21 of the Constitution and unless the conditions
mentioned under Section 5(b) of the Act of 1990 are strictly satisfied, an order of
externment, will have to be quashed by the Court. While considering a case under
Section 56 of the Bombay Police Act, which also empowered the police to pass
an order of externment, the Supreme Court observed in Pandharinath Shridhar
Rangnekar Vs, Dy. Commissioner of Police, State of Maharashira {(supra) as
under :-

“It is true that the provisions of Section 56 make a serious inroad
on personal liberty but such restraints have to be suffered in the
larger interests of society. This court in Gurbachan Singh V. The
State of Bombay, 1952 SCR 737= (AIR 1952 SC 221) had upheld
the validity of Section 27(I} of the City of Bombay Police Act,
1902, which corresponds to Section 56 of the Act. Following that
decision, the challenge to the constitutionality of Section 56 was
repelled in 1956 SCR 533= (AIR 1956 SC 585). We will only add
that care must be taken to ensure that the terms of Sections 56
-and 59 are strictly complied with and that the slender safeguards
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which those provisions offer are made available to the proposed
externee.”

14. We are thus of the considered opinion that the two conditions for an order
of externment stated in Section 5(b) of the Act of 1990 do not exist in this case
and the order passed by the District Magistrate and appellate order of the
Commissioner are liable to be quashed. Since the impugned order of externment
passed by the District Magistrate and the appellate order passed by the Divisional
Commissioner are liable to be quashed on this ground alone, it is not necessary for
us to deal with the other grounds raised by the petitioner in this writ petition. In
the result, we quash the impugned order dated 18.11.2008 passed by the District
Magistrate Rewa in Cr. Case No.227/08 as well as the appellate order dated
13.1.2009 passed by the Commissioner, Rewa Division.

No costs. _
Order accordingly.
I.L.R. [2009] M. P., 3098
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Garg & Mr. Justice S.K. Seth

- 18 August, 2009* .
TIKI ENTERPRISES (M/S) & aunr. ... Petitioners
Vs,
COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCIAL TAX, M.P. INDORE ... Respondent

Value Added Tax Act, M.P. (20 of 2002), Section 70 - Whether
Emulsified Bitumen would not fall under Entry No. 16 of Schedule II Part-2
appended to the Act - Held - Yes - Bitumen and Emulsified Bitumen are two
different commodities in the commercial world, though use of the said articles
some times may be common, but some times, even the cost of the use as would
also require to be considered to vary and use of the new product which is
commercially different economically to some extent. (Para 14)

qed aftfa &x aftfm, A3 (2002 &7 20), OIRT 70 — T fAB SPR
(emulsified bitumen) A=A & W& argfEa 11 AR 2 @) wfafe %, 16 & I=ydfa
R AR — iR — 8t — aiias WuR § SR (bitumen) R T IR
(emulsified bitumen) 7 = ugref &, Tt Saa uerel @1 SwAT ) Wy e
B W B, forvg el W99 ok & iR 8 Se &Y it B0 & 8 AT T@
affe w9 9 2, @ ST & o STRT 3 afve W)+ fAEr e amavae 2R
Cases referred :

1981(47) STC 124, 1985(60) sTC 213,2000(118) STC 287, 2000(120) STC
205, 1978(42) STC 433.

*W.P. No.5153/2009 (Indore)
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M. Choudhary, for the ‘petitioners. -
A.S. Kutumbale, Addl.A.G. with Anjali Jamkhedkar, for ‘the respondent.

ORDER

By this petition under Article 226 of the Constitution of India, the petmoner
seeks to challenge correctness, validity and propriety of the order dated 02.05.2008
passed by the Commissioner, Commercial Tax, Madhya Pradesh, Indore under
Section 70 of Madhya Pradesh Value Added Tax Act, 2002, (herein after referred
to as “the Act” for short) wherein he has held that Emulsified Bitumen would not
fall under Entry No.16 of Schedule II Part 2 appended to the Act.

2. The petitioners,. who are manufacturer of 'Emulsified Bitumen’, being
aggrieved by the recovery of the VAT @ 12.5% made an application to the
Commissioner of Commercial Tax, Madhya Pradesh, Indore that ‘Emulsified
Bitumen’ falls under the Entry 16 Part 2 Schedule II commonly known as “Bitumen
and Coal Tar”, and as such, the product manufactured by the petitioners should
also be taxed at rate of 4% and not @ 12.5%.

3. Aftér hearing the parties, learned Commissioner came to the conclusion
that Bitumen and Coal Tar are different then Emulsified Bitumen, and therefore,
the same would not fall under Entry No.16 of Schedule II Part 2, but would fall
under residuary entry..

4.  Shri Choudhary, learned counsel for the petltloner after taking us thIough a
number of decisions and the research work, submitted that EmuISIﬁed Bitumen,

being a part or product of Bitumen itself, cannot be classified ‘under residuary
Entry. It is submitted by him that use of Bitumen and Emulsified Bitumen is the

_ same and as Emulsified Bitumen is made out of or is a product of Bitumen withno .

physical or chemical changes in it, the authority was not justified in holdmg that
‘Emulsified Bitumen’ would not fall under Entry No.16.

5. Shri Kutumbale, learned counsel for the State, on the other hand, submitted
that Bitumen and Emulsified Bitumen are commercially different articles, though
Bitumen when is mixed with emulsifier then only it starts absorbing water and is
used for laymg of road. The authority was justified in holding that Emulsified
Bitumen would not fall under Entry No.16.

6.  Undisputedly, Bitumen is a byproduct of the petroleum. It also cannot be

. disputed before us that Bitumen in its original form is a solid lump, which can be

used for laying road or for any other purpose, after it is heated to 150°C.
Undisputedly, even from the research work on which reliance is placed, it would
clearly appear that when the Bitumen is heated between 150°C and 180°C at
which stage, it can be'mixed with other road component, such as mineral aggregate,
in a method known as the application of a hot mix. Working with Bitumen at these
temperatures is very dangerous, with a risk of sérious bums. It also requires -
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costly equipment for the heating, storage and application of Bitumen, which must
be performed on site. Bitumen that has been mixed with petroleum solvents is
called cut-back Bitumen. The solvents, usually kerosene, play no part in the function
of the binder and are costly. The solvents act to decrease the viscosity of the
Bitumen making it more workable. From the research work, it would clearly appear
that the Bitumen is converted into Bitumen Emulsified with the help and assistance
of emulsifier and a new product comes into existence,

7. In the matter of Chowgule & Company Private Limited Vs. Union of
India and others [1981] 47 STC 124, the Supreme Court has held that:

“The test that is required to be applied is: does the lirocessing of
the original commodity bring into existence a commermally dlfferent
and distinct commodity?”

- 8. In the matter of State of Orissa Vs. Titaghur Paper Mills Company
Limited [1985] 60 STC 213, the Supreme Court observed:

“Timber and sized and dressed logs are one and the same
commercial commodity. Logs are noting more than wood cut up
or sawn and would be t:lmber Planks beams and rafters would
also be timber.” .

9.  We are referring to these two judgments to make the things easy that basic
question for application of very Entry would be that the product or byproduct of
the article'/ commodity gets in the Entry contains the same physical and chemical
quality or it changes itself and brings out as a different commodity commonly and
differently known in the commercial world. '

10. In the matter of Titaghur Paper Mills' case {supra), their Lordships had

considered the question of timber, whether that obtained the sized and dressed
logs, timber would not change in the basic quality. Timber would continue to be
timber.

11.  In the matter of Commissioner of Sales Tax, UP Vs. Lal Kunwa Stone

Crusher (P.) Limited [2000] 118 STC 287 and Divisional Deputy Commissioner .

of Sales Tax and another Vs. Bherhaghat Minereal Industries [2000] 120 STC

205, the Supreme Court was of the opinion that entry ‘stone’ is wide enough to
include its various forms, such as boulders, small stones, chips etc. In the said.

matter, the Supreme Court was of the opinion that ‘stone’ even after it is crushed
or broken, would continue to be ‘stone™ though it may be named as ‘boulder’,
“small stone”, ‘chips’®, ‘gitti’ etc.

12.  Reliance was placed upon a judgment of the Supreme Court in the matter
of Porritts & Spencer (Asia) Limited Vs. State of Haryana [1978] 42 STC 433,
to contend that “dryer felts” which are commonly used as absorbents held to be
fall in Entry known as “textiles’. Whether, in the present case, “Emulsified Bitumen™

a
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should also fall within the larger Entry commonly known as “Bitumen and Coal
Tarﬂ}? -

13. In the matter of Porritts (supra), the question before the Supreme Court
was that “dryer felts” made out of cotton or woolen yarn by process of weaving
and commeonly used as. absorbents of moisture, should the article fall within the

Entry known as ‘textile’? Their Lordships were of the opinion that “dryer felts™ __

made out of cotton or woolen yarn by process of weaving according to the wrap
and woof pattern and commonly nsed as absorbents of moisture in paper
manufacturing units would fall within the ordinary and common parlance meaning
of the word ‘textiles’.

14. In'the present matter, undisputedly, Bitumen if not mixed with emulsifier,

then, as discussed above, its use would be difficult and dangerous. It is not in

dispute before us that Bitumen in its original form would not absorb or mix with

water but after emulsifier is fired upon the raw Bitumen, then it is clear that

quality of absorbing or mixing in the water would come into being. The quality of
anew product is changed and it is commonly and commercially known as a different

commodity, then it cannot be said that the new produce would fall in original

Entry. Undisputedly, Bitumen and Emulsified Bitumen are two different

commodities in the commercial world, though use of the said articles some times

may be common, but some times, even the cost of the use as would also require to.
be considered to vary and use of the new product which is commercially different

economically to some extent.

15. In the present matter, in our opinion, the leamned Commissioner, Commercial
Tax, was justified in holding that ‘Emulsified Bitumen’ would not fall in Entry No.16.

16. 'We find no reasons to interfere in the matter. The petition is dismissed.
C.c. as per rules. _ Petition dismissed.

L.L.R. [2009] M. P., 3101
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. A.K. Patnaik, Chief Justice & Mr. Justice PK. Jaiswal

20 Angust, 2009*" ‘
TAHIR . , ... Petitioner
Vs. ' .
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ... Respondents

A. National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) - Detention
challenged on the ground that allegations against the petitioner are general *
in nature and no proper investigation has been done - Held - Petitioner has
indulged in looting, arson, stone-pelting and as a consequerice disturbed

*W.P. No.4643/2009 (Jabalpur)
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the communal harmony and has created enmity between the two communities
- He has caused public disorder in the town - Acts of the petitioner have
created panic in fown and has put fear in general public - Members of general
public do not.dare fo lodge a report against the petitioner - Therefore, it has
become essential to initiate action. against him w/s 3(2) of the Act and pass
the order of detention - Petrt:on dtsm:ssc:d (Para 6)

3 L o S i | aftiferr (1930 #1 65), T 3(2) — PR & 39
IER W AR & ol & faweg aiffeem ¥R Moy @ § iR 31 Sfim v 721
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B.  National Security Act (65 of 1980), Section 3(2) - Detention -

"Challenged that others who participated in the communal riots have not been

detained under the Act and are only facing regular trials in criminal courts
and witnesses in the criminal cases against the pefitioner are turned hostile
- Held - These facts are not relevant for deciding whether the detention of
the petitioner under the Act was necessary - DM was satisfied on the materials
that it was necessary considering the active role played by the petitioner in
communal riots to detain him under the Act and not to detain others who may
have relatively a lesser role in the communal riots - The order of detention
canniot be held to be bad. ' (Para 10)
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M.K. Tripathi, for the petitioner.
rjay Kumar Shukla, Dy.A.G., for the respondents

ORDER

- The  Order of the Court ‘was deliv%-red by
A.K. Parnaik, C. J. :—In this writ petition under Article 226 of the Constitution,

»
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the petitioner has challenged the order- of detention passed.by the District
Magistrate, Burhanpur, detalmng him under Sectlon 3(2) of the Nat10na1 Secunty
Act, 1980 (for short 'the Act). - o " : . . o

2. On 10.10.2008 there were communal riots in Burhanpur town between the

.-Hindu and-Muslim and the entire Burhanpur town was under. curfew 111 20.10.2008.
A number of criminal cases were registered in different police:stations of

Burhanpur town and several persons were. arrested and some.of them were
released on bail by the Court. The Superintendent of Police, Burhanpur; submitted
a report dated 30.10.2008 to the District Magistrate, Burhanpur and pursuant to

- the police report dated 30.10.2008, the District. Magistrate, Burhanpur, passed

the impugned order dated 13.4.2009 detaining the petitioner under Sectlon 3(2) of
the Act. During the pendency of this writ petition, the petlt:loner was produced
before the Adwsory Board and the Advisory Board ,gave its opinion and pursuant

 to the opinion of the Adwsory Board, the Government of Madhya Pradesh Home

Department, in exercise of powers under Section 12(1) of the Act confirmed the
order of detentlon and directed that the penod of detentlon of the petltloner shall
continue till ergpn’y of 12 months from the date of h1>s detentlon i.e.upto 12.4.2010,

3. Mr. M.K. Tripathi, learned counsel for the petitioner, submitted that the
grounds of detention served on the petitioner would show that the allegations
agamst the petltloner are general in nature and that no proper mvesttgatlon has
been done into the allegations made against the petltloner He further submitted
that about 1000 persons who were involved in'the commuinal riots in Burhanpur
town during 10.10.2008 to 20.10.2008 were arrested ‘and cnmmal _cases were
registered agamst them in dlffereut pohce stations of Burhanpur town but most of
the arrested persons have been released on bail.. -He submitted that w11:nesses in
different criminal cases reglstered against the petltloner have also tumed hostile
intrials in different courts He submltted that the detentton of the petltloner pursuant
to the 1mpugned order passed by the District Maglstrate Burhanpur and the order
passed by the State Government, are therefore bad and are liable to be quashed.

He cited the decision of a Division Bench of this- Court in Sunil Tzwar1 Vs. State
of Madhya Pradesh & others ( 2009 {2} M P. H T 297 {DB} ) in support of his
contentions. =

-4, Mr. Vijay Kumar Shukla, learned Deputy Advocate General on the other

hand sought to sustain the order of detention passed by the Dtstrlct Magistrate
and the order of confirmanon passed by the State Government by contendmg that
the grounds of detentlon served on the petltloner would show that ]:us detention
was necessary for mamtalmng communal harmony and peace in Burhanpur town.
He submitted that the petmoner 1ndulged in'various acts.of arson and looting in
different places of Burhanpur town on 10.10.2008 and played an actlve role in
communal riots between the Hindu and Muslim and in these cucumstances the
District Magistrate had né'option but'to pass-the order of déténtion for inaintaining
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public order and peace in the locality. He submitted that the facts in Suni! Tiwari
Vs. State of Madhya Pradesh & others (supra) cited by Mr.-Tripathi are entirely
different and the decision of the Division Bench of this Court in that case does not
apply to the facts of the present case.

5. 'We have perused the English translation of the grounds of detention dated

13.4.2009 which were served on the petitioner. In paragraph 2 of the grounds of
detention, the following four acts allegedly committed by the petitioner on
10.10.2008 have been narrated: :

“(1)  On 10.10.2008 you along with other miscreants
broke the doors and entered into the house of the complainant
Manoj son of Bhaiyalal Lakhe, a resident of Tilak Hall,
Burhanpur and administered threats to hivi and his Jamily to
their lives, caused infuries on them and set their house on
fre On a report being lodged by him, Crime No.225/2008

" was registered against you in respect of the offences
punishable under Sections 148, 149, 323, 427, 452, 436 and
395 of the Indian Penal Code at the Police Station Shrkarpum
Burhanpur. -

(2)  On 10.10.2008 you along with other miscreants
sharing common intention with common object pelted stonés
and set the gas cylinder on fire for causing explosion and by
h'atchmg conspiracy attempted to put irreparable damage to

- the complainant. On a report being lodged by the complainant,
K.P. David, Station House Officer, Shikarpura,Crime No.230/
' 2008,was instituted against you in respect of the offences
punishable under Sections 307, 147, 148, 149,452, 395, 436
and 506-11 of the Indian Penal Code at the Police Station,
Shikarpura.

{3) On 1[0.10.2008 you along with orher accused persons
sharing common intention, forcibly entered into the house of
the complainant, Subhash son of Pannalal Jain, resident of
behind Tilak Hall, Shah Bazar, made assault on him and set

_his shop on fire. Thereafter pelted stones on the house,
committed riot and looted various general items, kept in the-
shop and as such caused damage fo the complainant to the
tune of Rs. 50,000/- approximately. On his report being lodged
Crime No. 232/ 2008 was registered under Sections 147, 148,
149, 436, 452 and 495 of the Indian Penal Code at the Police
Station, Shikarpura. .-

. (4) On 10.10.2008 you'ai;mg with other accomplices sharing
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comnion intention with the common -object forcibly broke ‘into
the residential house of the complainant, Ravindra son of
'Ramchandra Naik, resident of in front of Tilak Hall ahd
attacked on him,' pelting: stones and set his shop on fire and
thereby caused loot of approximately Rs.50,000/-. On an FIR
having been lodged by the complainant, Crime No.233/2008
was instituted by the Station House Officer, Shikarpura, under
Sections 147, 148, 149, 436, 452, 188, 294, 506 and 395 of
. the Indian Penal Code.”

6. The District Magistrate after narrating the aforesaid four acts alleged to
have been committed by the petitioner on 10.10.2008 has stated in paragraph 3. of
the grounds of detention that as a consequence of the acts of the petitioner the
people of Burhanpur town are in terror and has further observed that the acts of
the petitioner have created panic in Burhanpur town and has put fear in the general
public and the members of general public do not dare to lodge a report against the
petitioner. The District Magistrate has also stated in paragraph 4 of the grounds
of detention that the aforesaid four acts of the petitioner would show that he has
indulged in looting, arson, stone-pelting and as a consequence disturbed the
communal harmony ‘and has created enmity between the two communities and
hence has caused public disorder in the town of Burhanpur. The District Magistrate
has also stated in paragraph 5 of the grounds of detention that the alleged acts of
the petitioner unless arrested by his detention are likely to disturb public peace
and tranquillity in the town of Burhanpur and, therefore, it has become essential
to initiate actlon against him under section 3(2) of the Act and pass-the order of
detention. e T

7. We have perused the judgment of the Division Bench of this couit in'Stnil
Tiwari Vs. State of Madhya Pradesh & others (supra) cited by Mr. Tripathi and
we find that in paragraph 6 of the judgment, the Division Bench has quoted the
decision of the Supreme Court in Victoria Fernandes vs.  Lalmal Sawma &
others (AIR 1992 SC 687) in which the distinction between 'law and order’ and 'public
order' has been brought out. The relevant passage from the decision of the Supreme
Court in Victoria Fernandes vs. Lalmal Sawma & others, is quoted herein below :

"The distinction between the areas of 'law and order'" and
‘public order’ is oneé of degree and extent of the reach of the

act in question on society. It is the potentiality of the act to
disturb the even tempo of life of the community, which makes

it prejudicial to the mainténance of the pubtic order. If a

~ contravention in its effect is confined only to a few individuals
directly involved as distinct from a wide spectrum of public, it

* "~ would raise the problem of law and order only. It is the length,
magnitude and intensity of the terror -wave unleashed by a
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particular eruption of disorder that helps distinguish it as
an act affecting ‘public order’ from that concerning ‘law and
order’. The question to ask is : Does it lead to disturbance
of the current life of the community so as to amount to a
disturbance of the public order, or does it affect merely an
individual leaving the tranquillity of the society undisturbed?
This question has to be faced in every case on its facts. {See :
Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia.Vs. State of Bihar (1996) 2 SCR 709
= (AIR 1966 SC 740); Arun Ghosh Vs. State of West Bengal,
(1970) 3 SCR 288 = (AIR 1970 SC 1228); Ram Ranjan
Chatterjee Vs. State of West Bengal (1975)3 SCR 301 = (AIR
1975 SC 609); Ashok Kumar vs. Delhi Administration (1982)
2 SCC 403 = (4IR 1982 SC 1143).”

It is clear from the aforesaid decision of the Supreme Court that the question to

be asked in each case is whether the acts of the detenue have led to disturbance
of the current life of the community so as to amount to a disturbance of the public
order or does it affect merely an individual leaving the tranquillity of the socicty
undisturbed and this question has to be decided in every case on its facts.

8 So far as the facts of the present case are concerned, the allegation against
the petitioner in the grounds of detention extracted above is that on 10 10.2008
the petitioner along with other miscreants broke the doors and entered.into the
residential houses and shops of several persons and attacked the persons pelting
stones on them, looted their property and money’and caused other damages for

which crimes No. 225/2008, 230/2008, 232/2008 and 233/2008 have been registered - .

under various sections including sections 147, 148, 149,307 .& 395 of the Indian
Penal Code. The very nature of the acts alleged to have been committed by the

" petitioner on 10.10.2008 particularly when thefe were communal riots between

the Hindu and Muslim in Burhanpur town are such that the acts must have affected
the even tempo of the life of community of different localities in Burhanpur town.
These acts cannot be said to be only individual acts of contravention of law but
are acts which have disturbed the public order.

9. In Sunil Tiwari Vs. State of M.P. & others (supra), the Division Bench of
this Court in paragraph 5 of the judgment relying on Lakshman Khatik Vs. The
State of West Bengal (AIR 1974 SC 1264), Golam Hussain Vs Commissioner
of Police Calcutta (AIR 1974 SC 1336) and Gora Vs. State of Bengal (AIR
1975 SC 473), has also held that there must be a close proximity between the
offending acts-mentioned in the grounds of detention and the order of detention
and there should not be too long and unexplained intervals between the offending
acts and the order of detention, but no mechanical test of counting the months of
the interval can be applied and it all depends on the nature of the acts relied on,
grave and determined or less serious and corrigible, on the length of the gap, short
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or long, on the reason for the delay in taking preventive action, like information of
participation being available only in the course of an investigation.

10.  Inthe present case, the petitioner is alleged to have committed the acts of
breach public order on 10.10.2008 and the order of detention was passed on
13.4.2009. The petitioner has not taken the ground in the writ petition that there
was no close proximity between the alleged acts committed by him on 10.10.2008
and the order of detention dated 13.4.2009 and therefore the respondents have
not explained the delay of six months in detaining the petitioner under the Act.
Nonetheless, Burhanpur town is prone to communal riots between the Hindu and
Muslim and to prevent such communal riots affecting the peace and tranquility of
the Burhanpur town and to maintain the public order, the District Magistrate has
passed the order detaining the petitioner under the Act. The fact that others who
allegedly participated in the communal riots during 10.10.2008 to 20. 10.2008 have
not been detained under the Act and are only facing regular trials in criminal
courts and the fact that witnesses in the trial in the criminal cases against the
petitioner are turning hostile, are not relevant for deciding whether the detention
of the petitioner under the Act was necessary. If the District Magistrate was
satisfied on the materials that it was necessary considering the active role played
by the petitioner in the communal riots on 10.10.2008 to detain him under the Act
and not to detain others who may have relatively a lesser role in the communal
riots, the order of detention can not be held to be bad only because the other
participants have been.arrested but have been set at liberty on bail or because
witnesses against the petitioner have turned hostile in the criminal trials.

11.  For the aforesaid reasons, we do not find any merit in this writ petition and
we accordingly dismiss'this writ petition. .
. Petition dismissed,
I.L.R. [2009] M. P., 3107
‘WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice S. Samvatsar & Mr. Justice Abhay M. Nuaik

25 Augnst, 2009
ISRAT JAHAN (SMT.) ... Petitioner
Vs.
RAJIA BEGUM & ors. ... Respondents

Court Fees Act (7 of 1870), Section 7(iv)(c) - Payment of ad valorem
court fees - Sale deed executed by father binding on the son - Held - Ad valorem
court fees on the valuation of the sale deed is required to be paid - Even if the
relief is couched in declaratory form, the relief of avoidance and/or cancellation
is implicitin the declaratory relief contained in plaint. (Para 13)

*W.P. No.4846/2008 (Gwalior)
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Cases referred :

AIR 1973 SC 2364, 1995(1) VIBHA 148, 2005(1) MPWN 43, 1999(IT) MPWN
136, 1997(1) JLJ 136, 1996(I) MPWN 235, 1993(1) VIBHA 259, 2002(2) MPL] 44.

-Lakhan Goswami, for the petitioner.

D.D. Bansal, for the respondent Nos..1 to 7. . -

ORDER
The Order of  the Court - was delevered by

Apaay M. Naw, J. :~This writ petition is preferred under Article 227 of the -

Constitution of India against the order dated 13.8.2008 passed by the court of
District Judge Vidisha in Civil Suit No.2A/08.

2. Short facts involved herein are that the plaintiffs/ respondents No.l to 7 -

mstituted a suit against defendant/petitioner and defendant/respondent No.8 with
the allegation that their predecessor namely, Sabdar Hussain (husband of plaintiff
No.1 and father of plaintiff Nos.2 to 7) was owner of the suit property to the
extent of one half. He was an old person with weak eye sight and weak mental
faculty. A registered sale deed dated 24.4.2007 was got executed from him by the
defendant/ petitioner in respect of his share in the disputed land. Sale deed was
for consideration of Rs.5,64,400/-, out of which Rs.2 lacs was-shown to have
been paid in advance. It was alleged that the consideration was not paid 4t all and
the registered sale deed was got executed in collusion with the Sub Registrar.
Accordingly, a declaration has been sought that the registered sale deed dated
24.4.2007 is illegal . and vcnd Possession and mesne profit are also prayed for.

3. Defendant/petitioner submitted an application under order 7 Rule 11 CPC
that the plaintiffs may be directed to pay ad valorem court fees on Rs.5,64,400/~
being valuation of the sale deed.

4, Learned trial judge dismissed the application by the impugned order holding
that the plaintiffs were not party to sale deed and they can not be directed to pay
ad valorem court fees on the ‘valuation of the sale deed. This order has been
challenged in the present writ petition.

5. Learned counsel for the parties argued at length.

6. Admittedly, the suit has been valued for the purpose of declaration at
Rs.5.64,400/- being the valuation of the sale deed in question, which was executed
ts Sabdar Hussain, husband of the plaintiff No. 1 and father of plaintiffs Nos.2 to
7. Praperty in question belonged to him. Thus, he was quite competent to execute

=
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the sale deed. Plaintiffs are bound, by the sale deed unless the same is avoided..
Although the relief clause is couched in declaratory form, the relief sought by the
plaintiffs shall have the effect on cancelling/avoiding it. Thus, it is governed by
clause (c) of Section 7 (iv) of the Court Fees Act, 1870 and an ad valorem court
fees is payable as setting aside the sale deed dated 24.4.2007 is 1mphc1t in the
declaratory relief sought by the plaintiffs.

7.  We may successfully refer to the apex court’s decision in the case of |

Shamsher Singh v. Rajinder Prashad and others (AIR 1973 SC 2364). In the
Shamsher Singh's case (supra), the plaintiff has prayed for declaration that the
mortgage deed executed by the father in respect of joint family property was null
and void for want of legal necessrty and consideration. The apex court observed
that although the relief was couched in a declaratory form, the same was in
substance. a suit either for setting aside the decree or for a declaration with a
consequentlal relief of injunction restraining the decree holder from executing the
decree against the mortgaged property. It was further found that unless the decree
was set aside, it would have remained executable against the 'son and it was
essential for the son to ask for setting aside the decree. Likewise in the present.
case, if the sale deed executed by the Sabdar Hussain is not avoided, i will remain
binding on the plaintiffs, who would not inheritate the property.

8.  Shri Bansal, learned counsel appearing for the respondents relied upon Full
Berich decision of this Court in the case of Santosh Chandra & others v. Gyan
Sunder Bai & others (1970 JLJ 290), wherein 1t is observed :-

“Thus, all these cases lay down the proposition that where it is
necessary for a plaintiffto avoid an agreement or a decreg or a liability
" imposed, it is necessary for him to avoid that and unless he séeks the
relief of having that decree, agreement, document or liability set aside,
he is not entitléd to a declaration simpliciter. In such cases the questiony
. of court-fees has to be determined under S.7 (iv)(c) of the Act. But,
‘however, where a plaintiff is not a party to such a decree, agreement,
instrument or a liability, and he cannot be deemed to be a representative
in interest of the person who is bound by that decree, agreement,
instrument or liability, he can sue for a declaration simpliciter, provided .
he is also in possession of the property.” ' s oan )

Even in the aforesaid Full Bench view, the plaintiffs bemg successor of Sabdar
Hussain are bound by the sale deed executed by him. Thus,, the Full Bcnch declswn
does'not render any assistance to the contesting respondents

9. . Learned Trial Judge has passed the impugned order in favour of the plamtlﬁ‘s E

on the ground that the plaintiffs were not party to the said’ sale deed. Learned
Trial Judge has failed to consider that the plaintiffs are claiming the suit property
from Sabdar Hussain, who has executed the registered sale deed in guestion.

'
.
.
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Thus, they represent the estate of Sabdar Hussain and in absence of avoidance of the
registered sale deed, they would remain bound by the same. It is not a case where the
plaintiffs claimed the suit property independent of Sabdar Hussain. Thus, without
avoiding the sale deed executed by the Sabdar Hussain, no relief would be available to
the plaintiffs. This being so, they are bound to pay the ad valorem court fees.

10.  This court in the case of Manoharlal v. Vedahisharan and others [1995 ()]
VIBHA 148, has after taking into consideration various authorities observed -

“(1) where a party seeks to avoid a deed or a decree to which he
is party, then ad valorem court-fees is payable.

(ii) where substance of the relief is either for setting aside the
decree or for a declaration with a consequential relief for
cancellation or restraining then, ad valoren court-fees is payable.”

11. Atthe cost of repetition, it is reiterated that the plaintiffs having claimed the
suit property from Sabdar Hussain are bound to avoid the sale deed dated 24.4.2007
and the learned trial judge has thus erred in holding contrary, We may successfully
refer on this point other decision of this court reported in 2005 (2) MPWN 43
(Kamalkishore v. Jagannath Prasad).

12. Reliance by Shri D.D.Bansal on 1999 (II) MPWN 136 (Bhikam Chandra
v. Ghichi Bai), 1997 (1) JLI 136 (Ambaram v. Smt. Pramilabai and others);
1996 (I) MPWN 235 (Varud Ahmed v. Nihal Amhed), 1993 (1) VIBHA 259
(Omprakash and others v. Suratram and others) and,2002 (2) MPLJ 44
(Laxmikant Dube v. Smt.Piyaria) are of no assistance because in none of these -
cases, plaintiff was bound by the deed.

13. Contrary to this, it is found in the present case that according to the plaint averments
themselves, the suit property was owned by Sabdar Hussain, who was husband of -
plaintiff No.1 and father of plaintiffs No.2 ro 7. It allegedly devolved upon the plaintiffs
after death of Sabdar Hussain. In case, if the registered sale deed executed by Sabdar
Hussain on 24.4.2007 is not avoided, the suit property can not be treated as available for
devolution on plaintiffs. Thus, it is obligatory on the part of plaintiffs to seek the cancellation
or avoidance of the said sale deed. Although relief clause is couched in declaratory
form, the relief of avoidance and/or cancellation is implied in the declaratory relief
contained in plaint. This being so, the case of the plaintiff is found squarely covered by
the apex court decision in the case of Shamsher Singh (supra). The impugned order is
thus not found sustainable in law. The same is hereby sct aside. Plaintiffs are directed to
pay ad valorem court fees on the valuation of-the. sale deed. Trial court shail gramt
reasonable time to pay the deficit court fees before proceeding further on. merits in
accordance with law. Petition stands allowed in the aforesaid manner.

No orders as to costs. .
- Petition allowed

a
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Arun Mishra & Mrs. Justice Sushma Shrivastava

. 25 August, 2009*
MANZOOR AHMED ... Petitioner
Vs, a B
. JAGGI BAI & ors. .. Respondents

Court Fees Act (7 of 1870), Schedule 1I, Article 17 Ad valorem
court fee - Void & voidable transaction - Sale deed obtained by playing fraud
- Document is void not voidable - Held - In case of a void document it is not
necessary to seek the relief of cancellation of document - Ad valorem court
Jjees is not payable. (Paras 8 & 9)
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Cases referred :

1976 JLJ 703, AIR 1937 Nag 14, 2008(1) MPLI 116, AIR 1997 MP 25,
1982 MPWN 464, AIR 1958 All 41, AIR 1955 Cal 341, AIR 1953 Cal 34, AIR
1950 Cal 85, AIR 1953 Bom 382, AIR 1949 Mad 778.

B.P- Sharma, for the petitioner.
Pushpraj Agrawal, for the respondents.

: ORDER
The Order of the Court was delivered by

. ARuN MisHRa, J.=~Writ petition has been filed as against order dated 25.3.2009

passed by the trial court rejecting an application filed by the defendants under
order 7 Rule 11 of CPC to reject the plaint on the ground that trial court was not

" having pecuniary jurisdiction as well as adequate court fees was not paid.

2..  The plaintiff/respondent has filed the suit for declaration of title and
confirmation of possession. Prayer has also been made to declare the sale deed
dated 20th September, 2007 as null and void. Prayer for permanent prohibitory
mjunctlon has also been made.

3. Plaintiff has averred that plaintiff is the Bhumlswarm of the land in questlon

- Her age is 100 years, she is disabled also. Plaintiff no.2 is residing with her and

looking after agricultural operation. Plaintiff wanted to obtain the loan under the
Kisan Credit Scheme for improving fertility of the land. She was assured by the
defendants that for performing formalities, shec would have to sign certain

*W.P. No.7324/2009 (Jabalpur)
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documents. Under the guise of processing the papers of Kisan Credit Scheme, a
sale deed was got executed which she had never executed. She has lodged
objection on coming to know.of the execution of sale deed and-also lodged report
at PS, Majhgawan. She has never sold the land and frand was playcd There was
no question of receipt of consideration.

4, In the application filed under order 7 Rule 11 CPC, it was submitted that
suit has not been properly valued, advalorem Court fees was required to be paid
on consideration mentioned in the sale deed of Rs. 2,29,000. Trial Court has rejected
the application, hence the petition.

5. Shri B.P. Sharma, learned counsel appearing for petitioner has submitted
that it is necessary to seek consequential relief of cancellation of sale deed as the
plaintiff is a party to the document, thus, she was bound to make the payment of -
advalorem Court fees. He has referred to certain decisions to be referred later,

6. Shri, Pushpraj Agrawal, learned counsel appearing for respondents has
supported the impugned order.

7. . The main question for consideration is whether advalorem Court fees is

required to be paid. Document is shown to be void not voidable. Plaintiff has-
averred that she was never told about the sale deed which has been obtained by

playmg fraud. She never intended to execute the sale deed, she wanted to obtain

the loan and takmg the advantage of her advanced age and disability, sale deed

was obtained. No consideration was paid. The averments made inthe plaint indicate

that document is shown to be void not voidable. There is difference in incident of
payment of Court fees in case document is voidable at the instance of executant
advalorem Court fees is required to be paid, not in the case of void document in'
such cases injunction which has been prayed flows from the relief of declaration.
In case of void document, it is not necessary to seek the relief of cancellation of
document itself, it is only in the cases of voidable documents, it is necessary to
claim such a relief. This question was considered by this Court in Pratap and
another vs. Punia Bai and others 1976 JLJ 703 thus :-

"5. Learned counsel for the applicant relied mainly on the Full
Bench decisions of this Court in Santoshchandra and others
Vs. Gyansunder Bai 1970°JLJ 290= 1970 MPLJ 363 (FB). It
_ was held in that case that where it is necessary for a plaintiff to
avoid an agreement or a decree or a liability imposed, he must
seck the relief of having that decree, agreement, instrument or
liability set aside and he is not entitled to a declaration simpliciter
in such cases. This decisions was followed in Sunderbai vs.
Maviohar Singh Yadav 1974 JLJ Short Note 75 . In that case
plaintiff had filed a suit for a declaration and for permanent
injunction alleging that the sale deed in question was got executed

——— - F m o mm e e e am = S -
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by her by playing fraud. The plaintiff was held liable to pay an ad
valorem Court fees under section 7(c) of the Court Fees Act.
From the aforesaid decisions it is clear that where a person who
is party to an agreement or transaction and his aliegation is that it
is not binding on him because it was obtained by misrepresentation
or fraud, it is necessary for him to seek the consequential relief of
setting aside such agreement ‘or transaction and as such the suit
falls within the purview of section 7(c) of the Court Fees Act.’ But
the question of avoiding. an agreement or an instrument arises
only where it is voidable. If it is wholly void a mere declaration
that it is so, is sufficient and it is not necessary for the plaintiffto
seek the relief of setting aside something which has no existence
in law. It is not necessary,to ask for relief of setting aside an
agreement or an instrument which is wholly void.

6. The question whether the suit is really one for a declaration
with the consequential relief or not has to be determined by looking
to the pleadings of the plaintiff only, vide Manohar Singh
Nathasingh vs. Parmeshwari and others AIR 1949 Nag 211. If
we carefully examine the allegations in the plaint it would appear
that the case of the plaintiff is that she did not execute the sale
deed in question, that she did not receive any consideration of the
sale and that she was not a party to any document of sale. From
these allegations it would appear that there was no sale at all and
the plaintiff is merely seeking a declaration that she did not execute
the sale deed in question and thus did not transfer any property to
the defendants. As such it is not necessary for her to seek relief
of setting aside the sale deed in question, because, as pointed out
above, the question of secking the relief of setting aside something
which has no existence in law, does not arise. In such a case bare
declaration would suffice. .

7. Voidable transfer remains valid until avoided and, therefore,it
1s necessary to avoid it by seeking the relief of setting it aside. But
a transaction, which is void ab initio, must be deemed to have
never taken place. It is not to be regarded as an alienation which
1s perfect till it is set aside. There is a clear distinction between a
fraudulent misrepresentation as to the character of a document
and as to its contents. Where the misrepresentation is both as to
contents as well as character of the document, the transaction is
wholly void.” )

3113
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is alleged to be “void” or “voidable”. In case of void document, it is not necessary
to seek the relief of cancellation of document. Similar view was taken by Nagpur
High Court in Secretary of State vs. Dadoo Ghanshyamsingh Gupta and others
AIR 1937 Nagpur 14. It has been laid down that if on averments made in the
plaint, the substantial relief could not be other than one for a declaratoty decree
and it is coupled with another relief, which follows naturally in the wake of the
declaration, then the case must be regarded as falling within the ambit of S.7(iv)(c).
This Court in Ashok Kumar Gehani and another vs. Ramhet Agrawal and
another 2008 (1) MPLJ 116 has relied upon Prafap and another vs. Punia Bai
and others (supra) and came to the similar conclusion. In Smt. Sabina alias
Farida vs. Mohd. Abdul Wasit AIR 1997 MP 25 relief of injunction was not
consequential relief, it was claimed because of settled possession of plaintiff, thus,
ad valorem Court fees was not required to be paid. In the instant case also plaintiff
is claimed to be in possession, she is not claiming relief for possession, thus, it
could not be said that ad valorem court fees is required to be paid. When declaratory
relief is the main relief has also been considered in Johan Ram vs. Dasmat Bai,
1982 MPWN 464, Vibhuti Narain Singh vs. Municipal Board, Allahabad AIR
1958 Allahabad 41, Bhupat Singha and others vs. Jnanendra Kumar Chowdhury
and others AIR 1955 Calcutta 341, Jatindra Nath Nandi and others vs.

Krishnadhan Nandi and another AIR 1953 Calcutta 34, Balram Mandal vs.
Sahebjan and others AIR 1950 Calcutta 85, Burjor Pestonji Sethna vs. Nariman
Minoo Todiwala and others AIR 1953 Bombay 382 and in Messrs. Kalla
Surayya and Sons represented by Kalla Venkataraju vs. Province of Madras,

represented by the Collector of East Godavari at Kakinada and another AIR
1949 Madras 778.

9. Petitioner’s counsel has relied upon Division Bench decision of this Court
in Shyamacharan Paul and another vs. Roopali Promoters and Construction
{M/s) and others 2009 (3) MPHT 113 in which on the averments made, it was
held by Division Bench of this court that consequential rélief of cancellation of
sale deed was necessary, declaration would not suffice. The ratio has no application
on the facts of the instant case. Petitioner's counsel has also relied upon decision
in Mohammad Jameel Khan and others vs. Miththulal Khushal Singh Gujar
1999 (1) MPLJ 37. We are unable to subscribe to the aforesaid view as it is trite
law that in the case of void document it is not necessary to seck the relief of
cancellation of document. In our opinion, the order passed by the trial Court is
proper in the facts of the instant case.

10.  Resultantly, writ petition being devoid of merits deserves dismissal, same
is hereby dismissed. No costs. _
Petition dismissed.

A/
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" WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Gangele

26°August, 2009* '
MOHD. ISMAIL KHAN ... Peiitioner
Vs.
M.P. ROAD TRANSPORT CORPORATION & ‘anr. Respondents‘

Service Law - State Road Transport Employees Conduct, Discipline
and Appeal Regulations, M.P. 1975, Regulations 34 & 36 - Inquiry Officer -
Competence - An authority under the regulation could be delegated the power

.fo inquire into the truth by the Competent Authority as Inquiry Officer -

Admittedly, Inquiry Officer posted on deputation as Deputy Secretary and
not an employee of Corporation - His substantive post was Professor in Higher

- Education Department - Consequently, enquiry conducted by such officer is

against the provisions of Regulations and beyond his power - Proceedings
null & void - Appointment of Inquiry Officer and subsequent proceedings
conducted by him quashed - Petition allowed. (Paras 8 to 16)
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Cases referred : . , .

AIR 1952 SC 369, AIR 2004 SC 1039, AIR 2007 SC 1956.

Vivek Jain, for the petitiorner.
S.S. Bansal, for the respondent No.1.

ORDER

S.K. GANGELE, J. :-These two writ petitions have been filed by petitioner,
Mohd. Ismail Khan, who was erst-while employee of the respondent-Corporation.
Initially, petitioner filed writ petition No.314/2009(s) challenging appointment of
Inquiry Officer. “This Court vide order dated 23.01.09 passed an intérim order
directing respondent No.2 not to take any coercive action against the petitioner.
However, in spite of operation of stay order of this Court petitioner has been
removed from service after enquiry. Hence, the petitioner in subsequent writ
petition, W.P. No. 1829/09 (s) challenged his order of dismissal from service.

*W.P. No.314/2009(8) (Gwalior)
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2. Mr. Dilipraj Dwivedi, Deputy Secretary, Department of Transport, was
appointed as Inquiry Officer in the case to conduct enquiry and competency to
conduct the enquiry by Mr. Dilipraj Dwivedi has been challenged in these writ
petitions, hence with the consent of parties, both writ petitions are heard and
decided by this common order.

3. Petitioner was initially appointed as Traffic Superintendent in Madhya
Pradesh Road Transport Corporation in 1982, He was promoted as Depot Manager
in the year 2000. He was given current charge of Divisional Manager on
01.07.2006 and was posted as Divisional Manager, MPSRTC, Gwalior. A charge
sheet has been issued to the petitioner vide Memo dated 26.11.2008 by the Managing
Director of the Corporation. By the afore said charge sheet seven charges have
been leveled against the petitioner. The petitioner vide letter, Annexure P/-3, asked
for certain documents for filing reply of the charge sheet. Subsequently, vide
letter Annexure P-6, dated 17.12.2008, he filed his reply and denied the charges.
After considering the reply of the petitioner vide impugned order, Annexure P-1

- dated 15.02.2008 the Managing Director appointed Mr. Dilipraj Dwivedi, Dy.

Secretary, Department of Transport, as Inquiry Officer and Mr. R.K. Jain,,

Divisional Manager, MPSRTC, HQ, as presenting Officer. The petitioner vide

letter dated 19.12.2008 requesied to change the Inquiry Officer. It has been

mentioned by the petitioner that earlier Mr. Dilipraj Dwivedi was posted as

Professor in Higher Education Department and his substantive post is of Professor

in Higher Education Department. He is not familiar with the Rules and Regulations

and working of the Madhya Pradesh Road Transport Corporation, hence he could
not conduct the enquiry properly. It has further been stated that Mr. Dilipraj

Dwivedi, respondent No.2, is not eligible to be appointed as Inquiry Officer in

accordance with the Regulations named as 'Madhya Pradesh State Road Transport

Employees Conduct, Discipline and Appeal Regulations, 1975, herein after referred

to as the 'Regulations of 1975. The aforesaid objection of the petitioner has been

rejected vide order dated 09.01.2009, Annexure P.9. Thereafter, the petitioner
filed writ petition No. 314/09 before this Court. This Court on 23.01.09 passed
the following order :-

"Keeping in view the order passed by the Principal Seat of
this Court in the identical case challenging the same that an enquiry
officer was appointed who was the Deputy Secretary working
under the State of M.P., it is ordered that till the next date of

* hearing the respondent No.2 shall not take any coercive action
against the petitioner in the departmental enquiry in which the
respondent No.2 is the enquiry officer.

The petitioner shall also place English Version of the
regulations of 1975 on record.
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Issue notice to the respondents on payment of process fee
within seven days failing which this petition shall stand dismissed
without reference to the Court. ‘

List the matter on 02.03.09."

4, Principal Seat of this Court at Jabalpur in identical cases challenging
appointment of Inquiry Officer, also ordered that respondent No.2 shall not take
any coercive action. The respondent No.2 is the Inquiry Officer. In spite of the
stay order of this Court, the Inquiry Officer conducted the enquiry and found the
charges proved against the petitioner. Thereafter, Managing Director vide order
dated 08.04.09 passed an order of dismissal of the petitioner from service. The
aforesaid order has been challenged by the petiticner in petition, Writ Petition No.
1829/09 (s).

5. . Learned counsel for the petitioner before arguing the case on merits, has
submitted that appointment.of respondent No.2 as Inquiry Officer is arbitrary and
-illegal becaunse at the relevant time he was on deputation as Deputy Secretary
and his substantive post is of Professor in Higher Education Department. Hence,
the enquiry conducted against the petitioner is against the law. Learned counsel
for the petitioner has further submitted that in spite of the stay order granted by
this Court, the order of dismissal of the petitioner has been passed, hence, the
order of dismissal of the petitioner is also against the law. ’

6.  Contrary to this, learned counsel for respondents has submitted that the
Managing Director had power and authority to appoint respondent No.2 as an
Inquiry Officer, hence the disciplinary enquiry conducted by respondent No.2 is
as per law. Learned counsel further submitted that the stay order passed by this
court was against respondent No.2. There was no order of stay against the
Corporation, hence the dismissal order passed by the Corporation is as per law..

7.  Undisputed facts of the case are that the petitioner is an employee of the
Madhya Pradesh Road Transport Corporation. Respondent No. 2 was appointed
as Inquiry Officer vide order dated 15.02.2008, Annexure P-1. At that time
respondent No. 2, Mr. Dilipraj Dwivedi, had been working as Deputy Secretary,
Department of Transport, Bhopal. The petitioner further pleaded that the
substantive post of respondent No. 2 is Professor in Higher Education Department
and he was on deputation as Deputy Secretary in the Department of Transport.
In reply to the aforesaid pleadings of the petitioner respondent No.1 did not dispute
the above facts that the substantive post of respondent No.2 is of Professor in
Higher Education Deptt. and he was on deputation as Deputy Secretary at the
relevant time. '

8. Respondent No.1, Madhya Pradesh State Road Transport Corporation was
incorporated under section 3 of the Road Transport Corporation Act, 1950,
hereinafter referred as 'Act of 1950". Section 45 of the Act of 1950 gives power
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tc make regulations. In exercise of aforesaid power conferred by Section 45 of
the Act of 1950, the respondent No.1 with the previous sanction of the State
Government framed the regulations named as "Madhya Pradesh Statc Road
Transport Employees Conduct, Discipline and Appeal Regulations, 1975". The
aforesaid regulations came into force w.e.f. 05.09.1975. These regulations ate
applicable to the employees who are in the services of the Corporation. Regulation
32 provides penalty, minor and major. Regulation 34 thereof provides authority
competent to impose penalty, which is as under :-

"34. Authority competent to impose penalty

(1) The Corporation may impose any of the penalties
specified in regulation 32 on any Corporation employee.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in this regulation
no penalty specified in clauses (v) to (ix) of regulation 32 shall be
imposed by any autherity subordinate to the appointing authority."

9. Regulation 36 provides procedure for imposing major penalties, which is as
under :- A

"36 Procedure for imposing major penalties :-

(a) No order imposing any of the major penalties specified
in regulation 32 shall be made except after an enquiry is held, as
for as may be, in the manner provided in this regulation and
regulation 37.

(b) whenever the competent authority is of the opinion that there
are grounds for inquiring into the truth of any imputation of
misconduct against an employee, it may itself inquire, or appoint
under this regulation an authority to inquire into the truth thereof."

10.  For the purpose of determining the question that whether respondent No.2
was eligible to be appointed as Inquiry Officer, Section 36 (b) is important. It has
been mentioned in the aforesaid regulation that "whenever the competent authority
_is of the opinion that there are ground for inquiring into the truth of any imputation
of misconduct against an employee, it may itself inquire, or appoint under this
regulation an authority to inquire into the truth thereof”. The words used under
this regulation 'an authority to inquire' is important. In the regulation the word 'or
appoint under this regulation an authority' has been used. The question is whether
a person who is not an employee of the Corporation or who is not an authority
under the Regulations of 1975, could be appointed as 'an inquiry officer’. In
Advanced Law Lexicon, 3rd Edn., word 'Authority' has been defined as under :-

"AUTHORITY, is nothing but a power to do something; it is
sometimes given by word, and sometimes by writing: also it is by
writ, warrant, commission , letter of attorney, &¢. and sometimes
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by law. The authority that is given must be to do a thing lawful;
for if it be for the doing anything against law, as to beat a man,
take away his goods, or disseise him of his lands this will not be a
good authority to justify him that doth it." (Dyer 102; Tomlin).
(In contracts) The lawful delegation of power by one person to
another."

11.  In Regulations of-1975 the words have been used are "or appoint under this
regulation an authority to inquire into the truth thereof". If the words haver been
used "to appoint an authority to inquire into the truth thereof™ then it can easily be
held that any person or body or agency could be appointed to inquire into the truth
because it is settled law that a competent authority can delegate the power of the
enquiry to any other authority.

12.  Hon'ble the Sﬁpreme Court in Aswini Kumar Ghose and another v.
Incorporated Law Society, Calcutta High Court and others, AIR 1952 SC
. 369 has held as under with regard to interpretation of statute :-

. "Itis a sound principle of construction to brush aside words in
a statute as being inapposite surplusages, if they they can have
appropriate application in circumstances conceivably within the
contemplation of the statate."

13. The Hon'ble Supreme Court further in State of Orissa and others v.
Joginder Patjoshi and another, AIR 2004 SC 1039, has held as under with
regard to interpretation of statute where the language used in a statute is clear
and Lmamblguous -

"12. Learned counsel appearmg ‘on behalf of the respondents"
submission that subsequently another department of the State of
Orissa intended to grant a higher benefit is of no consequence. In
this case, this Court is required to interpret Rule 8 of the Rules as
it stood prior to the amendment and not the amended Rules. It is
now well settled principle of law that where the language used in
a Statute is clear and unambiguous, the question of taking recourse
of any principle of interpretation would not arise. In Padma
Sundara Rao's case AIR 2002 SC 1334 . (2002 AIR SCW 1156,
Para 13) this Court held-:

"While interpreting a prov1510n the Court only interprets the
law and cannot legislate it, if a provision of law is misused and
subjected to the abuse of process of law, it is for the legislature to
amend, modify or repeal it, if deemed necessary. (See Rishabh
Agro Industries Lid. v. P. N. B. Capital Services I3 (2000( 5
SCC 515). The legislative casus omissus cannot cannot be supplied
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by judicial interpretative process. Language of Section 6 (1) is
plain and unambiguous. There is no scope for reading something
into it, as was done in Narasimhaiah case. In Nanjudaizh case
the period was further stretched to have the time period run from
date of service of the High Court's order. Such a view cannot be
reconciled with the language of Section 6 (1). If the view is
accepted it would mean that a case can be covered by not only
clause (1) and / or clause (11) of the proviso to Section 6 (1), but
also by a non—prescnbed period. Same can never be the legislative
intent.'

13. Similarly in Hansoli Devi's case. AIR 2002 SC 3240 : 2002
AIR SCW 3755), this Court held :-

"9 Before we embark upon an inquiry as 1o what would be the
correct interpretation of Section 28-A, we think it appropriate to
bear in mind certain basic principles of interpretation of a statute.
The rule stated by Tindal, C.J. in Sussex Peerage case (1844) 11
CI & Fin 85 : 8 ER 1034 still holds the ficld. The aforesaid rule is
to the effect (ER P. 1057)

"If the words of the statute are in themselves precise and
unambiguous, then no more can be necessary than to expound
those. words in their natural and ordinary sense. The words
themselves alone do, in such case, best declare the intention ol
the lawgiver."

It is a cardinal principle of construction of a statute'that when the
language of the statute is plain and unambiguous, then the Court
must give effect to the words used in the statute and it would not
be open to the courts to adopt a hypothetical construction on the
ground that such construction is more consistent with the alleged
object and policy of the Act. In Kirkness v. John Hudson & Co.
Ltd. (1955) 2 All ER 345 : 1955 AC 696 : (1955) 2 WLR 1135
Lord Reid pointed out as to what is the meaning of "ambiguous”
and held that (All ER P. 366 C-D) :

"A provision is not ambiguous merely because it contains a
word which in different contexts is capable or different meanings.
It would be hard to find anywhere a sentence of any length which
does not contain such a word. A provision is, in my judgment,

-ambiguous only if it contains a word or phrase which in that

particular context is capable of having more than one meaning."

It is no doubt true that if on going through the plaint meaning of
the langnage of statutes, it leads to anomalies, injustices and
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absurdities, then the court may look into the purpose for which the
statute has been brought and would try to give a meaning, which
would adhere to the purpose of the statute. Patanjali Sastri, C.J.
in the case of Aswini Kumar Ghose v. Arabinda Bose, AIR 1952
SC 369 : 1953 SCR 1 had held that it is not a sound principle of
construction to brush aside words in a statute as being inapposite
surplusage, if they can have appropriate application in
circumstances conceivably within the contemplation of the statute.
In Quebec Railway, Light Heat & Power Co. Ltd. v. Vandry,
AIR 1920 PC 181, it had been observed that the legislature is
deemed not to waste its words or to say anything in vain and a
construction which attributes redundancy to the lcgislature will
not be accepted except for compelling reasons. Similarly, it is not
permissible to add words to a statute whlch are not there unless
on a literal construction being given a part of the statute becomes
meaningless. But before any words are read to repair an omission

in the Act, it should be possible to state with certainty that these

words would have beén inserted by the draftsman and approved

by the legislature had their attention been drawn to the omission-

before the Bill had passed into a law. at times, the intention of the
legislature is found to be clear but the unskilfulness of the draftsman
in introducting certain words in the statute results in apparent
ineffectiveness of the language and in such a situation, it may be
permissible for the court to reject the surplus words, so as to make
the statute effective. Bearing in mind the aforesaid principle, let
us now examine the provisions of Section 28-A of the Act, to
answer the questions referred to us by the Bench of two learned
Judges. It is no doubt true that the object of Section 28-A of the
Act was to confer a right of making a reference, (sic on one) who
might have not made a reference earlier under Section 18 and,
therefore, ordinarily when a person makes a reference under
Section 18 but that was dismissed on the ground of delay, he would
not get the right of Section 28-A of the Land Acquisition Act
when some other person makes a reference and the reference is
answered. But Parliament having enacted Section 28-A, as a
beneficial provision, it would cause great injustice if a literal
interpretation is given to the expression "had not made an
application to the Collector under Section 18" in section 28-A of
the Act. The aforesaid expression would mean that if the landowner
has made an application for reference under Section 18 and taat
reference is entertained and answered. In other words, it may

3121
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not be permissible for a land owner to make-a reference and get it
answered and then subsequently make another application when
some other person gets the reference answered and obtains a
higher amount. In fact in Pradeep Kumari's case (AIR 1995 SC
2259 : (1995 AIR SCW 1834) the three learned Judges, while
enumerating the conditions to: be satisfied, whereafter an
application under Section 28-A can be moved, had categorically
stated (SCC p. 743), para 10), "the person moving the application
did not make an application t6 the Collection under Section 18".
The expression "didnot make an application", as observed by this
Court, would mean, did not make ar effective. application which
had been ‘entertained by making the reference and the reference
was answered. When an application under Section 18 is not
entertained on the ground.of liniitation, the same not fructifying
‘nte any reference, then that would not tantamount to the effective
application and consequently the rights of such applicant emanating
from some other reference being answered to move an application
under Section 28-A cannot be denied.~We, accordingly, answer
Question 1 (a) by holding that the dismissal of an application
se¢king reference under Section 18 on the ground of delay would
tantamount to not filing an application within the meaning of Section
28-A of the Land Acquisition act, 1894."

14. In Dayal Singh's case (AIR 2003 SC li4O 2003 AIR SCW
685),, a three Judge Bench of this Court m Wthh both of us were
members, observed as under ;-

"37, It is a well settled principle of law that thé Court cannot read
anything into the statutory provision which is plain and
unambiguous. The Court has to find out legislative intent only from
the danguage employed in the statutes. Surmises.and conjectures
cannot be restricted to for interpretations cannot be restricted to
for interpretation of statutes. (See Union of India v. Filip Tiago

De Gama, (1990) 1 SCC 277 : AIR 1990 SC 981).

38. This Court in Bhavanagar University v. Palitana Sugar
Mill (P) Ltd. (2003)2 SCC 111 : (2002) 9 Scale 102, has observed
(SCCp 121, para 25)

"25. Scope of the legislation on the.intention of the legislature
cannot be enlarged when the language of the provision is plain
and unambiguous. In other words statutory enactments must
ordinarily be construed according to its plain meaning an no words
shall be added, altered or modified unless it is plainly necessary to

il
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do so to prevent a provision from being unintelligible absurd,
unreasonable, unworkable or totally irreconcilable with the rest of
the statute.

15. The said decision has been followed by this Court in /ilachi
Devi's case AIR 2003 SC 3397 : 2003 AIR SCW 4824.

14. Hon'ble the Supreme Court further in Promoters & Builders Association
of Pune v. Pune Municipal Corporastion & others, AIR 2007 SC 1956, has
held, as under, with regard to interpretation of statute :-

"9, The main challenge of the review petitioners is to the addition
of the words "from the very said plot" towards the end of the
. clause (b) in DCR 2.4.11. Learned counsel for the petitioners have
submitted that in the proposal sent by the Pune Mun1c1pal
Corporation after following the procedure prescribed in Sub-
section (1) of Section 37 the afore said words were not there.
However, the State Government while sanctioning the proposal
added the said words which in law it could not do. It has been
submitted that the municipal Corporation had submiited the proposal
after inviting objections and after giving an opportunity of hearing
and the proposal so made by the Municipal Corporation could not
have been modified or dltered by the State Government without
inviting objections or giving an opportunity of hearing with regard
to changes which it proposed to make and which were ultimately
made in the notification issued by it. This point has been considered
and examined in .the judgment and order of this Court dated
5.5.2004. The language of Sub-section (2) of Section 37 uses the
expression "sanction the modification with or without such changes,
"and subject to such conditions as it may deem fit, or refuse to
“accord sanction”. The language of the Section is very clear and it
empowers the State Government to sanction the proposal of the
Municipal Corporation regarding modification of Development
Control Rules "with or without any changes as it may deem fit".
These words are important and cannot be ignored. They have to
be given their natural meaning. In Union of India v. Hansoli
Devi (2002) 7 SCC 273 it has been held that it is a cardinal principle
of construction of a statute that when the language of the statute
is plain and unambiguous, then the Court must give effect to the
words used in the statute and it would not be open to the court to
adopt a hypothetical construction on the ground that such
construction is more consistent with the alleged object and the
policy of the Act. In Nathi Devi v. Radha Devi Gupta (2005) 2
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SCC 271 it was emphasized that it is well settled that in interpreting

a statute, effort should be made to give effect to each and every
word used by the legislature. The courts always presume that the
legislature inserted every part of a statute for a purpose and the
legislative intention is that every part of the statute should have
effect. In Dr. Ganga Prasad Verma v. State of Bihar (1995)
Supp. (1) SCC 192 it has been held that where the language of the
Act is clear and explicit, the Court must give effect to it, whatever
may be the consequences, for in that case the words of the statute
speak the intention of the legislature. Therefore, the view taken
by this Court in the judgment and order dated 5.5.2004 that the
State Government had full authority to make any changes or add .
any condition in the proposal of the Municipal Corporation is
perfectly correct. In fact, on the plain language of the statute no
other view can:possibly be taken."

15. From the above stated principle of law laid down by Hon'ble the Supreme
Court, it is clear that it is not permissible to brush aside words in a statute and the
scope of the statute, when the language of the provision is plain and unambiguous
could not be enlarged. Regulation 36 (b) means that an authority under the
regulation could be delegated the power to enquire into the truth by the competent
authority as Inquiry Officer. It means that a competent authority, who is competent
to impose major penalty can enquire in to the truth of imputation of misconduct by
himaself or it could appoint or delegate his power to a.nother authonty appouted
under the regulations of 1975.

16. In the present case, the Managing Director has appomted Respondent No.

.. 2 as the Inquiry Officer. Respondent No.2 admittedly is.not an employee of the

Corporation. He was working at the relevant timé as Deputy Secretary in the
Department of Transport on deputation. Admitted]y his substantive post at the
relevant time was Professor in the Higher Education Department. Consequently,
the enquiry conducted by respondent No.2 is against the provisions of Regulations
of 1975 and beyond his power, hetice the proceedings are null and void.

17.  When the enquiry proceedings have been declared as null and void, in such _
circumstances, it is not necessary to decide the merits of the case. Consequently,
the petitions of the petitioner ate allowed. The order dated 15.12.2008, Annexure
P-1, appointing respondent No.2 as Inquiry Officer (filed in W.P. No.314/09(s)) is
hereby quashed and subsequent proceedings conducted by him and also the order,
dated 08.04.2009, Annexure P-1 {filed in W.P. No. 1829/09(s)) is also quashed.
Because this Court granted stay in favour of the petitioner in spite of that petitioner
has been dismissed from service, hence petitioner is entitled to get arrears of
salary. After going through the facts of the case, in my opinion, the respondents
have deliberately passed the order of dismissal in spite of stay order granted by
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this Court.. It is hereby clarified that the respondents are free to take disciplinary
action against the petitioner on the basis of charge sheet issued by the Managing
Director in accordance with Regulations of 1975. No order as to cost.

Perition allowed.
LL.R. [2009] M. P., 3125
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Shantanu Kemkar
28 August, 2009F -

JEEVANRAM ... Petitioner
Vs. ' i
STATE OF M.P. & ors. o ... Respondents”

Service Law - Disciplinary proceedings - Joint enquiry - Quantum of
punishment - Three officials tried in a joint enquiry - All three awarded
punishment - In appeal, the penalty of two officials reduced substantially
but the appeal filed by the petitioner dismissed and punishment of demotion
was maintained - Held - Petitioner has been singled out in regard fo imposition
of penalty by awarding a severe penalty as against the other two similarly
placed employees - Respondents directed to reconsider the matter keeping
view that in a joint enquiry other two employees have been awarded lesser
punishment. § (Para 10)

a1 Ay — sFomelE TRIEfEEl — Wy wfg — &vs @ AE — 99
aﬁmﬁ?ﬁmﬁgﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁmﬂm—fﬁﬁﬁmaﬁﬂﬁvﬁﬁ—mﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁ
2 TR ARG B9 @ T freg arh gR1 e afi @ner s garEfy BT 24U
TR Y@ T — SRR — TR Wi sftififa wve wik @ AR S
¥ wrET T T 2 o HEREl 3 e Al By g T § — weefat w1 R
ﬁmwﬁﬁaﬁqmmﬁ@mﬁwgﬂﬁﬁﬂaﬁ%ﬁgﬁvﬁaﬁmaﬁ
FHaRal B ~Aan gvs faar Tar B
Cases referred : :

1989 MPLJ 803, (2001) 10 SCC 530, 2007(2) JLJ 425, (2007) 8 SCC 331.

A.S. Agrawal, for the petitigner.

S.S. Garg, G.A., for the respondents.

ORDER

SuanTANU KEMKAR, J. :—Petitioner was working on the post of.Head
Constable in the Home (Police) Department of the State Government. On
16.11.2005 a charge sheet (Annexure-A) was issued to him as well as one
B.L.Akole Inspector and Mohan Jat Constable of the same department alleging
therein their inability to control the gambling /illegal betting activities while

*W P. No.7001/2007(S) (Indore)
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discharging their duties at Dhamnod. As per the said charge-sheet their acts were
amounting to dereliction of duty, negligence and doubtful conduct on their part.
The said charges were enquired into by holding a joint disciplinary enquiry against
all the three employees as aforesaid and in the said enquiry the Enquiry Officer
found the pctitioner as well as other two employees to be guilty of the alleged
misconduct. -

2. Thediséiplinary authority third respondent after consideration of the enquiry
report vide order dated 27.05.2006 (Annexure-0) imposed upon the petitioner
penalty of demotion from the post of Head Constable to the post of Constable for
a period of 5-years. Through the same order the’ disciplinary authority imposed
penalty of démotion for a period of 5 years on Inspector B.L.Akole demoting him
from the post of Inspector to the post of Sub- -Inspector and imposed penalty of
dismissal from service on Mohan Jat Constable.

3. The said order of penalty was assailed by the petitioner in departmental
appeal before the second respondent Director General of Police. The other two
employees namely B.L.Akole and Mohan Jat also challenged the order of penalty
imposed upon them by filing separate appeals. All the three appeals were
considered by the then Director General of Police. According to the petitioner a
decision was taken by which penalty of all the three employees were reduced and
they were inflicted with penalty of withholding of two increments with cumulative
effect. However, instead of implementing the said decision as would be clear
from Annexure-S a Note-sheet, after joining the said post of Director General of
Police the newly posted Director General of Police he ordered to maintain the

penalty which was imposed upon the petitioner by the disciplinary authority and:

also in respect to B.L.Akole, Inspector, however he reduced the penalty of dismissal
from service which was awarded to Mohan Jat Constable to w1thhold1ng of one
increment without cumulative effect with a further direction that he will not be
posted for five years on any police station.

4. Thus, according to the petitioner the action of the respondents in not
implementing the decision of the then Director General of Police {Swaraj Puri)
and the action of passing another order by the newly joined Director General of
Police (Anand Rao Pawar) is contrary to law laid down by this Court in the case
of Mohd. Rafiq Akhtarbhai Vs. State Transport Authority, Gwalior (1989 MPLJ
803). According to the petitioner, the respondents were required to do only the
ministerial act of issuance of the order in pursnance to the decision Annexure-S
taken by the then Director General of Police and it was not within the jurisdiction
of the successor of the post Shri Anand Rao Pawar to have passed a fresh order.

5. It is also the case of the petitioner that the said decision of Shri Anand Rao
Pawar Director General of Police was given effect to by dismissing his appeal
vide order dated 19.10.2006 (Annexure — Q) whereas the appeal filed by

(1.3
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B.L.Akole was partly allowed by the State Government vide order dated 01.09.2007
(Annexure-T) and the punishment imposed upon him was reduced to withholding
of one increment for one year without cumulative effect. The appeal filed by
Mohan Jat Constable was partly allowed by the Director General of Police and he
was inflicted with penalty of withholding of one increment for one year without
cumulative effect vide order dated 19.10.2006 (Annexure-R) in place of penalty
of dismissal from service.

6.  Thus, according to the petitioner for the identical allegations and charges
found to be proved in connection with the same incident the petitioner has been
singled out and has been punished severely as compared to B.L.Akole and Mohan
Jat in whose cases a lenient view has been adopted. He alleged that the punishment
imposed upon him is discriminatory. In support he placed reliance on the judgment
of the Supreme Court in the case of Tata Engineering & Locomotive Co. Ltd.,
Vs. Jitendra PD. Singh and another (2001) 10 SCC 530, Triveni Sharan Mishra
Vs. Life Insurance Corporation of India and others 2007 (2) JLJ 425 and
Vishwanath Vs. Union of India & Ors. 2007 (8) Supreme 331.

7.  The respondents have filed reply and have tried to justify their action of
imposition of penalty on. the petitioner. According to the respondents order
Annexure-S is merely a Note-sheet and as such after joining the post of Director
General of Police by Shri Anand Rao Pawar he has rightly taken the decision on
the appeals of the petitioner and Mohan Jat. It is also stated that appeal of
B.L.Akole has rightly been decided by the State Government being the Appellate
authority.

8.  Heard learned counsel for the parties and_perused the documents filed along
with the petition and the return.

9. On going through the charge-sheet and the order of disciplinary authority it
is revealed that for the identical charges the petitioner, B.L.Akole Inspector and
Mohan Jat Constable were held guilty by the Enquiry Officer and they were
punished.. In the appeals filed by B.L.Akole and Mohan Jat the punishment was
substantially reduced by the appellate authority whereas the petitioner's appeal
has been dismissed and the punishment of demotion was maintained.

10. Having regard to the law laid down in the case of Tata Engineering &
Locomotive Co. Lid., Vs. Jitendra PD. Singh and another (supra), Triveni
Sharan Mishra Vs. Life Insurance Corporation of India and others (supra)
and Vishwanath Vs. Union of India & Ors. (supra), I am of the view that the
petitioner's grievance that he has been singled out in regard to impesition of penalty
by awarding a severe penalty as against the other two similarly placed employees
requires to be considered by the first respondent Secretary Department of Home
Government of M.P.

11. Accordingly, the petition is disposed of directing the first respondent to
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consider and take appropriate decision within three months from the date of receipt
of copy of this order as to quantum of punishment that can be imposed upon the
petitioner. While considering the matter in regard to imposition of penalty on the
petitioner, the first respondent shall keep into consideration the law laid down in
the cases referred to above and the fact that the other two employees against
whom a joint enquiry was conducted with the petitioner have been awarded lesser
punishment as compared to the petitioner.

12.  In case the petitioner feels dissatisfied with the decision as may be taken
by the first respondent he shall be at liberty to challenge such decision and shall
also be at liberty to raise the grounds which he has raised in this petition more
particularly pertaining to challenge to the action of not implementing the decision
taken vide Annexure-S by the then Director General of Police (Swaraj Puri) and
pertaining to the authority and jurisdiction to pass another order by the successor
Director General of Police.

13.  With the aforesaid liberty and directions, the petition stands disposed of.
Petition disposed of.

I.L.R. [2009] M. P., 3128
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K.K. Lahoti & Mr. Justice K.S. Chauhan,

31 August, 2009* .
KAMAL VASINI AGARWAL (SMT.) - ... Petitioner
Vs.
M/s HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION LTD. ... Respondent

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 47 Rule 4 - Whether a
First Appeal u/s 96 CPC'would be maintainable or a Miscellaneous Appeal
under Oder 43 Rule 1, against an order allowing an application under Order
47 Rule 4 - Held - If an order under Rule 4 of Order 47 CPC granting an
application of review is pdssed then Miscellaneous Appeal would lie and not
a First Appeal. ' ~ (Para 5)

%, fufea nfwar dfear (1908 &1 5), IR 47 P 4 — T AR
47 TR0 4 B It fel) amiie @Y SR B9 @ ARY & e, Rind @ Oy 96 @
i verd andter dievfia gR AT aneer 43 W 1 @ a3y andrer — siffReifRa —
A% gl BT aTae srEa Bed 5¢ RANE. @ gy 47 M 4 @ e amewr
TR frar wrar § we fafe erfle &t Sf 7 f wers arfie |

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 47 Rule 1 - Review -
Powers of trial Court - Can a Court modify its earlier judgment when such
question was not considered in earlier judgment - Held - No - Such recourse

*W.P. No.14607/2007 (Jabalpur)
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was not available to the trial Court - Modifying the decree by allowing mense
profit was beyond the scope of Order 47 Rule ! of CPC, when such question
was not at all considered in the earlier judgment. (Para 10)

e fufa ufsar wfear (1908 @1 5), €W 47 R 1 — gEiddeT —
faRYr SmETag $ afeddl — 997 BE AEed I ghaal e SaiaRa e
Foal € We T 7 W gdadt fAofy § fer ad e - afafeiRe - 1 -
=T =T B U fades Suder 8 § — Iraad] @ Ao pRd g few Suiaia
T RN, B mae 47 1 & fRaR ¥ W ern, wy Va1 wew ydadt fofa § faia
a1 T T |

C.  Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 43 Rule 1(w) - Appeal -
Powers of appellate Court - Held - While considering the appeal under Order
43 Rule 1(w), the appellate Court was required to examine merits of the case -
The appelliate Court has not considered the earlier judgment on merits but
confined its order limited to the extent of granting relief of mesne profit by
allowing review application by the trial Court. (Para 12)

T, fufed afsar wd@fear (1908 @1 5), ARY 43 A9 1(Sseq) —
e — Idiela I ¥ ufet — afifuiRa — e 43 fram 1(s<) @
i ol R AR F3d W99 felia R $1 AP & TUErs! &) gET $eAr -
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A.K. Jain, for the petitioner.

Aroop Nair, for the respondent.

ORDER

This petition is directed against order dated 17.09.2007 passed by IXth
Additional District Judge, Jabalpur in M.C.A. No.5/07 by which a miscellaneous
appeal preferred by respondent herein was allowed and the order daled 20.12.2004
in M.J.C. No.41/04 passed by I'Vth Civil Judge, Class-II Jabalpur was set aside.

2. The petitioner assailed the aforesaid order on following grounds:-

(a) That against order dated 20.12.2004 in M.J.C. No.41/04 no

_miscellaneous appeal was maintainable,as the trial Court by
allowing an application under order 47 Rule 1 of C.P.C. directed
amendment in the decree passed in Civil Suit No. 271A/02 so the
respondent ought to have preferred a First Appeal under Section
96 of the Code of Civil Procedure but no miscellaneons appeal
under Order 43 Rule 1 of C.P.C. was maintainable.

(b) That the appellate Court erred in considering meriis of the case
while deciding miscellaneous appeal against the impugned order.
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3. Shri Anoop Nair, counsel for the respondent supported the impugned order
and submitted that under order 43 Rule 1 (w) of the Code of Civil Procedure,
such a miscellaneous appeal was maintainable as it was filed against an order
allowing an application under order 47 Rule 4 of C.P.C. The appeliate Court was
required to consider the merits of the case to appreciate the question raised in the
appeal. It was obligatory on the part of the appellate Court to consider the merits
of the case.

4. To appreciate rival contentions of the parties, it would be appropriate, if
factual position in the case is stated.

(a) The petitioner filed a suit against respondent for mandatory
injunction, registered as Civil Suit No.271A/02. In the said suit
petitioner herein., was proceeded ex-parte as his right to file written
statement was closed by the trial Court by order dated 26.07.03.
Thereafter the plaintiff adduced ex-parte evidence and the “trial
Court by judgment and decree passed on 28.07.2004 granted a
decree in favour of the petitioner herein directing respondent to
reconstruct damaged wall to its earlier condition within a period
of 7 days. The petitioner herein, in the plaint also sought a relief
that in case such mandatory injunction is not obeyed then the
respondent be directed to make payment of compensation till
reconstruction of the wall.

(b) As this relief was not granted by the trial Court in judgment
and decree dated 28.07.2004, petitioner hercin moved an application
under Order 47 Rule 1 of C.P.C. before the trial Court seeking
relief, by amendment in the decree in respect of mesne profit, as
prayed by the plaintiff. This review application was registered as
M.J.C. No. 41/04, The trial Court after issuing notice in M.J.C.
No.41/04 allowed the review application and incorporated reliefs
No. (3) in the decree as under :-

“The plaintiff shall be entitled mesne profit at the rate of
Rs.500 per day from the date of decree till reconstruction is not
done by the defendant.”

(c) Against the aforesaid order, respondent herein preferred a writ
petition before this court but it was dismissed as not matntainable.
Thereafter the respondent preferred a revision petition before this
court but again it was dismissed as not maintainable. Thereafter
again a writ petition was preferred by the respondent which was
disposed of finally with a liberty to the respondent to file an appeal
against the order dated 20 December, 2004 (Annexure P-4).

(a) The respondent then filed a miscellaneous appeal before the

iy
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appellate Court invoking powers under Order 43 Rule T (w) of the
Code of Civil Procedure which has been decided by the impugned
order.

5. Now in the light of the aforesaid facts, first contention of the petitioner may
be dealt with that respondent ought to have filed a first appeal under Section 96 of
the Code of Civil Procedure and a miscellaneous appeal under Order 43 Rule 1 of
C.P.C. was not maintainable. The civil revision No.294/05 was dismissed with the
observations that against the impugned order dated 20.12.04 in M.J.C. No.41/04
a miscellaneous appeal under order 43 Rule 1 (w) was maintainable. The
respondent though filed a miscellaneous appeal before this ‘Court but it was
withdrawn with liberty to file miscellaneous appeal before the appellate Court.

Order 47 Rule 1 reads thus:-
"1. Any person considering himself aggrieved.

(a) by a decree or order from which an appeal is allowed, but
from which no.appeal has been preferred,

(b) by a decree or order from which no appeal is allowed, or

(c) by a decision on a reference from a Court of Small Causes,
and who, from the discovery of new and important matter or
evidence which, after the excrcise of due diligence was not within
his knowledge or could not be produced by him at the time when
the decree was passed or order made, or on account of some
mistake or error apparent on the face of the record, or for any
other sufficient reason, desires to obtain a review of the decree
passed or order made against him, may apply for a review of
judgment to the Court which passed the decree or made the order.”

Order 47 Rule 4 reads thus:--

“Application where rejected.(1) Where it appears to the Court

that there is not sufficient ground for a review, it shall reject the

"application. o

(2) Application where granted.- Where the Court is of opinion

that the application for review should be granted, it shall grant the

same:

P_rbifided That-

(a) no such application shall be granted without previous notice to
. . the opposite party, to enable kim to appear and be heard in support

of the decree or order, a review of which is applied for; and

(b) no such application shall be granted on the grround of discoyery
of new matter or evidence which the applicant alleges was not
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within his knowledge, or could not be adduced by him when the .
decree or order was passed or made, without strict proof of such
allegation.”

Order 43 Rule 1{w) reads thus:-

"an order under rule 4 of Order XLVII granting an application for
review.”

The aforesaid provisions specifically provides a miscellaneous appeal if an
order under Rule 4 of Order 47 granting an application for review is passed. In
this case, the respondent had not challenged the judgment and decreé passed by
the trial Court dated 28.07.2004. The respondent was aggrieved only by the order
by which an application under Order 47 Rule 1 of C.P.C. was allowed by the trial
Court directing payment of mesne profit in favour of the petitioner; Merely the
aforesaid reliefs was inserted in the decree, will not be a -ground to'challenge
entire judgment and decree passed by the trial Court while the respondent was
aggrieved only by an order passed by the trial Court on an application under Order
47 Rule 4 of C.P.C.

6.  From the perusal of earlier judgment and decree Annexure P-2, we find
that there was no whisper of any consideration by the trial court in respect of
entitlement of petitioner for mesne profit. Trial Court considered the statements
of PW-3 Radheshyam Agrawal and PW-2 Satish Kaltare who produced the
evidence on merits but had not stated anything in respect of mesne profit.

7. The provisions of Order 47 Rule 1 would have been invoked by the parties
within the forecorners as finds place under Order 47 Rule 1 of C.P.C. Order 47
Rule 1 provides review of judgment from the discovery of new and important
matter or evidence which, -after exercised of due diligence was not within his
knowledge or could not-be produced by him at the time when the decree was
passed or order made, or on account of some mistake or an error apparent on the
face of record, of for any other sufficient reasons. In this case, only the prayer of
petitioner was to allow such relief though was prayed but was not allowed by the
trial Court.

8. The aforesaid matter was agitated by the petitioner under the clause of
“mistake or error apparent on the face of record” as on other grounds such
application was not filed.

9. From the perusal of the entire judgment in C.S. No.271A/02 we find that
there was no consideration by the trial Court in respect of entitlement of the
petitioner in respect of mesne profit. It appears that either no evidence was
produced or this ground was not agitated or considered by the trial Court. In these
circumstances, it appears, that in absence of evidence or deliberately the trial Court
had not granted a decrec for mesne profit in favour of the petitioner. Then it was
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not a case of error apparent on the face of record. Petitioner if was aggrieved by
non granting of such mesne profit then he ought to have challenged the judgment
and decree by filing an appeal under Section 96 of the Code of Civil Procedure
but recourse of review of order was not available. However, such an application
was filed and the trial Court vide order dated 20th December 2004 Annexure P-4
allowed review application and granted the relief of mesne profit to the petitioner.

10. In the opinion of this Coutt, such recourse was not available to the trial
Court. Modifing the decree by allowing mense profit was beyond the scope of
Order 47 Rule } of C.P.C., when such question was not at all considered in the
earlier judgment,

11.  In view of the aforesaid, if the appellate court con51dered ﬂ]lS aspect in the
impugned order invoking powers under Order 43 Rule 1 Clause (w)no fault is found. The
-appeal was maintainable, rightly entertained and decided by the appellate court.

12.  So far as, second contention of the petitjone"r is concerned that the appellate

court while considering the appeal wrongly considered the merits of the case is ..

concerned, the appellate court was required to consider this aspect. If such question
was raised in appeal then the appellate court was required to consider the merits
of the case and if considered the merits of the case to the extent of grant of relief
of mesne profit, no fault is found.in the impugned order. While considering the
appeal under Order 43 Rule 1 (w) the appellate Court was required to examine -
merits of the case. The appellate court has not considered the earlier judgment on
merits but confined its order limited to the extent of granting relief of mesne
profit by allowing review application by the trial Court.

‘13.  In view of the aforesaid, second contention of the petitioner is also without
any merit. This writ petition is dismissed with no order as to costs.
- .C.C. as per rules.
' - Petition dismissed.

" LL.R. [2009] M. P., 3133
. WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav

2 September, 2009*
ASHWINI KUMAR MISHRA ... Petitioner *
Vs. '
UNION OF INDIA & anr. - ... Respondents

Service Law - Standing Order No.79 (Revised w.e.f. 04.10.2007),
Clause 2(b) - Modification in cut off date of age for recruitment - Petitioner
contended that modification in Clause 2(b) of Order 79 w.e.f. 04.10.2007

*W.B. No.14670/2007(S) (Jabalpur) ~
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i.e. much after the advertisement dated 15-21.09.2007 and was thus not
applicable retrospectively for a recruitment process of Sub-Inspectors in RPF/
RPSF already initiated - Held - Modification was in pursuance to decision
dated 31.07.2007 which was taken before the issuance of advertisement -
There being no accrual of right in favour of the pefitioner - The contention
that change of cut off date for the purpose of age has prejudicially effected
the chance of the petitioner to participate in the selection is of no consequence
because the entitlement of a person is only for consideration and the same' is
on the basis of the rules in vogue - Petition dismissed. (Paras 16 & 17)
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Cases referred :

1993 Supp (2) SCC 600, (1998) 4 SCC 202, (1999) 5 SCC 624 (2‘008) 3
SCCs41.

Anoop Nair, for the petitioner.

N.S. Ruprah, for the respondents.

. ORDER

Sanyay Yavav, J. :—Aggrieved of Clause 3(b) of the advertisement published
in Employment News dated 15-21.9.2007 under Notification No.2/2007, Railway
Protection Force, Ministry of Railway, rendering the petitioner over age to
participate in the selection procedure of Sub-Inspector of Railway Protection Force,
" the petitioner has approached this Court vide this writ petition under Article 226
of the Constitution of India seeking directions to the respondents to:

(i)  Correct the irregularity shown in the advertisement;

(i)  Accept the “application of the petitioner allowing him to
participate in selection procedure.

2. The facts briefly are that the petitioner is a Constable in the Railway
Protection Force appointed on 16.11.2001. The date of birth of the petitioner is
25.7.1977. That, an advertisement for recruitment of Sub-Inspector was published

in Rojgar Samachar dated 15-21.9.2007, whereunder Clause 3 (b) stipulated that,

the candidate as on 1.1.2008 should not be less than 20 years and not more than

*
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25 years. Since the petitioner is born on 25.7,1977, he was over age because

r

. even with the relaxation of 5 years stipulated under Clause 3 (iii) of the

advertisement he was not ehg1ble and therefore the petitioner could not partlclpate
in the selection. -

3. The contention of the petitioner is that. 'the procedure regarding recruitment
of Sub-Inspectors in RPF/RPS are governed by Standing Order 79 (Revised)
dated 27.7.2007 (Annexure P/2); wherein, under Clause 2 (b) the eligibility regarding

. age stipulates that the candidate should not be less than 20 years and not more . -,

than 25 years as on 1st January of the year in case the.vacancies are advertised

-+ in the first half of the year or as on lst ]uly of the ‘year if the vacancies are
- advertised in the.second half of the year.”

4, It is urged that since the vacancies were advertlsed in the second half of
the year and the petltmner had put in more than 3 years regular service, he was
eligible to participate in the recruitment. process because ‘he was less than 30
years as on 1,7.2007, but for the action of respondents in supulatmg the cut off
date as 1.1.2008 for the vacancies advertised in second half of 2007.

5. Itis further contended that modification in Clause 2 (b) of Order 79 (Revised)
dated 27.7.2007 was effected vide Railway Board letter No. 88-Sec (E)RC-3/6
(IRST) dated 4:10.2007 i.e. inich after the advertisement dated 15-20.9.2007, and
was thus not apphcable retrospectively for a recruitment process already initiated.
It is urged that, since the modification in procedure regarding recruitment of Sub-
Inspectors in RPF/RPSF vide 4.10.2007 was prospective, the same ought not to
have been made applicable for recruitment undertaken in Septe’mber 2007. The

- relief is accordmgly sought for, to allow him to participate in the selectton and to

grant such-relief as deemed fit and proper.

6. The respondents on their turn deny any relief to be granted to the petitioner.
It is contended inter-alia that, the decision regardmg reckoning of age as 1.1.2008
was-taken much prior to issuance of advertisement that is on 31.8.2007. In
pursuance whereof, the Chairman, Central Recruitment Committee, issued

. instructions on 12.9.2007 to respective Chairman, Zonal Recruitment Committee,

wherein the advertisement was issued on 15-20.9.2007. It is accordingly urged
that there is no anomaly in the advertisement as would warrant any interference.

7. The question which crops up for consideration is whethef the l'espondents
are justified in stipulating the modified eut off date rega.rdmg the age for determmmg
the eligibility of a candidate.

8. Clause 2 (b) of Standing Order No.79 (Rewsed) dated 27 7.2007 stipulated
the eligibility regarding age in the following terms:

“Age: Not less than 20 and not more than 25 years as on 1st
January of the year in case the vacancies are advertised in the
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first half of the year or as on 1st July of the year if the vacancies
are advertised in the second half of the year. Relaxation in Pppef
age limit will be admissible to SC, ST, OBC, Ex-servicemen.and
Central Government Employees as per extant instructions of the
Central Government.” '

9.  The aforesaid Clause was modified vide Railway Board circular No.88-
Sec (E)/RC-3/6 (IRSI) dated 4.10.2007 in the following terms: .

“Age:Not less than 20 years and not more than 25 years as
on Ist July of the year for those posts for which notifications are
issued between January.to June and 1st January of next year for.
those posts for which notifications are issued between July and
December.” -

10. This modification was after the approval of DG/RPF and has a reference
to letter dated 31.8.2007. This letter i.e. No.88-Sec(E)/RC-3/6 (IRSI]) dated
31.8.2007 which is brought on record as Annexure P4 proposing various
modifications to Standing Order 79 and the modification proposed by replacing
existing paragraph regarding relaxation in upper age limit.

11.  Thus the decision for modification to Standing Order 79 was already taken
before it was incorporated in Standing Order 79.

12. In Jai Singh Dalal and Others Vs. State of Haryana and another 1993
Supp (2) SCC 600, it has been observed in para 7 of the Judgment:

“Thus, the HPSC was still in the process of selecting candidates
and had yet not completed and finalised the select list nor had it
forwarded the same to the State government for implementation.
The candidates, therefore, did not have any right to appointment.
There was, therefore, no question of the High court granting a
mandamus or any other writ of the type sought by the appellants.
The law.in this behalf appears to be well settled. In the State of
Haryana v. Subash Chander Marwaha this court held that the
mere fact that certain candidates were selected for appointment
to vacancies puréuan; to an advertisement did not confer any right |
to be appointed to the post’in question to entitle the selectees to a
writ of mandamus or any other writ compelling the authority to
make the appointment.”

13. In Rajasthan Public Service Commission Vs. Chanan Ram and another
(1998) 4 SCC 202.

“17. In the case of State of M. P. v. Raghuveer Singh Yadav
(1994) 6 SCC 151 a Bench of two leamed Judges of this Court
consisting of K. Ramaswamy and N. Venkatachala, JJ., had to

)
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consider the question whether the State could change a qualification
for the recruitment during the process of recruitment which had
not resulted into any final decision in favour of any candidate. In
paragraph 5 of the Report in this connection it was observed that
it is settled law that the State has got power to prescribe
qualification for recruitment. In the case before the Court pursuant
to the amended Rules, the Government had withdfawn the earlier
notification and wanted to proceed with the recruitment afresh. It
was held that this was not the case of any accrued right. The
candidates who had appeared for the examination and passed the
written examination had only legitimate expectation to be
considered according to the rules then in vogue. The amended .
rules had only prospective operation. The Government was entitled
to conduct selection in accordance with the changed rules and
make final recruitment. Obviously no candidate acquired any vested
right against the State., Therefore, the State was entitled- to
withdraw the notification by which it had previously notified
recruitment and to issue fresh notification in that regard on the
basis of the amended Rules. In the case of J & K Public Service
Commission v. Dr. Narinder Mohan (1994) 2 SCC 630 : (1994
AIR SCW 1701) another Division Bench of two learned Judges
of this Court consisting of K. Ramaswamy and N.P. Singh, JJ.
considered the question of interception of recruitment process
earlier undertaken by the recruiting agency in this connection it
was observed that the process of selection against existing and
anticipated vacancies does not create any right to be appointed to
the post which can be enforced by a mandamus.”

14, 1In S.Prakash and another Vs. K M. Kurian and others (1999) 5 SCC
624, it was held in para 20 :

“20. From the aforesaid G.O,, it is clear that during the selection
process, Government had accepted the advice of the Public Service
Commission that the changes in the qualifications, method of
appointment, age or other conditions of recruitment introduced after
the issue of notification for selection to the post by the Public
Service Commission will be given effect to in future selections
only with an exception as mentioned therein. As stated earlier, in
the present case selection process was not over till the list of
selected candidates was published by the Public Service
Commission on 13th May, 1995 and the impugned Note (3) does
not change qualifications, method of appointment, age or other
conditions of recruitment. It only fills up the lacuna or clarifies the
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ambiguity prevailing for computation of ratio or percentage for
appointment by direct recruitment and by transfer. Because of
the aforesaid factual position, in our view, it is not necessary to
discuss judgments cited by the learned counsel for the respondents.
However, we would refer to one decision rendered by this Court
in Rajasthan Public Service Commission v. Chanan Ram (1998)
4 SCC 202 wherein after considering the decision in the P.
Ganeshwar Rao v. State of Andhra Pradesh (1998) Supp SCC
740, this Court held that "if the recruitment rules underwent
amendment prior to actual filling up of the advertised posts, the
amended rules would apply.” The Court also referred to a three-
Judge Bench judgment of this Court in Jai Singh Dalal v. State
of Haryana, 1993 Supp (2) SCC 600 wherein it has been held
that when the special process of recruitment had not been finalised
and culminated into select list, the candidate did not have any right
to appointment and that recruitment process could be stopped by
the Government at any time before a candidate has been appointed
and as ‘the candidate has no vested right to get the process
completed except that the Government could be required to justify
its action on the touchstone of Art. 14.”

15. In A.Manoharan and Others Vs. Union of India and Others (2008) 3
SCC 641 para 22:-

“22. The legal principle that an administrative act must yield to a
statue is no longer res integra. Once a regulation has been framed,
in terms of the provisions of the General Clauses Act, the same
must be amended in accordance with the procedures laid down
under the principal enactment. ‘Even assuming that the Central
Government had the jurisdiction:to direct the authority to amend
the Regulations, it was required fo be carried out in accordance
with law, and, thus all requisite-procedures laid down therefore
were required to be fulfilled. (See Sant Ram Sharma v. State of
Rajasthan AIR 1967 SC 1910, DDA v. Joginder S.Monga (2004)
2 SCC 297, Vasu Dev Singh v. Union of India (2006) 12 SCC
753, Kerala Samsthana Chethu Thozhilali Union v. State of
Kerala (2006) 4 SCC 327 and State of Kerala v.Unni (2007) 2
SCC 365)”

16. In the case at hand, as noted supra, the Standing Order No.79 (Revised)
dated 27.7.2007 was modified vide Railway Circular No.88-Sec (E)/RC-3/6 (IRSI)
dated 4.10.2007 whereby the eligibility regarding age was modified to the extent
that “the candidate should not be less than 20 years and not more than 25 years as
on 1st July of the year for those posts for which notifications are issued between
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January to June and 1st of January of next year for those posts for which
notifications are issued between July and December”. The said modification was
in pursuance to decision dated 31.7.2007 which was taken before the issuance of
advertisement dated 15-21.9.2007 in respect of selection, which was to be held
after 5.11.2007 and the petitioner was admittedly over age as per stipulations
contained in the advertisement. " .

17.  There being no accrual of the right in favour of the petitioner, the contention

_ that, the change of cut-off date for the purpose of age has prejudicially effected

the chance of the petitioner to participate in the selection for the post of Sub-
Inspector in the Railway Protection Force, is of no consequence; because the
entitlement of a person is only for consideration and the same is on the basis of
the rules‘in vogie. i

18. Since, the respondents have declared the cut-off date. in the advertisement
dated 15-21.9.2007 and the same being on the basis of the deliberations by the
respondents, which subsequently were incorporated in the Standing Order 79
(Revised), this Court finds no substance in the challenge put forth by the petitioner.

19. In view of the above, the petition fails and is hereby dismissed.
Petition dismissed.
- LL.R. [2009] M. P, 3139
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice PK, Jaiswal
5 October, 2009*

PRAKASH CHANDRA PRASAD ... Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ... Respondents

A. Service Law - Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal)
Rules, M.P. 1966, Rule 10 - Warning - Whether is a punishment - Held - No
-- Warning is not a penalty in Rule 10 and as such does not require the
detailed enquiry procedure as contemplated under Rule 14 - It will not come
on the way of the petitioner for his further promotion. (Para 11)

F. Jar [t — fufye @ (@fwon faaer o adiw) s,
AW 1966, AW 10 — AT — @M P Tve ¥ — afafrwaiRa - & -~
10 ¥ TR TIRG T 2 &R 39 T A AR/ 14 B aaeia nifeE e wim Afssan
B IIIET T8 & — I Al A o YRy B oy S I A T8 A |

B. Service Law - Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal)

-Rules, M.P. 1966, Rule 10 - Warning - ASJ has made certain observations

against the SDM (petitioner) in his order - On this basis show cause notice

*W.P. No.11335/2003 (Jabalpur)
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issued and thereafter a warning was issued to petitioner - Held - An opportunity
was given fo the petitioner and there has been adequate compliance with the
principle of natural justice - Competent Authority considered the facts and
circumstances of the case and thereafter passed the order of warning which
does not constitute punishment - Petition dismissed. (Paras 11 & 12)

. war fafr - fafaw Qa1 (@ffeve, fagzer v afia) fras,
A7 1966, fr 10 — JarEh — AfiRaw v <graRf ¥ oW Ry F o,
(@) & faeg BT Reor fFY — §9 AR W BRoT TR FEan o B T
IR TS 91 ArER BT A W B e — AR — A St v s Ry T
a1 R el =ma & figia @7 wafa e fFar T — we| wiRer ¥ 1
aeal AR IRl w R far sk aerwar S @ s wika fear i gos
BT TG T8 BAT & — AT Wk |

V.S. Shroti with Vikram Johari, for the petitioner.
Rahul Jain, Dy.A.G., for the respondents.

ORDER

P.K. Jaiswar, J. :~The petitioner has filed an application under Section 19
of the Administrative Tribunals Act, 1985 before the State Administrative Tribunal,
Jabalpur challenging the order dated 28.9.1996 (Annexure A/8), passed by the
respondent No.I-State by which a warning has been issued to the petitioner to the
effect that in future he will function in accordance with law and that he should
enhance his knowledge about law. During the pendency of this petition the State
Administrative Tribunal has been abolished and therefore the matter has been
transferred to this Court.

2, Brief facts of the case are that in the year 1994 the petitioner was posted
as Sub Divisional Magistrate, Sagar. During his tenure as Sub Divisional Magistrate
one Amarsingh and Sahabsingh, initiated proceedings under Section 145 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure against Ram Singh and Gulab Singh on the ground
that there were serious disputes between the parties in respect of possession of
land of Survey Nos.525, 517, 180, having total arca 14.65 acres, situated at village
Majhgawan of District Sagar and the said dispute would cause breach of peace
between the parties and, therefore, prayed for passing a prohibitory order against
party No.1. The Sub Divisional Magistrate called the report from the police station
Bahariya of District Sagar and thercafter registered a case vide Case No.99 of
1995. In the application under Section 145 of Cr.P.C. notices were issued to the
other party. During the pendency of the proceedings, on 20.2.1995, an application
under Section 146 (1) of Cr.P.C was filed. The Sub Divisional Magistrate fixed
the case for hearing on 22.2.1995 and without issuing any show cause notice to
the other party (Party No.1) heard the party No.2 and passed the prohibitory
order dated 10.3.1995. The party No.l aggrieved by the said order and filed a
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criminal revision before the learned III Additional Sessions Judge, Sagar vide
Criminal Revision No.36/95. In the said revision, they pointed out that in respect
of the same land a civil suit (C.S. No.6-A/94) was pending in which an application
for temporary injunction filed by party No.2 was rejected on 27.4.1994. It is also
pointed out by party No.l that the learned Sub Divisional Magistrate without issuing
any show cause notice to the party No.1 and without giving an opportunity of
hearing passed a prohibitory order on 10.3. 1995, The lgarned Additional Sessions
Judge after hearing the parties passed the ofder dated 14.8.1995 (Annexure A/5)
and made certain observations against the present petitioner. The matter was
referred to the State Government whereas the State Government on the basis of
the observations made by the learned III Additional Sessions.Judge, Sagar passed
an order dated 28.9.1996 (Annexure A/8) and warning has been issued to the
petitioner. By this action the petitioner is aggrieved and filed this petition on the
ground that the said order has been passed without issuing any show cause notice
to the petitioner and without affording an opportunity of hearing to him.

3.  Itis also contended by learned counsel for the petitioner that the observation
made by the III Additional Sessions Judge is contrary to the record of the case
and in support of the said contention, he drew my attention to the order dated
20.2.1995,22.2.1995 and 10.3.1995 respectively.

4, On the other hand, learned Dy. Advocate General drew my attention to the
averments made in the return and submitted that prior to the impugned .order of
warning dated 28.9.1996 show cause notice was issued to the petitioner. The
petitioner replied the same and thereafter the State Government passed the
impugned order on 28.9.1996. It is also pointed out that-the warning has been
issued to the petitioner because of his conduct during the discharge of his official
functions as a judicial authority and while passing the juditial ¢ order under Section
145 of Cr.P.C. and therefore the State Government has not commltted any legal
error in issuing warning to the petitioner.

5. I have heard learned counsel for the parties and,pcruséd the record of the
case.

6. The primary objective of Section 145 Cr.P.C. is the prevention of the breach.
of the public peace arising in respect of a dispute relating to immovable property.
In order to achieve the object, the section enables the Magistrate to settle the
matter temporarily so far as the criminal courts are concerned and to maintain the
status quo until the rights of the parties are decided by a competent court. An
order made under Section 145 Cr.P.C. deal only with factum of possession of
party as on a particular day. The order is subject to decision of civil court. The
ctvil court has jurisdiction to give finding different from that which the Magistrate

has reached. In the case of Makant Ram Saran Dass vs Harish Mohan and

another (2001) 10 SCC 758 the Apex Court held that where civil suit for declaration
of title was already pending and court had passed order of injunction, the Magistrate
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cannot entertain application under Section 145 Cr.P.C. fact that applicant before
Magistrate was not arrayed as party before Maglstrate as party defendant would
be immaterial.

7. In the present case when the proceedings under Section 145 of Cr.P.C.
was initiated by the party No.2 against the party No.l, before the petitioner, the
civil suit No.6-A/94 was pending between the parties in which temporary injunction
application of the party No.2 was rejected on 27.4.1994 and it was found that
party No.1 was in possession of the disputed land. The initiation of the parallel
criminal proceeding is not permitted where question of possession of the disputed
property is decided by civil court. The proper course for the party No.2 was to
initiate a proceeding under Section 107 of Cr.P.C. peace can be achieved by
proceedings under Section 107 of Cr.P.C. The petitioner who was learned
Magistrate had erred in passing ex parte order, without issuing notice to the party
No.1. The Revisional Court allowed the revision and made the following
observations in para 3, 4,7 and 9 which reads as under:-

3. 599 B A 3| U8 ¥ 5 g rgfari Seifteery | uet
F. 2 TN URT 146 T4, BT ATGSA UF 20.2.95 Bl Wl Sa AT
# uwd fFa TaT of S R&E # dox fmmmet 37 g fesie
22.2.95 B 7T AR 39 7 wrdl % 2 & arftraaar s 3991 3 IR
AT T UHIUT 10.3.95 TE@T | 59 UHR Wafdh oI doRaT §RT e
®. 1 U4 OISt 3. 2 ST & foeg 9ree Wufed & WeE d €T 145 B
SROETTET o9 997 357 o ofR <11 el @l e 9= N fhar o, a9
T Rafar ¥ wafF ol 3. 2 g1 20.2.95 Y AT UF IR FAA Gh
oY YT 7 {37 S @1 Aty e farm R g e yauety e,
9 3rage B RE arfoarte derfte gRT <RE WaRT 3T gHuanT
forar a1 ® 399 Ul B, 1 BT AR WRew ¥ 95 99T 8 WA |

4. fogm sEfamria <SSt 31 =fEg o f6 aidl ©. 1 & W Jax

" gorar TR et faveavg @ e A W yr B agud Gbl o
IR W | wile g9 RdIow & ug g1 TR R § 6 aeaw st
o Heer § WRAHT gRT eI = i =gef oft, =T arR
RT U8R d18 &. 60 /94 AW RAID 27.4.94 B FRET foar <1 ga1
2T, 3R g AR B BN & I 20.2.95 BT UL &, 2 FRT g
ARG A B Wag F {H (P AW 199 AT 9 IR (U I
H IRt <SRy 9R 9 1% 10.3.95 ®Y S 9Ia o) fom:T,
araeg € ot %, 2 gR1 9 T BrfaE gofa: Afdr % egwe T T
7. SR Fred & werer § ¥ 59 fsed W g € % smfmia
Zeier grT fafdy wiear ot o sver @Y 2 AR 9R o™ gam @
3R ST ey yofa: et 8 fAew = &7 &7+ g € |

LT
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9. 3fa # #71 9w wr o sl Seiftert g/ 38 W1 Sriarl

SN A9 1. F. 99 /95 T ©RT 145 TYUH. b HaS H AT B,

Uy 91w wfex ¥ f o8 R ufswr o1 sga o9 791 € ok 399

- ey € T T G B U ¥ dRa e US eI T | 3T g9

ey ¥ wfveTR e arR & g w1aa o S99 39 9@ s

Frfardt o |
8. Under Section 146(1) of the Code of Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 before
passing the attachment order opportunity of hearing and pripr notice to the parties
for valid attachment in case of emergency is not necessary but normally the
Magistrate should provide opportunity of hearing and notice to the other party and
in spite of notice having not been served upon opposite party if he did not appear
and the situation was explosive attachment could be ordereﬁ,_. In the present case
no finding was recorded by the petitioner that attachment order dated 10.3.1990
was made on the ground of emergency and without issuing notice to the other-
party the said order was passed.

9. It is well settled that no order under Section 146 (1) of Cr.P.C. could be
passed while the matter was pending before Civil Court for adjudication of title
and possession. Thus, I am of the considered view that the revisional court has
not committed any illegality in setting aside the attachment order dated 10.3.1995
passed in an application under Section 146(1) of Cr.P.C. on the ground that in civil
court case regarding disputed property was pending and application for temporary
injunction filed by the party No.2 was rejected on 27.4,1994.

10.  On perusal of the order sheet dated 20.2,1995, 22.2.1995 and order dated

10.3.1995 it is not in dispute that before passing the order dated 10.3.1995 in the
application filed by party No.2, under section 146(1) of Cr.P.C. no notice was

- issued to the party No.l against whom prohibitory order was passed by the

petitioner. It is also not in dispute that in respect of the same land, civil suit was
pending between the parties and in the civil suit party No.2 filed an application for
grant of temporary injunction which was rejected on 27.4.1994 in Civil Suit No.
6-A/94. Considering these facts, it cannot be said that the learned Sub Divisional
Magistrate has passed the order dated 10.3.1995 after issuing notice to the party
No.I. It is also not in dispute that before passing the impugned order of warning
show cause notice was issued by the State Government on 25.9.1995 (Annexure
A/6), asking the petitioner to explain the adverse finding made by the III Additional
Sessions Judge. Learned counsel for the petitioner drew my attention to the reply
filed by him vide Annexure A/7 on 4.10.1995. In para 2 and 3 of the reply though
the petitioner tried to point out that the order has been passed after issuing show
cause notice to party No.1 but on perusal of the record, I found that no notice was
issued to the party No.l prior to passing of order dated 10.3.1995. Thus, it cannot
be said that the observation made by the III Additional Sessions Judge in para 7
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dahd 9 in its order dated 14.8.1995 is contrary to the record of the case. After
considering the aforesaid facts, I am of the considered view that the respondents
have not committed any error in passing the impugned order dated 28.9.1996,
gave a warning to the petitioner, to be cautious in the future and to make endeavour
to improve his knowledge about law.

11, Itis well settled that warning is not a penalty specified in Rule 10 of M.P.Civil
Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules 1966 and as such does not
require the adoption of a detailed enquiry procedure as contemplated under Rule
14 of the Rules of 1966. An opportunity was given to the petitioner and there has
been adequate compliance with the principle of natural justice.

12. It is not disputed by learned counsel for the petitioner that wammg to the
petitioner to make endeavours to improve his knowledge about law is not a
punishment under the M.P.Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules,
1966 and circular issued by the State Govt. from time to time. The competent
authority while considering the punishment of warning considered the facts and
circumstances under which the warning has been given to the petitioner and
thereafter passed the impugned order which does not constitute punishment and it
will not come on the way of the petitioner for his further promotion.

13.  For the above mentioned reasons, the petition filed by the petitioner has no
merit and is accordingly dismissed but without any order as 10 COStS.

Petition dismissed.

I.LL.R. [2009] M. P., 3144
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Garg & Mr. Justice RK. Jaiswal

12 October, 2009*
RAVINDRA PRAKASH & ors. ... Petitioners
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. .. Respondents

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 14 Rule 5 - Power to
amend and strike out issues - Suit for declaration of title of agricultural
land - Application for framing issue regarding maintainability of the suit on
the pleadings that land in dispute was subject matter of the agriculture ceiling
matter pending before the Competent Authority, M.P. Ceiling on Agriculture
Holding Act - Application rejected - Held - Any decree passed in civil suit
shall not bind the Competent Authority whether State/Commissioner are party
or not a party to the civil suit - The question of maintainability of the suit will
have to be decided by the Civil Court - Such issue is required to be cast and
answered. (Paras 9 & 10)

*W.P, No.7918/2007 (Jabalpur)
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®. fufad ufpan €fear (1908 F1 5), A= 14 Fraw 5 — faaEs &
Wi o R Te @Y ufd — N YA @ weg wiven $ fay 9 - T @
oryofirer © R § T R o3 @ fag emde g7 afeanl w6 agrw
fY wem WREN, a5 i @ A afbifrm & e aftaa 5 @ a3
faeeravg off — amdew @R — AffuiRT - e o 3 oRT @15 Rt wem
TRERT BT ang 7 S =R fifw ae § v/ SR 9EeR 8 a1 T 8 - a9
2} vl @1 e fufae =amarer o fafifga e e — Y e R ek
SR T ST 19%d © | ,

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17 - Amendment
of pleadings - Defendants filed an application seeking amendment in W.S.
by bringing on record an order passed by Additional Commissioner and filing
of another appeal - Application disallowed - Held - Defendants want to bring
on-record the subsequent events which in fact are undisputed - Such facts
are required to be brought on record to do complete justice to the parfies -
Plaintiffs cannot be allowed to take advantage of their own doings by saying
that such facts are not required to be brought on record. (Para 11)

w. fufaw ufpar dfyar (1908 &1 5), anew 6 w17 — sffaasl
ST YNE — ARArE H R Agad §RT iR ey ofR e o andter @1 G fear
ST AfrerE W o Ry fad dem # weeM 9Ted gy amaed U A — arde
AT — aftifaaiRa — yeefl graadf seaime affte w® @ e § W R
afaaie § — W el 9 vEeRt B 0y yof =R & @ v affeg W Sy SEr
AT § — A BT TE HEd Y & VW T2 AfeRT WA ST 9IS Tl §
TP W B BT BT AT o1 B FOed 981 41 S o] |

Akhilesh Jain, for the petitioners.
Naman Nagrath, Addl.A.G., for the respondent No.1.
R.D. Hundikar; for the respondent Nos.2 & 3.

ORDER

The Order ~ - of the Court was delivered by
R.S. Gare, J. :—The petitioners being aggrieved by the order dated 10.5.2007
passed by the learned Fifth Additional Judge to the Court of First Civil Judge,
Class I, Bhopal, in Civil Suit No. 142-A of 2007 rejecting the defendants/petitioners
application filed under Order 14 Rule 5 C.P.C and Order 6 Rule 17 C.P.C have
filed this writ petition, ' '

2. The checkered history made straight provides that the respondents no.2 and
3 filed the suit in dispute in the Court of Xth Civil Judge, Class II, Bhopal against
the State Government praying for the reliefs that they be declared owners of the
property and injunction be given against the State Government and the other
authorities not to disturb their possession or dispossess them.
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3. The present petitioners filed an application under Order 1 Rule 10 C.P.C with
a submission that they are vitally interested in the outcome of the suit because the
land in dispute was subject matter of the agricultural ceiling matter pending before
the competent authority. The said application was allowed and the present
petitioners were allowed to be joined as parties/defendants.

4. After joining of the new defendants the said defendants filed the1r written
statement and raised varicws pleadings. On the basis of the said pleadings the
learned trial court framed the following three issues only:

(1). Whether the plaintiffs are in pos'session of the property and
‘are Bhumi Swami/Owner.’

(2). Whether the defendants were trying to interfere with the
possession of the plaintiffs.

(3). Whether the su1t was barred by limitation.

After such issues were cast, the cdse was fixed for recording evidence the
defendants/petitioners filed an appHcation under Order 14 Rule 5 C.P.C proposing
certain issues. Later they also filed an application under Order 6 Rule 17 of the
Code of Civil Procedure.

5. Application filed under Order 14 Rule 5 C.P.C was re_]ected observing that
the issues were cast by the court on 19.3.2007 in presence of the parties, therefore,

such issues were not required to be cast. Similarly application under Order 6 Rule
17 C.P.C was rejected on 17.5.2007 observing that in light of the amendment in Rule
17 of Order 6 C.P.C such amendment could not be allowed to be brought on record.

6. Learned counsel for the petitioners submitted that a perusal of the conduct of

the original plaintiffs/respondents no.2 and 3 would show that on one side placing -

reliance upon the principles of natural justice they challenged the orders earlier
passed against them in the Court of the Additional Commissioner and succeeded
in the matter but at the same time violating the said principles and with an intention
to play fraud with the Court/State and the present petitioners they filed a suit and
sought a‘decree of declaration and injunction. It is submitted by him that after the-
order has heen passed by the Additional Commissioner in Case No.483/A/
2004-5 on 18.4.2007 the maintainability of the snit has become doubtful. For the
amendmient it is submitted that Order 6 Rule 17 C.B.C if is taken into its proper
perspective it would clearly appear that after recording the reasons the Court
handling the application can allow the same and the bar contained in Rule 17 is not
absolute. It is also submitted by him that any decree if is passed in the Civil Suit,
the same shall not bind the competent authority and the competent authority will
have to be satisfied by the present plaintiffs/respondents no. 2 and 3 that they are
shikmis, they have acquired Bhumi Swami rights and the land in dispute cannot
be declared as surplus, ' '
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7. Shri Hundikar, learned counsel for the original plaintiffs/respondents no.2
and 3 however, submitted that the scope of the suit cannot be widened because in
the present suit the plaintiffs hre not seeking any relief against the petitioners. It
is however, submitted by him that a declaration granted by the Court in favour of
the plaintiffs shall bind the competent authority.

8. Shri Nagrath, learned Additional Advocate Generat for the respondent no. 1
however, submitted that any decree which may be passed in this suit shall not bind
the competent authority because the competent authority will have to look into the
merits of the matter and will have to record his own conclusion.

9. Undisputedly the Additional Commissioner vide his order dated 18.4.2007 in
Case No0.483/A/2004-05 while setting aside the order dated 20.11.2001 passed by
the Collector/competent authority in Ceiling Case No.5/A-90/B-3/1974-1975
remanded the matter back to the Collector with a direction that; after the draft
statement/final statement are submitted by the respondents of that case,
(Ravindra Prakash and-Rajendra Kumar) appropriate opportunity of hearing be
given to the present plaintiffs/respondents no.2 and 3 and only thereafter final
orders be passed. If such are the orders then obviously the respondents are
required to appear before the competent authority and satisfy the authority that
the land in dispute cannot be treated to be within the agricultural holdings of the
present petitioners and cannot be declared surplus. It would be trite to say that
any decree passed in a Civil Suit shall not bind the competent anthority whether
State/Commissioner are party or not a party to the Civil Suit. True it is that the
said deeree may bind some of the Revenue Officers but shall not bind the competent
authority which under the M.P. Ceiling on Agriculture Holding Act has to decide
that whether the decree is valid or not and the decree has the binding effect or not.

10. The 'question that. in the proceedings of 1964 Raghuwardayal Saxena,
predecessor in title of the petitioners, had made certain declarations into the status
of the present plaintiffs . however would not affect the jurisdiction of the
competent authority. In any case after the order dated 18.4.2007 the question of
maintainability of the suit will have to be decided by the Civil Court. In our
opinion the issues proposed by the present petitioners are required to be cast and
answered.

11. In so far as application under Order 6 Rule 17 of C.P.C is concerned a
perusal of the application would show that the petitioners were trying to bring on
record the subsequent events which in fact are undisputed. The petitioners want
to bring on record an order passed by the Additional Commissioner and the
filing of another appeal. Such facts in our opinion are required to be brought on
record to do complete justice to the parties and the plaintiffs cannot be allowed to
take advantage of their own doings by saying that such facts are not required to
be brought on record. ‘
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12.  Both the orders passed by the learned Court below are quashed. The
petition is allowed with costs-quantified at Rs.5000/- to be paid by the plaintiffs to
the defendants in person before the trial Court. The payment of the cost shall be
a condition precedent for proceeding further with the suit.

Petition allowed.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Ajit Singh

3 November, 2009* )
PANAH MOHAMMED ... Petitionér
Vs. -
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ... Respondents -

A. Notaries Act (53 of 1952), Section 8, Notaries Rules, 1956,
Rule 4 - Application for appointment as a notary - Memorial of the petitioner
not countersigned by a manager of a nationalized Bank - Since the application
was incomplete he could not be appointed as notary - Action challenged -
Held - Use of word "shall" in sub-rule (3) of Rule 4 and also in the note
appended to Form-I raises a strong presumption that the provision is
mandatory - Memorial was incomplete as it was not countersigned as required
by sub-rule (3)(b) of Rule 4 - Petition dismissed. (Para 6)
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B. Notaries Rules, 1956, Rule 4 - Incomplete memorial - No such
provision in the Rules making it obligatory on the Competent Authority to
inform the applicant about the defect in the application (memorial) and get
it corrected - Only an application which complies with the requirement of
Rule 4 is considered by the Competent Authority u/R 6. (Para 6)
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Vivek Rusia, for the petitioner.

Samdarshi Tiwari, G.A., for the respondent Nos.1 & 2.
N.P. Dubey, for the respondent Nos. 3 & 5.

Ashok Pali, for the respondent No.4.

ORDER

Aurr Sivew, J. :—By this petition the petitioner has challenged the selection
and appointments of respondent nos.3 to 5 as notaries in District Tikamgarh vide
order dated 9.9.1998 Annexure P35, passed by respondent no.1.

2. The facts are these. On the death of Notary Shankar Prasad Sinha in District
Tikamgarh his post fell vacant. The President and Members of District Bar Assaciation,
Tikamgarh, therefore, made a representation dated 21.5.1997, Annexure P1, to
respondent no.2 for the appointment of notary. Respondent no.2 responded by issuing
a notification inviting applications from persons interested for appointment as notary.
As many as 11 applications including that of petitioner and respondent nos.3 to 5 were
received. Respondent no.2 published the list of names of all 11 applicants in the Gazette
Notification dated 15.5.1998, Annexure P3, for inviting objections but no objections
were received against any of the applicants. Respondent no.2 thereafter sent his
report dated 6.7.1998 to respondent no.1 wherein he recommended the names of
three applicants, viz. Subhash Chandra Jain, Vinod Pastor (respondent no.3) and Smt.
Prabha Gupta (respondent no.4) and stated that amongst these three any one may be
appointed. In the meantime, three more posts of notary were created by the State
Government in Tikamgarh district. Respondent no.1, after examining the report of
respondent no.2 as well as the applications of all the applicants appointed respondent
1n0s.3 to 5 as notaries by the impugned order dated 9.9.1998, Annexure P5. Respondent
no.1 had also found that the application of petitioner was not complete as it was not
countersigned by a manager of a nationalised bank.

3. The learned counsel for petitioner has argued that, while selecting and
appointing respondent nos.3 to 5 as notaries, the provisions of Rules 6 and 7 of the
Notaries Rules 1956 have not been complied with and, therefore, their appointments
were liable to be quashed. He also submitted that although the report of respondent
1n0.2 was sent for the appointment of only one applicant, respondent no. 1 committed
‘an illegality in appointing three applicants. The learned Government Advocate, on
thé other hand, submitted that the appointments were made by following the due
procedure. He also produced the original record pursnant to the order of this
Court and argued that, since the application of petitioner was incomplete he could
not have been appointed as mnotary in any case and, therefore, he has-no lecus
standi to challenge the appointments of respondent nos.3 to 5. According to the
learned Government Advocate, respondent no.1 was fully empowered and justified
in appointing respondent nos.3 to 5 as three new posts of notary were created.

The learned counsel appearing for respondent nos.3 to 5 have adopted the

arguments advanced by the learned Government Advocate.
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4. After hearing the learned counsel for parties, I deem it proper to first examine
whether the petitioner could have been appointed as a notary on his application.

5. The Notaries Rules 1956 have been framed under section 8 of the Notaries
Act 1952. Rule 3 prescribes qualification for appointment and rule 4 deals with
the application for appointment as a notary. Sub-rule (1) of rule 4 provides for
making an application in the form of memorial and sub-rule (2) even prescribes
Form-1 of memorial for the applicants, such as petitioner. Sub-rule (3) further
provides that the memorial of a person shall-be signed by the applicant and shall
also be countersigned by the persons mentioned therein. Sub-rule (3) of rule 4
reads as under:

"4, Application for app ointment as. a notary.-.
(1)..
(2)..
(3) The memorial of a person referred to in clause (a) of rule 3

shall be signed by the applicant and shall be countersigned by the
following persons:-

(a) a Magistrate;
(b) a Manager of a nationalised bank;
(c) a merchant; and

(d) two prominent i'nhabitants-of‘ﬂle local area within which
the applicant intends to practise as a notary."

Likewise, requirement of counter signature on the memorial by the persons
mentioned in sub-rule (3) is also clearly stated in the Note appended to Form-I
which is as follows:

"Note.- Under rule 4(3) the memorial should be countersigned by
a Magistrate, a manager of a Nationalised Bank, a merchant and
two promment inhabitants of the area where he intends to practise
as a notary."

6. From the reading of sub-rule (3) and aforesaid Note in Form-I it becomes
clear that for complete memorial by a person secking appointment as a notary, the
memotial has to be signed by the applicant and also to be countersigned by the
persons mentioned therein. The words in the sub-rule "shall be counter signed by
the following persons" is a mandatory requirement to make the memorial
(application) complete which could be considered by the competent authority and
later by the State Government. The use of word "shall" in sub-rule (3) and also in
the Note Form-I raises a strong presumption that the provision is mandatory. It is
to be seen that notary performs very important functions and his actions have far
reaching effects. His integrity and honesty must, therefore, be above board. It is

|\~
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for this reason a mandatory provision has been made that the memorial of a person
seeking appointment as a notary must be countersigned by persons such as
Magistrate, a manager of a nationalised bank, etc. In the case of petitioner, the
memorial was incomplete as it was not countersigned by a2 manager of a nationalised
bank as required by sub-rule (3)(b). The argument of the learned counsel for
petitioner that the competent authority (respondent ;no.2) should have informed
the petitioner that his application was incomplete, is not acceptable because there
is no such provision in the Rules making it obligatory on the competent authority
to inform the applicant about the defect in the application and get it corrected.
The consideration of application under Rule 6 by the competent authority for
appointment as notary is only in respect of an application which complies with the
requirement of Rule 4. An application which does not comply with the mandatory
requirements of rule 4 cannot be said to be an application for an appointment of
notary needing consideration by the competent authority under rule 6. The rejection
of an application for appointment as a notary under rule 6 is only in respect of
applications which are fully in conformity with rule 4 but where the applicant does
not possess the qualifications specified in rule 3 or his application for appointment
as notary was earlier rejected within six months.

7. For these reasons the petitioner in any case could not have been appointed
as a notary and, therefore, he has no locus standi to challenge the appointments of
respondent nos.3 to 5 as notaries. In view of my this finding, I do not find it
necessary ta examine the other submission of petitioner that provisions of Rule 7
were not followed by respondent no.1 in'making the appointments of notaries.

8.  The petition fails and is dismissed but without any-order as to costs.
Petition dismissed.
I.LL.R. [2009] M. P.,, 3151
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Abhay M. Naik
30 June, 2009*
SAHIBRAM DHINGRA (DIED) THROUGH L R.

NARENDRA DHINGRA ... Appellant
- Vs.
SHIVSHANKAR GOYAL ... Respondent

A. Accommodation Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Section 12(1)(c)
- Suit for eviction - Tenant inducted in the tenanted premises for residential
purpose - Tenant converted oné entire.room situated at front side of tenanted
premises for STD/PCO Centre - Held - Act of tenant is inconsistent with the
purpose of tenancy - Single act of the tenant is sufficient to cause his eviction

*8.A. No.404/2008 (Gwalior)
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' provided that the act is of gravity - Judgment & decree u/s 12(1)(c) of the
Act affirmed - Appeal dismissed . (Paras 16 to 22)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 102 - On whom burden of
proof lies - Tenant contented consent of plaintiff for installation of STD/
PCO centre - Tenant failed to prove factum of having obtained consent - It
was not necessary for the plaintiff to appear in witness box for denial of
fact wh;ch itself has not been proved at all. . (Paras 8 to 11)

. Wmﬁrﬁﬂq(w?zaﬂﬂwmz—ﬁamwﬁmmm
2 — AR 3 wAE /Rl ). Sl e @ fav ardr 6 wwify o7 gk
foparr — foriaR ey ST e @ wea BT Wil @ # five eT - 9 B g
Tmﬁw%awﬁmﬁﬁmmﬁwﬁammﬁmamﬁw
¥ |y e fpar )

C. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 3 Rule 2 - Power of
attorney - Power of attorney holder of the plaintiff may appear and depose
only about the facts which are within his knowledge and he cannot. appear
on behalf of plaintiff to depose about the facts which are exclusively within
the: personal knowledge of plaintiff. . (Para 12)
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Cases referred :

2004¢2) Civil Court Cases 364 (AP), 2005(2) Civil Court Cases 324 (SC),
2000(2) Civil Court Cases 606 (P&H), 2002(2) RCR 177, AIR 1978 SC 1601,
- AIR 2001 SC 1684, 1993 AIR SCW 643, 2004(3) MPLJ 162, 1991(2) MPWN 22,
2000(1) MPHT 15 (NOC), 1997 MPACJ 158, 1979 MPRCIJ 110.

R.C. Khanna with FA. Shah, for the appellant.

V.K. Bhardwaj with Anand Bhardwaj, for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

ABRay M. Naix, J. :-This appeal "has been preferred by the
defendant/tenant against a decree for eviction granted by the Courts below in

Ll
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concurrent manner under Section 12 (1)(c) o the M.P. Accommodation Control
Act, 1961.

2. Plaintiff/respondent instituted a suit in the capacity of power of attorney
holder of Bhagwan Das Goyal for eviction and recovery of arrears of rent with
allegations that the suit house situated at A-B Road, Kamlaganj, Hanuman Colony
Shivpuri is owned by the principal (i.e. Bhagwan Das Goyal) which was occupied
by the defendant/appellant for residential purpose on rent @ Rs.250/- p.m.
Appellant lastly paid the rent on 06-05-2004 and obtained receipt therefor, wherein
he acknowledged balance of Rs.4,000/- towards arrears of rent Son of the
defendant/appellant, contrary to the purpose of tenancy converted one room of
tenanted premises for non-residential purpose and opened a STD/PCO Centre
with registration No.07492-503031. The STD/PCO dealership was obtained from
Airtel Company which is revealed in the computerized bill No.205468243
dated 02-10-04 which was appended to the plaint. Thus, the appellant having
committed an act inconsistent with the purpose of tenancy has made himself liable
to be evicted under Section 12 (1){c) of the M.P. Accommodation Control Act. A
notice of demand of rent was issued which was not accepted by the defendant
and it came back with an endorsement of refusal. However, entire rent was neither
paid nor tendered pursuant to the said demand notice.

3. Though a ground of subletting/parting with was also taken by the plaintiff/
respondent, it having been negatived, I do not feel it proper to burden this judgment
with the facts pertaining thereto.

4. Defendant/appellant .submitted his written statement, denying thereby

“the claim of the plaintiff. However, he did not deny that the suit premises was

obtained for residential purpose. It was obtained in the year 2000 @ Rs.150/-

_p-m. as rent. With the consent of the plaintiff STD/PCO Centre was opened in

one of the rooms of the tenanted premises and in lieu thereof rent was enhanced
from Rs.150/-to Rs.250/- p.m. Defendant is still residing in the remaining portion _
of the suit premises and has not shifted his residence elsewhere. As regards,
demand notice it is alleged that no such notice was tendered to him and he did
not refuse to accept the same, However, it was stated in specific that the defendant/
appellant deposited entire arrears of rent and up to date rent within 15 days from
the service of summeon and has deposited montlily rent regularly in the Court. It
was stated in specific that the defendant is still residing in the suit premises and is
not liable to be evicted. In addition to this, it was stated in the written staterent that
the plaintiff/respondent has no authority ‘in law to institute a suit in his own name. -

5. Afier recording the evidence, learned trial judge decreed the suit in favour
of the plaintifffrespondent vide judgment and decree dated 30th April, 2007 on
the ground of inconsistent nser.

6. Aggrieved by it, Civil Appeal No. 7-A108 was preferred which, too, has
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been dismissed vide impugned judgment and decree dated 23-04-08. Hence, the
present appeal which has been heard on the following substantial question of law:

Whether the tenant having converted one of the rooms of the
residential premises while retaining the character of
dominating purpose of residential tenancy in respect of major
portion of tenanted premises is liable fo be evicted under
Section 12(1)(c) of the M.P. Accommodation Control Act ?

7. ShriR.C. Khanna, learned counsel for the appellant and Shri V.K. Bhardwaj,
Sr. Advocate made the submissions for their respective parties.

8. In para 3 of the written statement it was stated that STD/PCO Centre was
installed with the permission of the landlord and therefore, rent of the suit premises
was enhanced from Rs.150/-to Rs.250/- p.m. There was no whisper in the written
statement that consent was in writing. However, during the evidence, it is revealed
that defendant/appellant tried to develop that in the rent receipt marked as Ex-
D/4 word DUKAN was added which is proof of the consent having been granted.
The rent receipt Ex-D/4 was not produced during the plaintiff’s evidence and the
same was not confronted with any of the witnesses of the plaintiff. It was
produced hy Narendra Dhingra, who happened to be son of the tenant. This
witness has clearly admitted in para 8 of his cross-examination that t Ex-D/4
does not contain signature of the plaintiff but it contains signature of Govind Das
Goyal. If the permission-for STD/PCO Centre was given vide receipt Ex-D/4 by
adding the word DUKAN, it was a material fact in order to avoid de-ree for
eviction on the ground of inconsistent user and it ought to have been pleaded in
specific. Permission for STD/PCO Centre is stated in para 3 of the written
statement to have been obtained from landlord i.c. Bhagwan Das Goyal whose
signature is not contained in Ex-D/4. Moreover consent according to written
statement was obtained by the tenant Sahibram Dhingra, who despite being
alive was not examined. Although his son Narendra Dhingra (DW-I) has stated
that Sahibram was unable to move but that doesn’t prevent him from giving
statement on commission. This apart, Ex-D/4 is not original document but is
photocopy of an alleged receipt. Defendant submitted an application under Section
65 of the Evidence Act on 02-08-06 (1.A.No-8) with allegation that original of
Ex-D/4 was misplaced. This interlocutory application was allowed by the trial
judge on 20th September, 2006. It was nowhere disclosed by the appellant that
* original of Ex-D/4 was not available at the time of cross-examination of plaintiff’s
: witniesses. Evidence of the plaintiff was closed on 07-07-06 and the notice under
Section 66-of the Evidence Act for production of the receipt book containing
alleged receipt was issued on 14-09-06. In view of the aforesaid facts and
circumstances, the Courts below have not committed any error in disbelieving the
defendant’s plea that STD/PCO Centre was installed with the permission/
consent of the landlord.”
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9. It is further contended that the power of attorney was not competent to
depose about the persoral knowledge of the landiord. Accordingly, statement is
not admissible in the eye of law.

10. In the instant case defence of the defendant/tenant is that he had obtained
the permission from the landlord for installation of a STD/PCO Centre in the suit
premises and therefore, is not liable to be evicted. However, tenant Sahibram
Dhingra did not appear in the witness box to prove the said consent.

11.  Asregards, Ex-D/4 it has been admitted by the son of the tenant that it did
not contain the signature of the landlord. Since facttim of having obtained consent
is not duly proved by the tenant himself, it was not necessary for the plaintiff/
landlord to appear in the witness box for demial of the fact which itself has not
been proved at all.

12.  Shri R.C. Khanna, learned counsel for the appellant placed reliance on the
decision of Andhra Pradesh High Court in the case of S. Padmavathamma V. S
Sudha Rani & Others, 2004 (2) Civil Court Cases 364 (A.P). wherein it was
observed that general power of attorney holder can appear as witness only for his
personal capacity but cannot appear on behalf of plaintiff in the capacity of the
plaintiff. Thus, it can be taken as a settled view that power of attorney holder of
the plaintiff may appear and depose only about the facts which arc within his
personal knowledge and he cannot appear on behalf of the' plaintiff to depose
about the facts which are exclusivély within the personal knowledge of plaintiff.
Reference may be made successfully to the Supreme Court decision in the case
of Janki Vashdeo Bhojwani and another Vs. Indusind Bank Ltd. and others
2005 (2) Civil Court Cases 324 (8.C.). Same view has been taken by Single Bench
of Punjab Haryana High Court in'the case of Prem Sagar V5. Darbari Lal &
Another. 2000 (2) Civil Court Cases 606 (P&H). It has been observed in Prem
Sagar s case (supra) that:

“If a party alone has a particular knowledge of the fact, it
hus to appear in the witness box and it cannot delegate his
power to appear in the witness box to his attorney. In the
present case, there is a specific case that the petitioners are
using the premises for the residence of their labourers and
if that is so, it is a fact which is in the knowledge of the
tenant and it is for the tenant to prove the same. In the present
case if the landlord did not enter into the witness box, no
adverse inference can be drawn against him."”

13. In the instant case defendant/tenant is found to have failed in proving that
change of use from residential to non-residential was made with the consent of
the landlord. This being so, non appearance of the landlord did not assumc
importance in view of the facts and circumstances of the case.
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14, Reliance by Shri Khanna, learned counsel on this Court’s decision in the
casec of T.D. Agrawal Vs. Nirrnal Mitra, 2002 (2) RCR 177 is out of place
because in the case of T.D. Agrawal (supra) permission to the tenant to use one
room as office in the tenanted premises which was dominantly for residential
purpose was found proved. T.D. Agrawal case was under chapter III-A of the
M.P.- Accommodation Control Act and the ground of eviction on the basis of -
inconsistent use was not available before RCA.

15. Before entering into the contentions of both the learned counsel on the
aforesaid substantial question of law, it would be proper to reproduce Section 12
{){c) of the M.P. Accommodation Control Act 1961 ‘which reads as under:

12. Restriction on eviction. of tenants:- (1) Notwrthsta.ndmg
.anything to the contrary contained inl ahy other law or contract,
no suit shall be filed ‘in any civil Court against a tenant for his
eviction from any accommodation except -omr one or n‘lore of
the following grounds only namely:

(@) xx

(b) xx

- {c) thatthe tenant -or any person residing with him has created
‘a- nuisance or has done any act which 1is inconsistent with the
purpose for which ke was admitted to the tenancy of-the
accommodation, or which is likely to affect adversely and
substantially the mterest of the landlord therem

Pravided that the use by a tenant . of 3 _portion of the
accommodation as his office shall not be deemed to be an act
inconsistent with the purpose for which he was adnutted to the
tenancy.

16.  Itis crystal clear from the aforesaid provision that the legislature in its best
. wisdom made the tenant liable to be evicted if he has done any act which is
inconsistent with the purpose for which he was admitted to tenancy. It is not in
dispute in the present case that the tenant was inducted ‘into the suit premises for
residential purpose and that he-used 1o reside thersin during past..It was only in
the year 2004, when the tenant converted one of the rooms of the tenanted premises
for using it for STD/PCO Centre which obviously was for non-residential purpose
and was obviously inconsistent with the purpose of ‘tenancy for which he was
admitted. Single inconsistent act of tenant may be -sufficient to prove a ground
for ¢jectment provided such an act must be of gravity.

Fil

17. Shri Khanna, learned counsel placed reliance on Supreme Court decision
in the case of Sant Ram V. Rajinder Lal and Others (AIR 1978 SC 1601) to
contend that ground of inconsistent user is not available to the plaintiff. In Sanr
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Ram's case (supra), it is held that it is impossible to hold that if a tenant who takes
out petty premises for carrying on a small trade also stays in the rear portion,

. cooks and eats, he so disastrously perverts the purpose of the lease. A different

‘purpose’ in the context is not minor variations but majuscule in mode of enjoyment.
In the present case, it has already been fouild proved that the defendant has
converted entire room situated at the front site for STD/PCO Centre and the
same was not used at all for residential purpose. Clause (c) sub section (1) of
Section 12 makes a tenant liable to be ejected if he has done any act which is
inconsistent with the purpose of tenancy. Single act of the tenant in view of the -
language of the said provision is sufficient to cause his eviction provided the act
is of gravity. Thus, the appellant does not get any assistance from Sant Ram
decision. '

18.  Shri Khanna, learned counsel further placed reliance on Supreme Court
decisions in the case of M/s Atul Castings Ltd. Vs. Bawa Gurvachan Singh,
AIR 2001 SC 1684 and in the case of Bishamber Dass Kohli Vs. Satya Bhalla
(Smt.), 1993 AIR SCW 643, In the case of M/s Aful Castings Ltd. (supra) a
residential roém was found used for disposal of office work at home and was also’
being nsed’ as study room of family members. In the case of Bishamber Dass
Kohli (supra) -Supreme Court did not find any regular commercial activity for
carrying on of ‘business with interaction of public and customers. In the
present case it is not disputed that subject portion ef the tenanted premises was
made available by the ténant for the public at large to pay and avail the facility of
~STD/PCO. Thus, case of M/s Atui Castings Ltd. and Bishamber Dass Kohli are
quite distinguishable on facts.

19. It'may be seen that the learned Single Iudge of this Court in the case of
Devendra s/o Chandmal Chaoudhary Vs. Warsilal s/o Diwanchandji Dua,
2004 (3) MPLJ 162 has held that setting up of STD Booth in portion of suit shop
contrary to the terms of rent note makes a tenant Liable to be ejected.

- 20. I may successfully further refer on this point another single bench

decision of this Court in the case of Bhojraj Rathi Vs. Suchint Chincholkar,
1991 (2) M.P. Weekly Notes 22, wherein it was held that in case a tenant used
any portion for non-residential purpose of the tenanted premises let-out to him for
residéntial purpose he makes himself liable for eviction under Section 12 (1)(c) of
the Act. Likewise a tenant putting up a tea stall in residential premises was held
liable to.be evicted under Section 12 (1) (c), 2000 (1) M.PH.T. 15 (NOC). In
the case of Suresh Vs. Prabhulal, 1997 M.P.A.C.J. 158. it has been held by
this Court that where accommodation was let-out for residenttal purpose and a
part of it has been put to different use i.e. for the business of washerman the
tenant incures the liability of eviction under section 12(1)(c) of the Act.

21. Division Bench of this Court in the case of Jagdish Vs. Mamkchand
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Jain. 1979 MPRC]J, 110 does support the aforesaid discussions wherein it has

been held that an act of the tenant in using a part of the premises for a different

purpose was an act inconsistent so as to give rise to the ground for ejectment as
contemplated under Section. 12(1)(c) of the Act.

22. In the result, it is held that the defendant/tenant W-ilO was inducted in the

tenanted premises for residential purpose, has made himself lable to ejectment by

converting a room for STD/PCO it being an act inconsistent with the purpose of
tenancy. Accordingly, substantial question of law is decided against the appeliant,
in favour of the respondent. Impugned judgment and decree are hereby confirmed.
Appellant to bear the costs of respondent to the tune of Rs.5,000/- if already
certified. Appeal is accordingly dismissed hereby.

Appeal dismissed.
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Before Mr. Justice K.K. Lahoti & Mr. Justice Abhay M. Naik

_ 2 July, 2009*
VIIAY PRAKASH CHATURVEDI ... Appellant
Vs. -
PREETI CHATURVEDI ... Bespondent

A. Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1)(ia) - Cruelty -
Husband was Captain in Indian Army at the time of marriage™- Allegation
that wife wanted the husband to leave his job and join her father engaged in
the business of contractor - Held - Husband did not produce & prove his
father-in-law’s registration as contractor - Husband also not furnished details
of sites and copies of work orders - No iota of evidence to establish that his
father-in-law was engaged in business of contractor - Trial Court rightly
concluded that it was not probable that wife would insist the husband to
leave a well salaried and well reputed permanent job of Indian Army - Curelty
not proved. . ' ' (Para 12)
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B. Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1)(ia) -.Cruelty -
‘Threat of implicating husband and his family members in criminal case - No
witness examined for corroboration of such bald allegations - Allegation
not found proved (Para 14)

&I, %ﬂf‘ﬂ?ﬂs af‘rﬁmﬂ (1955 BT 25), ©IRT 13(1)(ia) —~ #HXaT — o
AR SUD TRAR B el BT qMVSH A § HAM B SHST — Q@rwarfﬁasw
2 wgfte & Rye e Tl @ wher T FReh T - aiftwer Wi g A U T

C. . Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1)(ib) - Desertion

- Essentm[ Conditions - (i) factum of separation (ii) intention to bring
cohabitation permanently to an end (animus deserendi) - Essential conditions
for desertéd spouse - (i) absence of consent (ii) fabsence -of conduct 'giving
reasonable tause to the spouse leaving matrimonial home fo Jorm necessary
intention. P (Para 17)

7. fgg fure siferFram (1955 BT 25), T 13{1)(ib) — Afeasr T -
TS T — (1) -YLTEHROT BT T, aﬁ?(u)wnﬁmﬂwmmaaﬂﬁm

(mﬁmmwm)—aﬁaaﬁvﬁfmqﬁﬁa%mmmﬁ— 6]
wﬁrmm@)wmﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁrmwﬁﬁmﬁwm
BT YRGFT HRIT I a1 ITART BT 31T |

D. Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13(1) - Divorce -
Broken marriage- The Act do not provide for divorce merely on the ground
of broken marriage. = {Para 20)

o, feg fare aftifram (1955 &7 25), a_T 13(1) — faare fame -
afteT faare — mﬂmaﬁwﬁaﬁﬁmmﬁwﬁmmwaﬁ
FATE |

- Cases referred :
(2007) 4 SCC 511, AIR 1964 SC 40.

"." Ravendra Shukla, for the appellant.
J K. Verma, for. the respondent.

JUDGMENT

. The  Judgment = of  the Court . was delivered by

ABaay M. Naik, J. :=This appeal has been preferred by the applicant/
appellant against the dismissal of his application for decree of divorce by dissolution
of marriage on grounds under section 13 (1) (i-a) & (i-b) of Hindn Marriage Act,
1955

2. Apphcantlappellant and non- apphcant/respondent are husband and wife on
account of having performed marriage on 11.05:2003 at Rewa as per Hindu rites

anc rituals, applicant/appellant was appointed as Licutenant in the Indian Army
w.e.f. 12.06.1999. He was promoted to the rank of Captain in June, 2000. He was
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posted at Delhi in February, 2002. Thus, at the time of marriage, he was holding

the post of Captain. Later on, in July, 2003, he was promoted as Major and was

posted at Mhow {Indore). He was transferred to Leh (J & K) in January, 2004
and was thereafter transferred to Banglore in May, 2005, Thus, at the time of
marriage, applicant/appellant was Captain in Indian Army.
3. According to the applicant/appellant, the respondent-wife is having qualification
of M.Sc. & M.B.A. Her father was retired from M.P.E.B. and after
" superannuation, he was engaged in the business :of contractorship. Respondent
herself was engaged as Development Officer with Bajaj Alliance at Rewa from
November, 2005 to May, 2006 and was at the time of filing of divorce petition
holding the post of Manager, Human Resources it J.P. Cement at Rewa.

. 4. On 24.06.2006 apphcant/appellant subrmtted an apphcatlon for seeking
~ divorce with allegations that at the time of marriage and thereaﬁer he was posted
at family Head Quariers and was capable of keeping his wife with him.

Respondent-wife pressurized him unduly' to leave the job and join her father’s
. business of contractorship and get settled there, otherwise, she would not lead the
marital life with him. She also threatened that she would commit suicide and would
implicate the applicant/appellant and his family members in a criminal case. She
also humiliated the applicant/appellant in presence of his colleagues. Thus, it was

alleged that the respondent-wife acted with crwelty. Her conduct caused :

apprehension in the mind of applicant/appellant that it would be risky to live w1th

respondent-wife. The conduct of the respondent-wife also made 1gtolerablc_ to_ .
the applicant/ appellant to have co-habitation with her. This apart, the:fespondent- |

wife deserted the apphcant/appellant without any justifiable cause for a.continuous.
period of two years prior to submission of application for divorce.

5. Applicant/appellant on 24.05.2004 came to Satna ‘being hig home town with
respondent-wife. She without consent of the applicant/appeltant and further without
any reasonable cause deserted the applicant/appellant and went to her parental
home at Rewa, after threatening the applicant/appellant in the aforesaid
manner. Thus, the respondent-wife has deserted the applicant/appellant for a
period of over-two years and has deprived him of marital rights. Additionally, it 1s
alleged that the marriage between the applicant/appellant and respondent-wife

has broken irretrievably and there is no possibility of reconciliation between them. -

6. ‘Respondent-wife submitted her written statement refuting thereby the
allegations made by the applicant/ appellant. Tt was denied that the father of
respondent was engaged in the business of contractorship. It was equally denied
that the respondent was holdipg the post’ of Development Officer in Bajaj
Alliance or Manager Human Resources in J.P."Cement, Rewa. Allegations were
made with ulterior motive of avoiding the liability of maintenance. It was stated in
specific that the marriage was performed because the applicant/appellant was

*
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holding the post of Officer in Indian Army and it was never insisted by the
respondznt that the applicant/appellant shall leas e the job. Other allegations about
threatening of suicide, etc. were also denied. It was further denied that the
respondent had ever humiliated the applicant/appellan:. On the contrary, it was
stated in the written statement that the respondent had performed all the functions
of dutiful wife till 14.06.2006. In additional plea, it was alleged that the father of
respondent-wife gave jewellery of worth Rs. 2 lacs, other materials of Rs. 2 lacs,
clothes of Rs. 75,000/-, cash of Rs. 10,00,000/-, Motor Car worth Rs. 4.5 Jacs
-and utensils of about Rs. 50.000/- at-the time of marriage which have been retained
by the applicant/appellant. This apart, dress and other materials of about Rs. one
lac was also given to the applicant/appellant’s parents and other family members
which, too, have been retained by him. It was further pleaded in specific that the
applicant/appellant’s parents started construction of house at Satna about a month
before the day of marriage. Construction was incomplete for want' of money.
After marriage, the mother of the applicant/appellant insisted the respondent to
bring Rs.'2 lacs as additional dowry which was not accepted by the respondent.
Applicant/appellant further, therefore, started abusing the respondent-wife and

", used to-pick up quarrels with her. Marriage between .the applicant/appellant
- and respondent-wife was performed on mediation/negotiations of one Shri Ram

Pavitra Pandey who discussed the matter with the parents of the applicant /
appelldnt. He was also insulted and humiliated by the family members of the
applicant/appellant. Applicant/appellant had availed leave in the 2"d week of
January,-2006. He had gone to Satna during his leave, at that time, respondent-
wife was at Rewa. Applicant/appellant on 14.06.2006 came to Rewa. He stayed
with respondent-wife for a while and maintained physmal relations with her and

went back to his service place.

7.  Applicant/appeliant examined himself alone in evidence whereas
respondent has examined herself as (DW-1), Laxman Prasad Dwivedi (DW-2),
Ram Pavitra Pandey (DW-3) & Smt. Gayatri Tiwari (DW-4). Both the parties
have also produced- documentary evidence. In the light of evidence, learned trial
judge vide order dated 31.10.2007 dismissed the divorce petition. Hence, the present
appeal.

8. Shri Ravendra Shukla and Shri J.K. Verma, leamed counsel for the parties
made their submissions which have been.considered in the light of the material on -
record.

9. Itis contended on behalf of the appliéantlappellant that the grounds of cruelty
and desertion have been duly proved by the evidence on record and the learned
trial judge has committed an error while appreciating it.

10. We have perused the pleadings as well as evidence on recors.

11, According 1o the apphcantfappel]aut Lic was treated with cruelty by the
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respondent in the sense that he was unduly pressurized that he shall leave the job
and join business of contractorship with the father of the respondent.

12. Onperusal, it is found that the applicant/appellant has not placed an iota on
record to establish that the father of the respondent was engaged in the business
of contractor. His registration as contractor was not placed on record. Particulars
of his registration as contractor are also not produced / proved. Applicant/appellant

has not furnished details of sites or copies of work orders to establish that the .

respondent’s father was in fact engaged in the business of contréctorship-. This
being so, learned trial judge has rightly concluded that it was not probable that the
respondent would insist her husband-applicant/appellant to leave a well salaried/
well reputed permanent job of Indian Army.

13. " Applicant/appellant has pleaded that he was humiliated by the respondent
. i the presence of his colleagues. No such colleague has been examined in the
. Court. Thus, the allegation of humiliation has not been estabhshed on record.

14, As regards, allegations of threatening of suicide and of nnphcatjng the
applicant/appellant and his family mermbers in a criminal case, it is suffice to say
that the same has not been found proved by the learned trial judge on the basis of
correct appreciation of evidence on record. Not a single witness has been examined
for corroboration of even such:bald allegations. Cruelty in order to enable the
parties to seek divorce on this ground may be physical or mental. We are not here
concerned with physical cruelty, since,. the applicant/appellant has not so
pleaded. At the most it may be stated by the applicant/appellant to be a case of
mental cruelty. “Mental Cruelty” is not defined. in the Hindu Marriage Act and
perhaps cannot be defined in comprehensive manner as observed by Hon’ble the
Supreme Court of India in the case of Samar Ghosh Vs. Jaya Ghosh (2007) 4
Supreme Court Cases-511. ; -

Supreme €ourt has observed :-

l"-

"»98. On propér analysis and scrunny of the judgments of
this Court and other courts, we have come to the definite

. . conclusion that there cannot be any comprehensive definifion
of'the concept of “mental ‘cruelty” within which all kinds of
cases of mental cruelty can be covered. No court in our
considered view should even attempt to give a comprehensive
definition of mental cruelty. .

99, Human mind is extremely complex and human behavior is
equally complicated. Similarly human ingenuity has no bound,
therefore, to assimilate’ the entire human behavior in one
definition is almost impossible. What is cruelty in one case
may not amount to cruelty in other case. The concept of cruelty .
differs from person to person depending upon his upbringing,

r
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level of sensitivity, educational, family and cultural
background, financial position, social status, customs
tradiiions, religious beliefs, human values and their value
system.

100. Apart'from this, the concept of mental cruelty cannot
remain static; if is bound to change with the passage of time,
impact of .modern culture through print and electronic media
and value system etc. etc. What may be mental cruelty now

- may not remain a mental cruelty after a passage of time or
vice versa. There can never be any straif-jacket formula or
fixed parameters for determining mental cruelty in matrimonial
matters. The prudent and appropriate way to adjudicate the
cdse would be to evaluate it on its peculiar facts and
circumstances while taking aforementioned factors in
consideration.

101. No uniform standard can ever be laid down for guidance,
yet we deem it appropriate to enumerate some instances of
Jmman behaviour which may be relevant in dealing with the

cases of ‘mental cruelty’. The instances indicated in the

~sm:ceedmg paragraphs are only Jllustratzve and not
exhaustive.

¥ On consideration of complete matrimonial life of the parties,
acute mental pain, agony and suffering as would not make
possible- far the parties to lrve with each other could come
within the broad parameters. of mental cruelty.

(i) On comprehensive appraisal of the entire matrimonial
life of the parties, it becomes abundantly clear that situation
is such that the wronged party cannot reasonably be asked to
put up with such conduct and continue to live with other party.

(iti) Mere coldness or lack of affection cannot amount to
cruelty, frequent rudeness of language, petulance of manner,
indifference and neglect may reach such a degree that it makes
the married life for the other spouse absolutely intolerable.

(iv) Mental cruelty is a state of mind. The feeling of deep
anguish, disappointment, frustration in one spouse caused by
the conduct of other for a long time may lead to mental cruelty.

(v} A sustained course of ab'usive' and humiliating treatment
calculated to torture, discommode or render miserable life of
the spouse.

3163
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{vi) Sustained unjustifiable conduct and behaviour of one
spouse actually affecting physical and mental health of the
other spouse. The treatment complained of and the resultant
danger or apprehension must be very grave, substantial and
weighty.

(vii) ' Sustained reprehensible conduct, studied neglect,
indifference or total departure from the normal standard of
conjugal kindness causing injury to mental health or
.deriving sadistic pleasure can also amount fo mental cruelty.

© (viii) The conduct must be wmuch more than jealousy,
selfishness, possessiveness, "~which causes unhappiness
and dissatisfaction and emotiohal upset may not be a ground
for grant of divorce on the ground of mental cruelty.

(ix) Mere trivial irritations, quarrels, normal wear and tear
of the married life which happens in day to day life would not
be adequate for grant of divorce on the ground of mental
cruelty.

(x) The married life should be reviewed as a whole and a few
isolated instances over a period of years will not amount to
cruelty. The ill-conduct must be persistent for a fairly lengthy
period, ‘where the relationship has deteriorated to an extent
that because of the acts and behaviour of a spouse, the
wronged party finds it extremely difficult to live with the other
party any longer, may amount to mental cruelty.

(xi) If-a husband submits himself for an operation of
sterilization without medical reasons and without the consent
or knowledge of his wife and similarly if the wife undergoes
vasectomy or abortion without medical reason 'or without the
consent or knowledge of her husband, such an act of the
spouse may lead to mental cruelty. ’

(xii) Unilateral decision of refusal fo have intercourse
for considerable period without there being. any physical
incapacity or valid reason may amount (o mental cruelty.

(xiii) Unilateral decision of either husband or wife after
marriage not to have child from the marrmge may amount o
cruelty.

(xiv) Where there has been a long period of continuous
separation, it may fairly be concluded that the matrimonial
bond is beyond repair. The marriage becomes a fiction though
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supported by a legal tie. By refusing to sever that tie, the law
in such cases, does not serve the sanctity of marriage; on
the contrar'y, it shows scant regard for the feelings and
emotions of the parties. In such like situations, it may lead to
mental cruelty.

Applymg the aforesaid- yardsticks, we find that the ingredients of cruelty
within the aforesaid meaning are not established in the instant case and the -
applicant/appellant having failed to provide foundation for the ground of cruelty is
not entitled to seek divorce on this ground. Though the applicant/appellant has
also sought divorce on the ground of desertion, he is found to have failed in
establishing that the respondent has deserted him since, 14.06.2006.

15. In paragraph 14 of statement of applicant/appellant, he admitted that the
respondent resided with him up to December, 2003. He was posted at Leh (J& K)
from January, 2004 to June, 2005. He stated on oath that the respondent did not
join him because she was to appear in the examination of MBA which was to be
held in the month of May/June. Applicant/appellant did not visit the parental
house of respondent-wife to bring her back. He did not ma.ke any effort to call
her back to mattimonial home.

16. . Clause (i-b) of sub-section (1) of Section 13 of the Hindu Marrlage Act
enables the applicant/appellant to seek divorce, if other party has deserted for a
continuous period of two years immediately preceding the presentation of the
petition. .. | )

Explanation with this provision reads as under :-

"13. Divorce-(I) Any marriage solemnized, whether before

or after the commencement of this Act, may, on a petition
presented by either the husband or the wife, be dissolved by a

decree of divorce on the ground that the other party—

(i-b) has deserted the . petitioner for a continuous
period of not less than fwo years 1mmedzately preceding the
presentation of the pentron

Explanation:- In this sub-section, the expression “desertion”
" means the desertion of the petitioner by the other party to the
marriage without reasonablé cause and without the consent or
against the wish of such party, and includes the wilful neglect of
the petitioner by the other party to the marriage, and its grammatical
variations and cognate expiessi‘ 3 shall be construed accordingly."

17. It is settled position of law as reiterated by the Supreme Court of India in
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the case of Lachman Uttamchand Kirpalani Vs. Meena alias Mofa, AIR 1964
Supreme Court 40 that in its essence desertion means the intentional permanent
- forsaking and abandonment of one spouse by the other without that other’s consent,
and without reasonable cause. For the offence of desertion so far as the deserting
spouse is concerned, two essential conditions must be there (1) the factum of
separation, and (2) the intention to bring cohabitation permanently to an end
(animus deserendi) Similarly two €lements are-essential so far as the deserted \
spouse is concerned:- (1) the absenée of consent, and (2) absence of conduct
giving reasonable cause to the spouse leaving the matrimonial home to form the
necessary intention aforesaid.

18. Learned trial judge has heid that it has not been proved by the apphcant/
appellant that the respondent-wife had deserted him.for a period of two years or
more without reasonable cause. Respondent has examined her mother Smt. Gayatri
Tiwari (DW-4). Ram Pavitra Pandey who was mediator in the marriage has also
been examined who has supported the contents of the written statement. After
appreciating the entire material on record, learned trial judge has found that the
alleged desertion. within the ineaning of section 13 (1)(i-b) of Hindu Marriage Act
was not caused by the respondent and instead she herself was humiliated by the
applicant/appellant and his family members This finding is not shown to have
been vitiated on any account.

Considering:the aforesaid, 1t was nghtly held by the learned trial judge that
the ground of desertion has also not been: established.

-~ 19. _Learned counsel for the applicant/appellant has been unable to demonstrate L
00ns1dcrat10n of any inadmissible evidence or npn-consideration of any material “- ..

admissible piece of evidence. This being so, there is no scope of interference in
the findings recorded by the learned trial judge in respect of alleged desertion.

20. Lastly, it is contended that it being a case of broken marriage, parties should
be relieved by passing a decree of divorce. Looking to the material on record, it is
a highly misconceived submission. Provisions of Hindu Marriage Act, 1955 do not
" provide for divorce merely on the ground of broken marriage, independent of sub-
section (1), (I-A) or (2) of section 13 of the said, Act. A person seeking divorce is
under an obligation to prove any of the grounds enumerated in law. If any of the
grounds is proved, the fact that the marriage between the parties is irrctrievably
broken provides additional support to the grant of decree of divorce. In the present
case, desertion for the purpose of ground under section 13(1) (i-b) is not féund to
--have been established. Non-applicant/respondent was to appear in the exarhination
of MBA and was therefore residing with her parents-as admitted by the applicant/
appellant hunself It did not amount to irretrievably broken marnage or separate
living without any reasonable cause and cannot be, further termed as causing
mental cruelty.

{»
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21. In the result, we do not find any force in this appeal, the same is hereby
dismissed. Appellant shall bear the cost of htlgatlon of the respondent to the tune
of Rs. 5.000/-, if already certified. .
Appeal dismissed.
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Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava

| 21 July, 2009*
KARIM BHAI' : Appellant
Vs, } o
STATE OF MAHARASHT RA & ors. b Respondents

A.  Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule 11 Rejection of )
plaint - Powers of Court - A plaint shall be rejected on the grounds mentioned in
the Rule, but the instances as given cannot be regarded as exhaustive of all the
cases, in: which the Court can reject the plaint or is limiting the inherent powers
of the Court in respect thereof - Provisions are procedural and enacted with an’
aim and object to prevent vexatious and frivolous litigation. (Para 22)
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. B.  Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule 11 - Rejection
" of plaint - Duty of Court - Court is also required fo see that the vexatious and

Jrivolous litigation should not be’ allowed to proceed so as to kill the time of
the Cour{ for nothing. (Para 22)
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C.  Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule ll(a) Rejection
of plaint - Where it does not disclose a cause of action - Mere writing that
plaintiff is having cause of action would in itself is not sufficient to hold that
plaintiff has disclosed the cause of action. (Para 24)
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Deepak Sharma; for the appellant. /
Rashmi Pandit & S.D. Bohare, G.A., for the respondent Nos. 1 to 6.
M.L. Pathak, for the respondent No.7. _

Ashok Kutumble with Amit Purohit, for the respondent No.14.

ORDER ...
AK. SHRIVASTAVA, J. :~Heard on the question of ddmission.

The order passed in this appeal shall also govern the disposal of connected
second appeals viz. Second Appeal No.494/05 (Khan Ali & others v. State of
Maharashtra Mothers) and Second Appeal No. 496/05 (Sajjad Hussairey. State
of Maharashtra & others).

2. This second appeal has been filed against the judgment and decree dated
12.1.2005 passed by the learned District Judge Ujjain in"dismissing the Civil Appeal .
NO0.14-A/04 filed by the appellant Karim Bhai against the order and decree dated
31.8.2004 passed by the leamed Fourth Civil Judge Class-I, Ujjain in Civil Suit

No.73-A/04, whereby the application under Order VII Rule '11 CPC filed by the *

defendants-respondents has been aliowed and the plaint has been rejected.

3.  The appellants havefiled Civil Suit in the Trial Court praying to decree the
civil spit for declaration that the entry made by the Registrar under M.P. Public
Trusts.Act, 1951 (for brevity the “Act”) on 10.07.1997 entering the suit property
as “Public- Frust’s” property is illegal; nonest, nullity in the eye of law, void ab
initio and is not binding on the plaintiffs-defendants. The plaintiffs have further
prayed that the judgment and decree passed by the Third Joint Civil Judge, Senior
- Division; Nagpur, in Special Civil Suit No. 143/1967 and confinning by the judgment
and decree passed by the Fourth Additional District Judge, Nagpur, in Regular
Civil Appeal No. 16/1987 and affirming by the judgment and decree passed by the
High Court of Judicature at Bombay, Nagpur Bench, Nagpur, in Second Appeal
No. 132/1992 and upheld by the Supreme Court of India ina Special Leave Petition
(Civil) No.25004 of 1996 and Review Petition No. 1075/1997 and the order passed
by the defendant no.6 (The Collector Nagpur, who is Registrar under M.P. Public
Trusts Act, 1951) in Miscellaneous Review Case No.8/1996-97 are illegal, nonest,
nullity in the eye of law, void ab initio and not binding on the plaintiffs and has
been obtained by fraud. A decree of injunction has also been sought against the
defendant no.6 directing him to delete the entry made by him in the Public Trust
Register on 10.7.1997 that the suit property is a public trust property.

~
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4, According to the plaintiff, the said property was purchased by him vide
registered sale deed dated 23.6.1979 from Maulana Hasan Noorani, who i3 the
father of defendant no.20, naimely Maulana Amiruddin, The plaintiffs brother is
Sajjad and theé wife-of Sajjad Bhai is the resident of Nagpur. The brother-in-law
(wife’s brother) of Sajjad Bhai also resides at Nagpur. On 27.2.1999, the plaintiff
came to know that the disputed property is Trust's property and on being inquired,
it was found that there was a long drawn litigation, which went upto the Apex
Court and it was held that the, snit property is the Trust’s property, hence, the
present suit has been filed by the plaintiff seeking the aforesa.ld reliefs.

5. An application under Order VII Rule 11 CPC. was filed on behalf of  the
defendant/respondent no.8, namely, Salim.” Fafar Chimnthanawala to reject the
plaint. According to the defenda.nt, the present suit is malafide, vexatious and frivolous.
In the application, it has been mentioned that the judgment delivered by the Supreme
Court.in Civil Appeal No. 1710/95 and1711/95 has attained finality. The Supreme
Court has specifically held that the propetties comprised in Ex. P/249 are thé Trust’s
“.properties and it was further held by.the Apex Court that it is no more open to contend

. that the properties mentioned in Ex.P/249 are not the Trust s properties. The copies of
: 'the Jjudgment of the Supreme Court were also filed alongvnth the application.

6. It has also been-stated in the application that the present suit is meritless and
is i abuse of the process of the Court. The suit property was sold to plaintiff by
the father of the defendant no.20, who was the party in the earlier round of litigation,

which travelled upto the Supreme Court and attained finality. In Paragraph II of
the application, it has been stated that the sale deed executed by the predecessor
of the defendant no.20 during the pendency of the Civil Suit was only with a view
to do ‘away with the Trust’s property. The predecessors of the present defendant
no.20 himself have been judicially held to be usurpers of the Trust’s propérties. In
the sale deed (a copy of which has been filed by the plaintiff) there is a spieciﬁc_:
clause that in case any-defect is found in the title, the defendant no.20 will re-
compensate the plaintiff. It has further been stated in the application that-the
- property in dispute has been throughout held to be the Trust’s property, which’
- attained finality since stamp. of. approval ‘was put by the Apex Court. '

7. Reply of the apphcatxon filed under Order VII Rule 11 CPC was filed by the
plaintiff.

8. The learned Trial Court did not pass any order on the application filed under
Order VII Rule i1 CPC and directed the defendants to file written statement.
Against the said order, the defendants filed Civil Revision before this Court, which
was dismissed. The order passed by this Court was assailed by the defendants in
the Supreme Court and the Apex Court by setting aside the order of this Court as
well as that -f the Trial Court directed to the learned Trial Court to decide the
application filed under Order VII Rule 11 CPC.
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9. According to the direction of the Supreme Court, the learned Ttial Court
decided the application under Order VII Rule 11, CPC holding that the plaint is
liable to be rejected. '

10. The plaintiff feeling aggrieved by the order of the learned Trial Cou_ft preferred
First Appeal, which has been dismissed by the impugned judgment and decree. In
this manner, this second appeal has been filed by the appellants.

11. I have heard Shri Deepak Sharma, learned counsel for the appellants and
_also heard Smt. Rashmi Pandlt and Shri S.D. Bohare learned Government
Advocates for respondents 1 to “6, Shri M. L. Pathak, Advocate for respondent
'10.7 and Shri Ashok Kutumble, Senior Advocate with Shri Amit Purohit, Advocate
_ for respondent no. 14.

- 12. Ihave also heard Shri Z. A, Haque, the learned counsel for the appeliants in
Second Appeal No-496/2005.

13, The contention of the learned counsel for the appellants is that the learned
Trial Court has allowed the application on three grounds that, (1) the suit of
plaintiff is hit by the doctrine of lis pendens; (2) barred by the dictum of res

Jjudicata; and (3) the plaintiff is not having any cause of action to file the suit

and, hence the plaint has been rejected. The Appellate Court has also affirmed”

the order of learned Trial Court. The contention of learned counsel is that this -

could hardly be-a ground to allow the application under Order VII Rule 11, CPC

and-to reject the'plaint at the threshold. In support of his ¢ontention, the learned -
counsel has placed heavy reliance on the decision of the Supreme Court State of .

Orrisa v. Klockner & Co., AIR 1996 SC 2]40

14. On the other ha.nd: the leamed counsel for the respondents argued in’ support
of the impugned judgment and submitted that the cogent reasons have been
assigned by the learned two Courts telow in passing the impugnéd judgment and
no interference is required since no substantial question of law is involved in this
appeal, therefore, this appeal and connected second appeals be dismissed. In
support of their contentlon the learned counsel have placed reliance on the
decisions Smt. Sulochana v. Rajendra Singh, 2008 (4) MPHT 136 (SC); Arjan
Singh v. PumtAhluwaha 2009 (1)MPLJ 495; Kedarnath v. Sheonarain, AIR
1970 SC 1717; and Sales Tax Commissioner, Indore v. M/s. J. Singh, AIR 1967
SC 1454,

15. Learned counsel for the respondents have further invited my attention by
submitting a certified copy of the judgment. of the High Court of judicature at
Bombay, Nagpur Bench, Nagpur in Second Appeal No.529/05 (Amiruddin Hasan

. Noorani Malak Saheb v. Salimbhai Mukhtar-Jafarbhai Chimthanawala &
others) dated August 24, 2007, directing Wakf Board to take note of recitals of
Paragraph 3 of the joint pursis mentioned in the order and in view of the Joint
Pursis all Civil Applications were stood disposed of.

F
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16. Having heard the learned counsel for the parties, I am of the view that this
appeal and the connected Second Appeals No-494/05 (Khan Ali & others .

State of Maharashtra & others) and No.496/05 (Sajjad Hussain v. State of
Maharashtra & others) deserve to be dismissed since no substantial question of
law is involved in these appeals.

17. = The learned counsel for the appellants did not dispute that in the earlier
round of litigation, the predecessor of the plaintiff was party. The said litigation
attained finality. The Supreme Court has categorically held in Paragraph 9 of the
order that the properties_mentioned in Ex.P/249 are Trust’s properties and the
said finding has become final and it is not open to contend that the properties
mentioned in Ex.P/249 is not the Public Trust’s properties. The learned counsel
for the appellants did not dispute rather has admitted that the suit property is also
included in Ex.P/249. This decision of Supreme Court has been reported in
Salimbhai Mukhtar Jafarbhai Chimthanawala v. Amiruddin S/0 Hasan
Noorani & anr, 1991 (1) SCALE, 389.

18. Leamned counsel for the appellants has also adlmtted passmg of the order of
High Court of judicature at Bombay, Nagpur Bench, Nagpur in Second Appeal
No. 529/05 dated 24.8.2007. -

19. In the earlier round of litigation, Hasan Noorani, who is the father of defendant-
respondent no.20, was the party and during the pendency of the earlier litigation,
the plaintiff-appellant bought the suit property on 23.6.1979. Thus, the plaintiff
purchased the suit property from a person who was already a party in earlier °
round of litigation, which travelled upto the Supreme Court and the point was put
to. rest, since in Ex P/249 of the earlier suit, the Supreme Court has categorically

held that for all practical purposes, the properties méntioned in this Exhibit B

(including the suit property} is the Trust’s property and, therefore, now the plaintiff
cannot re-agitate this point by filing the present suit.

20. The learned counsel for the appellants could not pomt dut That how and in
what marner, the judgment passed in the earlier suit is niot ‘binding on him. Merely
suit has been filed on the basis of alleged frand, according to me, in view of the
finding of the Supreme Court on Ex.P/249 and sinée the suit property has been
sold by the predecessor of defendant no. 20 and becduse the predecessor of
defendant no. 20 was the party in the earlier suit, the doctrine of lis pendens
would be applicable as well as the decision passed’in earlier suit would also
operate as res judicata in the present suit.

21. On reading of the plaint it appears to be manifestly vexatious, and meritless,
in the sense of not disclosing a clear right to sue and therefore, the Trial Court has
rightly exercised its power under Order VII Rule 11 CPC taking care to see that
the ground ment-oned in the said provision is fulfiiled. ’

- 22.  Under Order VII Rule 11 CPC, a plaint shall be rejected on the ground
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mentioned in the Rule, but the instances as given cannot be regarded as exhaustive
of all the cases, in which the Court can reject the plaint or is limiting the inherent
powers of the Court in respect thereof. The provisions of Order VII Rule 11 CPC
are procedural and they are enacted with an aim and object to prevent vexatious
and frivolous litigation. The Court is also required to see that the vexatious and
frivolous litigation should not be allowed to proceed so as to kill the time of the
Court for nothing.

23.  According to me, the given case in hand is nothing but a vexatious and
frivolous litigation which is not permitted to proceed.

24. I have gone through the reasonings assigned by the learned Appellate Court
dismissing thé appeal and I find those reasonings to be cogent. The decision of
Klockner (Supra) placed reliance by the learned counsel for the appellants speaks
that the' powers under Order VII Rule 11 (a), CPC should not be exercised only
on the ground that the plaintiff has no cause of action. According to me, the said
decision is not applicable because taking the cumulative effect, apart from the
reasonings, which have been assigned by the learned First Appellate Court and by
this Court hereinabove, the plaint does not disclose a cause of action. Mere writing
that the plaintiff is having cause of action would in itself is not sufficient to hold
that the plaintiff has disclosed the cause of action. If all the circumstances are
taken into cumulative effect, I am of the view that plaint does not disclose any
cause of action.

25. For the reasons stated hereinabove, this appeal and the connected
Second Appeals No.494/05 (Khan Ali & others v. State of Maharashtra &
others) and No-496/05 (Sajjad Hussain v. State of Maharashtra & others)
are hereby dismissed since no substantial question of law is involved in these
appeals. .

Appeal dismissed.

LLL.R. [2009] M. P 3172
APPELLATE CI_VIL
Before Mr. Justice A.K, Shrivastava
23 July, 2009*

BHANWARLAL (DEAD) THRQUGH L.RS.

SMT. SUSHILA BAI & anr. ... Appellants
Vs.
CHANDRA SHEKHAR VASHISHTHA | ... Respondent

A. Accommodation Centrol Act,' M.P. (41 of 1961), Section 12(1)(c)
- Changed the user of accommodation - Trial Court passing a decree w/s 12(1)(c)
and First Appellate Court affirming the findings - Held - First Appellate Court

*8.A. No.568/2007 (Indore)
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erred in substantial error of law by affirming the judgment and decree passed
- by the Trial Court w/s 12(1)(c) without giving any reason. (Para 12)

@, WA T afttEm, 99 (1961 BT 41), \RT 12 (1)) —
P I7ERT # uReds ~ fEReT =mEad 3 art 12(0) /@) P e e ake S sk
yetR arfiels ~marea 3 frepst @ gfe &) — affiRa — vom sl = 3
+ a1 B TROr gaTy, ferReT <rrer gRT WIRY SR 12(1) (@) @ fofa e R Y gie
aﬂﬁmﬁw?ﬁaﬁl

B. Accomrpod,atmn Contrnl Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Section 12(1)(i)

- Acquired suitable accommodation for residential purpose - Tenant alleging
that the acquired property is in dilapidated condition - Held - Tenant admitted
that he is residing with his family in the purchased house it consists of nine
rooms plus latrine & bathroom having electrical and water fittings - Tenant
acquired a suitable accommodation for his residence - Merely because First
Appellate Court has mentioned that tenant is also residing in the house
purchased in the name of his wife, would in itself is not a ground to hold that
the tenant is not residing in his own house - Decree affirmed - Appeal
disrlzissé’d (Para 14)
LEE RN PR st Am (1961 @1 41) — oRT 12(1)@mE) —
‘Wm$mmwaﬂm FRRRR &1 ftrmer for afta wwafa
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. A.S. Garg with Aditya Garg, for the appellants
Vishal Lashkari, for the respondent

JUDGMENT

- AK. .Si!RIVASTAVA, J. :~This second appeal has been filed by the tenant/
defendants; who has lost from both the Courts below.

2. The plaintiff Chandra Shekhar filed a suit for eviction against his tenant
Bhanwarlal. During the pendency of the Civil Suit, defendant-Bhanwarlal died
and his legal representatives Smt. Sushila Bai and Shekhar Kanswa (present
appellants) have been brought on record.

3. The plaintiff respondent filed a suit for ewctlon on, the relationship of
the landlord and tenaut by highlighting the grounds env1saged under Section 12
(1) (b), (c) and (i) of the M.P. Accommodation Control Act, 1961 (for brevity
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the “Act”). According to the plaintiff, the defendant has inducted a sub-tenant in
the suit accommodation and has converted the residential portion for non-residential
purposes. Further, it has been pleaded that the defendant has acquired an
accommodation suitable for his residence and he is residing in it. On these three
grounds, it has been prayed by the plaintiff that the suit be decreed.

4, The defendant-Bhanwarlal filed written—s{atpment‘ and refuted the plaint
averments and specifically denied that any of the ground is made out to get the
suit accommodation vacated. -

5. The learned Trial Court after frammg the necessary 1ssues and recordmg the
evidence of the parfies, decreed the suit of the plaintiff on the ground envisaged

- under Section 12 (1) (¢).and (i) of the Act. The learned Trial Court did not find the
ground under Section 12 (1) (b) of the Act to be proved hence, d1d not pass a
decree on this ground.

6.  The defendant assailed the judgment and decree passed by the leamed Trial
Court. The plaintiff also filed cross-objections agitating the ground under Section
12(1) (b) of the Act and prayed that a decree be passed on this ground also.

7. The learned First Appe]late Court dismissed the appeal of tenant and also )
dismissed the cross- objections filed by the landlord.

8. Im this m;mner this". second appeal has been filed by the appellants/ :

tenant assailing the judgment and decree of eviction passed by the two Courts
below.

9. This Court gn 14 5.2008 admitted this second appeal on the followmg
substantial qucsnons of law :-

M. Whethe_r the learned First Appellate Court erred in substantial

* error of law by not deciding the appeal of appellant assailing the
judgment and decree. passed on the grounds envisaged under
Section 12 (1) (c) of the Act by the learnied Trial Court?

2. Whether the decree passed under, Secuon 12 (1) (1) of the
Act by the learned Trial Court,and. afﬁrmed by learned First

~ Appellate Court is dehors to the provigions of law since the house
is of the wife of defendant No. 2"

10. 1have heard Shri A.S. Garg, learned Senior Counsel with Shri Aditya Garg,’
Advocate for appellants.and Shri Vishal Lashkari, Jearned counsel for the
respondent. Having heard the learned counsel for the part:tes I am of the view
that this appeal deserves to be dismissed.

Regarding substantial gquestion of law No.l:-

11. The learned Trial Court framed issue no.8 in respect to the ground of eviction
under Section 12 (1) (c) of the Act and in Para 27 onwards has held that the
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defendant has changed the user of the accommodation and hence decreed the
suit on this ground.

12. The tenant by filing an appeal challenged the judgment and decree passed by
"learned Trial Court. On going through the entire judament, I do not find any
discussion of the learned First Appellate Court holding that the ground under Section
12 (1) (c) of the Act stands proved. Hence, according to me, the learned First
Appellate Court erred in substantial error of law by affirming the judgment and
~ decree passed by the lcarned Trial Court under Section 12 (1) (¢) the Act. This
substantial question of law is thus answered in favour of appellants and against
the respondent -

Regarding substantial question of law No. 2:-

13. On going through Para 3 clause 1 (a) of the plaint, this Court finds that there
is a specific pleading of the plaintiff stating that défendant-Bhanwarlal has
purchased a house Beanng House No-49/3, Ward No. 22 and has started living in
.that house with his fazmly members. The averment made in this Para of the plaint
has. been denied by the deéfendant in the written-statement. According to the
defendant, the said house is in dilapidated condition and he is still residing alongwith
.. his brother in the suit accommodatmn In order to prove this ground, the plaintiff
" has filed certified copy of the. sale.deed (Ex.P/9) of defendant-Bhanwarlal. On
.going through Ex.P/9, this Court finds that the said house was purchased by
defendant-Bhanwarlal on 5.7. 1991. In the sale deed, it has been mentloned that
the said house is double storey. The ground floor consists of five rooms and on the
first floor, there are four rooms, After the death of defendant-Bhanwarlal the
present appellants were -brought on record as defendants in the ‘Trial Court.
Appellant Shekhar Kanswa, who is defendant no.2, exammed himself as DW1. In
cross-exammatmn Para 30, it has been specxﬁcally admitted by him that vide Ex.
P/9; one house was purchased by his father (defendant- -Bhanwarlal). Further, he
has admitted that the said house was purchased for residential purposes and ﬂus
house consists of latrine and bathroom. Electric fitting is also there and the’house
is also having water connection. Further, he has admitted that this house is double
storey. He has further admitted that on the ground floor, there are as many as 5
rooms and on the first floor there are 4 rooms. Further, he has admitted that after

puruhasmg the house, his father started living in it,

14. In this view of the matter, I am of the view that the ground under Section 12
(1) (i) of the Act has been made out by the landlord-to get the suit accommodation
vacated. On account of admission by the defendant that he is residing with his
family and looking to the description of the house, since it consists of as many as
9 rooms having electrical and water fittings and also consists of latrine and
bathroom, I am of the view that the tenant has acquired the vacant possession of
a accommodation suitable for his residence. Merely becaunse in Para 33, it has
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been mentioned by the learned First Appellate Court that the defendant is also

residing in the house purchased in the name of his wife, would in itself is not a

ground to hold that the defendant is not residing in his own hounse, which he has

purchased vide registered sale deed (Ex. P/9). The learned First: Appellate Court

in Para 33 has also held that in House No.49/3, which was purchased by defendant-

Bhanwarlal, he is residing comfortably. In this view of the matter, I am of the

view that the decree passed by learned Trial Court and affirmed by learned First
Appellate Court under Section 12 (1) (i) of the Act does not run dehors. to. the-
provisions of the law. The substantial question of law is, thus, answered against
the appellants and in favour .of the respondent..

15. At this juncture, the learned counsel for the appellants submits that some -
breathing time may be allowed to-him to vacate the suit premises because in the
suit premises their ancestors wereremdmg since 1964,

16. This prayer has been mgorously o,p,posed by Shri Vishal Lashkari, learned
counsel for the respondent/landlord; * - -

17. Looking to the facts and- cucumstances of the case, | hereby direct to vacate
the suit premises within a period of one-year on the following conditions :-

. I} The appellants shall vacate the suit premises on or before
g 31.7.2010 and would not create any third party’s interest;

. II) the appellants shall deposit the costs of the two Courts. below
,on or before 31.8.2009 in the Trial Court/ Executing Court;

I théappe]lants shall deposit the entire rent due, if any, on or -
before 31.8.2809 and shall continue to deposit the monthly -
' re;rt strictly in terms of Section 13 of the Act :

IV) the respondent shall be free to withdraw the.amount of costs **
aéewell as.the rent, which shall be deposited by the appellants;

V) an undedaking satisfying the aforesaid conditions shall be
- submitted by the appellants in the Trial Court/ Executing Court
on or-before'31.8.2009; and
Vi) if any of the condition is violated by the appellants, the
éspondent shall be free to get the decree executed.
18. For thereasons stated hereinabove, this appeal fails and is hereby d1sm1sse.d

with costs. Counsel’s fee Rs.3,000/-, if pre-certified.
Appeai dlsmzssed
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Abhay M. Naik

12 August, 2009*
OMPRAKASH & anr. ... Appellants
Vs. - . o
DHARMA BAI & anr. " ... Respondents

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 67, Specific Relief Act, 1963,
Section 20 - Agreement to sell executed by an illiterate person - Proof of
execution - No specific denial that the sale dgreement bears thumb impression
of illiterate person - Plaintiff’s husband stated or cath that he had paid the
amount to the illiterate person and after counting the money illiterate person
had put his thumb impression on the sale agreement - In absence of cross-
examination on this point, it-would be presumed to be correct - It may also be
presumed that illiterate person was well aware of the contents of the document
on which he puts his thumb impression, unless he pleads and proves that the
money received by him was for some another particular purpose. (Para 15)
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B.  Specific-Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 20 - Suit Jfor specific
performance of contract -vH{he.n plaintiff has to prove that he was bona fide
purchaser - Suit. resisted by defendants that there was earlier agreement and
this fact was in thé knowledge:of plaintiff - Held - No such agreement was
placed on record - On the contrary, defendants have not even-appeared in
the witness box to establish the existence of earlier agreement - Plaintiff and
her husband had.nowhere admitted the existence of earlier agreément - In
absence of establishment of earlier agreement, plaintiff was not required fo

prove that she was -bona fide purchaser - Decree for specific performance _-,;

rightly granted by the first appellate Court. .+ (Para 16) .
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Vilas Tikhe, for the appellants. k
R.P. Rathi, for the respondent No.1..
V.S. Chaturvedi, G.A., for the respondent No.2/State.

JpDGMENT

Amnay M. Naix, J. :~This appeal has been preferred against the jlidgﬁlent
dated 10-02-2000 passed by the Court of First Additional District Judge, Guna in
Civil Appeal No.28-A/1998. : ;

2. Facts relevant for the purpose of this appeal are that plaintiff/respondent
No. 1 instituted a suit for specific performancé and perpetual injunction,
mainly with the allegations that defendant/appellant No. 1 was recorded
Bhumiswami of the land comprised in survey No.170/1/2 in area 0.490 hectare
situated in village Dhanankhedi, Tahsil and District Guna. On mediation of Jalam
Singh, father of defendant/appellant No.l, appellant No.2 entered into an
agreement of sale in favour of plaintiff in respect of the suit land for a consideration
of Rs.10,000/-. Initially, agreement was oral and possession was delivered to the
plaintiff pursuant thereto. On 16-12-1994, an agreement was reduced into
writing and entire consideration was received by the appellant No.2 in cash. Plaintiff
was short of expenses of registered document, therefore, it was agreed that the
plaintiff after harvesting of crops in the month of May 1995 would get the sale deed
executed from appellant No.2. Negotiations in respect of agreement were made by
Ratanlal Kirar-husband of plaintiff on her behalf and consideration was also paid by
him on plaintiff’s behalf to the appellant No.2. Similarly, possession of the suit land
was also obtained by plaintiff’s son on her behalf. On 23-07-1995, appellant No.2
asked the plaintiff’s husband to remove his possession and threatened him of
dispossession, in case possession is not removed. It is further stated in the plaint
that mutation in favour of plaintiff was already made by Patwari on the basis of sale
agreement which was well within the knowledge of appellant No.2 before he
purchased it from appellant No. 1. Thus, both the defendants/appellants were and
are bound by the sale agreement dated 16-12-1994. Therefore, plaintiff instituted a
~ suit against defendants/appellants for specific performance and perpetual injunction,
testraining them from interfering into pla:ntiff’s possession. In alternative plea, refund
of consideration was sought.

LY
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3.
thereby allegations contained in the plaint. It was denied that appellant No.2, entered
mto an agreement of sale in favour of the plaintiff and had delivered possession
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Defendants/appellants submitted a joint' written -statement, refuting

of the suit land in pursuance of it. Alleged written agreement dated 16-12-1994

was also denied. It was further denied that a sum of Rs.10,000/- was recelved by

defendant No.2 from plamtlff

4,

. In additional plea it was stated that appellant No.2 had a]ready entered into
.an agreement of sale in favour of appellant No.1 on 16-08-1994 and pursuant
-thefeto a registered sale deed was executed by him in favour of appellant

No. } on 14-03-1995, therefore, the alleged subsequent agreement in favour of
‘plaintiff is void and ineffective.

It is'pertinent to note that it was pleaded in para 3 of the wntten staternent ~

©L50
-that appellant No.2 puts; his . thumb. impression being illiterate: In case, if an

agreement has been got prepared by the plaintiff taking wundue advantage of
illiteracy of appellant No.2, the same is not binding and is not enforceable Although,

the mutation in favour of plaintiff was admitted by defendarifs, it was' stated that

the same could not have been effected on.the hasis of merely an agreement. This
apart, it was stated that defendant No. I has been in possession of the suit land
since 16-08-1994 and, possession could not have been delivered on 16-12-1994 to
the plaintiff as alléged in the plaint.

6.

9.

After framing of iséues, plaintiff exarmined herself (PW-l), Ratanlal (PW-2),
Ramgopal (PW-3) and Shyamlal (PW-4) in her evidence.
. agreement dated 16-12-1994 (Ex-P/1) in her documentary evidence.

- 7.
8.

She produced

Defendants/appellants did not adduce either documentary or oral evidence.

Learned trial Judge vide judgment and decree dated 26-08-1998 has held
that the alleged agreement dated 16-12-1994 was not duly proved and-that plaintiff
has failed to prove readiness on her part to get the sale deed executed. Accordingly,
the suit was dismissed.

substantial questions of law:

i~  Whether the lower appeﬂate Court committed error
in granting the decree in spite of the admission made by P.W.-2 in
para 6 of his evidence that he had knowledge of the agreement

dated 16-08-1994 executed by defendant No.1 in favour of

defendant No.2?

ii- Whether the findings recorded by the lower appellate Court
is perverse and contrary to the admission made by P.W.-1 and
P.W.-27

Aggrieved by the aforesaid, plaintiff preferred an appeal which having been
allowed, the present appeal has been sybmitted which is heard on the following
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iii- Whether the plaintiff, is a bonafide purchaser and in spite

of knowledge of agreement dated 16-08-1994, executed an

agreemer.t for purpose of suit land vide Ex-P/1 dzted 16-12-1994

and lower appellate Court committed legal error in decreeing the
suit ?

10.  Shri Vilas Tikhe and Shn R.P. Rathi, learned counsel for the parties addressed
this Court on the aforesaid substantial questions of law.

11, As regards substantial question of Jaw No. 1, it is contended by Shri Vilas
T1khe "learned counsel for the appellants that Ratanlal, husband of the plaintiff
has admitted in" paragraph no.6 of his statement that he had knowledge about
the agreement dated 16/8/1994, set up by the defendant No.2 in his favour. On
“perusal, it is found that the said witness who happens to be husband of the plaintiff,

has stated in this paragraph that he talked to the Patwari for mutation, after about
15 days from the date of agreement in favour of the plaintiff. Patwari had assured
that the mutation would be done on the basis of the said document without even
registered deed. This witness has further stated that Omprakash, defendant
No.2 had asked Ratanlal that why did he get the document prepared in his favour.

He was apprised of the same by Omprakash. This witness has clearly- stated
in this paragraph that when the document (i.e., agreement to sale in favour of the
plaintiff) was executed this witness had no knowledge about the alleged agreement
in favour of Omprakash. .

12.  Fromthe gist of events stated hereinabove by the said w1tness in pa.agraph
no.6, it is revealed that it was never admitted by the plaintiff’s husband that he
_'was aware of the alleged agreement in favour of Omprakash. On the contrary, it .
was clearly stated in the statemerit that the said witness (husband of the plaintiff)
was not aware of the alleged agreement in favour of ' Omprakash ‘when the
" agreement to sell in favour of the plamuff was executed.” In view of the aforesald :
- substantlal question of law No. 1 is decided against the appellant.

13, As regards substantial question of law No.2, it is stated by the learned
counsel for the appellant that Imratlal, defendant/appellant No.2 was an illiterate
and the agreement to sell contained in Ex.P/l is not-duly proved by the plaintiff
'inasmuch as- the contents of the document are not proved to have been explained
to defendant No:2 and are further not shown to have-been accepted by him at the
time of putting the thumb impression. Reliance has been placed for this purpose
on the decision of this-court in the case of Dhaniram V. Karan Singh, 1985
M.PW.N. S.N. 540, wherein it has been held that in case of execution by an
illiterate person, it has to be proved that the executant was made aware of the
contents of the document before execution and he had accepted the same.

14.  Normally, the aforesaid is the position of law when execution of a document
by an illiterate is disputed. In the present case, defendant lmratlal is admittedly an
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illiterate person, who has put thumb impression on the Vakalatnama as well as
written statement. Plaintiff’s case is that lmratlal agreed to sell the suit property
to the plaintiff on negotiation through Jalam Singh, father of defendant No.2 for a
consideration of Rs.10,000/-. Entire consideration was received by Imratlal and
pursuant thereto, possession of the suit land was delivered to the-plaintiff. It was
initially agreed orally which was later on reduced into writing on 16/12/1994.
Defendants No. 1 and 2 submitted joint written statement refuting thereby the
plaint averments. However; it is 1mporta.nt to note that in paragraph no. 3 of the

" written statement it has been stated in specific that the defendant No. 3 does not

put signature but puts thumb impression. If the plaintiffs have taken undue advantage
of the same, it has no Iegal significance.

15. . Thus, it may be seen that the defendants Nol and 2 have not i specific
) denied that the sale agreement contained in Ex.P/l1 bears his thumb impression.
Plaintiff in her statement has stated that her husband participated in the proceedings
of agreement on her behalf. Her husband Ratanlal appeared as PW-2 who has
stated on oath about the terms and condition of the agreement. He has stated in
specific' that he had paid Rs.10,000/- to lratlal and that lmratlal after counting
the money, had put his thumb impression on the sale agreement contained in Ex.
- P/1. His this version that imratlal put his thumb impression after counting money,

. -has not been cross-examined at all. Similarly, he was not cross-examined on his

Statement that Imratlal had received Rs. 10,000/- and had counted it. In the absence
of cross-examination on this point, it would be presumed that the version of PW-2
that imratlal had put his signature on the sale agreement (Ex.P/1) after counting
and receiving Rs.10,000/-as consideration, is admitted to the defendants. An

- 1illiterate person who accepts money as consideration, counts it and puts his °
thumb impression thereafter in token thereto, may be conveniently presumed to

be well aware of the contents of the document on which he puts his thumb
impression, unless he pleads and proves that the money received by him was for
some another particular purpose. In the written statement, it has been nowhere
pleaded by Imratlal that the money was received by him for consideration for
some other purpoSe No such suggestion was made to PW-2 in his cross-
examination. Above all, it may be seen that the defendants have not even dadred to
appear in the witness box. In the peculiar facts and circumstances as stated herein
above, law laid down by this court in the case of Dhaniram (supra) has no
applicability and the findings recorded by the lower appellate court are thus not
found to be perverse.

16. As regards third substantial question of law,it is observed that it was for
the defendant/appellant No.l to prove the existence of the alleged agreement dated
16/8/1994. No such agreement was placed on record by the defendants either in
the cross-examination or in their own evidence. On the contrary, defendants
have not even appeared in the witness box to establish the existence of the alleged
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agreement dated 16/8/1994. While deciding substantial question of law No. 1, it
has already been held that the plaintiff or her husband (PW-2) has nowhere admitted
the existence of the aforesaid alleged agreement. In the absence of establishment
of existence of the alleged agreement dated 16/8/94, plaintiff was not required to
prove that he was bonafide purchaser. On the contrary, defendant Imratlal having
executed the sale agreement in favour of the plaintiff after receiving consideration
is bound to execute registered sale-deed in favour of the plaintiff as directed by
the learned lower appellate court. Plaintiff and her husband both have stated on
cath that Imratlal had agreed to sell the suit land to the plaintiff in the presence of
Omprakash (appellant No.1) and his father Jalam Singh. Both these persons
have not appeared in the witness box to rcﬁ;tef 1t. Thus, the lower appellate court
is not found to have conmitted’ any etror. m gfanting a decree for speclﬁc
performance in favour of the plaintiff. Substa.ntlal question of Iaw No.3 is also
decided against the appelant.

17. In the result, appeal being without merits is hereby dismissed, however
with no .order as to costs, :
Appeal dismissed.
L.L.R. [2009]' M. P., 3182
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari

26 August, 2009* , .
SHOBHA MISHRA. & anr. . ..,;Appellants
Vs. ‘
VINOD KUMAR & ors. - ' Respondents

A.  Civil Procedire Code (5 of 1908), Order 21 Rule 97 - Resistance
or obstruction to possession of immovable property - Application/objectiqn
how to be adjudicated - Holding the inquiry by Executing Court does not
mean to adduce the evidence but the inquiry means the satisfaction of thé
Court in the available circumstancéy with respect of objections raised by the
objectors - Court is not bound to record the evidence or direct the parties fo
adduce the evidence in support of the objections. S (Para 9)
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*S.A. No.1415/2007 (Jabalpur)
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B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 21 Rule 97 - Resistance
or obstruction to possession of immovable property - Married daughters of
deceased tenant filed objections that they were not impleaded as party and
no opportunity of hearing given to them, therefore, decree is not binding -
Held - Objectors did not have any right to inherit the tenancy right as member
of the family of d¢ceased tenant - Objectors were neither in possession of
the premises neor paid the rent - Objections rightly dzsmrssed by-executing
Court and appellate Court. (Para 7)
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Cases referred :

AIR 1997 SC 856, 1997 MPWN (I) Note 55, AIR 1963 SC 468, AIR 1998
SC 1754, (2004) 2 SCC MPLJ 310.

Neeraj Ashar, for the appellants.
Rakesh Sharma, for the respondent Nos.1 & 2.

ORDER

U. C. MarEsEwWARI, J.:—The appellants/ objectors have directed this appeal
under Section 100 of CPC being aggrieved by the judgment and decree dated
14.08.2007 passed by District Judge, Betul in Civil Regular Appeal No.9-A/2007
affirming the order.dated 6.3.2007 and 20.2.2007 passed by Additional Civil Judge
Class-I, Betul in Exeputmn Case No.175-A/00 (T. D No.23/06) dismissing their
separate applications ﬁled under Order 21 Rule 97 of CPC.

2. The facts giving risé to this appeal in short are that the respondents No.1
and 2 herein filed a Civil Original Suit No.20-A/99 against the respondénts No.3
to 5 for eviction with respect of some premises the same was decreed by the trial
Court vide judgment and decree dated 29.6.2002, on challenging the same by the
respondents No.3 to 6 in their two separate Civil Regular Appeals No.3-A/03 and
15-A/03 the the same were dismissed, thereafter respondents No.3 to 6 filed S.
A. No.456/03, on consideration the same was also dismissed by this Court vide

. order dated 11.1.2005. Accordingly, aforesaid decree passed by the trial Court

had affirmed against the respondents No.3 to 6. Subsequently on filing the execution

- proceedings by the respondents No.l and 2 against respondents No.3 to 6 for

taking possession of the premises and recovery of the sum, the appellants herein
respectively filed their separate applications under Order 21 Rule 97 of CPC
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stating that initially their father and the predecessor of respondents No.3 to 6
naniely Nandlal Tiwari was tenant in the disputed premises and after his death
they along with respondents No.3 to 6 inherited such rights in the disputed
accommodation and in such capacity they are also in possession of such
accommodation as a tenant. The aforesaid decree was obtained by the respondents
No.1 and 2 without impleading them to be the party as defendants, as such without
giving any opportunity of hearing to them, hence such decree is neither binding
nor executable against them and resisted the executjon proceeding on such ground. -

. 3. The averments of such applications were opposed by the respondents No.1-

and 2 in their reply stating that the appellants are neither thé tenant nor in possession
of the disputed accommodation, hence, they did not have any locus-standi to resist
the execution of the decree. It is also stated by the respondents that the present
appellants never inducted in the tenant premises. The married daughter of the
tenant could not be treated as a member of the family. The rent of the disputed
accommodation was not paid for a longer period i. e. years together by any of the
appellants.

4. After hearing the parties on consideration the executing Court vide Order
dated 6.3.2007 dismissed the applications of the appellants holding that they did
not have any right to resist the execution of the aforesaid decree of eviction. On
challenging both the orders jointly by the appellants before sub-ordinate appellate
Court, after extending the opportunity of hearing the same -was also dismissed.
Thereafter the appellanis have come forward to this Court with this appeal.

5.  Shri Neeraj Ashar, learned appearing counsel of the appellants after taking
-me through the judgments and decree passed in the aforesaid Civil Original Suit,
which have been later upheld up to the second appeal, as stated above, said that it
is undisputed fact on record that the appellants, were not impleaded as defendants
in the original suit at any stage of suit or in the appeal. While after the demise of
Nandlal Tiwari, the appellants being his daughters have also inherited the tenancy
right in thé disputed premises, in such premises such decree could not be executed
against them but without considering such aspect both the Courts below have
committed error in'dismissing their objections filed under Order 21 Rule 97 of
CPC. He further said that the procedure prescribed under the provisions of Order
21 Rule 97 to Rule 99 of CPC have not been followed by the executing Court to
consider their applications; as the opportunity to adduce the evidence was not
extended to them and their objections have been dismissed without making any
elaborate inquiry and such illegal order has been upheld by the first appellate “
Court under the wrong premises and prayed for admission of this appeal on the
proposed substantial questions of law mentioned in the appeal Memo. He also
placed his reliance_on reported decisions in the matter of “Rrahmdeo Chaudhary
v. Rishikesh Prasad Jaiswal” reported in AIR 1997 S.C.856 and in the matter of

[+
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Mumc:pal Council, Mau Vs. Mata Prasad Yadav reported m 1997 MPWN
Vol-1 Note 55.

6.  Having heard the counsel at length, I have gone through the record, all the
judgments and decree passed in Civil Original Suits and their respective appeals
along with the impugned orders passed in execution case @nd also the judzment of
first appellate Court. It is.apparent that the aforesaid suit for eviction was filed
on some available grounds including the ground .of arrears of rent by the
respondents No.1 and 2 against the respondents No.3 to 6 stating them to be in |,
possession of the tenanted accommodation after the death of Nandlal Tiwari,
their predecessor and the same was decreed up to ‘the second appeal by this
Court. Thereafter on filing the execution proceedifigs by respondents No.1 and 2
against the respondents No.3 to 6 for taking possession.of the disputed property
and recovery of the arrears of rent, the impugned ayphcatwns under Order 21
Rule 97 of CPC were filed by the appellants to resist the execution of decree
stating themselves to be the legal representatives of the: deceased Nandlal Tiwari
and without impleading them the decree has been obtained, hence the same is not
binding against them.

7. As per findings of both the Courts below appellant No.1 being married
daughter did_not have any right to inherit the tenancy right as member of the
family of Nandlal Tiwari. Besides this at any point of time any of the appellants
have not paid the rent to respondent No.1 and 2. It is also held that in the eviction
suit the persons who are in possession of the disputed accommodation and paying
the rent as tenant to the landlord are only necessary parties. In such premises by
holding that they were neither in possession of the premises nor paid the rent their
applications were dismissed by the executing Court, on filing the appeal by them,
the same were also dismissed by the- appellate Court.

8. Inview of law laid down by the Apex Court in the matter of Kanji Manji
Vs. The trustees of the Port of Bombay reported in (AIR 1963 8. C. 468), holding
that quite notice to one of the. jeint tenant to determine the case and also the Suit
for ejectiment against oneof the joint tenant is good, the approach of the Courts
below does not appear to be perverse. As per concurrent findings of both the
Courts below the appellants could not prove their independent tenancy right by
filing any documents showing they are in possession of the disputed accommodation
as tenant. It is apparent fact on record that at any point of time either of the
appellants has not paid the rent of the disputed accommodation to respondent
No.l and 2. In such premises also the approach of the Courts below do not
appear to be perverse.

9.  So for objection of the appellants' counsel that without extending the
opportunity to adduce the evidence their applications have been dismissed contrary
to the settled proposition of law laid down by the Apex Court in Brahmdeo
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Chaudhary’s case (Supra) is concerned, in view of aforesaid discussion, the
principle laid down in cited case is not applicable here; the execution of the decree
was resisted by the objectors in such case on the basis of some independent
rights, title and interest in the decreetal property, which is not the situation here.
Besides this in my opinion to decide such objections filed under Order 21 Rule 97
of CPC, the executing Court is not bound to extend the opportunity to the parties
for adducing the evidence but if deems necessary then the Court can direct the
party to adduce the evidence in support of such objections. Under the aforesaid
provisions holding the inquiry does not mean to.adduce the evidence but the inquiry
means the satisfaction of the Court in the avallable circumstances with respect of
objections raised by the objectors. In each case the Court is not bound to record
- the evidence or direct the parties to adduce the evidence in support of the
objections. My aforesaid view is based on the principle laid by the Apex Court in
the matter of Silverline Forum Pvt. Ltd. Vs. Rajiv Trust and another reported
in AIR 1998 5. C. 1754 in whigh it is held as urnder :

“12-13. It is clear that executing Court can decide whether the
resistor or obstructor is a person bound by the decree and he
refuses to vacate the property. That question also squarely falls
within the adjudicatory process contemplated in Order 21, Rule
- 97(2) of the Code. The adjudication mentioned therein need not
necessarily involve a detailed enquiry or collection of evidence.
Court can make the adjudication on admitted facts or even on the

averments made by the resistor. Of course the Court can direct - ._.,

the parties to adduce evidence for such determination if the Court
deems it necessary.” :

10.  On arising the occasion the aforesaid view has been further followed by

this Court in the matter of Hamid Khan Ansari Vs Lilabai reported in 2004 (2)
MPLJ 310. X

11.  In the aforesaid premises, 1 have not found any perversity in the impugned
order of the executing Court as well as the judgments of the appellate Courts
giving rise to any question of law much less the substantial question of law requiring
any interference under Section 100 of CPC at this stage. Consequently, the appeal
being devoid of any merits; the same deserves to be and is hereby dismissed at
the stage of motion hearing.

12. The appeal is dismissed as indicated above.
Appeal dismissed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
quare Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava & Mrs. Justice Sushma Shnvastava

15 May, 2009* ,
STATE OF M.P. Appellant
Vs. -~ ‘ .
'HABIB AHMAD & anr. - * ... Respondents

A."" Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 154 - FIR
- FIR is not a substantive piece of evzdence - Can be used for contradiction

_and corroboration. . (Para 16)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 - Expert opinion - Rigor
mortis - Presence of rigor moriis varies from person to person - There is no
barometer in order to mdzcate that when the process of rigor mortis would
start.” . (Paras 18 & 33)
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C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act, 1872,

-Section 3 - Reliability of witness - Deceased a pillion rider going on scooter

with eye witness - After stopping the scooter, deceased was assaulted by

_knife - Conduct. of eye witness in not informing the family members of the
" deceased about the incident and running away from the place of occurrence

immediately after the incident not unnatural as no one would dare to remain
present - As this witness became perplexed, he could not see the other
witnesses - Witness-reliable. (Para 22)
T =TT WIRAT (1860 FT 45), ©IRT 302, WEG afAFEE, 1872, ONT 3
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D. Criminal Procédure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 - Non-
compliance - There is prompt FIR - Police reached on the spot immediately -

*Cr.A. No.269/1994 (Jabalpur)
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Spot map prepared mentioning the crime number etc - Dead body sent for
postmortem mentioning the summary story of case - Assault by respondent
No.1 also mentioned in application addressed to Doctor - Non-compliance
of S. 157 would not be fatal to the prosecution. (Para 32)

Y. Tve AT wfedn, 1973 (1974 $T 2), ORT 157 — ST —
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E. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 157 - Spot
map ~ Spot map prepared in the presence of eye witnesses - Eye witness also
signatory to-spot map - If the place where the witness was standing is not
shown, it would not dilute the case of the prosecution. . 7 (Para 34)
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F.  Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 201 - :Causing disappearance
of evidence - No iota of evidence that cloths of respondent No.l were seized
Jrom the house of respondent No.2 - No evidence that respondent No.2 washed
the blood stained cloths of respondent No.l - Acquittal proper. (Para 37)

4.  <ve GfEdr (1860 @ 45), ©RT 201 — WE & TG €T HIRG
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1997 8C 2193, AIR 1986 SC 1769, AIR 1983 SC 680, (2002) 3 SCC 57.

T.K. Modh, Dy.A.G., for the appellant/State.
Vijay Nayak, Anand Nayak & S.A. Wakil, for the respondent No.1.
Satyam Agrawal, for the respondént No.2.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by

A.K. SerivasTava, J. :—Feeling aggrieved by the judgment of absolvitur dated 13/
6/1993 passed by learned 5th Additional Sessions Judge, Bhopal in §.T.No.214/92
acquittiry vespondent no. 1 from the charges punishable under section 302 IPC
and under section 25 (1B) of the Arms Act and also acquitting respondent no. 2
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from the charges punishable under sections 201 and 212 IPC the State.of Madhya
Pradesh has preferred this appeal after obtaining leave to file appeal..

2. Inbriefthe case of pI'OSGGllthl‘l is that on 15/2/1992 at 9.45 a.m. complainant
Mohd. Ashfaq alias Bablu was going from his house to purchase meat, at that

_ juncture from Bhadbhuja Ghati one scooter was coming.which was bemg driven

by Anjum. On the said scooter Adeeb (hereinafter referred to as 'the deceased')
was a pillion, rider. As, soon as the said scooter reached nearby the house of
vegetable vendor Rafigue Miyan, respondent no. 1 stopped the scooter and dragged

. the deceased. Thereafter, a long knife which was wiped on his waist was taken

_ out by him and in order-to kill the deceased dealt its blow on his abdominal region.
When respondent no,_1.ried to inflict second blow of the said knife, deceased
caught hold of the weapon, asa result of which his fingers were cut. Thereafter,
respondent no. 1 dealt knife blow on the neck region of thc deceaséd, as-d result
of which his neck was chopped and blood started cozing: Ttis the:further case of
prosecution that deceased was screaming and requesting respondént no. 1 not to
kill him, but resp ondent no. 1 mercilessly dealt several knife blows and ultlrnately
fled from the place of occurrence.

3. Complainant Mohd. -Ashfaq alias Bablu thereafter went.to Pohce Station
Talaiya and lodged the FIR. On lodging of the FIR the criminal law was triggered
and, set in'motion. The FIR was registered; investigating agency. started-

- investigdation and m pursuance to its mvestlgatlon arrived at the spot; prepared
. Spot map;- prepared inquest of the dead body and sent it for post-mortem; seized

ordinary and blood stained earthfrom the place of occurrence; recorded the
statement of the witnesses; arrested respondent 20." on 19/2/1992 and seized a
knife which was used as a weapon in the commission of offence from his
possession; arrested respondent no. 2 Rahat Warsi on 1/371992 and seized Blood
stained clothes of respondent no. 1 which were washed, from him. The investigating -

.agency in furtherance to its investigation send blood stained articles for chemical '

and serological examinations.

4, After the investigation was Over a charge-sheet was submitted in the

committal Court which on its turn committed the case to the Court of Session
from where it was received by the trial Court for its-trial.

5. Learned trial Judge on the basis of the ‘ei;idéncé placed on record came to

the conclusion that charges under section 302 IPC and under.section 25 (1B) of
the Arms Act against respondent no. 1 as well as charges under sections 201 and
212 IPC against respondent no. 2 are not proved, as a result of which acqultted
bothof them by the impugned judgment.

6. " In this manner the State of M_P. has come up in this appeal after obtaining
leave to file appeal.

7. The contention of Shri T.K. Modh Dy. Advocate General appearmg for the
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appellant/State is that there are as many as 3 eyewitnesses to the incident; they
are Mohd, Tazim (PW-2), complainant Mohd. Ashfaq alias Bablu (PW-3) and
Anjum (PW-6) and all these witnessés in a singular voice have stated that
respondent no. 1 dealt knife blows on the person of the deceased as a result of
which he had died. By inviting our attention to the evidence of Autopsy Surgeon
Dr. C.S. Jain (PW-11) and his post-mortem report Ex P-18, it has been contended
by learned State. counsel that the evidence of eyewitnesses i also medlcally
corroborated and there is no scintilla of doubt that it was respondent no. 1 who
* stabbed the deceased and dealt umpteen knife blows on his person, as a result of

which he died at the spot and, therefore, learned trial Judge has erred in acqulttmg .

respondent no. 1 from the-charges punishable under section 302 IPC as well as
under section 25 (1B) of the Arms Act.

8. - By putting deep dent on the ﬁndmg of learned trial Judge acquitting
respondent no. 2 Rahat Warsi from the charges ‘punishable under sections 201
and 212 IPC it has been argued that since there is overwhelming evidence of the
prosecution against him, therefore, learned trial Judge erred in acquitting him from
these charges:

9. Per contra, Shri Vijay Nayak, learned counsel for the respondent no. 1
argued in support of the impugned judgment and has submatted that presence of
alleged eyewitness Mohd. Tazim (PW-2) and his name has not been stated in the
FIR by the author of the FIR Mohd. Ashfaq alias Bablu (PW-3), who has also
been cited as an eyewitness by the prosecution. Learned counsel has drawn our
attention to various paragraphs of the statement of this witness in this-regard, It
has also been contended by learned counsel that preserice of this witnesshas also
not been stated by another eyewitness Anjum (PW-6).

10." By attacking on the evidence of Mohd. Ashfaq alias Bablu (PW-3), who is
also the author ‘of the FIR, _it has been contended by the learned counsel that
testimony of this witness is not at all reliable and further submitted that if his
evidence, particularly para 9, is considered in proper perspective it is difficult to

hold that he has seen the incident and thus, according to learned counsel the FIR |

_*(Ex.P-2) which has been lodged by this witness appears to be ante dated and ante
time. By inviting our attention to the evidence of this witness in para 13, it has
been contended by learned counsel that as per the case of prosecution the mquest

report was prepared at the. spot, but in Court this witness is saying that in the .

mortuary it was prepared, therefore, the evidence of this witness cannot be placed

reliance. By inviting our attention to the spot map (Bx.P-3), it has been contended
that though this witness is signatory of this document, but despite he has been
posed as an eyewitrfess by the prosecution, for the reasons best known to the
investigating agency, the place where this witness was standing has not been
shown in the spot map. In support of his contention learned counsel for respondent

+1
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no. 1 has placed heavy reliance on the decision of the Supreme Court State of
U.P. v. Bhagwan and others (1997) 11 SCC 19.

11. Another submission of learned counsel for the respondent no. 1 is that there
is non-compha.nce of provisions of section 157, Cr.P.C. and, therefore, for this
reason case of prosecution becomes highly doubtful. In support of his contention,
learned counsel has placed reliance on two decisions of the Supreme Court; they
are Mehraj Singh (L/Nk.) v. State of U.P. (1994) 5 SCC 188 and Thanedar
Singh v. State of M.P. (2002) 1 SCC 487. On the same pomt’leamed counsel has:
also placed reliance on the Division Bench decision of tﬁls Court Chhakki v. The
State of Madhya Pradesh 1990 MPJR 736. o

12. By inviting our attention to the testimony of Autopsy Surgeon Dr. C.S. Jain
(PW-11), it has been contended that post-mortem was conducted at 11.45 a.m.
and as per prosecution's own case the incident had taken place at 9.45 a.m. which
would mean that within two hours the post-mortem was conducted, but autopsy
surgeon found rigor mortis on the entire body of the deceased and if that is the
position, according to learned counsel, the incident must have taken place at least
7-8 hours earlier to the time of performing the post-mortem and in this context he
has placed heavy reliance on the decision of the Supreme Court Kunju Muhammed
alias Khumani and another v. State of Kerala (2004) 9 SCC 193.

13. By attacking the testimony of Mohd. Tazim (PW-2), it has been contended
by learned counsel that this witness has stated that he has also received injuries in
the same incident, but since this witness did not produce himself for medical
examination in order to corroborate his statement about receiving injuries in the
same incident, his evidence becomes highly suspicious. In this context learned
counsel has placed reliance on.the decision of the, Supreme Court Gorle S. Naidu
v, State of A.P. and others (26)03) 12°SCC 449. It has been argued by learned
counsel for the respondent ng:iI “that conduét of Mohd. Tazim (PW-2) is highly
unnatural as he did not state’ the incident to the family members of the deceased
nor he lodred any FIR and, therefore, he is not at all a reliable witness. In this
context learned counsel has placed heavy reliance on the decision of the Supreme
Court State of Maharashtra v. Raju Bhaskar Potphode (2007) 11 SCC 261.

14. By questioning the hallmark of the evidence of Anjum (PW-6), who is
another eyewitness it has been argued that conduct of this witness is highly’
unnatural, because despite he saw the incident he did not inform about the incident
to the family members of the deceased, nor he lodged any report and, therefore,
conduct of this witness also becomes highly unnatural. It has also been putforth
by learned counsel that the Investigating Officer Daulat Singh (PW-12) has stated
that statement under Section 161 Cr.P.C. of this witness was recorded in the
evening while according to this witness, the same was recorded in the night and
therefore, presence of this witness at the spot becomes highly doubtful. On these

-
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premised submission it has been contended by learned counsel for respondent
no.l that learned trial judge after scanning the entire gamut of the matter has
taken the view that prosecution has utterly failed to prove its case beyond all
reasonable doubts and therefore rightly acquitted the respondent no.1. According
to learned counsel in an appeal against acquittal, if sound reasonings have been
assigned by learned trial judge acquitting the accused, same should not normally
be disturbed in appeal, particularly when appellate court comes to the conclusion
that another view is also possible.

15.  Shri Satyam Agrawal, learned counsel appearing for respondent no.2 by
inviting our attention to the findings recorded by learned trial judge in para 39 to
43 of the impugned judgment has submitted that cogent reasons have been assigned
while acquitting respondent no.2 from the charges punishable under.Section 201
and 212 IPC. By inviting our attention to the testimony of proseciition witnesses
it has been contended by learnéd counsel that the house from where washed
blood stained clothes of respondent no.1 were seized is of respondent no.2, this
fact has not at all been proved. Further it has been contended ‘that there is no
evidence on record in order to prove that this respondent washed the blood stained
clothes of respondent no.l so that the evidence against respondent no.l may
disappear and therefore, learned trial judge did not commit any error in acquitting
this respondent from the charges punishable under Sections 201 and 212 IPC.

16. Inreply Shri Modh, learned Deputy Advocate General submitted that FIR
is not a substantive piece of evidence and it can be used only for contr- Ziction
and corroboration. ‘He has also cited the decision of the Supreme Court Abdul
Gani and others v. State of Madhya Pradesh AIR 1954 SC 31.

17. By replying argument of learned counsel for respondent no.1 it has argued
by learned State counsel that FIR (Ex.P-2) was lodged within 25-minutes at 10:10
A.M. and immediately thereafter the investigating agency-came into action and
prepared the spot map at 11:00 A.M. and in the spot map Crime No.87/92 has
been mentioned. By inviting our attention to Ex.P-18 whichis an application
addressed to District Hospital to perform the postmortem, the summary description
of the incident has been mentioned and the name of respondent no.l has also
been mentioned causing injury to the deceased and, therefore, according tolearned
State ¢ounsel although there is compliance of Section 157 Cr.P.C. but even for
the sake of argiiment if it is held that therg is non compliance, it will not be fatal to
the prosecution in the peculiar facts and circumstances of the case.

18. By replying the argument of learned counsel for respondent no.1 in regard
to the presence of tigor mortis on the dead body of the deceased it has been
contended by learned State counsel that it varies person to person and in this
context he has placed heavy reliance on the decision of the Supreme Court
Tanviben Pankajkumar Divetia v. State of Gujarat AIR 1997 SC 2193. Learned
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State counsel has also invited our attention to paras 7 to 9 and 13 of the statement
of Autopsy Surgeon Dr. C.S. Jain (PW-11) in this regard. In respect to the conduct
of the eyewitnesses, learned State counsel has placed heavy reliance on two
decisions of the Supreme Court State of U.P. v. Brahma Das AIR 1986 SC 1769
and Rana Pratap and others v. State of Haryana AIK 1983 SC 680.

19.  Sofar as not showirg the place where eyewitness complainant Mohd. Ashfaq
@ Bablu (PW-3) was starding in the spot map (Ex.P-3) is concerned, learned
State counsel submits that Mohd. Ashfaq @ Bablu (PW-3) is the signatory of the
spot map also, therefore, it was not necessary for the Investigating Officer to
point out the place where-this witness was standing in the spot map. Apart from
this, it has been putforth by learned State counsel that this infirmity at the most
indicates that investigation was defective, but on the basis of defective investigation
the benefit will not go to the accused,-if the charges are otherwise proved from
the evidence. In this context learned State counsel has placed reliance on'the
decision of the Supreme Court Allarakha K Man.s'urr v. State of Gujarat (2002)3
SCC 57.

20. -Having heard learned counsel for the partles we are of the view that this
appeal deserves to be allowed in part. -

21. 'We shall first deal with the judgment of learned trial judge acquitting
respondent no.1 Habib Ahmed. The prosecution has taken pains to examine
three eyewitnesses, they are Mohd. Tazim (PW-2), Complainant Mohd. Ashfaq "
@ Bablu (PW-3) and Anjum (PW-6). Before we scan the testimony of Mohd.
Tazim (PW-2) and Complairant Mohd. Ashfaq @ Bablu (PW-3) we would like to
put emphasm ori. the evidence of eyewitness Anjum. (PW-6). Actording to this

- witness, on the fateful day he was driving his scooter and the deccased was the
+ pillion rider on that scooter. According to him after travelling a particular distance

by the said Scooter, he found that respondent no.1 was holdirig one boy later on he

- came to know the name of that person to be Tazim. Needless to say that Mohd.

Tazim (PW-2) is also an eyewitness. According to PW-6 when his scooter reached
nearby the place where respondent no.l was standing, the accused Habib
brandished knife to him as a result of which he brought the scooter nearby the
brim of the road and thereafter deceased alighted from the scooter. At that juncture

* respondent no.l came nearby the deceased and conversation started in between

them. According to this witness respondent no.1 was scolding on the deceased
by saying that he should not try to become a 'hero.! Thereafter accused dealt
knife blow on the abdominal region of the deceased. When he tried to give another
blow, the deceased caught hold of the knife. On secing the incident this witness
became astonished and palpitated as result of which he ran away from the place
of occurrence and came to the house of Atique. He also called Atique and
without waiting for his arrival he ran away from the house of Atique and again
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came back to the place of occurrence where he found the deceased to be dead
and the mob was assembléd there. *Thereafter he picked up his scooter and came
back. C

22.  Statemént of this witness under Section 161 Cr.P.C. was recorded on the
date of incident only. True there are certain minor discrepancies and omissions in
it such as he became late to go to his college has not been mentioned in his case-
diary statement. Further he has not stated that he asked the deceased to push the
scooter etc. We have also gone through his case diary statement (Ex.D-3) of this
witness. This witness is a student baving age of 21 years on the date of incident
and therefore, if this witness had not gone to the house of the deceased to inform
his family members about the incident, according to us his conduct cannot be

questioned. The conduct of this witness is quite natural because as soon as.he_
saw that respondent no.1 has dealt knife blow on the abdominal region of the, -

deceased, hic ran away from the place of occurrence because no one would dare
to remain present there especially when this witness was carrying the deceased
as pillion rider on his scooter. Inpara 11 this witness has stated that he did not see
Mohd. Ashfag, Mohd. Siddique and Mohd. Tafique at the place of occurrence,

but in the same breathe he has stated that because he became perplexed, therefore,

he could not see who were standing at the place of occurrence. He has also
stated that on account of fear he became perplexed and he did not go to the house
_of deceased to narrate the incident.

23. We do not find any merit in the contention of learned counse! fo- the
respondent rio.1 that statement of this witness (PW-6) was recorded at 11:00 in

the night by Police persons and according to Investigating Officer the same was -~

written in between 5 to 6 PM. If paras 6 and 13 of the statement of this witness
are kept in juxtaposition to the statement of Investigating Officer Daulat Singh
(PW-12) we find that this witness came to the police station at 5-6 P.M. and
thereafter his statement was recorded, This would not mean that the statement
was recorded in the evening. In para 13 of his deposition this witness has
specifically stated that he went to the police station in the evening and at 11:00 in
the night, his statement was recorded and therefore according to us there is no
inconsistency in his statement. According to us, statement of this witness is clear,
cogent and trustworthy and proves the entire case of the prosecution.

24. So far as the evidence of another eyewitness Mohd. Tazim (PW-2) is
concerned, his testimony is also quite reliable. According to this witness he is an
employee of the Municipal Corporation and his duty was in the night. In the
morning after his duty was over, he came nearby Areethe Wali Masjid where he
saw respondent no. 1 standing there who scolded on him that why this witness
allowed one Shahzade to manhandle respondent no. 1 and thereafter respondent

1no. 1 took out the knife and tried to cause injury on him but he stopped the blow by

{r
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holding it as a result of which he sustained injury in his fingers. Thereafier this
witness pacified him that he never asked Shahzade to beat respondent no. 1.
Thereafter respondent no. 1 carried him inside the Masjid where he sworn and
told that he never asked-Shahzade to beat respondent no. 1. Thereafter on seeing
that blood was coming out from his hand respondent no. 1 asked this witness that
he will carry him, to-provide the first-aid. Thereafter according to this witness he
saw deceased-coming on a scooter which was being driven by Anjum. Respondent
..ho. 1 stopped the scooter and by catching hold of the collar of the deceased deait
knife blow on the abdominal region of the deceased. On seeing the incident this
witness also became astonished and fled from the place of accurrence and went
» away towards Bhadbhuja Ghati. o

25. During his cross-examination several questions’ were put to him such as
after discharging his dity on the way to his house he was not- required 1o go
across the place of occurrence etc. We are not at all impressed by the submission
of leamed counsel for the respondent no. 1 that on this ground testimony of this
witness is liable to be discarded. According to us it is for this witness to choose
a particular way. If on the date of incident he has chosen a different way where
the place of occurrencef4lls, according to us, merely on this ground testimony of
" . this witness cannot be belied. Similarly we do not find any merit in the contention
of learned counsel that because this witness did not go to'the house of the deceased
to inform family members his:conduct becomes highly unnatural. In this context-
para 11 of his cross-examination may be seen in which it has been specifically
stated by this witness that deceased was not his fiiend, but he was known to him.
- Further he has clarified that he is not acguainted with the whereabouts of the
house of the deceased and for this reason he did not go to inform his family

.~ + members. This witness when told about the incident to his mother she pacified

not to go anywhere and to stay in the home- and, therefore, in these state of
affairs, according to us, evidence of this witness cannot be said to be unnatural or
his conduct becomes doubtfiul as argued by learned counsel for respondent no. 1
and for this reason decision of Raju Bhaskar Potphode (supra) is not applicable
in the present facts and circumstances of the case and the decision of Rana
Partap (supra) placed reliance by learned State counsel is applicable. The Supreme

. Caurt.in this case has categorically held in para-6 that the cvidence of a wifness-
cannot be discarded.merely on the ground that he did tiot react in any particular
manner and therefore, according to us if eyewitnesses have not reacted immediately
would not be a ground to hold that they are not the ¢ye-witnesses.

26. This witness has also proved the presence’ of author of the FIR Mohd.
Ashfag alias Bablu and in para‘18 he has specifically stated that while ruiming
away from the place of occurrence he saw Mohd. Ashafg, Mohd. Sidique, Mohd.
Atique etc. Thus according to us the statement of this witness also proves that
respondent no. 1 caused injuries by knife on the person of the deceased.

C— ——, B - T - t e
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27.  We do not find any merit in the contention of learned counsel for respondent
no. I that because this witness was not medically examined and, therefore, accusing
respondent 0.1 for causing injury by knife to this witness not only becomes highly
doubtful but also weakens the case of prosecution and presence of this witness
becomes doubtful. In this regard, if pata-6 of statemeni of this witness is taken
into consideration, it would become crystal clear as he has stated specifically that
he'lodged a separate report in respect of causing injury by respondent no.1 to him
and a separate case is pending against him. We also do not find any merit in the
contention of learned counsel for the respondent no.1 that in the same incident
this witness received injury in his fingers. According to us, the incident-took place
much after receiving of the injury by this witness. It has come in the testimony of
this witness that on the point of quarrel between Shahzada and respondent no.1 it
has been stated hy this witness that respondent no.1 tried to assault this witness,
but the blow was stopped by this witness with the aid of the fingers of his hand
and thereafter both of them went inside the Masjid and after sometime both of
them came out. After they came outside from the Masjid this witness saw deceased
coming on a scooter and thereafter injuries were dealt by respondent no.1 by
knife to the deceased. Hence, it cannot be said that this witness received injury in
the same incident.

28.  So far as evidence of Mohd. Ashfag @ Bablu (PW/3) is concerned on the
fateful day he was going to purchase meat and when he reached nearby the house of

one Sarang Saheb he found a scooter passing away from him. After going little ahead

he saw Habib and Tazim. At that juncture, respondent no.1 in front of the shop of
vegetable vendor Rafique stopped the scooter and by catching hold of the collar of
the deceased dragged him from the scooter which was being driven by Anjum. The
scooter also fell down and respondent no.1 dealt knife blows on his chest and therecafter,
when he tried to cause another blow, knife was caught hold by the deceased as a
result of which his fingers were cut. The cut injuries are also found in the post-
mortem report. The deceased by catching hold his stomach sat down at the place of
occurrence and thereafter respondent no. 1 again dealt the blow. of knifé on his neck
region in the same maimér like a slaughterer chops the'goat '

'29.. In para 7 of his cross-examination this witness has stated that he is not
havmg intimacy with the deceased but was having.only a formal relation with him.

According to this witness deceased was the friend of his elder brother Atigue.
Contention of learned counsel for the respondent no. 1 is that this witness has
been cited as an eyewitness and is aiso the author of the FIR, but he has not seen
the incident and in this context learned counsel has invited our attention to para 9

_of the testimony of this witness in which this witness has stated that after lodging
of the FIR, when deceased was sent to the hospital and when doctor told about
the factum of the death of the deceased at that juncture he came to know that
deceased had died and, therefore, at the time of lodging of the FIR by this witness
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stating about the death of the deceased, becomes highly suspicious. The argument
at the first blush appears to be .quite attractive, however, on deeper scrutiny we
find it to be devoid of any substance. If we keep para 9 of the testimony of this
witness in juxtaposition to para 13 of his statement we find that immediately after
sceing the incident he went to lodge the report and thereafter police persons came
to the spot and carried the deceased to the hospital in the emergency ward of the
hospital where doctor declared him to be dead. Therefore, if this witness in para
9 has stated that on intimating by the doctor that deceased in fact had died would
not somersault the stand taken by this witness in the FIR wherein it has been
stated by him that deceased had died at the spot and, therefore, according to us,
this witness cannot be said to be a manufactured witness or FIR can be said to be
ante time and dated. TS

30, 'We also do not find @iy foice in the submission of learned counsel for the
respondent no. 1 that this witness (PW-3) in his testimony has stated that the
inquest report was prepared in the mortuary and according to the prosecution
same was prepared at the spot and, therefore, this witness cannot be said to be an
eyewitness. This witness was cross-examined for a considerable longer duration
and in the latter part of para 13 he has stated that since there is long gap of time,
he did.not remember where the inquest report was prepared. Therefore, even if
he has stated in the Court that the inquest report was prepared at the mortuary
and not at the spot it would not weaken the case of prosecution.

31. Thus ‘according to us, from the statement of this eye witness also, it is
proved that it was resporident no. 1, who caused injuries by knife to the deceased,
as a result of which he had died. The evidence of eyewitnesses is also
corroborated by the medical evidence. As per Ex.P-18, Autopsy Surgeon Dr.
C.8. Jain (P.W.-11) has found the following, injuries on the person of the deceased :

(1) Neck on anterior and both lateral aspect is cut. Margins are
clear cut. Depth of wound is more in centre where it is tapering
superiorly just anterior to both ears, Depth in centre is up-to
anterior border of cervical Iind Vertebrae near to ears, it is skin
deep and at termination clotted blood present in wound at places.
Following muscles are cut in injury :

Platysma

Myelohyoid digastricus.
Sternocleidomastoid.
Stylohyoid. -
Sternohyoid.

Omohyoid.
Stemmothyroid.
Thyrohyoideus.
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Stylogiossus.
Following vessels are cut in injuries :-
Internal & External carotid artery,
Facial artery & vein.
Maxillary Artery & Vein.
External & Internal Jugular vein. -
Retro mandibular vein. & facial nerve.
Tract direction is Anterior to posterior upward:

2) All fingers between middie & distal crease live sharply muscles
deep qut in transverse place. ’

Hypothinner & thinner region of palm and upper part of thumb
in continuation in same transverse place sharply muscles deep
cut. Hand is sumdged in blood. These injuries appear to be defence
wounds where cutting edge is sharp & weapon is hard.

(3) Stab wound on left chest 5 cm below nipple entered in thoracic
cavity through 7th inter costal space at costochondiral function
level giving knick on lower border of 7th rib & upper border of 8th
rib. Perforating to thoracic wall & lung it has come out postertorly-
through 6th inter costal space on anterior aspect it is situated
obliquely vertical where lower end is directed lateral & is blunt
0.3 cm upper end is spindle shaped length on skinis 5 cm & width
2.5 om on posterior aspect it obliquely vertical where spindle shaped
upper end is directed medially 22 cm, above posterior superior iliac
spine & lower blunt end is directed laterally. Length on posterior
aspect 3.5 cm & width 2 cm Blunt end 1s 0.3 cm.

" On anterior aspect from upper end a incised wound arising;
this wound is gradually decreasing in depth from medial to laterally.
Lateral end subcutancous deep & spindle shaped.

(4) There are two abrasions and superficial laceration in Rt. iliac
region size is 0.5 x 0.3 cm of each.

32. 'Wedonot find any merit in the contention of l_eéi'ﬁed counsel for respondent
no.1 that on account of alleged non-compliance’of Section’157 CrP.C., case of

prosecution becomes highly doubtful. There is prompt FIR (Ex. P-2) and
immediately police persons arrived-at the spot and prepared the spot map (Ex.
P-3) mentioning crime number ete. “Thereafter dead body of the deceased was
sent for post mortem mentioning summary story of the case and causing injury by
knife by respondent no.1 has also been mentioned in the application addressed to
the doctor, who performed the post mortem, which is.Ex. P-18 and, therefore,
even if it is held that there is non-compliance of sectien 157 Cr.P.C., according to

us, it would not be fatal to the prosecution.
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33. We also do not find any merit in the contention of learned counsel for the
respondent no. 1 that postmortem was conducted only after 2 hours of the incident
and at that juncture doctor found rigor mortis on the body of the deceased and,
therefore, it should be held that incident had taken place 7-8 hours before conductmg
the postmortem. In this context we may profitably place reliance on paras 7 1o Y
of the evidence of Autopsy Surgeon Dr. C.S. Jain- (PW-11) wherein it has been
specifically stated by the doétor that it varies inan to man and nature of the injuries

" sustained by the deceased. The doctor has stated that in Bhopal if a person receives

injuries as sustained by the deceased and blood.continues to ooz, the rigor mortis
may start immediately after the death. In para 9 it has beén stated that a person
who has recéived injuries and if his body is covered by a’béd-sheet in the month
of February, and the dead body i$ examined in between half and one hour, rigor
mortis can be seen on his entire body and, therefore, according to us, there is no
barometer in order to-indicate that when the process of rigor mortis would start
and therefore the decision of Kunju Muhammed alias Khumani (supra) placed
reliance by respondent is not applicable in the present case. The Supreme Court
in another decision Tanviben Pankajkumar Divetia (supra) placed reliance by
learned State counsel, in pard 35 after analysing the evidence has held that presence
of rigor mortis was only a rough guide for determining the time of the death.
Hence, we do not find any merit in the contention of learned counsel that because
rigor mortis was present on the entire body. of the deceased the -incident had
taken place 7-8 hours before conducting the post mortem.

34. 'We also do not find any merit in the contention of learned counsel for the
respondent no. 1 that in the spot map the Investigating Officer did not mention the
place from where Mohd. Ashfaq alias Bablu (PW-3), who is also author of the FIR
has seen the incident and therefore the presence of PW-3 at the spot becomes doubtfiul.
The author of the FIR is also signatory of spot map (Ex.P-3) and in his presence it
was prepared and, therefore, if the place where he was standing has not been shown,
this will not dilute or somersault the entire case of prosecution. Even otherwise a
defective investigation is not a ground to acquit the accused and in this context decision
of Supreme Court Allarakha K. Mansuri (supra) may be placed reliance.

35. For the reasons stated herc-ip—abj&we we are of the view that the view

taken by the learned trial court cannot be said t6 be reasonably possible view.

According.to us the evidence of eyewitnesses is fully reliable and learned trial

Judge on flitiusy grounds discarded their testimony. Looking to the injuries of the

deceased since his neck has been completely cliopped, his lung was also cut and
it is also proved from the testimony of the eyewitnesses that the deceased also

tried to stop the blow of knife by putting his hand in front of the weapon as a

result of which his fingers were cut, according to us respondent no.1 is guilty of
committing the offence of culpable homicide amounting to murder and therefore,

charge u/s. 302 IPC is proved against respondent No.1.
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36. On going through the finding recordod by the trial court, it is gathered that
respondent no.1 has been rightly acquitted from the charge u!s 25(1B) of Arms
"~ Act: The sald finding i is hereby affirmed.

37. So fa;r as ac.qmttal of respondent no.2 Rahat War51 is concerned, according
to us, since there is no fota of evidence that the clothes of respondent no.1 were
seized from the house( of this respondent and.also because there is no evidence
that this respondent washed the blood stained clothes of respondent no. 1, therefore,
according to us learned trial Judge did not commit any error in aéquitting this
respondent from the charges punishable w/s. 201 and 212 of IPC. Ih this regard
the findings recorded in para-39 to 43 are quite cogent and they are based on
correct apprec;atlon of evidence on record. -

38. Resultantly, the Judgment of acquittal of respondent no.1 Habib Ahined under

.. section 302 of IPC is hereby set aside and it is hereby held that the charge undgr *

. section 302 IPC is proved against him. However, chargé‘u/s 25(1B) of Arms Act

. has not be found to be proved against him and his adﬁmttal from thi$ charge is

_ hereby affirmed. Since charges u/s. 302 of IPC has been found to be proved we

hereby sentence respondent No.1 Habib Ahmed’ to ‘undergo life unpnsonment

The ]udgment of acquittal passed in respect of respondcnt no. 2 Rahat Wars1 is
hereby affirmed.

39. Respondent No.1 Habib Ahmed is on- ball his bail bonds are cancelled and.
he is hereby directed to surrender before,learned Trjal Court on or before 1st
June, 2009 and learned Trial Coust shall send him to jail to serve out the sentence! '
Registry is hereby directed to'send back the’ record to the Trial court post haste so
as to reach much earlier to 1st June, 2009. Trial court is further directed that in
case respondent no.l Habid Ahmed fgﬂs t(rsur,render a perpetual warrant of
arrest be issued against him and-a notice bt also issued to the surety to show
cause why bail amount be not forfeited and may. pass necessary order in that
regard. Registry. is hereby directed to send the bail papers of respondent no.1 to
the learned Trial court and a photocopy of thefeof be kept in the record of this
" file. The lcamediTnaI Court is also difected to intimate the Registry of this Court
about the factunr-of: arrest of respondent rio. 1

e Order accordingly.

| o e e
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- APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra

- Vs,

. 1 July, 2009%. o ‘
MOHD. SHAMIM & ors. - e A_pp'ellants
STATE OF M.P. T | . .. Respondent

A. Essential Commodities Act (10 of 1955), Section 3 r/w 7, Motor
Spirit and High Speed Diesel (Prevention of. Malpractices in Supply and
Distribution) Order, 1990, Clause 5 - Tanker filled with kerosene parked at
the HSD Pump - A pipe for discharging kerosene from the tanker into the HSD
tank was duly fitted in the corresponding nozzle - Appellants convicted w/s 3/7 of
the Act for miaking an attempt to commit adulteration in HSD - Held - Sample
drawn from HSD tank was pet found to be adulterated - Appellants had made
preparation o, coimmit the'violation of Order, 1990 - However, possibility of
commission of offence was not relevant as it is the actual commission of act in
attempting to commit offence that consntutes oﬁence of attempt - Conviction &
sentences set-aside - Appeal allowed. (Paras 6 to 8)

F.  oTavas g SR (1955 $T 10), URT 3 WEUH ST 7, WX
fore o vl due @R o Rovor 4 smER @1 faxm) ek,
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URT 3 /7 B Sa amiNg e T — afifeiRa — vaved) €% X feten @ FE
a3 T A€ U T — SrfeiRfat ¥ M, 1090 BT SewEd B 3 Furd
off — mwmﬁwmﬁmmwmmmmw
A T T INIaS Y X fHa1 ST § ) ST BT R ST BT § — SWisiy ol
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B. Ewdence Act (1 of 1872), Section 5 - Evidénce of police off icer -
None of Panch witnesses came forward to corroborate prosecution version - In

absence of any motive for false implication, evidence of 1.0. carinot be
underestimated merely because he is a police officer. (Para 4)

' el Aferfaas (1872 a1 1), ORT 5 — gferw e @1 wey -
9 Wiiert § | 912 A o At FEr @) W e At el |gr — e anfia
X B B 8 B I A, IawvT AfET B Wea daw gAfAy o T8 i o
Wpdl & 9% ta gfow AR 2
Cases referred :

AIR 1961 SC 1698, AIR 1969 Raj 65, AIR 1949 Patpa 326.

*Cr.A. No.820/1994 (Jabalpur)
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S.C. Datt with Pushpendra Dubey, for the appellants.

J.K: Jain, G.A. with Arvind Singh, Panel Lawyer, for the respondent/

State. S '
- JUDGMENT . -

R.C. MisHRa, J. :—The judgment dated 05/08/ 1094 passed by the Special
- Court {(constituted under Section 12A. of the Essential Commodities Act, 1955
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’)}, at Bhopal is the subject matter of challenge
in this appeal. Accordingly, each one of the appellants and the co-accused namely
Kamal Kumar Malviya and Mohd. Sharif (both since expired), was convicted,
under Section 3 read with Section 8 of the Act, and sentenced to undergo R.I. for
6 months and to pay a fine of Rs.200/- and, in default, to suffer S.I. for 1 month.
" They were found guilty of making an attempt to commit- ' adulteration in respect
of High Speed Diesel (for brevity ‘the HSD’), which is a malpractice within the -
meaning of Rule 2(¢) of the Motor Spirit,and High Spted Diescl (Prevention of
Mal-practices in Supply and Distributiof) Ofder, 1'990.{for short ‘the Order 1990°).
By this judgment enly, Mohd. Sharif and appellant Mohd. Shamim were acquitted
of the offence punishable under Section 3 read with 7 of the Act for contravention
of Clause.3 of the M.P. Kerosene Dealers Licensing Order, 1979 (for short ‘Order
1979%) and a finding of not guilty was also recorded in favour of Mohd. Sharif for
the offence under Section 407 of the IPC. Admittedly, no appeal against the
order of acquittal has. been preferred by the State.-’

2. Prosecution story,'_in short, may be narrated as under: -
(a) At the relevant point of time, appellant Prakash was the

Proprietor of the Firm in the name of M/s Khijuri Highway, an
authorized ‘dealer’ of the HSD as defined in Clause 2(c) of the
Order, 1990 Its service station situated on Indore Road in Bhopal
was being managed by the appellant ‘Shailesh and, co-accused

Kamal-Kumar Malviya was working there as Salesman.

. (byOn27/08/1992 atabout 2 p.m., on receipt of credible information
that a Tanker full of kerosene was brought to facilitate adulteration

" of thé HSD to be supplied at the service station, N.S. Damle
(PW9), the then SHO of P.5. Khajuri Sadak along with other
members of the police force and two panch witnesses viz. Bansilal
(PW2) and Ajab Singh (PW7) rushed to the spot where he found
that — .

(i) Tanker bearing Registration No.MBD-8448 and filled with
kerosene was parked at the HSD pump. oo

(i) A pipe for discharging kerosene from the Tanker into the
HSD tank was duly fitted in the corresponding nozzle.
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(iii) Two drums containing 200 litres of kerosene and 200 litres of
the HSD respectively were kept near the Tanker.

(c) The Police Officer duly seized the pipe; sealed the Tanker;
requesizd Avtar Singh (PW?1), the Inspector, Weights and Measures
tomeasure the volume of kerosene as available in the Tanker and
~ also informed thg Oil Company viz. M/s Indian Oil Corporaﬁon
: " A¥tar Singh noticed shortage of 530 litres in the total volume of
711000 htres of keroseng, that was entrusted to appellant Mohd.
Sharif as, drxver of the Tanker, on which appellant Mohd. Shamim
was working as cleaner, for being transported from the depot of
Indian Oil Corporation to the retail outlet run by M/s Bhati Oil
Agency at Bairagarh. However, as indicated by Subramanyam
(PW3), the Deputy Manager of the Oil Company in the in-house
test report (Ex.P/11), the sample of the HSD drawn by Assistant
Manager namely Rakesh Kumar Gupta (PW6) from the tank
conformed to the standards prescribed.

3. On beimg charged with the respective offénces, the appellants ab_]ured the
guilt and pleaded false implication.

4. Although, none of the panch witnesses namely Bansilal (PW2) and Ajab
Singh (PW7) came forward to corroborate the prosecution version yet, learned
trial Judge while placing reliance on a decision of the Supreme Court in Aher
Raja Khima v. State of Soutashtra (AIR 1956 SC 217), concluded that in absence
of any motive for false implmatj.On evidence of N.S.Damle could. not be
underestlmated merely because he happened to be a Police Officer.

5. At the outset, learned Senior Counsel, in all fairness, conceded that the
finding as to veracny of version given by N.S.Damle is well reasoned. However,
he is of the view that the facts proved from the evidence of the detecting Officer
could-only amount to preparation to adulterate the HSD. To fortify the contention,
reference has been made to the following lllummatmg observations made by the
Apex Court in Abhayanand v. State of Bihar (AIR 1961 SC 1698) -

“There is a thin line between the preparation for and an attempt
to commit an Sffence.- Undoubtedly, a culprit first intends to commit
the offence then makes preparation for committing it and thereafter
attempts to commniit the offence. If the attempt succeeds, he has
committed the offence; if it falls due to reason beyond his control,
he is said to have attempted to commit the offence. Attempt to
commit an offence, therefore, can be said to begin when the
preparations are complete and the culprit commences to do )

"~ something with the intention of committing thé offence and which:
is a step towards the commission of the offence. The moment he
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commences to do an act with the necessary intention, he
commences his attempt to commit the offence.”

6. Adverting to the facts of the case, it may be observed that the sample of
HSD drawn from the tank was not found to be adulterated. Although, the technical
expert viz. Subramanayam (PW?3) further opined that it was not possible to detect
adulteration if a quantity of 200 litres of kerosene is mixed with 15000 litres of
. HSD, yet there was nothing on record to prove as to what was the actual quantity
available in the HSD tank at the time of the drawing of the sample therefrom.
Moreover, Avtar Singh (PW1) clearly admitted that the Tanker comprised 4
compartments, having capacity of 3000, 3000, 3000 and 2000 litres respectively,
were found to contain 2750, 2989, 2980 and 1"75,;5 1itres of Kerosene and it remained
unexplained as to how a total volume-6f 430 litres of kerosene was taken out from

these compartments. Further, N'.S.Da.mlq also, dld not specify the compartment

from which the Kerosene was proposed to be taken out for being mixed with the
diesel.
7. In State v. Parasmal (AIR 1969 Rajasthan 65), an attempt to mix kerosene
with the HSD was found proved in view of the fact that the kerosene had already
been poured into the tank for being supplied. But, the case is distinguishable on
facts.

8.  An attempt to commit an offence is an act, or series of acts, which leads
inevitably to the commission of offence, unless something, which the doer of the
act or acts neither foresaw nor intended, happens to prevent this. An act done
towards the commission of an offence, which does not lead inevitably to the
commission of the offence unless it is followed or, perhaps, preceded by other
acts, is merely an act of preparation (See. Province qf;ﬁihar v. Bhagwat Prasad
AIR 1949 Patna 326). SE T

9.  Taking into consideration the relative proximity between the act done and
the evil consequence contemplated, it could easily be concluded that the appellants
had made preparation to commit the violation of the Order 1990. However, the
possibility of commission of the offence was not relevant as it is the actual
commission of the act in attempting to commit the offence that constitutes the
offence of attempt. ‘

10. For _thésa'rﬁasons, the appeal is allowed. The impugned convictions and
consequent sentences passed against the appellants are hereby set aside.” Instead,
they arg acquitted of the offence. Fine amount, if dep_osited, be refunded.

11. * Appellants are on bail. Their bail bonds shall stand discharged.
) ' Appeal allowed.

Sa:
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL -
Before Mr. Justicz Rakesh Saksena & Mr. Justice U.C, Maheshwari

15 July, 2009+
NEHRU SINGH ... Appellant
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. ... Respondent

A.  Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial
evidence - Last seen together - Deceased was seen for the last time in the
company. of the appellant when he was taking the deceased, his step mother,
fo his house against her wishes and also assaulted her - Appellant bound to
explain that thereafter where she was taken and left by him - In absence of
such explanation there is sufficient material on record to draw inference
that it was appellant who caused the alleged injuries and committed her
murder. - (Paras 12 & 13)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial
evidence - Motive - Deceased, step mother of appellant was given 1/3 share
in ancestral property - Appellant was not happy with partition - Deceased
was also not residing with appellant - Appellant could have’ got her share
only after her demise - Motive of appellant could be assumed that in the
temptatior of property he had committed murder. (Para 14)
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Cases referred : : : i

(2003) 1 SCC 534, AIR 1988 SC 1705, AIR 1993 SC 119, AIR 1991 SC
1674, 1995 JLI 757, 1991(T) MPWN 70, 2001(1) MPLJ (Cri) 341.

L.N. Sankle, for the appellant.

T'K. Modh, Dy.A.G., for the respondent. -
*Cr.A. No.2782/2000 (Jabalpur)
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JUDGMENT

The  Judgment of  the Court  was delivered by
U.C. Maugsawary, J. :—Appellant, being aggrieved by the judgment dated
03.10.2000 passed by the Special Judge and Addl. Sessions Judge, Shahdo!l in
S.T.No.161/97 convicting him under Section 302 of the IPC with sentence of life
imprisenment and fine of Rs.20,000/-, in default of payment of fine, further R.I
for one year, has filed this appeal.

2. Itis undisputed fact in the matter that deceased Sukrati Bai was the second
wife of Dhobi Singh while the appellant Nehru Singh is the son from the first wife-
of Dhobi Singh who died 3-4 years prior to the date of incident. In the family
property there was separate shares of Sukarti Bai and Nehru Singh. Sukarti Bai
had agricultural field known in the name of Tilwanharfield, which, she had given
for cultivation to one Pusua on sharing basis. Sukarti Bai died unnatural death on
10.4.96 and her dead body was found lying in the cuilvert near the aforesaid field.
The dead body was seen by one Manna Singh who informed the same to the
villagers, on which, Khalkiya (P.-W.1), Suhablal (P.W.2), Budhsen (P.W.6) and Set
Singh (P.W.8) went to such place and saw the dead body of Sukarti Bai. It is also
undisputed fact that deceased Sukarti Bai was residing with his brother Khalkiya
(P.W.1).

3.  Apart from the aforesaid undisputed facts, the prosecution story in short is
that on 10.4.96, deceased Sukarti Bai went to her Tilwanhar field for taking her
share of Red Gram Crops from Pusua. When she did not return upto the night
_ then her brother Khalkiya went for her search. He came to know from Suhablal
that Sukarti Bai was taken by Nehru Singh at his home. On such information, he
accompanied with Suhablal and Phool Singh went to the homs of Nehru Singh and
on asking from Nehru Singh, he told them that she had gone to-village Bartola.
Thereafter, they along with Nehru Singh came back to the home of Suhablal,
where, after leaving Nehru Singh, Khalkiya went to village Bartola for verifying
the aforesaid fact. Sukarti Bai was not found in such village also then Khalkiya
along with Phool Singh came back to the residence of Suhablal. By that time
appellant Nehru Singh fled away from the residence of Suhablal. Khalkiya and .
Phool Singh stayed there in the night and in the morning i.c. 11.4.96, Khalkiya
along with Set Singh, Ex Sarpanch of the village, went to the police station Karan
Pathar and lodged the missing person report contending that his younger sister
Sukarti Bai w/o Dhobi Singh was residing with him. She did not had any issue
while her husband had one son, namely, Nehru Singh from his first wife. Sukarti
Bai was living separately from Nehru Singh. The 1and was partitioned in three
shares, out of which, one part was given to Sukarti'Bai but Nehru Singh had not
given recognition to such family partition and was not permitting her to cultivate
such land, however, some of the land of her possession was being cultivated by
other on her behalf on sharing basis. In the aforesaid field, Red Gram Crop was
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sown. As per further averments, yesterday on 10.4.96, after taking meal, she
went to the field to collect her share of the crop from Pusua. When ske did not
return in the night then he weri to search her. On the way, he asked fror. Bhaiyalal -.
and his son Suhablal about Sukarti Bai then Suhablal told him.that Nehru Singh -
was misbehaving with Bahan (nic name of the deceased) and also beating her by
.means of stick, kicks and fists and was forcibly taking ber to his residence, on
which, he along with Phool Singh and Suhab Singh went to the resideénce of Nehru
Singh. On asking regarding Sukarti Bai, he told that, after refreshing herself near
Jhiriya, she bad gone saying that she is going to village Bartola. Thereafter,
Khalkiya brought Nehru Singh at the residence of Bhaiyalal and call the Sarpanch
and handed over custody of Nehru Singh to him. Thereafter again he went to
search Sukarti Bai but could not found her. On returning the home of Bhaiyalal,
he found that Nehru Singh had fled away, on which, the missing person report
was given to the police. The same was written in the Rojnamcha Sanha No.290
at 12.10 on 11.4.96 and to search the missing person,: SHO of Police Station
Karan Pathar, came to village Barajh, where Khalkiya informed him that the dead
body of deceased Sukarti Bai was lying in the culvert néar field, on which, the
inquest intimation (Ex.P/20) and Dehati Nalishi (Ex.P/19) were drawn by him.
After calling the witnesses and preparing the inquest panchnama (Ex.P/4) the
dead body was sent to hospital for autopsy. The spot-map was also prepared.
Clothes and two stones lying on the dead body, the earth stained and simple along
with some other articles were seized for which different panchnamas were
prepared. The marg and FIR was registered at the Police Station. After
investigation, on establishing the offence, appellant was charge-sheeted under
section 302 and 201 of IPC while one other accused Phool Singh (since acquitted)
was charge sheeted under Section 201 of the IPC.

4. On framing the charges of Section 302 and 201 IPC against the appellant
and of section 201 against accused Phool Singh, they abjured the guilt.
Consequently, the trial was held. On appreciation, accused Phool Singh was
acquitted while appellant has been convicted and sentenced as referred to above.
The same is under challenge in this appeal,

5. ' Shri L.N.Sankle; learned counsel of the appellant by taking us through the
evidence led by the prosecution argued that the impugned conviction being based
on inadmissible circumstantial evidence of “last seen together', is not sustainable,.
He further said that none of the witnesses have stated anything connecting the-
appellant with the unnatural death of Sukarti Bai. The chain of circumstances to
connect the appellant with the offence is neither complete nor proved beyond
reasonable doubt. The missing person report written in Rojnamcha Sanha has not
been proved in accordance with the procedure by Khalkiya. According to him,
deceased and the appellant were separated long back and thereafter with Tespect
of the property, no dispute was existing between them. In such premises the
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motive for causing such death, has also not been cstablished against the appellant.
The prosecuticn ¢ase is also not supported by any independent source of evidence.
There was family dispute with respect of the property with the Suhablal thus due
to such enmity such witness was also not reliable. With these submissions and
‘relying upon some decisions of the Apex Court-and of this court, he prayed for
acquittal of the appellant by allowing this appeal.

6.  Onthe other band, while responding the aforesaid arguments, Shri T.K.Modh,
fearned Dy. A.G by justifying the conviction and sentence of the appellant -said
that the same are baséd on proper appreciation of evidence and also in conformity
with law. He further said that as per available deposition of Suhablal (P.W.2) the
independent witness,.it has been proved that Sukrati Bai was last seen with
appellant Nehru Singh while she was takeglayhgnmth beating by meang of stick
on her head. On receving such informatigit:from this witness, Khalkiya (P.W.1)
after ‘some ‘verification at some places lodged 'd issing person réport, during
enquiry of the same, the dead body of Sukarti Bai was found lying in the culvert.
On postmortem it was revealed that she died because of the injuries found on her
body. He furtber said that the deposition of Suhablal stating that the deceased
was lastly seen in the company of the appellant.on the fateful day while she was
also being beaten by the appeliant. Such company of the appellant with the
deceased is also proved by Ram Singh (P.W.4) even on turning hostile. In such
premises, the prayer for dismissal of the appeal is made.. - -

7. After hearing the counsel at length, we have examined the.record and also

perused the impugned judgment. PW.0 Dr. B.K Kola carried out the postmortem

of the deceasqd.and'péqzarfed its report Ex.P/17). According to his deposition, he
found following injuries on her body:- L

1. whole of face along with forehead with depression on right’

chéek and nasal bridge, blood comed from nostril and mouth that.-

is open but eyes closed.

2. whole of chest supra clavi¢le region of both side with
depression on right 3rd to 5th ICS region along with both breast
region.

3. mu_ltiple on left forearm anterior aspect and both 1égs below
knee on anteridr aspect size is 2X3 cm and irregular in shape,

4 Lacerated wound 8X3X2 cm on right parietal rggioifr '

5. tﬁvg d'ry fleshy color bruise present on right Jower -abdomen
and right gluseal region size is about 8X8 cm and 5X 7cm irregular
in shape. '

As.per opinion of the doctor, the death was homicidal in nature due to rupture
of heart by violent blow of any hard and blunt object in chest. Such postmortem

4]
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report is not challenged on behalf of the appellant in the cross examination of
such witness. In view of such unrebutted fact on record, the findings of the trial
court holding that death was homic.dal in nature because of thic aforesaid injuries,
does not require any interference at this stage, hence such findings of the imputgned
judgment are hereby affirmed. ’

8. Now, we have to examine, whether appellant was the only person who was
lastly seen in-the company of the deceased and thereaffer deceased was found
dead with injuries on her body and there is sufficient circumstance to draw the
inference that the alleged injuries were caused by the appellant and lastly what
was the motive of the appellant to commit such an act with the deceased.

9.  Khalkiya (P.W.1), the cousin brother of the deceased deposed that deceased
Sukarti Bai his younger sister was married with Dhobi Singh Gond. She did not
had any issue while appellant was the son from the first wife of her husband. In
family partition, Sukarti Bai got her share of agricultural field while the appellant
got some other part in his share. The field known in the name of Tilwanhar field
came into the share of Sukarti Bai, who used to get her land cultivated through
Pusua on sharing basis. On the date of aforesaid incident at about 3-4 O' Clock
P.M Sukarti Bai went to Pusua for collecting her share of the Red Gram Crop.
When she did not return up to the evening then, he went to search her. On the

way, he came to know from Subablal that appellant Nehru Singh took away Sukarti

Bai at his residence. Phool Singh was also present at the residence of Siihablal.
On such information, he along with Phool Singh and Suhablal went to the residence -
of Nehru Singh to search Sukarti Bai. On asking, he told them that she had gone
to Bartola then Sect Singh, the-ex-sarpanch was called and after Ieaving him in the
custody of Sarpanch, he went to village Bartola to verify the information given by
Nehru Singh. On verification, Sukarti Bai was not found in such village, on which,
he came back, to the residence of Suhablal. By that time, appellant Nehru Singh
had fled away from such place. Thereafter, in the next morning, he accompanied
with Set Singh, went to police station and lodged the missing person report. While
returning from the police station to village, on way, near the culvert, he saw the
dead body of Sukarti Bai in injured condition. Two stones were also lying on the
chest of such body. On his information, police came to the village. According to
his deposition, he came to know from Suhablal that Sukarti Bai was being taken
by the appellant at his residence. He also stated that on his information the missing
person report was recorded by the police. Such Rojnamcha Sanha No.210 (Ex.P/
18) dated 11.4.96, has been proved by Head Constable Suresh Pandey {P.W.10)
who recorded the same. The material facts regarding partition of the agricultural
land between the deceased and the appellant stated in the missing person report
also stated by Suresh Pandey (P.W.10) in his deposition.

11.  The facts regarding beating of the deceased by means of stick, kicks and
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fists by the appellant on the allege day of incident has been stated by the
complainant Khalkiya (PW 1) on the information received from Bhaiyalal and his
son Suhab lal (P.W.2). Such Suhablal (P.W.2), on recording his statement stated
. that on the date of incident at about 5-6°0' clock in the evening when he was at
his farmyard situated on the way of village Barojh, he saw that the deceased was
being forcibly taken by the appellant towards his home while Sukarti Bai was
saying that she will not go, on which, she was subjected to blows of stick on her,
head-by the appellant. The blcod also profused from her head and due to such
injuries Sukarti Bai was feeling uneasy. Thereafter he informed such incident to
Set Singh Sarpanch who assured him that he will see the matter in the morming.
Accordingly, the version stated in the missing person report regarding beating of
the deceased by the appellant is proved by this eye witness of such cvent. He
further stated that he along with Phool Singh and Khalkiya went to the house of
Nehru Singh to search the deceased, whom they fouiid there and on 3sking about
Sukarti Bai Nehru Singh told them that he left her on the way from where she
might have gone to village Bartola, on which, they b;oug]it Nehru Singh with him
at his residence where in presence of Sarpanch Set Singh, appellant Nehru Singh
stated that he asked Sukarti Bai to go at his residence but she did not come and
4aid that she will reside at Barojh. Infurther averments he stated that on verification,
the deceased was not found at Bartola. Afier returning from Bartola, Xhalkiya
accompanied with Set Singh Sarpanch went to police station for lodging the report.
On going through his cross examination the facts stated by him regarding beating
of Sukarti Bai by the appellant, is remained intact. This witness has also proved
that before recovery of the dead body of Sukarti Bai, she was lastly scen with the
appellant while she was being beaten by him by means of stick and sustained the
injuries with bleeding. - The presence of the appeliant with the deceased at the
alleged place of beating has been proved by the nearest relative, the maternal
uncle of the appellant, naidely, Ram Singh (P.W.4) aithough he turned hostile on
other facts. He also.stated'that Nehru Singh was taking the deceased to his home
by catching hold her band. At that time, deceased Sukarti Bai was' not saying
anything. In this manner the facts mentioned in the missing person report and
Dehati Nalishi with respect’of the beating of the deceased by the appellant before
her death has been proved ‘by this witness. In the available set of the facts, this
witness Suhablal appears to be independent and reliable as he is neither. relative
of any of the ‘party nof inierested in any of them. ' L

12.  Inview of the afaresaid it has been established on record that a day before
the recovery. of the dead body of Sukarti Bai, she was lastly seen with the appellant
while she was being beaten by the appellant by means of stick, kicks and fists for
taking her to his residence and thereafter on the very next day she was found
dead in some culvert near the field. The other examined witness Bhondu (P.W.5)
did not support the case of prosecution and turned hostile while the other witnesses
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are examined either with respect of the investigation or preparation of different
papers during investigation.

13.  In the aforesaid circumstance, the appellant was bound to explain that aftér

4

causing the injury to Sukarti Bai where she was taken and left by the appeliant. -

In the lack of such explanation of the accused, there is sufficient circumstance on
record’to draw an inference that appellant was the only person who caused the
alleged injuries to the deceased and none-.else and thereby he committed her
murder. We have not found any evidence-on record showing that between the
aforesaid incident of evening and the time when ithe dead body was seen near the
culvert, the deceased was seen in the company| of any other person except the
appellant. In such premises, the chain of circumstantial evidence connecting the
appellant with the alleged murder of Sukarti Bai is'complete. Itis settled preposition
of the law that if the complete chain of circumstances are found to be proved
against the accused then his conviction is only the consequence of it,

14.  In the matter of Sahadevan alias Sagardevan Vs. State Represented by
Inspector of Police, Chennai-(2003)1 SCC 534, the Apex.Court has held as
under :-

(19) THE last circumstance relied on by the courts below pertains
1o the stand taken by the appellants in-the trial as to parting company
with Vadivehi: Here we.must notice that as discussed hereinabove,
the prosecution has established the fact that Vadivelu was seen in
the company of the appellants from the moming of 5.3.1985 till
atleast 5 p.m. on the same day, whem he was brought to his house
and thereafter his dead body was found in the mormning of 6.3.1985.
Therefore, it has become obligatory.onihe appellants to satisfy the
court as to how, where and in what manner Vadivelu parted
company with them. This is On the;principle that a;person who is
last found in the company of another,'if later:found missing, then
th.. person w1th whom he was’last found ‘has to explain the

22

In view of the aforesaid principle,on examining the case at hand, in the lack
of any explanation of the appellant about parting the company of the. deceased
such dictum is applicable to the present case and, in such premjses the findings of
the trial court holding conv:{ctwn against the appellant do not require any.interference
at this stage.

15. So far motive of the appellant to cause death of the deceased is concerned,
although it has come on record that the ancestral property was partitioned and
scparated between the appellant and the deceased. The other examined witnesses,
namely Khalkiya (P.W.1), Suhablal (P.W.2), Manna Singh (P.W.3) and Ram Singh
(P.W.4) have not stated specifically that there was any dispute between the

Y
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appellant and the deceased with respect of any of the property. But it is apparent
and undisputed fact in the case that the deceased was not residing with the appellant
and the property of the deceased was also not in possession of the appellant. She
was residing with her brother Khalkiya (P.W.1). Her land was also cultivated by
one Pusua on sharing basis and, therefore, this possibility could not be ruled-out
that in any case without consent of the deceased the appellant could not get her
share of the property or only after her demise he could have got such property, so,
the motive of the appellant could be assumed that in the temptation of the property
he had committed the alleged murder. Even otherwise, if the circumstances
connecting the appellant with the alleged crime is proved by the prosecution beyond
reasonable -doubt then the absence of motive wonld not hamper a conviction.
Such principle is laid down by the Apex court in the matter of Sahadevan alias
Sagardevan Vs. State Represented by Inspector of Police, Chennai-(2003)1
SCC 534, in which it was held as under:- A

- 241t is-then........ This Court had held in the case of circumstantial
evidence that if the circumstances. relied upon by the prosecution
are proved beyond doubt, then the absence of motive would not
hamper a conviction........

-

16. Tt is also noted that in the accused statement in reply of the question No.47
the appellant himself bas categorically stated that due to the dispute of the
property the witnesses have stated against him, In such premises, the findings of
the trial court regarding motive of the appellant for committing the alleged crime
dos not require any interference and deserves to be upheld.

17. So far'the argument of the appeliant that the missing person report lodged
by Khalkiya (P.-W.1) has not been proved by prescribed procedure is concerned,
we would like to state here that spch.missing person report was written in the
Rojnamcha Sanha at the instance of Khalkiya (P.W.1) by Head Constable Suresn
Pandey (P.W.10) and the same has been proved on record by such Head Constable
by mentioning some material description of it. Such testimony of this witness has
not been challenged in his cross-examination. Therefore, it could not be said that
such Rojnamcha Sanba, the missing person report, the registration of the Marg
and Dehati Nalishi have not been proved on record. All such papers have been
duly proved by concerning witnesses and also by the investigating officer, therefore,
such reports could not be held to be inadmissible on any ground. In any case, if
some lacuna was left by the investigating agency while investigating the matter or
subsequent to it then mere on technical ground, the person like appellant cannot
be benefited by extending the acquittal. '

18.  So far the decisions cited by the counsel for the appellant are concerned, in
the facts and circumstances of the case at hand, the same are distinguishable on
facts and also on the question decided in such cases and the question involved in
the present matter. The same are discussed one by one.
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(a) In the matter of Makhan Singh Vs. State of Punjab-AIR
1988 SC 1705, the circumstantial evidence was not found against
the accused person and on that count such law was laid down
which is not the situation-in the case at hand as discussed above.

(b) In the matter of Anant Bhujangrao Kulkarni Vs. State of
Maharashtra-AIR 1993 SC 119, the accused gave evasive

‘answers when asked about the whereabouts of the deceased on

his interrogaticn by the police but the same was not proved and

only on the basis of recovery of the dead body of the deceased

which was found near the portion of the building occupied by him, .
the accused was not found connected with the alleged incident in

any manner. Such situation is not available in the present case,

hence on the facts such case is distingnishable.

(c) In the matter of Inderjit Singh and ano. Vs. State of Punjab-
AIR 1991 SC 1674, the appellant was acquitted holding that no
direct circumstantial evidence connecting the accused with the
crime was available. The factor of enmity was also considered in
such case but in the case at hand not only the appellant/accused
was lastly seen’ with the deceased but he was also seen by witniess
Suhablal while the deceased was being beaten by the appellant.
In such premises this citation is also not helping to the appeliant.

(d) So far reported cases of this court in the matter of Ramanand

Vs. State of M.P.-1995 JLI-757, Suleman Vs. State of MP-.-
1991(1)MPWN-70 and: Omprakash Vs. State ofMP -2008(1)
MPLJ (Cri.)341 cited by the appellant are concerned, in view of

the aforesaid appreciation and the prmc1plc laid down by the Apex
Court in the matter of Sahadevan alias Sagardevan (supra),

the same are not helping to the appellant.

19. Inview of the aforesaid, we have not found any perversity, error or infirmity
in the impugned judgment of the trial court convicting and sentencing the appellant,

, hence ‘this appeal being devoid of any merits, is hereby dismissed. It appears
from the record that appellant was directed to be, and was, released on bail in
pendency of the appeal. His bail bonds are heréby canceled-and he is directed to
surrender hitnself on or before 10.8.09 before the trial court to serve the remaining-
seritefice, failing which the trial court is directed to take appropnate steps in this
regard. : .

Appeal d:sm:ssed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
- Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & M. Jusnce U.C. Maheshwari

- B _ 17 Tuly, 2009* o
LAL BAHADUR DUBEY ... Appellant .
. STATE OF M.P. ... Respondent ¢ .

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 174 -
Inquest report - Eye witnesses claimed to be present on spot but no enquiry
was made by police - Investigating Officer did not join eye witnesses of
incident in inquest proceedings - Inquest proceedings were conducted before
other witnesses - It is also mentioned that no eye witness was available and”
cause of death was also not known - Above facts cast serious doubt on the
truthfulness of evidence of eye witness. (Para 12)
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B.. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Dead body of '
deceased found hanging in the room - Room was found bolted from inside -
There is no evidence on record fo indicate that there was any other door or
outlet in room - This creates serious dent in prosecution story. (Para 13)
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C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Allegation that
deceased was taken to room by dragging and assaulting and thereqfter coiled a
" cable wire around his neck and pulled it from both ends and thereafier was hanged
- However, .only one ligature mark was found on the neck with mark of knot on the
left side of ligature - There should have been 2 ligature marks in case the cable
wire was coiled around his neck - Evidence of witnesses contrary to medical
evidence - It creates doubt about truthfulness of witesses. (Para 14)
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*Cr.A. No.47/2001 (Jabalpur)
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¢ G S.C. Datt with Siddharth Datt, for the appellant.
T'K. Modh, Dy.A.G., for the respondent, '

‘JUDGMENT

The Judgment of  the Court  was delivered by
RAKESH SAKsENA, J. :~Since both the appeals arise out of the common judgment
passed by the trial Court, they are being disposed of by this common judgment.

2. Appellants have filed these appeals against the judgment dated 19th
-~ " December, 2000, passed by the Special Judge (Atrocities), Rewa in Sessions Trial
’ Nos. 162/1999 and 181/1999, convicting thein under Sections 342/34,302/34 and
201 of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing them to rigorous imprisonment for
six months with fine of Rs. 200/-, imprisonment for life with fine of Rs. 1000/- and
rigorous imprisonment for two years with fine of Rs. 200/, with default stipulation
on each count respectively. In both the aforesaid Sessions Trial, common evidence

was recorded and they were disposed of by the common Jjudgment.

3. According to prosecution, on 12.11.1998 at about 12.15 P.M., Bhaiya Lal
(PW7), lodged the report at police station, Gurh District Rewa that at about 9
AM. when he was at his house, his son Mordhwaj (PW6) and Raj Kumar came
and informed him that accused Kamta Prasad, Sujeet Patel, Ramniranjan Patel,
Kamlesh, Ramanand and others forcibly took away his another son viz. Ashok
Patel to their house and afier assaulting hanged him, the dead bady of Ashok was
lying hanged in their house and the door was closed. He went at that house and
after seeing the body of Ashok Patel through the window came to police station
to lodge the report. Accused persons had killed his son because of old enmity. On
the aforesaid report, Head Constable Udaynath Pandey (PW8) recorded merg
intimation under Section 174 of the Code of Criminal Procedure and Sub Inspector
R.S.Pandey (PW9) went at the spot. He conducted the inquest and sent the dead
body of Ashok for the postmortem examination. Dr. M.K.Tiwari (PW4) of G.M.
Hospital, Rewa performed the postmiortem examination. On 13.11.1998, Sub
Inspector R.S.Pandey (PW9) registered the first information report Ex. P/15 under
Sections 147, 341, 302/201 of the Indian Penal Code.

' 4. After requisitc investigation, charge sheet was filed against the accused
persons and the case was committed for trial. During trial, all the accused persons
denied the charges and pleaded false implication. According to them, Ashok Patel
(deceased) had committed rape on Manwati who belonged to their family and
was also the maternal aunt of Ashok. Enraged village people had caught hold of
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Ashok and had confined him in the room with a view of handing him over to the

police, but out of shame, he committed suicide in the room by hanging. The
complainant party taking undue benefit of this occurrence, concocted a false case
against them. Accused Lal Bahadur, Ramniranjan and Kuntima pleaded that they
were not present at the spot and were falsely implicated due to enmity. According
to Lal Bahadur, in the past a false report was lodged by Bhaiya Lal against him,
but he was acquitted, therefore, Bhaiya Lal roped him again in the present case.

"5, To substantiate its case, prosecution examined nine witnesses. In defence,
accused persons also examined four witnesses. Trial Court relying mainly on the
evidence of PW4-Dr.M.K.Tiwari, PW5-Mukesh Kumar Patel, PW-6 Mordhwaj
Patel, PW7- Bhaiyalal and Investigating Officers PW3-Udaynath Pandey, Head
Constable and PW9-R.S Pandey, Sub Inspector, held the accused persons guilty

' and convicted and sentenced them as mentioned aforesaid. -

6.  Leamed Senior Advocates Shri S.C.Datt and Shri Surendra Singh submitted

that the trial Court committed serious erros in convicting the aemiged persons.
The evidence of alleged eye-witnesses Mukesh Patel and Mordhiwaj was false

and unreliable. Their conduct was unnatural. Names of all the accused persons
were not mentioned by complainant Bhaiyalal in merg report Ex. P/13, though it
had been lodged on the basis of information furnished to him by eye-witnesses
Mukesh and Mordhwaj. The allegations made in the merg report though clearly
indicated the commission of the offence, yet the first information report was not
recorded. The first information report was recorded on the next dayi.e. 13.11.1998,
after the investigation. The statements of witnesses allegedly recorded by the
police on 12.11.1998 were withheld and instead the statements recorded on
14.11.1998 were filed along with the charge sheet. Despite the fact that names of
all the accused persors were mentioned in the merg report, the Investigating Officer
did not make any effort to arrest them. Only relatives and inimical eye-witnesses
were produced in the trial to the total exclusion of independent witnesses. The
prosecution story was otherwise improbable and unnatural and was belied by the
medical evidence. According to them, the impugned judgment of conviction
deservedto be.set aside.

7. ?:Qn'_'-thé other hand, Shri T.K.Modh, Deputy Advocate General for the State
submitted that the evidence of eye-witnesses was reliable. Their evidence was
corroborated by the medical evidence and the merg report lodged by witness
Bhaiyalal. Though some mistakes were committed by the.Investigating Officers
in the investigation, yet in view of the clear and cogent evidence of eye witnesses,
the prosecution case could not be discarded. He justified the finding of conviction
recorded by the trial Court. ~

8  We have heard the submissions made by the learned counsel of both the
parties and perused the impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

o
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9.  According to eye-witness Mordhwaj (PW6), in the morning of 12.11.1998,
his father asked him to bring pipe and rope from the field. He, Ashok and Raj
Kumar went to the field on two bicycles. When they were returning, the chain of
his bicycle went out of free-wheel, due to which, he stopped on the way. After
about 10 minutes, when he reached near the "Khalihan' of Ramanand Patel, he
saw the bicycle of Ashok lying:there. Ashok was not there. He-climbed over an
embanlanent_épd saw accused Kamta, Niranjan, Ramanand, Rajkumar, Lal Bahadur
and Sujeet assaulting and dragging Ashok. He-went there and saw them confining
Ashok inside the room. He though tried to reséue him, but Kintima pushed‘him
- and oiit. When Kuntima intimidated him, he ran away towards-his house and met
- his brother Rajkumar who was carrying a pipe. He narrated the occurrence to
Rajkumar and with him went again at the place where Ashok was confined.
.. Accused persons had coiled an electric cable around the neck of Ashok and were
"'qu]jng- it. Kuntima uttered that Ashok had died. He stated that when they were

3217

" peeping through the window, their cousin Mukesh also reached there and saw the

incident from the said window. Ashok died. He started- weeping. Kuntima opened
the doer and intimidated them, then they all ran away. He narrated the occurrence
to Bhaiyalal and number of other persons. They all reached at the spot., Kuntima
again threatened them that they shall also be killed.

10.  Other eye-witness Mukesh Patel (PW5) deposed that in:the morning when
he was going to fetch labourers for working in his field, near the house of Gulab
Patel, he saw Mordhwaj shouting that his brother was being killed. He reached
there with Rajkumar and Mordhwaj and saw through the window in the room of
Gulab Patel. He saw accused persons pulling rope which was wrapped around
the neck of Ashok. At one side of it were Sujeet and Kamta and on another side
.there were Ramniranjan, Lalbahadur and Rajkumar. Kuntima had pressed his mouth
and Ramanand Patel had pressed his chest. After some time, Ashok died. Sujeet
told others that they should hang the body of Ashok on a peg. Kuntima when-_
opened the, door, she saw them.and shouted whereupon all of them ran away and
went to their house and informed about the occurrence to Bhaiyalal and other
persons. All of them again went at the house. of Gulab Patel and enquired from
Kamta about Ashok who in turn told them that he had been killed. Others accused
persons were also present there with lathis. They again-entered the room. Bhaiyalal
(PW7) deposed that on getting the information from Mordhwaj and Mukesh about

" . the incident, he along with other family menibers went to the house of Sujeet (S/o0

Gulab Patel) and saw Kamta, Sujeet, Ramniranjan, Ramanand, Rajkumar and
Lalbahadur ‘standing there. On asking them about Ashok, Kamta abused him and
told that he was killed and hanged and also intimidated them. From the window
he too saw Ashok hanged in the room and when he got satisfied that Ashok had

died, on a motorcycle with Chakradhar went to police and lodged the report Ex.
P/13. ) .
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11. On a close scanning and scrutiny of the evidence of the aforesaid three
witnesses, we find their testimony highly improbable, unnatural and suspicious.
It's quite unnatural that Mukesh (PW6) who happened to be the real brother of
deceased, did not raise hue and cry and collected people to save his real brother.
Though he saw accused persons assaulting, dragging and confining Ashok in the
room, but he ran away towards his house. It is strange that when he met his
brother Rajkumar, both of them went at the house of Gulab Patel and kept on
silently peeping through the window. In para 10 of his statement, he admitted that
his father and the people who assembled at the place of occurrence did not make
any effort to take out Ashok, who was confined in the room. Similarly, Mukesh
Patel, cousin of deceased, reached the house of Gulab Patel hearing hue and cry
allegedly made by Mordhwaj, but he also went on viewing the incident through
the window. Though at the time of occurrence three brothers of deceased were
present, yet they remained silent spectators and did not make any endcavour to
rescue him. It cannot be assumed of any prudent man to have behaved in that
manner when their brother was confined and was being killed. None of the
aforesaid witnesses stated that the accused persons were armed with fire arms
or other lethal weapdns. We are unable to accept that when Mordhwaj, as stated
by him, remained shouting while witnessing the occurrence through the window,
none of the accused heard his voice or saw him. It is also not acceptable that
when Bhaiyalal and number of other persons went at the house of Sujeet, all the
accused persons remained present there. .

12. Bhaiyalal (PW?7), though informed by Mordhwaj and Mukesh that accused
Kamia, Sujéet, Ramniranjan, Ramanand and Rajkumar took away Ashok and killed
him and though, he hims¢lf went at the place of occurrence and found Kamta,
Suject, Rajkumar, Ramniranjan, Lalbahadur, Ramanand present there, yet in the
merg report Ex. P/13, he named only four accused persons viz. Kamta, Stjeet,
Rajkumar and Ramanand. It is also strange that he named one Kamlesh Patel
also whose presence in the occurrence was not found established by the police
itself and he:was not named even by Bhaiyalal in the Court. Bhaiyalal though
named accused Lalbahadur and Kuntima, before the Court as assailants, but they
were not named in Ex. P/13. Mukesh (PW5) stated that he and Bhaiyalal (PW7)
were though present at the spot when police came on 12. 11.1998, but on that day
police made no enquiry from him. According to him, Superintendent of Police
reached there earlier then Station Officer of Police Station. On 12. 11.1998, he did
not inform the police about the incident as they did not ask anything from him. He
further stated that he did not disclose to police anything even on the next day and
he gave his statement to police only on the third day when Investigating Officer
enquired from him. It is strange that investigating officer R.S.Pandey (PW9) did
not join the eye witnesses of the incident in the inquest proceedings, rather he
conducted the said proceeding before other witnesses, ignoring Bhaiyalal and
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Mordhwaj who were present at the spot. It is also important to note that in the
inquest Ex. P/2 Investigating Officer mentioned that no eye witness of the incident
was available and the cause of death of the deceased was also not known,
therefore, it was necessary to send the dead body for postmortem examination.
On the reverse of the merg report Ex. P/13 also it was mentioned that the cause
of death of deceased was not known. It is also suspicious that though police
received the information about the commission of the cognizable offence on
12.11:1998 itself, yet the crime was registered and first information report was
recorded on 13.11.1998 at 9 P.M. Investigating Officer R.S.Pandey (PW9)
admitted that though he had evidence, still he did not register the crime because
he wanted to get it further verified. According to him, he had recorded the
statements of the witnesses on 12.11.1998, but those statements were'not produced
before the Court with the charge sheet. The statements of the eye witnesses
which were recorded on 14.11.1998 were only filed with the charge sheat. All the
above facts cast serious doubt on the truthfulness of the evidence of eye witnesses
Mukesh and Mordhwaj Patel.

13.  Yet another important aspect of the case is that when police reached at the
spot, the room in which the dead body was found, was bolted from inside. The
door latch was got opened with the help of a bamboo. It remains unanswered that
when Bhaiyalal, Mukesh and Mordhwaj and number of other persons reached the
place of occurrence and found the accused persons present out side the room,
how the door of the room could be bolted from inside, especially when there is no
evidence on record to indicate that there was any other door or outlet in the room.
This further creates a serious dent in the prosecution story.

14. 'We also find substance in the submission made by the learned counsel for
the appellants that-there were serious inconsistencies between the medical evidence
and the account of incident given by eye witnesses. It has been stated by the
alleged eye witnesses that the accused persons brought Ashok in the room dragging
and assauiting and thereafter coiled a cable wire around his neck and pulled it
from both the ends in opposite directions. However, Dr. M.K.Tiwari (PW4), who
performed the postmortem examination of the dead body found only one ligature
mark on the neck of the deceased. He found mark of a knot on the left side of the
ligature on the side ahgle of the mandible. According to him, if a rope was coiled
around the neck and was pulled from different sides, there would be two marks of
ligature on the neck at one point and at other place the ligature mark would be
single. He did not find double ligature marks at any place on the neck of the
deceased. He also did not find any other injury on other parts of his body. The
evidence of eye witnesses was thus clearly inconsistent with the medical evidence.
It rather indicated that it could have been a case of partial hanging. Presence of a
knot mark on the angle of the mandible indicated that there had been a knot in the
ligature which did not fit in the version given by the alleged eye witnesses. These
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significant inconsistencies between the evidence of doctor and the evidence of
_eye witnesses further created doubt about the truthfulness of the eye witnesses.

15. The argument advanced by the learned counsel for the State that the merg
intimation was recorded on the basis of sinformation furnished by Bhaiyalal, a
villager, therefore it cannot be discarded on the ground of ‘minor infirmities, isnot
acceptable to us. Though, merg report Ex. P/13 was lodged by Bhaiyalal
immediately after receiving the information from the alleged eye-witnesses Mukesh,
Mordhwaj -and Rajkumar even after visiting the place of occurrence and seeing
the accused persons at theé place of occirrence, yet it:did not contain-the names
of accused Lalbahadur and Kuntima, °

16. The defence of the accused persons was that on 10.11.1998 deceased had
tommitted rape on Mariwati who.was his maternal aunt. A report in that regard
was lodged with the police which was recorded in Rojnamcha No. 297 Ex. D/5-
C. People of village had caught the deceased and confined him in the room with a
view to hand him over to police, but he committed suicide by hanging himself with
the aid of an ‘electric cable on a peg. Though there was no clear evidence to
establish this defenice, yet it appears significant that when Investigating Officer
R.S.Pandey (PW9) reached the spot, door of the room was bolted from inside,
deceased was found partially hanging in the peg and that an earthen pot was
found lying -crushed under the body of the deceased. These facts threw thick
cloud of suspicion on the veracity of the prosecution story.

17.  All the infirmities and flaws pointed out hereinabove assume importance,
when considered in the light. of probabilities. Circumstances emerging.from the
evidence on record inevitabiyled to the conclusion that the evidence of the alleged
eye witnesses was not worthy of reliance and the prosecution story was.conceived
and constriicted after-due deliberation-and delay and was not free from doubt and
suspicion. In gur opinion, the trial Court committed error in holding the accused
persons guilty and convicting them. .

18. For ail the foregoing reasons we allow these appeals, set aside.the conviction
of the appellants and acquit them of the charges levelled against them. Appellant
10,3 Ram Niranjan @ Narayan of Criminal Appeal No. 102/2001 is in jail, he shall
be released forthwith, if not required in any other case.

19. A copy of the judgment be kept in the record of Criminal Appeal No.102/
2001. '

~ Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra

31 July, 2009%
NANDA : ..-Appellant
Vs. B
STATE OF M.P: > "'... Respondent

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 45 - Age of prosecutrix -

" Margin of error - Age.of prosecutrix assessed above 14 and below 16 years

on the basis of findings of radiologicdl examination of joints comprising
radius, ulna & femur bones and crest of ilium - Admission of doctor of margin
of error of 2 years on both sides was misconceived as ossification fest was
not confined to x-ray examination of a single bone only - Margin of error
could be 6 months. (Para 8)

%, aEg ARfram (1872 &7 1), ORI 45 — AREEN I ARy ~ Ffe
T 3FER — o @Y Ay IR, e AR WIER arRerdt Y WA FRA A Wl
AR Hftrees & R & WEERems wan & el & AR W) 14 3§ § e
3R 16 7 A o7 Pl 2 TE — 91 &R 2 78 B IR B TR 31 FAfFcwd B W
T T aref T T Faifs stire T S daw UE AR B Taw—X WA T
Wt 7€) @ T4 — FfE 1A 6 AT B GHAT AT ;

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376, Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973, Section 154 - Delay in lodging FIR - FIR was lodged after the
father returned back to home as reputation of the family and future of the
prosecutrix were at stake - Explanation is sufficient and delay in lodging
FIR is inconsequential. . . (Para 10)

. TUg wfedr (1860 .%T 45), ©IRT 376, ¥Us HfHaT WiEaL: 1973, &7
154 — YA AR, o aeF o fiere — THAEAR. Rar & W a9 a1 S
@ q1g = B T a9 uRar ) airet o aftEiel @1 afia g R a -
WHRor T ¥ AR U AR, ol Bed § gar e deead 2

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 363 - Kidnapping - Word 'takes’
does not necessary connote taking by force and is not confined only to use
of force, actual or constructive but means ‘fo cause to go', 'to escort' or 'to
get info possession’. (Para 12)

T.  Eve WRGT (1860 T 45), €IRT 363 — TWUSYUl — YK A W@m ¥
ATTTF &Y ¥ TGS o S BT GHT 7TE Fear R Had TR, eyar HeAfdwd
g @ WA 9% Wfya 70 2, 9f gaer def W FIRG FAT, AGIER FEAT AT
‘ool H YT HT E

*Cr.A. No.575/1994 (Jabalpur)
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AIR 2001 SC 2231, AIR 2000 SC 2798, AIR 2602 SC 2235, AIR 1973 SC
2313. .

N.X. Mishra, for the appéllant:
Puneet Shroti, Panel Lawyer, for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

R.C. MisnRa, J. :—This appeal has been preferred against the judgment-
dated 10.05.1994 passed by Sessions Judge, Mandla in S.T. No.105/1993 whereby
the appellant was convicted and sentenced as under with the direction that the jail
sentences shall run concurrently —

Convicted under Sentenced to
Section
363 of the IPC | undergo R.I. for 3 years and to pay a fine
" of Rs.200/- and in default, to suffer S.I.

for 2 months.
376 of the IPC. " .| undergo R. for 3 years and to pay a fine

of Rs.200/- and in default, to suffer S.1I.

for 2 months. -

2. The prosccution case, in short, may be stated thus -

(a) At the relevant point of time, the prosecutrix (PW1), a 13-
year-old daughter of Nanhelal (PW3) and the appellant were
residing in the same Village viz. Tikaria.

(b) On22/2/1993 at about 4 p.m., finding that the prosecutrix was
sitting all alone in the corridor of her house, the appellant
asked her to accompany on the pretext of grazing bullocks.

"~ However, as they reached near his house, the appellant canght
hold of her hand and took her to the house wherein she was
subjected to sexual intercourse and was turned out
immediately thereafter. On her way back to home, the
prosecutrix was found weeping by Chaina Bai and Ahilya
Bai (PW2) and in answer to their query, she narrated the
incident. As her father had gone out of station to sell bullocks,
the FIR (Ex.P-1) could be lodged only after his return.

(c) Upon the FIR made on 26.02.1993, a case under Section 376
was registered at Police Station Shahpura, Distt. Mandla. The
prosecutrix was sent to the hospital for medical examination.
Dr. 5. Shahwar, while expressing her inability to give a definite
opinion as to recent intercourse, prepared two slides from
the vaginal smear for chemical analysis and also preserved

\
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sample of pubic hair and Sari said to have been worn by the
prosecutrix at the time of sexual assault, for chemical
examination. The lady doctor further advised X-ray
examination for determination of the prosecutrix’s age. On
the basis of ossification test, Dr. Karuna Marskole (PW?7)
opined that, the prosecutnx was to be between 14 to 16 years
of age.

(d) On 27.02.1993, the appellant was apprehended and was also
subjected to medlcal examination. Dr. C.B. Badhiye found
him capable of p.erformmg sexual intercourse. The medical
expert further prepared two slides from the appellant’s semen
and preserved the underwear worn by him for chemical
analysis. The. seized articles were sent to FSL, Sagar for
chemical examination. However, the corresponding report
could not be placed on record during trial. .

3. On bemg charged with the offences punishable under Sections 363 and 366

of the IPC, the appellant abjured the guilt and pleaded false implication at the
instance of Ram Milan, who allegedly refused to deliver possession of land even
after receiving a sum of Rs.4,000/- as consideration for its sale. An alternative
defence was suggested in the cross-examination of the prosecutrix to the effect
that she herself wanted to marry the appellant. However, in the examination,
under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, he reiterated that Ram
Milan was the mastermind behind his prosecution on false grounds.

4. The prosecution sought to prove the charges by examining as many as 7
witnesses including the prosecutrix, her father Nanhelal and Ahilya Bai. No
evidence was led on behalf of the appellant. However, Dr. S~Shahwar and Dr.
C.B. Badhiye were not sumimoned as the contents of their rcpoi'ts (Ex.P-6 and P-
7) pertaining to medical -éxaminations of the prosecutnx..and the appellant
respectively were admitted by the defence.

5. Upon a critical appraisal of the entire evidence on’ record, thelearned trial
Judge, for the reasons assigned in the impugned judgment, concluded that the guilt
of the appellant for the offences charged with was established beyond a reasonable
doubt. He, accordingly, convrcted the appellant and sentenced him as indicated
hereinabove.

6. Legality and propriety of the convictions in question has heen challenged on
the following grounds -

(1) Want of cogent evidence to prove that age of the prosecutrix
was less than 16 years.

(i) Absence of corroborative medical evidence as to rape.
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(iii) Material contradictions between the sworn testimony of the
prosccutrix and recital of a belated FIR.

However, the Panel Lawyer, while making reference to the incriminating
pieces of evidence, has contended that the convictions were fully justified. .

7. In order to appreciate the merits of the rival contentions in a proper
perspective, it would be necessary to first advert to the medical and other evidence
regarding age of the prosecutrix. -

8.  Being an illiterate father, Nanhelal (PW3) was not able to state the exact
date of the prosecutrix’s birth. As per-his statement, he had duly informed the
Kotwar about birth of the prosecutrix but the corresponding entry in the register
_ was not tendered in evidence. Contents of the report (Ex.P-15) and the X-ray
plates annexed thereto cleafly indicated that' Dr. Karuna Marskole (PW7) had
assessed age of the prosecutrix as above 14 and below 16 years on the basis of
findings of the radiological examination of joints comprising radius, ulna & femur
bones and crest of ilium. Her admission that margin of error in determination of
radiological age can be 2 years on both sides was apparently misconceived simply
because the ossification test was. not confined t;d X-ray examination of a single
bone only (See. Ram Deo Chauhan v. State of Assam AIR 2001 SC 2231.
Accordingly, the margin of error could be +6 months. This apart, the following
physical features reflected by Dr. S. Shahwar inthe report (Ex.P-6), which is an
admitted document, clearly proved that the prosecutrix was about 14 years of age
(State of H.P. v. Mango Ram AIR 2000 SC 2798 followed) - '

(a) Menarche not yet attained.

(b) Breasts — not well developed, firm pointed and small nipples.
(@) Teeth 6+7 ey

. T7+7 27

(d) Labia majora not well developed.

() Vagina admitted only one finger.

0. Coming to the testimony of the prosecutrix (PW1), it may be observed that
she was able to give true account of sequence of events leading to her ravishment -
by the appellant. According to her, on being persuaded by the appellant to
accompany:for grazing the cattle, she had voluntarily left the house for the purpose
but while proceeding towards the pasturage, the appellant took her to his house
and forcibly committed sexual intercourse with the result that she started bleeding
per vagina. She further deposed that after completing the sexual assault, the
appellant had made her to leave the house through a lane. As per her statement,
while returiing home, she happened to meet Chaina Bai and Ahilya Bai who,
noticing her weeping, had enquired about the cause thereof and were apprised of
what the appellant had done. Her evidence drew ample support from the evidence
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of Ahilya Bai (PW2) and the defence was niot able to elicit any material
inconsistency in their cross-examination.

10.  Explaining the delay in lodging the FIR, the prosecutrix asserted that before
return of her father Nanhelal (PW3) from the other village, she, out of shame, had
not informed other members of the family including her mother about the incident.

Nanhelal corroborated the fact that, at the relevant point of time, he was not
available in the village. According to him, immediately after-his return home, his
daughter viz. the prosecutrix had apprised him of the occurrence and in turn, he
first informed Paranu, Kandhilal and Gaya Prasad, respectively Kotwar, Gram
Patel and Sarpanch of the village before taking her to the police station for lodging
the report. His evidence drew ample support from the statements of Gaya Prasad
(PW4) and Kandhilal (PW5). It was, therefore, clearly established from the
evidence on record:that ‘the decision to take action against the appellant was
taken only after return of Nanhelal as the reputation of the family and future of
the prosecutrix were at stake. This cogent and credible explanation was rightly
considered as sufficient to treat the delay as inconsequential (State of Rajasthan
v. Om Prakash AIR 2002 SC 22335 referred to).

11. The medical report (Ex.P-6) prepared by Dr. S. Shahwar further indicated
that at the time of examination on 28.02.1993, hymen of the prosecutrix was
found newly torn and her vagina admitted only one finger. As pointed out already,
the medical opinion recorded by Dr. C.B. Badhiye in his report dated 27.02.1993
(Ex.P-7) as to capability of the appeliant to perform sexual intercourse was also
not disputed.

12. The contention that the offence of kldnappmg was not made out in view of
prosecutrix’s willingness to enjoy company of the appellant deserves rejection as
it is well settied that the word ‘“takes’ does not necessary connote taking by force
and it is not confined only to use of force, actual or constructive but means ‘to
cause to go’, ‘to escort’ or ‘to get into possession” (See. Thakorlal D. Vadgama
vs. The State of Gujarat AIR 1973 SC 2313).

13. The defence that the appellant was roped in a false charge of rape at the
instance of Ram Milan was apparently improbable as no father would allow her
minor daughter to be used by his relative for wreaking personal vengeance. This
apart, the suggestion that the prosecutrix, who had not even attained the age of
puberty, was herself inclined to have a marital relationship with the appellant who
was already having a spouse, was far from being convincing. ‘ .

14. For these reasons, none of the grounds raised in the appeal deserves
acceptance. The impugned convictions, therefore, deserve to be maintained as
well merited.

15. Coming to the question of sentence, it may be observed that, taking note of
the fact that for the offence of rape, less than statutorily prescribed minimum
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punishment has been imposed by learned trial Judge without.assigning any special
or adequate reasons, a co-ordinate Beneh of this Court vide order-dated 05.01.2008,
proceeded to issue a nptice for enhangement of sentence. In reply, the appellant
pubmitted that all dispytes prevailing between him and the prosecutrix have been
amicably settled. However, the corresponding application for grant of permission
to compound the offences has been dismissed as none-of them is compoundable.
Taking into consideration the social impact of the crime and other relevant
circumstances of the cgse including that a lenient view has already been ta.ken in
the matter, no further indulgence would be justified. .

16. In the result, the appeal , stands dismissed. The impugned conviciions and
the consequent sentences -ar¢ hereby affirmed.

17. Appellant is on bail. He:is directed to surrender to his bail bonds bcforerthe
trial Court on or before 15.10.2009 for being comnutted to the custody for
undergoing remaining part of the senténce

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. {2009] M. P., 3226
APPELLATE CRIMINAL

g Before Mr. Justice S.L. Kochar
6 August, 2009*
SUBHASH _ ... Appellant
Vs, | - :
STATE OF M.P. .. Respondent

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 32(2) & 67 - Medtcal report
- How can be proved if doctor.not available - Médical report should be proved
by examining doctor who medically examined the-vigtim - In ¢ase doctor was
not available, the report can be proved by examining any other employee of
the same hospital like ward boy or nurse who were acquainted with the
handwriting & signature of the doctor - Same could have been admissible in
-evidence as per provision u/s 32(2) .of Act because the medical report was
given by the doctor in discharging his professional duty. (Para 6)

®. wwg Ak (1872 F1 1), ORI 320) 7 67 — fufewia Roe
— B wfaw & o wed ¥ Aty fifecs suws 9 ' - fafeaim Rud sw
fafreas o wET v wivT 1 o T e W @ R o @ - 2fq
fafyas Su@eT 1 8 O Roid o Riftcaea o 5l s el S-ar €1 sreran
¢, 9 fifrare @ swod AR TwRER! & aRkfim ¥, @ wer e wied H) o
TFHd 2 — a8 RUE RIFrm Y gRT 32(2) B SUS ITER A FH TR BT S qE
2 q9ifys fafroas BRI SWo gRIE Bua @ fidgs 3 fafdcda R < T of |

*Cr.A. No.804/1995 (Indore)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) - Gang rape -
Prosecutrix an unmarried minor girl - Presence of semen and human spermatozod
in slide of vaginal swab as well as on her Kurti is very incriminating evidence
and corroborating fo testimony of proseculrix. -~ (Para 10)

. wve wfar (1860 &7 45), e 376(2)(S) — WRifed qATHT —
sl T AR s e — SSETd WY 9 RS § R eFe! axff W
& 2R AT T @ SuRefy 9ga s W € o aftvEe & a2

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376, Evidence Act, 1872,
Section 9 - No test identification parade - Effect - Prosecutrix remained in
company of accused persons. for a pretty long time - She had sufficient time
1o see, identify and keep their features and personality in mind - Description
and. features of accused persons was stated in FIR. which was lodged without
any delay - No harm would cause to prasecutibn case if no test identification
parade was held. D (Para 12)

- T, que wikar (1860 ‘T 45), ©IRT 376, WEW AfFEH, 1872, ERT 9
— 3¢ RFTE WE 98 — 9919 — JARRITER B T TR a6 ARE B W
WY — TS T ST, TEEE 3R 9 TE iR R S § e @ v
o7 — aiftTget T SRR AR T BT Toow YRS AR, # far e S faE e
farera @ T O T o — HfEE B AES B B S Sika T e A B
famre we 9 ol T .

D. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g), 376, Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973, Section 215 - Defect in charge - Appellants charged
simplicitor for affence u/s 376 of IPC - Not mentioned that they committed
sexual intercourse with prosecuirix in furtherance of common intention -
Appellants' conviction converted from S. 376(2)(g) to S. 376 IPC and
sentenced to 7 years RI - Appeal partly allowed. (Paras 17 & 18)

. ®.  <ve wiyar (1860 ®T 45), ©TRT 376(2)(), 3ve, -wS WiwAT
iy, 1973, OIRT 215 — ARG § e — JARAT W FHad FHEH 3 GRT 378
@ st AR T T — BE Seord HE T AT f ST WA ANE B
srreRyr & At & wer fo A — aflenRiat B Swfify W B AR
376(2)(Gf) ¥ o7 376 W aRARfT &R 7 af & WA FRITR BT <vTRY foa T -
el SfFTe: HeYl . 4

E. Penal.Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 - Rape - Absence of injuries
- Prosecutrix has stated about pain and sufferings - Neither prosecution nor:
Court took pain to brought the medical report on record in accordance with
provisions of Evidence Act - However, FSL report is sufficient to corroborate
the statement of prosecutrix. (Para 19)
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Cases referred :
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L.L. Sharma, Dy, G.{4., for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT *"'

- . 8,L. KocHaR, J. :-Both the appeals are ansmg out of one common judgment,
therefore .decided by this common judgment.

2. The appellants Subhash and Bhuru have challenged their conviction under _“

.Section 376 of the TPC, sentericed to R.L for 10 years each passed by the learned
First Additional Sessions Judge, Khargone, West Nimar in Sessions Trial Ne.308/
91 judgment dated 2nd September 1995 '

‘3. According to the prosecutlon case, on 26.05.1999, in the night, at 8. 00 p m.,
prosecutrix and her father PW-2 Munshi were returning back to their house aﬁer
taking night meal in the marriage function of one Kishore Sharma residence of
Village Thlbgaon (Badi). When they reached near Govt. Nursery two persons

attacked on them, out of which one was having sword. Person, who was having .
sword rushed towards her father to assauilt because of which father Munshi ran: -

away. Prosecutrix also tried to run away but she was caught and taken in a field
wherein maize crop was standing. Both had committed sexual intercourse with
prosecutrix against her consent and will and also looted her two golden Bali and
nose pin (Nath), at that moment father and other villagers reached near the field.
Prosecutrix raised cry because of which appellants leaving sword in the field fled
away. Villagers chased the accused and caught one accused, who disclosed his
name Subhash and he tad also disclosed the name of his companion i.e. appellant
Bhuru Pardhi. Prosecutrix disclosed abont the incident to the villagers. Appellant
. Subhash with sword was taken to the Police Chowki. Prosecutrix PW-1 lodged

* - the report in the Police Station and was sent for medical examination. Police

prepared spot map. Appellant Subhash was also arrested and he was got medically
examined by pohce On disclosure statement made by the appellant Subhash, from

" his house nose pin (Nath) was seized. Police collected the clothes of the prosecutrix

.in a sealed packet from hospital. Clothes of the appellant and prosecutrix as well
as slide of vaginal swab were sent to Forensic Science Laboratory and its report
is Ex.P/7. On completion of investigation charge-sheet was filed against the appeliants
for commission of offences under Sections 341 506, 392, 363, 376 of the IPC and
under Section 25 of the Arms Act. Appellants denied the charges, therefore, put to

rah
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trial. They have not examined any witness in defence. Learned Trial Court finding the
appeliants guilty, convicted and sentenced them as indicated herein-above.

4.  Having heard learned counsel for the parties and on perusal of the entire
record carefully, it culled out that conviction of the appellants isbased on testimony
of PW-1 prosecutrix, PW-2 Munishi, her father and PW-6 Gowardhandas.

5.  The core question for this--Cdur-t is to decide whether the statement of these 3
witnesses are sufficient to prove the guilt of the appellant beyoad all reasonable doubt.

6.  PW-1 prosecutrix-has deppse& that she was 14 years of age but prosecution
has not filed any documentary, or medical evidence to establish age of the
prosecutrix. PW-2 Munshi, father of prosecutrix is completely silent about the
age of prosecutrix. The medical report of the prosecutrix was not got proved by
the prosecution by examining doctor, who medically examined her because doctor
was not available. It would be apposite to mention herein that the medical report
could have been proved by éxamine any other employee of the samne hospital like
ward boy, nurse etc., who were acquainted with the hand writing and signature of
the doctor, as per provision under Section 67 of the Evidence Act and same could
have been admissible in evidence as per provision under Section 32 Sub-section 2
of the Evidence Act because the medical report was given by doctor in discharging
of his professional duty. It is really a matter of greaf regret that neither prosecution
nor the Trial Court had taken pain to prove medical report of the prosecutrix
which could be a very important piece of evidence- specially in a case of gang
rape and when prosecutrix was 14 years of age. The learned Trial Court could
have called as court witness any other doctor or witness.from concerned hospital
in exercise of its power under Section 311 of the CrP.C. for proving the medical
report in the interest of justice for just decision of the case and finding out the truth.

7. PW-1 prosecutrix has deposed that she was returning ﬁack"in the evening
at 7.00 p.m. along with her father and when they reached near the Govt. Nursery,
she was caught and lifted by the appellants and took in maize crop field. Her
Salwar was removed and after throwing her on the ground ravished by the appellant
Bhuru.-She described the special features of appellant Bhuru saying that he was

" Dudda (what is meaning not known, there is nothing on record). Learaed counsel

for the appellant Bbhurn has pointed out Photostat copy of certificate of disablement
of the appellant filed during the pendency of this appeal wherein it is mentioned
that right hand is completely imputed from the wrist joint. Disabletl ‘Certificate of
appellant Bhuru was not filed during the course of trial. There is no suggestion
given to the prosecutrix that his one hand was-imputed from wrist joint, samg. is
the position with PW-2 Munshi. Defence has not put any question to .any
prosecution witness about imputation of right hand of appellant Bhuru from wrist
joint and there is no material available to this effect in the record of the Trial
Court. The incident occurred on 26.05.91 in the night. Witnesses were-examined
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in the month of March,1998, therefore, Photostat copy of the certificate filed by

learned counsel for the appellant during the pendency of this appeal in the High Court

cannot be taken into consideration and possibility of imputation of hand after incident
as well as after pronouncement of judgment by the Tri4l court cannot be ruled out.

8.  Appellant Bhuru was having swoid and both appellants threatened

prosecutrid and her father. Father successfully ran away but prosecutrix was -

caught. Prosecutrix identified the appellants in Court and also given special
identifyirig mark. Appellant Bhuru was having some sort of defect in one eye.
Prosecutrix was ravished by both the appellants because of which she had pain
and on cry raised by het, _villagers named Abba, Kallash Chhagan and
Gowardhandas reaglied.on the spot and appc]lant Subhash was caught by the
villagers. ‘Appellant Bhury Ieft the sword in the field and ran away. The said
sword was seized by.the police. Prosecutrix disclosed about the incident to her
father and other villagers. Father and prosecutrix went to the Police Station and
lodged the report. Prosecutrix was sent for medical examination and examined by

lady doctor. Medical requisition form (Ex.P/12) has been proved by PW-7 ‘Head’

Constable, Shanikarlal, over leaf this requisition, medical report is available but
according to'law; it cannot be read in evidence as discussed herein-above otherwise
it could corroborate the statement.of the prosecutrix. Learned Trial-Court has
held that at the time of incident prosecutrix was 10 years of age, which is also
clear from medical requisition form (Ex. P/12) @nd m ‘court statement prosecutrix
has disclosed her age 14 years. Court has also ientioned her age 14 years when
she was examined on 24.03.1995 afier about 4 years of incident.

9.  Article "A" underwear of appellant, article "B" Kurti of prosecutrix and
article C1 and. C2 slides of vaginal swab’ of prosecutrix were sent for medical
. examination to Forensic Science Laboratory and according to Forensic Science
.Laboratory report (Ex. P/7) semen and human spermatozoa was found on these

articles. Report has been proved by PW-4 Sub Inspector Shri I.P.Sharma and

there is no challenge to the Forensic Science Laboratory report in cross-examination
by the a.ppellants Forensic Science Laboratory report is adrmss1b1e as per provision
under Section 293 of Cr.P.C.

10. Prosecutrix was an unmarried minor gu'l thcrefore presence of semen and
human spermatozoa in slide of vagmal swab a5 ‘'well as on her, Kurti is a very
incriminating evidence and corroborating to the testimony of prosecutrix, who had
no axe to grind against the appellants. No suggestlon was given to the prosecutrix
in cross-examination about any kind of previous ill-will with the appellants. Appellant

. Subhash was canght on the'spot and he disclosed name of appellant Bhuru as co-
accused. Prosecutrix has also given description of Bhuru in First Information Report
and in court tallying properly, when prosecutrix was examined in the Court.

11.  Statement of prosecutrix is also 'full'y corroborated by her First Information
Report (Ex'P/1).
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12. Prosecutrix remained in the company of the appellants for a pretty long
time. Both appellants committed forcible sexual intercourse with her in the field,
therefore, she had sufficient time to see, identify and keep their features and
personality in her mind. She lodged the report without any delay. in the same night
at 10.30 p.m. and distance of Police Station was 11 Km. The description and
special features of appellant Bhuru as stated by prosecutrix is fully corroborated
by her First Information Report (Ex.P/1). In these circumstances, if no Test
Identification Parade was held by the Investigating Agency, no harm would cause
to the prosecution case. In case of Malkhan Singh and other Vis. State of M.P.
(2003 (5) SCC 446) the dock identification of accused has been relied upon by the
Supreme Court, because victim was having enough time to see and identify the accused.
In the case of rape, acépsed remains very close to the prosecutrix and because of
sexnal assanlt against consent and will memory of incident remained in the mind of
the victim for a long period. Supreme Court has observed in paragraph 16 as under :-

“In the instant case, the crime was perpetrated in broad
daylight. The prosecutrix had sufficient opportunity to observe
the featuress of the appellants who raped her one -after the
other. Before the rape was committed, she was threatened and
intimidated by the appellants. After the rape was committed,
-she was again threatened and intimidated by them. All this
must have taken time. This is not a tase where the identifying
witness had only a fleeting glimpse of the appellants on a
dark night. She also had a reason to remember their faces as
they had committed a heinous offence and put her to shame.
- "She had, therefore, abundant opportunity to notice their
featuress. In fact on account of her fraumatic and tragic
experience the faces of the appellants must have got imprinted
in her memory, and there was no chance of her making a
mistake about their identity. The prosecutrix appears.to be a
“witness on whom implicit reliance can be placed and there is
no reason why she should falsely identify the appellants as
the perpetrators of the crime if they had not actually committed
the offence. In these circumstances if the courts below have
concurrently held that the identification of the appeliants by
the prosecutrix in court does not require further corroboration,
there is no reason to-interfere with the finding recorded by. the
courts below Wafter an appreciation of the evidence on record.”

13. PW-2 Munshi, father of prosecutrix has also stated that when they reached
near Govt. Nursery, both appellants stopped them and asked their names. Appellant
Bhuru was having sword and about to assault him. At that juncture, they ran
away but he escaped successfully and his daughter PW-1 prosecutrix was caught
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by them. PW-2 Munshi immediately reached in village Kundiya and upon hearing
his outcry PW-6 Gowardhandas and other villagers assembled and came on the
spot ‘with him. They saw appellants running away from the spot. Appellant Bhuru
fled away but appellant Subhash was canght after chasing in the field. Sword was
also lying in the field, which was picked up by him and produced in the Police
Station at the time of Jodging of the report. In cross-examination of prosecutrix
and witness Munshi some discrepancies have occurred which is bound to come
and no witness can give verbatim statement as given in the FIR and statement
under Section 161 of Cr.P.C.. PW-3 Kailash has deposed that upon hearing cry
he and Chhagan reached in the field of one Khushyal where they met PW-2
Munshi, who told them that appellant Subhash and one person had caught his
daughter. They reached there by running and caught appellant Subhash. Subhash
was produced before panch. Though this witness has been declared hostile but
his statement regarding hearing of the cry, disclosure by Munshi about catching
hold of his danghter by appellant Subbash and co-accused and catchiing the appellant
Subhash immediately can be relied upon for corroboration to the-testimony of
prosecutrix and PW-2 Munshi. It is settled legal position that statement of hostile
witness can be used if court finds ring of truth in some material particulars.

14. PW-6 Gowardhandas has also stated that prosecutrix and her father Munshi
disclosed about the incident to them. His statement is also supporting to the
statement of the prosecutrix upto some extent about the incident.

15. PW-7 Head Constable Shankarlal has proved FIR (Ex.P/1). Seizure of sword .

(Ex.P/10), arrest of appellant Subhash through memo (Ex.P/9) on the same day
and seizure of his underwear vide seizure memo (Ex.P/11).

16. PW-4 Sub Inspector Shri I.P.Sharma has proved the seizure of sealed packet
containing clothes of the prosecutrix and slide brought by Head Constable Shankarlal
vide seizure memo Ex P/6 and sending of seized articles to Forensic Science
Laboratory. He has also proved Forensic Science Laboratory report Ex.P/7. This
report is automatically admissible as per provision under Section 293 of the Cr.P.C.
and as discussed herein-above corroborating to the 'testimony of the prosecutrix
about commission of rape with her.

17. Learned counsel for the appellants have submitted that appellants were not
charged for commission of offence of gang rape punishable under Section 376(2)(g)
and ingredients of gang rape are also not mentioned in the charge but the learned
Trial Court convicted the appellants for commission of gang rape and awarded 10
years jail sentence which is illegal. According to the learned’ counsel for the
appellants, appellants can be convicted only for offence under Section 376 of the
IPC for which minimum 7 years jail sentence is prescribed and looking to the fact
that appellants are first offender, they may be awarded minimum jail sentence.

18. This court has perused the contents of the charge and find substance in the
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argument advanced by learned counsel for the appellants. There is no mention in
the charge-sheet about commission of gang rape and ingredients of gang rape are
also not mentioned. The appellants have been charged simplicitor. for the offence
under Section 376 of the IPC. It is true that mentioning of incorrect Section in
charge ipso facto is not sufficient to set aside the conviction of the accused and
accused has to establish prejudice caused to him as per prowsmn under Section
464 of the Cr.P.C. but in the instant case not only Section but even it is not mentioned
that appellants committed sexual intercourse with the prosecutrix one after another
in furtherance of the common intention which is the requirement for the punishment
of the accused forthe bffelﬁ':e urider Section 376(2)(g) of the IPC.

19. Learned counsel for- thc dppellants has placed reliance on Supreme Court
judgment rendered in case bf’ Lalliram and another V/s. State of M.P. (2009)
Vol.1 Supreme Court Cases (Cti.) 17) on the point that no injury was found on the
person of prosecutrix in her medical examination, therefore, her statement should
not be relied upon for commission of rape by two matured male persons. This
Court has perused this judgment and is of the opinion that the same is not helpful
to the appellant in the facts and circumstances of the instant case. In this case,
prosecutrix has statéd about pain and other sufferings. She was also examined
medically without any delay but unfortunately neither the prosecution nor court

took pain to brought the medical report on record in accordance with the provisions
-of Evidence.Act as discussed herein-above. I the instant case, even in presence

of medical evidence the Forensic Science Laboratory report is sufficient to
corroborate the statement of prosecutrix and prosecutrix was a minor girl whereas
in case of Lalliram (supra) prosecutrix was a pregnant woman and subjected

‘forcible gang rape. it was alleged that prosecutrix was raped’ by many persons

several times but no injury was found on her person. The Supreme Court has also
considered material contradictions, improvements, inconsistency and embellishment
in the statement of prosecutnx and other prosecutio witnesses such i$ not a
situation in the instant case- Supreme Court has also cons1dered the statement of
prosecutrix contrary to the.medical evidence, therefore given benefit of doubt to

" the appellant Lalliram.

20, Consequently.for the reasons stated hergin-above both the appeals are

.allowed in part. Conviction of the appellants is maintained under Section 376 of

the IPC but there sentence of R.I. for 10 years is reduced to the sentence of R.1.
for 7 years. Appellants are on bail. They are directed to surrender themselves
before the Trial Court on 30th November,2009 and Trial Court is directed to send
them to jail for serving.out the reminder part of jail sentence.

21. The original judgment be placed in the record of Cr.A.804/1993 and a copy
thereof be placed in the record of Cr.A.No.8§32/1995. . .
) Appeal partly allowed.
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‘MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justzee R.S Garg & Mr. Justice S.A. Nagvi

"7 August, 2009% .
PRASHANT PATHAK & anr. ... Applicants
Vs. - )
STATE OF M.P. R ... Non-applicant

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 158 &
173(3) - Permzssmn/Order of Magistrate. for further investigation not
necessary - Sectzon 173(3) makes it clear that officer ‘especially appointed
u/s 138, pelg;;hﬂg orders of the Magistrate, may direct the officer in charge
af Police Statzon. to make further investigation - Officer in charge is only
required to g:ve an information to the concerned Magistrate - However, his
authority to isstie instructions to officer in charge of Police Station to make
further investigation cannot be short circuited. (Para 9)
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B. Criminal Procédure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 173(8) -
Permission/Order of Magistrate for further investigation not necessary - S.173(8)
of Cr.P.C. opens with non-obstante clause - 8. 173(8) nowhere provides that for
Sfurther investigation permission/sanction, from concerned Magistrate fo whom
report has a[ready been filed, is required. .- (Paras 10 & 11)
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C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 173(8)--
Where officer in charge of police station himself can proceed further
investigation - Procedure after further investigation - When officer in charge
of police station obtains further evidence oral or documentary, he shall
Jforward to the Magistrate a fiirther report/reports regarding such evidence -
After further investigation, officer in charge of police staiion would be entitled

*M.Cr.C, No.1430/2009 (Jabalpur)
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to file supplementary challan - Such supplementary challan is required fo be
filed'in accordance with 8. 173(2) of Cr.P.C. - Once the supplementary challan
is treated to be a regular challan then provisions of Sub-section (2) to (6)
© shall apply mutatis mutandis. - -(Para 13)
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D. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 {2 of 1974),. Sections 173(3),
(8) & 158 - Where a superior officer of police appointed u/s"158 direct the
officer in charge of the police station to make further mvesttgatmn -
‘Procedure after further investigation - S."173(3) is governed and controlled
by S. 158 shall continue to be applicable if the original report was required
to be filed by an officer especially appointed by the Stafe Governmenf -
Then the supplementary challan 7 additional report will also have fo ‘be filed
by such authorised afﬁcer and none other. (Para 13)

%, <ve uidpar wfFan 1973 (1974 &7 2), SR 173(3), (8) T 158 — et
‘m1aa$mﬁaﬁgwgﬁwmaﬁwa&mﬁgﬁmm$mﬁ
IRHR B AR IR IR B3 B v FRY 4 ¥ - [ AR RN
@ 91 &1 uipar — mvrwaﬁmﬁraaﬁ?ﬁaﬁﬁsrmm(a)mmmﬁﬁuﬁ
o7 RIS o8 bR gRT e fFrpe aften gry Yar ey s enifér o = a9
aﬁggmmam/aﬁﬁaﬁﬁqﬁﬂﬁ@mﬁ}ﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁmaﬁsm%mwmml i

E. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 0f1974), Sections. 158 &-
173(3) - Further investigation - Superintendent of Police, Special Police
Establishment informed Special Judge that further investigation has been
started in pending trial - Challenged the legality, enfarceabrhry and effect -
Held - Superior officer may give such instructions to the officer in charge of
the police station ds he thinks fit, and shall after recording such instructions
on such report, transmit the same without delay to the Magistrate - In such a
case, the special -officer is required to submit his personal report along with
the report of the officer in charge of the police station. . (Para 14)
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Arvind Chouksey, for the applicants. '

J.K. Jain, DyA G., for the respondenthtate

JUDGMENT

The  Judgment of 'the Court was. delivered by’

R.S. Gagrg, J. :-By the present petition under Section 482 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, the applicants propose to challenge the legality, enforceability and effect
of the letter of information dated 26.12.2001 written by the Superintendent of
Police, Special Police (Establishment), Sagar to the learned Special Judge, Sagar
tmder which the Special Court, Sagar was informed that in Crime No. 129/95
(Specijal Case No. 5/99) pending consideration against Shri G.P. Pathak further
1nvest1gat10n was started on 10.12.2001.

2. Learned counsel for the applicants subrmtted that provisions of Section 173

are required to be appreciated in the present matter alongwith the legal authority
conferred upon a special officer under Section 158 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure. ~ g

3. Section 173 and Section 158 of the Code of Criminal Procedure read as
under:-

173, Repnrt of pohce offxcer on completion of
investigation.--.

(1) Every investigation under this-Chapter shall be completed
without unnecessary delay. ”

(2X1) As soon as it is completed, the officer in charge of the
pohce station shall forward to a Magistrate empowered to take
cognizance of the offence on a police report, a report in the form
prescribed by the State Government, stating--

(a) the names of thie parties;
. (b) the nature of the information;

(¢) the names of the persons who appear to be acquainted with
the circumstances of the case;

(d) whether any offence appears to have been committed and, if
so, by whom;
(e) whether the accused has been arrested,

(f) whether he has been released on his bond and, if so, whether
with or without sureties;

-/
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(g) whether he has been forwarded in custody under section 170.

(i) The officer-shall also communicate, in such manner as may
be prescribed by the State Government, the action taken by
him, to the person, if any, by whom the information relating to
the commission of the offence was first given.

(3) Where a superior officer of police has been appointed under
Section 158, the report, shall, in any case in which the State
Government by general or special order so directs, be submitted
through that officer, and he may, pending the orders of the
Magistrate, direct the officer in charge of the police station to
make further investigation.

(4) Whgnever it appears from a report forwarded under this
section that the.accused has been released on his bond, the
Maglstrate shall make such order for the discharge of such bond
or otherwise-as he thinks fit.

(5) 'When such report is in respect of a case to which section 170

applies, the police officer shall forward to the Magistrate along

with the report--

* *r(a) all documents or relevant extracts thereof on which the
prosecution proposes to rely other than those already
sent to the Magistrate during investigation;

(b) the statements recorded under section 161 of all the
persons whom the prosecution proposes toexamine as
Jits witnesses.

(6) If the pohce officer .is of opinion that any part of any such
statement is-not: relevant to the subject-matter of the proceedings
or that its dlsclosure to tﬁe accused is not essential in the interests
of justice and is mexpedient in the public interest, he shall indicate
that part of the statement and append a note requesting the
Magistrate to excludc that part from the copies to be granted to
the accused and sta'ting his reasons for making such request.

(7) Where the pohce officer investigating the case finds it
convenient so to do, he may furnish to the accused copies of all or
any of the documents referred to in sub-section (5).

(8) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to preclude further
investigation in respect of an offence after a report under sub-
section (2) has been forwarded to the Magistrate and, where
upon such investigation, the officer in charge of the olice station
obtains further evidence, oral or documentary, he shall forward to
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the Magistrate a further report or reports regarding such evidence in

the form prescribed; and the provisions of sub-sections (2) to (6)
- shall, as far as may be, apply in relation to such 1eport or reports as

they apply in relation to a report forwarded under sub-section (2).

158. Report how submitted.--

(1) Every report sent to a Magistrate under section 157 shall, if
the State Government so directs, be submitted through such superior
officer of pohce as the State Govcrnment by general or special
order, appoints in that behalf

(2) Such superior officer ma’y glve such instractions to the officer
in charge of the police -station as he thinks fit, and. shall, after
recording such instructions on’'such rteport, transmit the same
without delay to the Magistrate.”

4,  Sub-section (2) of Section 173 provides that as soon as the mvestlganon is
completed, the officer in charge of the police station shall forward to a Magistrate
empowered to take cognizance of the offence on a police report, a report in the
form prescribed by the State Government, stating ‘certain particulars as provided
in Section 173(2)(i). Sub-section (2) of Section 173 also casts a duty upon the

~ said officer to communicate in su¢h manner as may be prescribed by the State.

Government, the actton taken by him, to the person, if any, by whom the information

relating to the commlssmn of the offence was first given. Section 173(2) in fact
authorises the ofﬁcqg ifi charge of the police station to submit the police report which
is commonly known, as-challan or charge-sheet. Section 173 (3) provides that where a

superior officer of police has. been appointed under Section 158, the report, shall, in -
any case in which the State Government by general or special order so directs, . be -

submitted through that officer, and he imay,-pending the orders of the Mag15trate
direct the officer in charge of the police station to make ﬁn’ther investigation.

5. At this stage, it would be necessary to sce that what authority can be
conferred by Section 158 upon a superior officer of police. Section 158 clearly
provides that every report (challan — charge-sheet) sent to a Magistrate wifder
section 157 shall, if the State Government so directs, be submitted through such
superiof offiecr of police as the State Government, by general or special order,
appoints in this behalf. A Juxtapose reading of Section 158(1) and Section 173(2)
would clearly spell out that ordinarily a report/challan is to be filed by the officer
in charge of the police station but in a given case, the State Government may
direct that such report shall bé submitted through such superior officer of police.
Sub-section 2 of Section 158 provides that such superior officer as appointed
under Section 158 (1) may give such instructions to the officer in charge of the
police station as he thinks fit, and shall, after recording such instructions on such
report, transmit the same without delay to the Magistrate.

ii\‘
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6. A fair understanding of sub-section 2 of Section 158 shall make it clear
that any superior officer appointed under Section 158(1) of the Code of Criminal
Procedure would be entitled to issue instructions to the officer in charge of the

" police station and shall transmit the matter without delay to the Magistrate. The

key words “officer in charge of the police station” are to be found in Section
158(2) so also under Section 173(2). Section 173(2) authorises the officer in charge
to file the report while Section 158(1) authorises the special officer to file the
report and Section 158(2) authorises such officer to issue further instructions to
the officer in charge of the police station. - —

7. Under Section 173(2) the officer in charge of a pthe statlon has absolute
powers to file a challan/report while under Section 158(1I) the officer in charge of
the police station cannot file the charge-sheet because the authority is conferred
upon the special afficer. The said officer in charge of the police station will have
to work under the supervision, guidance and instructions of the officer as appointed
under Section 158(1) of the Code. A fair understanding of Section 173(2) and
Section 158 would make it clear that they cover different fields.

8. It was then contended that sub-section 3 of Section 173 requires a permissiom’
orders of the Magistrate to proceed further with the 1nvest1gat10n and as in the
present matter further orders .from the Maglstrate were not obtained, the
prosecution could not proceed with the further investigation.

9. A perusal of sub-sgction 3.of Section 173 would make it clear that the
officer especially appointed under Section 158 pending orders of the Magistrate
direct the officer in charge of the police station to make further investigation. In
such a matter the officer in charge is required only to. give an information to the
concerned Magistrate but however, his authority to issue instructions to the officer
in charge of the police station to make further investigation cannot be short
circuited. ~

10. It was then submitted that sub-Section 8 of Section 173 mandates the
permission of a Magistrate before further investigation either under the directions
of the special officer or by the officer in charge of the police station and as no
permission/sanction was obtained by the prosecution/police agency, further
investigation was bad and on basis of the same, the accused persons could not be
sent for trial.

11.  Sub-section 8 of Section 173 opens with a non-obstante clause. It clearly
provides that nothing in this section shall be deemed to prechude further investigation
in respect of an offence after a report under sub-section (2) has been forwarded
tothe Magistrate. Sub-section 8 of Section 173 nowhere provides that for further

Jinvestigation permission/sanction from the concerned Magistrate to whom a report

has already been filed, is required.
12. It was, however, submitted that if provisions of sub-sections (2) to (6).of
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Section 173 shall apply to further investigation then again the permission/sanction
from the Court would be necessary.

13.  In our opinion the argument is absolutely misconceived, Sub-section 8 of
Section 173 clearly provides that the police agency can proceed further investigation
and in such a case, the officer in charge of the police station if obtains further
evidence oral or documentary, he shall forward to the Magistrate a further report
or reports regarding such evidence in the form prescribed and the provisions of
sub-sections (2) to (6) shall apply in relation to such report as they apply in
relation to a report forwarded under sub-section 2. A perusal of the provisions of

law would make it clear that after furthér investigation the officer in charge of the.

police station would be entitled to file a supplemgntary/additional report, commonly

known as supplementary challan. Such supplementary challan is required to be -

filed in accordance with sub-section 2 of Section 173. Once the supplementary

challan is treated to be a regular challan then provisions of sub-sections (2) to (6) -

shall apply mutatis mutandis. Itis also to be seen that sub-section 3 of Section 173
which is governed and controlled by Section 158 shall continue to be applicable if
the original report was required to be filed by an officer especially appointed by
the State Government. If the report is required to be filed by an officer so authorised
under Section 158 then the supplementary chailan/additional report will also have
to be filed by such authorised officer and none other. Sub-section 2 of Section 173
authorises the officer in charge -of the police station to forward the report while
Section 173(3) and Section 158 authorise the special officer. If Section 173(8) is

read in its true spirit, it would only mean that nothing in Section 173 shall be

deemed to preclude furgher investigation in respect of an offence after a report
under sub-section 2 has een forwarded to the Magistrate.

14. At this stage, 1t would again be necessary to refer to Section 158, whlch
provides that the superior officer may give such instructions to the Sfficer in
charge of the police station ds- he thinks fit, and shall, after recording such
instructions on such report, transmit the same without delay to the Magistrate. In

such a case, the special officer is required to submit his personal report alongwith - .

the report of the officer in charge of the police station.

15. In our opinion, in the present matter, the police authorities did not commit
any wrong in proceeding further with the investigation and they were absolutely
justified in committing the accused persons to face the trial.

16. The petition deserves to and is accordingly dismissed.
Petition dismissed.
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